
651 Commerce Drive 

PU8UC AG(NCY 
Roseville, CA 95678 

CPA phone (916) 781-3636 
fax (916) 783-7693 
web www.ncpa.com 

Commission Minutes 
To: NCPA Commission 

From: Carrie Pollo, Assistant Secretary to the Commission 

Subject: NCPA Commission Meeting - February 20, 2025 

1. Ca// Meeting to Order and Introductions 

Chair James "Bo" Sheppard called the meeting to order at 9:30 am at 651 Commerce Drive, 
Roseville, CA. Introductions were made and roll call was taken. Those in attendance are shown 
on the attached attendance list. 

2. Approve Minutes of the January 23, 2025 Commission Meeting 

MOTION: A motion was made by Brad Wilkie, and seconded by Sudhanshu Jain to approve the 
minutes of the January 23, 2025 Commission Meeting. The motion carried by a majority on a 
roll call vote of those Members present as follows: 

PUBLIC FORUM 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

Vote 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 

y 
y 
y 
y 
y 

y 

Abstained Absent 

X 

X 

Chair Sheppard asked if any members of the public were present who would like to address 
the Commission on the agenda items. No members of the public were present. 



REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES 

3. General Manager's Business Progress Report and Update 

Randy Howard reported: 
- There are several new NCPA Commissioners. Staff is working on an onboarding packet for 

new Commissioners to use as a reference. 
With all the late snow and rain this year, the hydro facilities are now building up their water 
storage. 
The Utility Directors' Retreat will be held March 12-14, 2025 in Healdsburg. Topics are 
bring worked on for the agenda. 
A new Strategic Plan for 2026 - 2031 will need to be developed. Staff is hoping to have this 
completed and ready for approval in January 2026. 
Had a Member meeting with the City of Lompoc and presented to the Lompoc City Council. 
Healdsburg and Ukiah Member meetings have been scheduled in March. 
Continuing to work on wildfire activities and mitigation. Spoke at the NWPPA Wildfire 
Conference January 28, 2025 in Portland, OR. 
Arizona, Oregon, Washington and Montana are 'working on a bill in Washington, DC 
regarding wildfire liabilities. /. · 

4. Executive Committee 

Chair Sheppard reported the Executive Committee metthis morning. At that meeting the 
Committee discussed today's Commission meeting item 24 on the Consent Calendar, and 
items 27, 34, and 35 on the Discussion /Action portion of.the agenda. A quorum of the 
Committee was established and the Committee was supportive of the above-mentioned items. 
The next Executive c,omrni~tee meeting is scheduled on March 27, 2025. 

5. Facilities Com11]ittee 

Power Management Assistant General Manager, Tony Zimmer, reported the Facilities 
Committee met on January 8, ~025. A quorum of the Committee was established. At that 
meeting the Committee discussecl today's Commission meeting item 28 on under Discussion 
/Action: The Facilities Committee also met on February 5, 2025. A quorum of the Committee 
was established. During that meeting the Committee discussed items 14- 22 on the Consent 
Calendar and item 25 under Discussion/Action. The Committee was supportive on the above
mentioned items. The next Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled on March 5, 2025. 

'"" ' 

The Facilities Committee also held a special joint meeting with the Finance Committee on 
February 12, 2025 during which an overview of the Generation Services, Power Management, 
and Administrative Services budgets were reviewed. There is no action to report from this 
meeting 

6. Finance Committee 

Administrative Services Assistant General Manager, Monty Hanks reported that the Finance 
Committee met on February 11, 2025 and reviewed items 13 and 23 on the Consent 
Calendar. The Committee recommended both for acceptance and approval. 

The Committee also received a report on the current conditions of the financial markets. Most 
importantly, PFM discussed how national attention on the California fires renews investor and 
rating agencies' focus on wildfire prevention, risk mitigation, and disaster preparedness. In 
addition, rating agencies have also taken various actions (e.g., downgrades, credit watches, 
negative outlooks, etc.) on certain credits in the Los Angeles area, but this could spread 
toward other California utilities. This is a developing action we will continue to monitor. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20,2025 

2 



The Finance Committee also held a special joint meeting with the Facilities Committee on 
February 12, 2025 during which an overview of the Generation Services, Power Management, 
and Administrative Services budgets were reviewed. There is no action to report from this 
meeting. 

7. Legal Committee 

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported the Legal Committee met on February 8, 2025. 
During the meeting the Committee discussed today's Closed Session items. Also, at that 
meeting a number of PPAs and the Renewable RFP were discussed as well. 

8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee 

Chair David Hagele reported that the NCPA L&R Committee· met yesterday and approved 
the FY 2026 annual budget for the L&R program. The goal.9f budget deliberations is to 
ensure it supports the agency's strategic plan for thlyear. Alsp reviewed were key policy 
developments at the state and federal levels. ·· 

Please note that online registration for the annual NCPA/NWPPA Federal Policy 
Conference is now open. This year's event will be held April 27 - May 1, 2025 at the 
Willard Hotel. Registration information for this event can be found on NCPAConnect, and 
will also be emailed out separately t9 our membership and included in our Weekly 
publication. · 

9. Members' Announcements & Meet~ng R~~orting 

No member updates were provided. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to 
determine if any Member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent 
Calendar. Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara abst,ained from the items listed below. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Pauline Roccucci, and seconded by Christina McKenna to 
approve .the Consent Calendar consisting of Agenda Items 10 through 24. The motion carried by a 
majority ·of those Members pre~ent on a roll call vote as follows: 

Alameda 
' $an Francisco BART 

Biggs , .. 
Gridley . 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20,2025 

Vote 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 

y 
y 
y 
y 
y 

y 

Abstained Absent 

23 
X 

21 & 23 

23 

X 

3 



10. NCPA's Financials for the Month Ended January 31, 2024- approval by all Members. 

11. Treasurer's Report for the Month Ended January 31, 2024 - accept by all Members. 

12. Disposal of Northern California Power Agency Surplus Property- note and file the 
report by all Members for the disposal of the following: 2022 Ford Explorer from LEC. 
Fiscal Impact: This report has not direct fiscal impact to the Agency. 

13. Debt and Interest Rate Management Report Ending December 31, 2024 - accept by 
all members. 
Fiscal Impact: Accepting the Debt and Interest Rate Management Report for the period 
ending December 31, 2024, has no fiscal impact. 

I' .,, ~ ,' 

/< : / , ,1 

14. Resolution 25-21, Evoqua Water Technologies,):Lc ·-:- Second Amendment to Five 
Year Multi-Task General Services Agreemen(;,,iApplic8:ble to the following: All 
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) .Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA .Members - adopt resolution , •. 

by all members authorizing the General rv'!an~ger or his designee to enter into a Second 
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies, 
LLC for condensate polisher resin regeneration, DI mixed qed vessei' rental and regeneration, 
RO & UF membrane cleaning, and other water,treatmen,t support services,•with any non
substantial changes recommended and approved by the 'f\JCPA General Counsel, amending 
Section 2.5 Timing of Submittal of Final Invoice fr0frr30 days to 60 days, with no change to 
the original not to exceed amount of $1,000,000 or the 9riginal contract term, for contir)ued 
use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPAMembers, by SCPPA and 
SCPPA Members. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement will remain unchanged at 
not to exceed $1,000,000°over the remainder of the contract term. , 

15. Resolution 25-22,. T.A. Krause, Inc. dba T.A. Krause Construction and Custom 
Painting - First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement; 
Applicable to the following: All NCPA Facilities, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and 
SCPPA Members - adopt resolution. by all members authorizing the General Manager or 
his designee to enter into a· First AmendmenUo the Multi-Task General Services Agreement 
with T.A. Krause, Inc. dba T.A. Krause Construction and Custom Painting for various roofing, 
coating, and siding maintenance related services, with any non-substantial changes as 
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed 
amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000 and amending Exhibit B - Compensation and Hourly 
Rates, with no change to the contract term, for continued use at all facilities owned and/or 
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 
over the existing five-year term, through August 21, 2028. 

16. Resolution 25-23, American Equipment Systems, LLC dba Allied Crane - First 
Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to the 
following: All NCPA Facilities, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members -
adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter 
into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with American 
Equipment Systems, LLC dba Allied Crane for crane inspections and maintenance services, 
with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, 
increasing the not to exceed amount from $225,000 to $750,000 and amending Exhibit B -
Compensation, with no change to the contract term, for continued use at any facilities owned 
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20,2025 

4 



Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total not to exceed the amount of the agreement will 
increase from $225,000 to $750,000 over the remainder of the contract term. 

17. Resolution 25-24, KenMar Instrumentation Services, LLC - First Amendment to Five 
Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following: All 
NCPA Facilities, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution 
by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with KenMar Instrumentation 
Services, LLC for predictive maintenance testing service and vibration monitoring system 
support services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the 
NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $225,000 to 
$750,000, with no change to the contract term, for continued use at any facilities owned 
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total not to exceed amount of the agreement will 
increase from $225,000 to $750,000 over the remainder of the contract term. 

18. Resolution 25-25, American Safety Services, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement; Applicable to the following: All NCPA Facilities, NCPA 
Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all members authorizing 
the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement with American Safety Services, Inc. for rescue response related services, 
with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General 
Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at any facilities 
owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 
over five years. 

19. Resolution 25-26, Thermal Engineering International (USA), Inc. - Five Year Multi
Task General Services Agreement and Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, 
Materials and Supplies; Applicable to the following: All NCPA Facilities, NCPA 
Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all members authorizing 
the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement and Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies with 
Thermal Engineering International (USA), Inc. for condenser related services and 
materials, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA 
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at any 
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA and SCPPA 
Members. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 
over five years. 

20. Amended Resolution 25-31, RF/ Enterprise, Inc. dba RF/ Communication & Security 
Systems - First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement 
Accepting Assignment to Pavion Corp.; Applicable to the following: All NCPA 
Facilities, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all 
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the five-year MTGSA with RFI Enterprises, Inc. dba RFI Communication 
& Security Systems for integrated security services, accepting the company name 
change to Pavion Corp. The five year term and not to exceed amount of $500,000 will 
remain unchanged, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, 
NCPA Members, by SCPPA and SCPPA Members. 
Fiscal Impact: The five year term and not to exceed amount of $500,000 will remain 
unchanged. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20,2025 

5 



21. Resolution 25-34, Nexant Cost Allocation Model Update for Fiscal Year 2026-
adopt resolution by all members approving the annual updates to the Nexant Model to 
allocate budgeted costs to members for Fiscal Year 2026. 
Fiscal Impact: The annually updated Nexant determinants will result in a change to all 
members' allocated shares of Power Management costs in varying amounts. Table 1 of 
Appendix A provides indicative changes in allocated Nexant Power Management costs to 
members based on current Fiscal Year 2025 budget after applying updated Calendar Year 
2024 determinants to the model. 

22. Resolution 25-32, Approval of the Northern California Power Agency's Liability 
Insurance Program Renewal for March 2025 to March 2026 - adopt resolution by all 
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to negotiate and bind the 
Liability Insurance program for the term starting March 1, 2025, and ending March 1, 
2026, at a not-to-exceed premium of $2,730,000 ($2,500,000 NCPA and $230,000 LEC) 
for the Northern California Power Agency and Lodi Energy Center. 
Fiscal Impact: The total cost to renew the Liability Insurance program is estimated not-to
exceed $2,730,000 ($2,500,000 NCPA and $230,000 LEC). This amount is already included in 
the Risk Management budget; no budget augmentation is required. 

23. Resolution 25-33, Approval of the Combustion Turbine Project Number Two (CT2) 
Repower Project Reimbursement Resolution - adopt resolution by all members 
approving the Resolution stating NCPA 's "official intent" to reimburse the 
Participants from future bond proceeds associated with the CT2 Repower Project. 
Fiscal Impact: Approving the Reimbursement Resolution has no fiscal impact. This 
approval preserves the right to recover any project funds spent from the proceeds of tax
exempt bonds that would be sold at a later date. 

24. Resolution 25-37, Update Administrative General Wage Schedule to Include 
Revised Accounting Clerk Series - adopt resolution by all members authorizing the 
General Manager to update the Administrative General Wage Schedule to include the 
revised Accounting Clerk Series I-V. 
Fiscal Impact: There would be no initial fiscal impact - progression in levels would 
continue to be approved by the Manager, Assistant General Manager, and the General 
Manager. 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

25. Resolution 25-27, Collierville Runner Refurbishment Project; Applicable to the 
following: The NCPA Hydroelectric Facility- adopt resolution by all members authorizing 
the Collierville Powerhouse (CVPH) Runner Refurbishment Project and delegating authority 
to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue 
purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA purchasing policies and 
procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed $687,470, 
to be funded from the approved FY25 Hydroelectric Budget. 
Fiscal Impact: The total cost for engineering, materials, and maintenance services for the 
Project is anticipated not to exceed $687,470. Funds for the Project were included in the 
approved FY24 encumbered funds on October 24, 2024, which rolled into the FY25 
Hydroelectric budget. 

Assistant General Manager, Michael DeBortoli, presented background information regarding 
the Collierville Powerhouse (CVPH) Pelton Refurbishment Project. The CVPH operates two 
hydroelectric Pelton units that generate a combined 253 MW of electricity. The runner is the 
prime mover that rotates the generator to produce electricity. Runner number two has several 
damaged areas that need to be repaired including several cracks, and high stress areas on 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20,2025 

6 



each of the 21 buckets that need to be treated. Mike reviewed the repairs needed and project 
costs. The repairs are expected to take three months. A new runner lead time is 16 months. 
There was no further discussion. 

► During the presentation of item 25, Khaly Nguyen with the Port of Oakland joined the 
meeting via teleconference. 

Motion: A motion was made by Sudhanshu Jain and seconded by Brad Wilkie 
recommending the Commission adopt Resolution 25-27 authorizing the Collierville 
Powerhouse (CVPH) Runner Refurbishment Project and delegating authority to the General 
Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders 
for the project in accordance with NCPA purchasing policies and procedures, without further 
approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed $687,470, to be funded from the 
approved FY25 Hydroelectric Budget. The motion carried by a majority of those members 
present on a roll call vote as follows: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

Vote 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 

y 
y 

y 

Abstained Absent 

X 

X 
X 

X 

26. Resolution 25-28, Geothermal C-Site Condensate Tank Replacement Project; 
Applicable to the following: The NCPA Geothermal Facility- adopt resolution by all 
members authorizing the Geothermal C-Site Condensate Tank Replacement Project and 
delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute 
agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA 
purchasing policies and procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total 
not to exceed $300,000, to be funded from the approved FY 2025 Geothermal Budget and the 
Geothermal Maintenance Reserve Fund, and authorization to spend $100,000 from the 
Maintenance Reserve fund for this work. 
Fiscal Impact: The total cost of this project is anticipated not to exceed $300,000. Funding to 
complete the C-Site Condensate Tank Replacement Project will come from the combined use 
of funds from the approved FY2025 Geothermal Budget and the Geothermal Maintenance 
Reserve Fund. 

Assistant General Manager, Michael DeBortoli, presented background information regarding 
the Geothermal C-Site Condensate Tank Replacement Project. Condensate collection tanks 
in the steamfield at NCPA's Geothermal Plants are used to collect the condensate from the 
steam lines and pump it into reinjection wells. These tanks are situated in the following well 
sites -A, C, F, H, Q, P. The C-Site condensate collection tank is nearing its end of life and is 
rusted in several places. Failure of the tank could lead to potential spills and environmental, 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20,2025 

7 



health and safety risks. The objective of this project entails removal and disposal of the 
existing C-site tank, fabrication and installation of a new tank, hook-up of external piping to the 
new tank, and painting the outside of the tank and external piping. A breakdown of the project 
costs was reviewed. There was no further discussion. 

Motion: A motion was made by Jeff Berkheimer and seconded by Pauline Roccucci 
recommending the Commission adopt Resolution 25-28 appointing Teri Alderson, acting 
Assistant General Manager of Administration for Alameda Municipal Power, as a 
member of the Finance Committee. The motion carried by a majority of those members 
present on a roll call vote as follows: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

Vote 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 

y 
y 

y 

Abstained Absent 

X 

X 

X 
X 

X 

27. Resolution 25-36, Nomination and Approval of One New At-Large Executive 
Committee Member - adopt resolution by all members approving the election of Vicki 
Veenker to serve for the remainder of the term as the new at-large Executive Committee 
Member due to the departure of one other Executive Committee Member. 
Fiscal Impact: No monetary impact to the Agency is expected to result from this action. 

A Special Nominating Committee meeting was held on February 11, 2025 to consider the 
nomination of one (1) other voting Member of the Executive Committee for reporting and 
approval of the Commission at the February regular meeting. It was decided during that 
meeting to nominate and recommend Vicki Veenker, with the City of Palo, to fill the 
vacancy on the Executive Committee due to the departure of one other Executive 
Committee Member. There was no further discussion. 

Motion: A motion was made by Sudhanshu Jain and seconded by Pauline Roccucci 
recommending the Commission adopt Resolution 25-36 approving the election of Vicki 
Veenker to serve for the remainder of the term as the new at-large Executive Committee 
Member due to the departure of one other Executive Committee Member. The motion 
carried by a majority of those members present on a roll call vote as follows: 

► During the presentation of item 27, Cindy Sauers with the City of Ukiah joined the 
meeting via teleconference. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20,2025 

8 



Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

Vote 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 

Abstained Absent 

28. Resolution 25-19, Amendment 1 to Contract 21-SNR-02661- adopt resolution by all 
members approving Amendment 1 to Contract 21-SNR-02661 between Northern California 
Power Agency (NCPA) and Western Area Power Administration Sierra Nevada Region 
(WAPA), and authorize the General Manager or his designee to enter into Amendment 1 to 
Contract 21-SNR-02661, acting on beha!f of NCPA, to acquire up to 62 MW of Pacific 
Alternating Current lntertie transmission seryice to the PG&E DLAP based on the monthly rate 
in accordance with WAPA's Rate Schedule PACI-T4 or its successor, including any non
substantial modifications to Amendment 1 to Contract 21-SNR-02661 recommended and 
approved by NCPA's General Counsel\ ' ,' 
Fiscal Impact: Pursuant to WAPA's Rate Schedule PA.CI-T4, it is estimated that the cost of 
acquiring up to 62 MW of Pacific Alternating Current lntertie.transmission service will be $986 
per MW-month, or approximately $61, 132.00_ per month. In accordance with the AAA, all costs 
and charges incurred by NCPA related to the Base Resource Contract, including any 
amendments thereto, shall be allocated and paio by the Assigning Members. 

Assistant General Manager, Tony Zimmer presented background information regarding 
Amendment 1 to Contract 21-SNR-02661. WAPA has entered into a Transmission Exchange 
Agreement (TEA) with the CAISO and PG&E. WAPA is now offering the use of the TEA for 
certain customers to dellver Base Resource into the CAISO BAA (acting as a Transmission 
Ownership Right or TOR). The assigning Members are eligible to receive up to 62 MW of 
the TOR made :available via· the TEA. To gain access to the TEA TOR, a Customer is 
required to execute Amendment 1 to Contract 21-SNR-0266. There was no further 
discussion. 

Motion: A motion was made by Brad Wilkie and seconded by Jared Carpenter 
recommending the Commission adopt Resolution 25-19 approving Amendment 1 to 
Contract 21-SNR-02661 between Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) and Western 
Area Power Administration Sierra Nevada Region (WAPA), and authorize the General Manager 
or his designee to enter into Amendment 1 to Contract 21-SNR-02661, acting on behalf of 
NCPA, to acquire up to 62 MW of Pacific Alternating Current lntertie transmission service to the 
PG&E DLAP based on the monthly rate in accordance with WAPA's Rate Schedule PACI-T4 or 
its successor, including any non-substantial modifications to Amendment 1 to Contract 21-
SNR-02661 recommended and approved by NCPA's General Counsel. The motion carried by 
a majority of those members present on a roll call vote as follows: 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20,2025 

9 



Vote Abstained Absent 
Alameda y 
San Francisco BART y 
Biggs y 
Gridley y 
Healdsburg y 
Lodi y 
Lompoc y 
Palo Alto y 
Port of Oakland y 
Redding X 
Roseville X 
Santa Clara X 
Shasta Lake X 
Truckee Donner y 
Ukiah y 
Plumas-Sierra y 

/ . 

Non-essential Members and NCPA staff left the meeting for closed session items. 
'· 

CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
,_. ,'Y 

Chair Sheppard asked General Counsel to move the Commission into Closed Session at 10:25 am 
to discuss Closed Session items 29 through 33. General Counsel Jane Luckhardt took the 
Commission into Closed Session. Randy Howard and Jane L::u.ckhardt left the meeting. 

29. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATION -
a) Labor negotiat~oris pursuanpo Government Code Section 54957.6: Agency representatives: 
NCPA Executive Committee Members and Human Resources Manager Brynna Bryant: 
Unrepresented Publ,ic E.mployee: General Manager: and b) Performance evaluation pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957{b ): Unrepresented Public Employee: One Category: General 
Manager. · 

30. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEG OT/A TOR$ AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATION -
a) Labor negotiations pursuant to·GovernmentCode Section 54957.6: Agency representatives: 
NCPA Executive Committee Members and Human Resources Manager Brynna Bryant: 
Unrepresented Public Employee: General Counsel; and b) Performance evaluation pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957(b): Unrepresented Public Employee: One Category: General 
Counsel. 

31. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(2)- Anticipated Litigation, four (4) cases. 

32. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1)- Pending Litigation, Mark Myers and Nancy J. Myers v. Northern California 
Power Agency, Placer County, Small Claims Court Case No. RSC0023035. 

33. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUSEL - Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54957(a) - Cyber Security: Discussion of cyber security event. 

OPEN SESSION 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20,2025 

10 



RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION 

All meeting attendees rejoined the public meeting at 12: 15 pm. 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported there was no 
reportable action taken in closed session. 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

34. Resolution 25-20, Approval of the Third Amendment to the Amended Employment 
Agreement for Randy S. Howard, General Manager- adopt resolution by all members 
approving the Third Amendment to the Amended Employment Agreement for Randy S. 
Howard; authorize the Chair of the Commission to execute the Third Amendment to the 
Amended Employment Agreement for Randy S. Howard; authorize the Chair of the 
Commission to adjust the annual salary effective as of the first pay period in 2025, and approve 
the General Manager's Performance Goals for 2025. 
Fiscal Impact: The cost associated with the General Manager's compensation change is 
covered within the current fiscal year budget. No budget augmentation is required. 

Motion: A motion was made by Jeff Berkheimer and seconded by Christina McKenna 
recommending the Commission adopt Resolution 25-20 approving the Third Amendment to 
the Amended Employment Agreement for Randy S. Howard; authorize the Chair of the 
Commission to execute the Third Amendment to the Amended Employment Agreement for 
Randy S. Howard; authorize the Chair of the Commission to adjust the annual salary effective 
as of the first pay period in 2025, and approve the General Manager's Performance Goals for 
2025. The motion carried by a majority of those members present on a roll call vote as follows: 

Vote Abstained Absent 
Alameda y 
San Francisco BART y 
Biggs y 
Gridley y 
Healdsburg X 
Lodi y 
Lompoc y 
Palo Alto y 
Port of Oakland X 
Redding y 
Roseville y 
Santa Clara y 
Shasta Lake y 
Truckee Donner y 
Ukiah y 
Plumas-Sierra y 

35. Resolution 25-35, Approval of the Eighth Amendment to Employment Agreement with 
Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel - adopt resolution by all members approving the Eighth 
Amendment to the Employment Agreement for Jane E. Luckhardt; authorize the Chair of the 
Commission to execute the Eighth Amendment to the Employment Agreement; authorize the 
Chair of the Commission to adjust the annual salary effective as of the first pay period in 2025, 
and approve the General Counsel's Performance Goals for 2025. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20,2025 

11 



Fiscal Impact: The cost associated with the General Counsel's compensation change is 
covered within the current fiscal year budget. No budget augmentation is required. 

Motion: A motion was made by Sudhanshu Jain and seconded by Pauline Roccucci 
recommending the Commission adopt Resolution 25-35 approving the Eighth Amendment 
to the Employment Agreement for Jane E. Luckhardt; authorize the Chair of the Commission to 
execute the Eighth Amendment to the Employment Agreement; authorize the Chair of the 
Commission to adjust the annual salary effective as of the first pay period in 2025, and approve 
the General Counsel's Performance Goals for 2025. The motion carried by a majority of those 
members present on a roll call vote as follows: 

NEW BUSINESS 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

No new business was discussed. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Vote 
y 
y 
y 
y 

y 
y 
y 

y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 

Abstained Absent 

X 

X 

The February 20, 2025 Commission meeting was adjourned at 12:25 pm by Chair Serventi. 

Respectfully submitted, 

II 

JAMES "BO" SHEPPARD 
Commission Chair 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20,2025 

Prepared by, 

II 

CARRIE A. POLLO 
Assistant Secretary to the Commission 

12 



j 

CommissiQn Meeting 
Februar~ 20, 2025 

I 

COMMISSIONERS 
Attend~nce List 

i 

! 

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but [ signature by members of the public is voluntary. 

MEMBER NAME 

1-ALAMEDA 

2-BART 

3- BIGGS 

4-GRIDLEV 

5 - HEALDSBURG 

6-LODI 

7-LOMPOC 

8-PALOALTO 

9 - PLUMAS SIERRA REC 

10 - PORT OF OAKLAND 

11-REDDING 

12 - ROSEVILLE 

13 - SANTA CLARA 

14 - SHASTA LAKE 

15 -TRUCKEE DONNER 

16-UKIAH 



Commissiqn Meeting 
Februa""' 20, 2025 
Attend~nce List 

I 
j 

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the 
public is ~oluntary. 

I 

NAME AFFILIATION 

JJ 



SUPPORT SERVICES PROGRAM STATUS REPORT 

March 18, 2025 

Member Name Designated Representatives Authorized Date 
Confirmation Approved 
NTEAmount 

Alameda - AMP General Manager & AMP City Attorney $ 75,000 06/08/16 

BART 

Biggs Utility Director & City Attorney $125,000 08/09/16 

Gridley City Administrator & City Attorney $125,000 02/07/22 

Healdsburg City Manager & City Attorney $ 50,000 05/06/19 

Lodi Utility Director & City Attorney NTE $30,000; $60,000 09/07/16; 
City Manager & City Attorney NTE $60,000 05/20/22 

Lompoc Utility Director & City Attorney $125,000 11/15/16 

Palo Alto City Manager & City Attorney $ 85,000/yr. 06/05/17 
with up to 3 
yr. term per 
vendor 

Plumas-Sierra REC General Manager & Cooperative Attorney $ 20,000 01/25/23 

Port of Oakland Executive Director & Deputy Port Attorney $150,000 04/14/16 

Redding Utility Director & City Attorney 04/19/16; 

Procurement Authority Increased $200,000 08/20/20 

Roseville Electric Utility Director & City Attorney $ 74,999 10/05/15; 

Procurement Authority Increased 05/05/21 

Santa Clara City Manager & City Attorney $150,000 05/24/16 

Shasta Lake City Manager & General Counsel $ 75,000 07/02/19 
·-

Truckee Donner General Manager & General Counsel NTE $15,000; $250,000 11/02/16 
PUD General Manager, General Counsel & Board 

President NTE $250,000 

Ukiah Utility Director & City Attorney $ 20,000 01/19/22 

1 

3/18/2025 las 



SSPA CONFIRMATIONS EXECUTED/WORK IN PROGRESS 

No. Member Name Date AmountNTE Vendor Name & Short Description 

0349 Truckee Donner 3/18/25 $ 43,740.59 NorCal Power Services LLC; perform 
PUD replacement of transformer bushings at 

Truckee Donner PUD's Tahoe Donner 
substation. 

0348 Truckee Donner 3/18/25 $ 51,584.00 NorCal Power Services LLC; perform 
PUD maintenance inspections and testing of 

substation equipment at Truckee Donner 
PUD's Donner Lake substation. 

0345 City of Palo Alto 1/29/25 $ 17,965.00 Aspen Environmental; natural gas 
regulatory services in CY25. 

0341 City of Roseville 12/18/24 $ 28,470.00 DGS Associates, dba EES Consulting; 
provide financial plan, rate-related and 
cost of service related assistance for 
update of the utility's forecast model and 
cost of service model. 

0340 City of Santa Clara 1/1/25 $ 125,190.00 Central Coast Energy Services, Inc.; 
continued services for SVP's Financial 
Rate assistance Program including 
marketing, outreach, comprehensive 
eligibility determination, and benefit 
processing for eligible applications. 

0338 City of Lompoc 10/17/24 $ 60,660.70 Power Engineers, Inc.; Arc Flash analysis 
for Receiving substation. 

0337 City of Lompoc 9/10/24 $ 68,840.65 Power Engineers, Inc.; Receiving 

Amd. 2/28/25 $ 125,000.00 substation engineering support including 
as-built drawing verification, update CAD 
drawing files, recommend renewal 
options, and prepare preventative 
maintenance program. 

0335 City of Roseville 9/9/24 $ 53,272.00 Richard Heath & Associates, Inc.; 
Technical advisory and analysis services 
related to DSM programs. 

0334 City of Lompoc 8/8/24 $ 8,875.00 Intuitive Group; Grant related services 
including fund ing research, proposal 
development, application writing and 
support related to electric infrastructure 
upgrades, grid resiliency, energy 
efficiency, wildfire/hazard mitigation, and 
EV charging for balance of CY2024. 

2 

3/18/2025 las 



No. Member Name Date AmountNTE Vendor Name & Short Description 

0332 City of Santa Clara 7/11/24 $ 83,985.00 Frontier Energy, Inc.; Provide up to 20 EE 
commercial food service site audits. 

0328 City of Palo Alto 4/11/24 $ 112,214.00 Cool the Earth; EV and Ebike webinars, EV 

Amd. education and discount programs. 

0326 City of Roseville 3/12/24 $ 16,915.00 SCS Engineers; provide LCFS Tier 2 Fuel 
Pathway Validation services. 

0325 City of Shasta Lake 3/6/24 $ 73,480.00 Cooperative Response Center; provide 
after-hours call support utilizing its Energy 
Dispatch service solutions. 

0322 City of Roseville 4/1/24 $ 17,265.00 Frontier Energy, Inc.; Induction cooking 
demonstration and electrification 
training. 

0321 City of Palo Alto 3/8/24 $ 46,885.00 Plug in America; provide EV Expos and 
Workshops in 2024 to promote EV 
adoption. 

0320 City of Redding 3/8/24 $ 39,680.00 AESI-US, Inc.; provide comprehensive 
cyber security risk assessment. 

0319 City of Palo Alto 2/8/24 $ 17,265.00 Aspen Environmental; provide support re 
regulatory and legislative matters and 
objectives, CPUC filings, orders and 
decisions; impacts on the City. 

0315 Port of Oakland 11/29/23 $ 149,995.00 NewGen Strategies and Solutions,LLC; 
Electric cost of Service and Retail Rate 
Design Study. 

0310 City of Redding 5/21/24 $ 36,200.00 Cameron Cole LLC; GHG verification 
services for emission years 2023, 2024, 
and 2025 for compliance with mandatory 
CARB regulations. 

0309 City of Roseville 8/17/23 $ 30,835.00 EcoEngineers; Providing LCFS Pathway 
Registration services for the Pleasant 
Grove Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

0308 City of Redding 8/25/23 $1,167,293.55 Siemens Energy, Inc.; Year 1 of a 5-year T-
3000 control systems maintenance and 
support services program. 

0307 City of Roseville 9/6/2023 $1,196,537.12 Siemens Energy, Inc.; Year 1 of a 5-year T-
3000 control systems maintenance and 
support services program. 

0304 Alameda Municipal 7/31/23 $713,195.50 CLEAResult Consulting Inc.; EV charging 
Power outreach and technical assistance 

services. 

3 

3/18/2025 las 



No. Member Name Date AmountNTE Vendor Name & Short Description 

0303 City of Palo Alto 5/16/23 $51,015.00 Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.; Analysis 
to aid the City in Electric Supply Portfolio 
Planning. 

0298 City of Palo Alto 3/16/23 $249,829.00 iParametrics LLC; Grant writing services 
for Electric GRIP Grant and for Gas 
NGDISM Grant and for Post-Award 
services and support for future grants. 

0295 Alameda Municipal 5/3/23 $250,000.00 SpryPoint Services, Inc.; Implement 
Power SpryMobile Asset & Workflow 

Management Software to support AMP's 
operational needs through September 14, 
2027. 

0283 Alameda Municipal 11/29/22 $141,075.00 Cooperative Respo'nse Center; for after-
Power hours answering services for 36-month 

period through November 2025. 

0277 City of Lodi 9/28/22 $156,460.00 Electric Power Systems International, Inc.; 
Specialized electrical services as identified 
in 9/26/22 letter addressed to Lodi. 

0269 City of Lodi 10/18/22 $281,460.00 Cooperative Response Center, Inc.; after-
hours answering services for Lodi Electric 
and Lodi Public Works departments for 
three-year period. 

0258 Alameda Municipal 6/6/22 $70,255.00 Norwood Creative Group, Inc. (f/k/a Dee's 
Amd. Power 8/30/23 Design Box, LLC); Graphic design services 

including branding package development, 
document creation including newsletters, 
bill inserts, online ads, and information 
sheets through FY25. 

0257 Truckee Donner 7/1/22 $60,000.00 iParametrics; Grant writing services. 
PUD 

0253 City of Palo Alto 7/26/22 $29,250.00 D+R International; provide network 
access via Qmerit to EV vetted local 
contractors able to install EV chargers and 
conduct electric panel upgrades. Includes 
White Label Package with standard 
reporting. (No actual installation included 
in the services.) 

0249 City of Lodi 7/21/22 $ 92,170.00 Central Coast Energy Services, Inc.; 
income verification and recertification 
services for financial rate assistance 
programs through FY25. 

4 

3/18/2025 las 



No. Member Name Date AmountNTE Vendor Name & Short Description 

0236 City of Santa Clara 3/1/22 $426,328.00 CLEAResult; EV charging structure 

Amd. 3/7/24 $426,328.00 technical assistance, electrification 
education, and electrification assessment 

Amd.2 12/5/24 $607,058.00 services. Amd. to extend term through 
12/17/25. 

0224 City of Healdsburg 7/1/21 $ 9,394.00 HOT /SHOT Infrared Inspections Inc.; 

Amd. 5/16/23 infrared inspections of one substation and 
overhead 12kv distribution system. 

Amd.2 12/31/23 

0186 Alameda Municipal 9/21/20 $200,000.00 Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.; services 

Amd. Power 7/23/21 related to electric transmission issues, 
grid planning, load levels, regulatory 

Amd.2 8/23/22 matters, litigation support, through FY24. 

Amd.3 12/8/23 

SSA CONFIRMATIONS EXECUTED AND IN PROGRESS 

(SERVICES THROUGH SCPPA CONTRACTS OR TO SCPPA MEMBERS THROUGH NCPA CONTRACTS) 

No. Member Name Date AmountNTE Vendor Name & Short Description 

0296 Alameda -AMP 6/29/23 $121,670.00 Radian Generation LLC; provide NERC 
regulatory compliance administrative 
services. 

0265 City of Santa Clara 7/6/23 $98,965.00 Tinker, LLC; provide its turnkey Energy 
Education Program through a digital 
science-based curriculum to teach students 
about energy and using it wisely. 

5 

3/18/20251as 



651 Commerce Drive 

Roseville, CA 95678 

phone (916) 781-3636 
fax (916) 783-7693 
web www.ncpa.com 

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5 

Date: March 27, 2025 

To: NCPA Commission 

Subject: March 5, 2025 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral 
Committee report. 



651 Commerce Drive 

Roseville, CA 95678 

phone (916) 781-3636 
fax (916) 783-7693 
web www.ncpa.com 

Minutes 
To: NCPA Facilities Committee 

From: Cheryl Bolt 

Subject: March 5, 2025 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

1. Call Meeting to Order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair Nick 
Rossow (Redding) at 9:03 am. Attending via teleconference and on-line presentation were Alan 
Harbottle, Midson Hay, Ben Rings and Chris Ferrera (Alameda), Bo Sheppard (Biggs), Ross 
Pippitt (Gridley), Brad Wilkie (Lompoc), Vicente Rios and Jim Stack (Palo Alto), Nathan Tang 
and Liem Nguyen (Port of Oakland), Nick Rossow and Joseph Sloan (Redding), Basil Wong and 
Pia Sok (Santa Clara), Pete Lorenz (TIO non-voting Member), and Cindy Sauers (Ukiah). Those 
attending in person are listed on the attached Attendance List. At the time of roll call, Committee 
Representatives from BART, Healdsburg, Plumas-Sierra, Shasta Lake, and TIO, were absent. A 
quorum of the Committee was established at the time of roll. 

PUBLIC FORUM 

No public comment. 

OPEN SESSION 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

2. Approval of Minutes from the February 5, 2025 regular Facilities Committee meeting and 
the February 12, 2025 Special Joint Facilities and Finance Committee meeting. 

Motion: A motion was made by Bo Sheppard and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending 
approval of the minutes from the February 2, 2025 regular Facilities Committee meeting and the 
February 12, 2025 Special Joint Facilities and Finance Committee meeting. The motion carried by 
a majority of those Committee Members present on a roll call vote as follows: YES = Alameda, 
Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, Santa Clara and 
Ukiah. The motion passed. 

3. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Coffman Engineers, Inc. Multi-Task Professional 
Services Agreement-The Plant Manager presented background on this current NCPA vendor, 
who will provide fire protection, mechanical, electrical, or civil engineering services. Staff is 
seeking a recommendation from the Facilities Committee for Commission approval of a five-year 
Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between NCPA and Coffman Engineers, Inc., in an 
amount not to exceed $1,000,000 for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA 



Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members. NCPA has similar agreements in place with GHD, 
Inc., Worley Group, Inc., and Ainsworth Associates Mechanical Engineers. The Committee had 
no further questions on this item. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years. 
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following 
NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

Motion: A motion was made by Brad Wilkie and seconded by Brian Schinstock seeking a 
recommendation for Commission approval of five-year MTPSA with Coffman Engineers, Inc. The 
motion carried by a majority of those Committee Members present on a roll call vote as follows: 
YES= Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, Santa Clara, 
and Ukiah. ABSTAIN= Palo Alto. The motion passed. 

4. All NCPA Facilities - MP Environmental Services, Inc. Second Amendment to the Multi
Task General Services Agreement - The Plant Manager presented background information 
on this current NCPA vendor, who provides miscellaneous maintenance services. This 
agreement has primarily been used by the Geo Facility for sulfur hauling and bin rental services 
and the agreement is running low on funds. The second amendment will increase the not to 
exceed amount from 4,000,000 to 5,000,000 for the remainder of the agreement term, which will 
primarily be used for Geo's Spring Outage. Staff is seeking a recommendation from the 
Facilities Committee for Commission approval of a Second Amendment to the Five-Year Multi
Task General Services Agreement with MP Environmental Services, Inc., increasing the not to 
exceed amount from $4,000,000 to $5,000,000, with no change to the agreement terms and 
conditions, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA 
General Counsel, for continued use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. NCPA has 
similar agreement in place with Gifford's Backhoe Services, Ancon dba Ancon Marine, Inc., and 
Republic Services, Inc. dba Advanced Chemical Transport, LLC dba ACTenviro. The 
Committee had no further questions on this item. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Upon execution, the total not to exceed the amount of the agreement will increase from 
$4,000,000 to $5,000,000 over the remainder of the contract term. Purchase orders referencing 
the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and 
procedures. 

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Bo Sheppard seeking a 
recommendation for Commission approval of a Second Amendment to the Five-Year MTGSA with 
MP Environmental Services, Inc. The motion carried by a majority of those Committee Members 
present on a roll call vote as follows: YES= Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, 
Roseville, Santa Clara, and Ukiah. ABSTAIN= Port of Oakland and Redding. The motion passed. 

5. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Epidendio Construction, Inc. First Amendment to 
the Multi-Task General Services Agreement - The Plant Manager presented information on 
this current NCPA vendor who provides miscellaneous maintenance services. This agreement 
has primarily been used by the Geothermal Facility for road maintenance and is now running 
low on funds. Staff is requesting a recommendation from the Facilities Committee for 
Commission approval to enter into a First Amendment to the Five-Year Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement with Epidendio Construction, Inc for miscellaneous maintenance services 
which includes labor, tools and vehicles to perform services, with any non-substantial changes 
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel , increasing the not to exceed 
amount from $1,000,000 to $2,000,000 and amending Exhibit 8- Compensation, with no 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

March 5, 2025 

2 



change to the contract term, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, 
NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and by SCPPA Members. NCPA has similar agreements in place 
with Northern Industrial Construction, Gifford's Backhoe Services, Granite Construction 
Company, and Rege Construction, Inc. The Committee had no further questions on this item. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Upon execution, the total not to exceed amount of the agreement will increase from $1,000,000 
to $2,000,000 over the remainder of the contract term. Purchase orders referencing the terms 
and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and 
procedures. 

Motion: A motion was made by Alan Harbottle and seconded by Brad Wilkie recommending 
Commission approval of a First Amendment to the Five-Year Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement between NCPA and Epidendio Construction, Inc. The motion carried by a majority of 
those Committee Members present on a roll call vote as follows: YES= Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, 
Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, Santa Clara, and Ukiah. The 
motion passed. 

6. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
First Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement - The Plant Manager 
presented information on this existing NCPA vendor, who provides general maintenance 
services, including welding, safety, and fire watch services This agreement has been primarily 
used by the Geothermal Facility for fire mitigation; however the agreement is running low on 
funds. Staff is seeking a recommendation from the Facilities Committee for Commission 
approval of the First Amendment to the Five-Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement 
between NCPA and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction for general maintenance 
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General 
Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $2,500,000 to $3,000,000 and amending 
Exhibit B - Compensation, with no change to the contract term, for continued use at any 
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA 
Members. The Committee had no further questions on this item. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Upon execution, the total not to exceed amount of the agreement will increase from $2,500,000 
to $3,000,000 over the remainder of the contract term. Purchase orders referencing the terms 
and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and 
procedures. 

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Basil Wong recommending 
Commission approval of a First Amendment to the five-year MTGSA with Brian Davis dba 
Northern Industrial Construction. The motion carried by a majority of those Committee Members 
present on a roll call vote as follows: YES= Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi , Lompoc, Palo Alto, 
Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, Santa Clara, and Ukiah. The motion passed. 

7. All NCPA Facilities - Brenntag Pacific, Inc. Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of 
Equipment, Materials and Supplies - The Plant Manager provided background information on 
this current NCPA vendor that provides delivery of various chemicals. Staff is seeking a 
recommendation from the Facilities Committee for Commission approval of a five-year MTA
EMS with Brenntag Pacific, Inc. for purchase of chemicals, with a not to exceed amount of 
$2,500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. NCPA has similar 
agreements with Hill Brothers Chemical Company, Industrial Solution Services, Northstar 
Chemical, Thatcher Company of California, and Univar Solutions. The Committee had no further 
questions on this item. 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

March 5, 2025 

3 



FISCAL IMPACT: 
Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,500,000 over five years. 
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following 
NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Brian Schinstock recommending 
Commission approval of a five-year MTA-EMS with Brenntag Pacific, Inc. for purchase of 
chemicals. The motion carried by a majority of those Committee Members present on a roll call 
vote as follows: YES= Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Roseville, Santa Clara, 
and Ukiah. ABSTAIN= Port of Oakland and Redding. The motion passed. 

8. Grace Orchard Energy Center Final Project Participation Percentages - Staff presented 
background information on the Renewable Power Purchase Agreement with Grace Orchard 
Energy Center, LLC. Early in the project, 100% of the participation was assigned to Santa Clara, 
however, the project percentages have now been updated and finalized. Staff is seeking a 
recommendation from the Facilities Committee for Commission approval of the amendment to 
the Third Phase Agreement with Grace Orchard Energy Center, LLC to add Table 3 to Exhibit A 
to establish final project participation percentages for the project, including any non-substantive 
modifications to Exhibit A that may be required to incorporate Table 3 as approved by the NCPA 
General Counsel. The Committee had no further questions on this item. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Third Phase Agreement, each Participant 
acknowledges and agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Third Phase 
Agreement, and that the Third Phase Agreement is written as a "take-or-pay" agreement, and 
any Products delivered to NCPA under the PPA shall be delivered to each Participant in 
proportion to such Participant's Project Participation Percentage as set forth in Exhibit A of the 
Third Phase Agreement, and each Participant shall accept and pay for its respective percentage 
of such products. 

NCPA's costs for development and administration of the PPA and the Third Phase Agreement 
will be allocated to Members in accordance with the Third Phase Agreement, the Power 
Management and Administrative Services Agreement, the Amended and Restated Facilities 
Agreement, and approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA annual 
budget. 

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Bo Sheppard recommending 
Commission approval of the Amendment to the Third Phase Agreement for Renewable Power 
Purchase Agreement with Grace Orchard Energy Center, LLC (Third Phase Agreement), to add 
Table 3 to Exhibit A. The motion carried by a majority of those Committee Members present on a 
roll call vote as follows: YES= Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Port of Oakland, Redding, 
Roseville, Santa Clara, and Ukiah. ABSTAIN= Palo Alto. The motion passed. 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

March 5, 2025 

4 



INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

9. New Business Opportunities - Power Management Staff reviewed key projects from the 
proposals received for the Renewable Energy Resources and Energy Storage Resources. The 
projects and their updates are listed below. 

■ Vine Hill 1 - 4.4 MW Solar 
Status: Draft PPA provided to Seller for review 
Update: Project delayed and proposed price increase. Waiting to hear back from the 
developer 

■ Terra-Gen Discovery - 50 MW Index+ PCC 1 
Status: currently seeking updated proposal from Seller 
Update: Seller indicated updated offer to be sent in next few weeks. Pending developer 
update 

■ Las Camas - 200 MW Solar+ 100 MW BESS 
Status: Draft LOI provided to Seller for consideration 
Update: This project remains on hold; refocus on Sonrisa Solar Park 

■ Maestro - 150 MW Solar + 150 MW BESS 
Status: Executed LOI 
Update: Waiting on CAISO to complete their evaluation regarding ranking. 

• Trolley - Up to 400 MW BESS (current 320 MW subscription) 
Status: PPA currently subject to negotiation 
Update: Multiple turns have been provided to the developer. Meeting scheduled for March 6 
with the Members 

■ Wildcat - 100 MW PV 
Update: NCPA staff have developed an initial draft of the PPA. Have asked the developer 
for updated fixed rate price of anything above 100 MW 

■ Sonrisa Solar Park-100 MW Solar+ 92 MW BESS, with RA Capacity attributes 
Est. COD: December 31, 2026 
Update: NCPA staff recently provided a turn of the PPA to the developer for review; Next 
steps is for the developer to provide NCPA with a turn of the PPA 

10. Proposed FY2026 Annual Budget Review - Staff provided an informational overview and 
summarized the proposed final FY 2026 budget; incorporating changes from feedback received 
from the February 12, 2025 Special Facilities Committee meeting, as well as further discussions 
with NCPA staff, which yields a net $36. 7m decrease. 

NCPA Accounting staff outlined changes that were made since the initial FY2026 budget review. 
While there were increases in costs seen in some areas of the organization (Member 
Resources Natural Gas, Western Resources, Net Load costs, Transmissions costs, and Judicial 
Action) many other areas saw a decrease in costs. While labor costs are continuing to increase, 
the new positions that were earmarked for FY 2026 have been removed and the new position at 
the Hydro facility has been changed from a FTE to part time. 

The FY2026 proposed budget will be presented to the Utility Directors for review at the March 
Utility Director's Retreat and previewed by the Commission in the March 27 Commission 
meeting. Staff will then make any final budget adjustments/revisions to allocations, and the final 
FY2026 budget will be presented to the Commission for approval in the April 24, 2025 meeting. 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

March 5, 2025 

5 



11. NCPA Disaster Recovery Center Update - NCPA's Facilities Manager provided the 
Committee with an update on the Disaster Recovery Center (DRC) project. 
• 

• 

• 

Key Project Updates 
- Site work demolition - Completed 

Interior demolition - 95% Complete 
- Plumbing trenching and excavation - Complete 
- Plumbing tie in and backfill - Completed 
- Mechanical duct demolition - Completed 
- Mechanical ducting and controls will tie into the Automated Logic Controls - Work In 

Progress 
- Worked with the contactor to perform an intensive water intrusion testing -Testing 

Completed 
- Water penetration testing resulted in determining the window seals are compromised. 

Staff has engaged with a glazier for pricing on silicone repair of all exterior windows -
Work In Progress 

Project Safety 
- 0 Near misses 
- 0 First aids 
- 0 Recordables 

Daily tailboard meetings to review safety procedures and identify high-risk activities. 
Deferred Submittals 
- Fire Sprinkler and Fire System Deferred Submittals are scheduled to be submitted by 

March 7, 2025 
- Generator and Automatic Transfer Switch (A TS) submittals are scheduled for submission 

by March 7, 2025 

• 

- Sacramento Air Quality Management District Generator submittals are scheduled for 
submission the week of March 10, 2025 

Project Schedule 
- Substantial completion target is June 24, 2025 
- Project closeout and final completion July 9, 2025 

12. NCPA Generation Services Plant Updates - Plant Staff provided the Committee an update on 
current plant activities and conditions. 

CTs - CT1 had O Ghost starts and 9 actual of 2 forecasted. FYTD total is 147 starts. CT2 had O 
starts of O forecasted . FYTD total is 41 starts 
• Outages 

CT1 Lodi 
• No outages - Available 
CT1 Alameda U1/U2 
• On February 12 @1457 thru February 13@ 1153, U2 was called in RTM; unfortunately, 

U2 tripped shortly after start up. Discovered exciter power supply had an internal fault due 
to over temperature, fan wiring was found defective. Fan was rewired and unit is 
operational 

CT2 STIG 
• Unit is no longer operational 

• CT1 Lodi Run Hours 
• YTD hours 4.69 of 200 allowed (based on calendar year) 

• CT1 Alameda Diesel Hours 
• U 1 = 6. 7 4 hrs. of 42 (in any consecutive 12-month period) 
• U2= 3.88 hrs. of 42 (in any consecutive 12-month period) 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

March 5, 2025 

6 



■ Planned Outages 
• CT1 Lodi - May 1 thru May 31, 2025 

• Safety 
• No issues to report 

■ Environmental 
• Submitted application to SJVAPCD for CT2 air permit as a dormant emissions unit 
• CT2 Fuel piping has been disconnected to GT as per district's request 
• Once SJVAPCD issues ATC under permit N-2697-1-9, CEMS will be inoperative while unit 

is dormant and QA procedures will not be required, (RATA/CGA/Linearity) testing 

Geo - The average Net Generation for the month of February was 79.6 MW. The total Net 
Generation was 53.5 GWhrs. The FY 2025 Forecasted Net Generation = 494.6 GWh YTD. The 
FY 2025 Actual Net Generation = 484.4 GWhrs YTD, which is -2.0% below forecast. 
■ 

■ 

Outages 
Plant 1 & 2 Unit Trips 
• On February 9 at 2:30 pm, PG&E made a statement that a lightning strike occurred on the 

Plant 1 (U1&U2) 230 KV Lakeville line causing it to relay 
• Three minutes later, a slug of H2S gas caused a unit runback on Plant 2, causing U4 to 

trip offline on reverse current 
o The Unit cross tie valve was open 20% to balance the steamfield pressure 

• Plant 2 (U4) was restarted on Feb. 9th· 

• Plant 1 (U 1) was restarted on Feb. 12th 

• Plant 1 (U2) was restarted on Feb. 14th 

• The piping movement/damage to the supports was noticed the following day on Feb. 10th , 

and the header was subsequently isolated on Feb.12th 

• Root Cause: A common 42" steam pipeline moved/jumped along eight pipeline supports 
due to a Pressure/water hammer event that may have occurred during the Unit trip or the 
Plant 2 restart 

• Staff is working to get the pipeline inspected, moved back onto the supports, and repaired 
during the P2 outage in March. The section of piping is approximately 200 ft long 

• There is a 12MW restriction with the Cross Tie valved out 
Emergency Response Plan Executed - February 11, 2025 at Plant 1 Turbine Building 
13.BkV Switchgear Room 
• At 10:42 am, a fire alarm sounded. At 10:43 am, plant personnel verified that smoke was 

visible from the switchgear room via radio communication. At 10:44 am, an evacuation 
order was given, open Units 1 & 2 OCBs to the plant. The plant went dark with no power 
being supplied; all personnel evacuated the building 

• Root Cause: It was determined that the fire was due to a faulty DC breaker charging 
motor, which kept running and overheated. The motor is supposed to automatically shut 
off upon a full charge 

• The entire breaker was sent out to be refurbished and the motor will be replaced. The 
power supply wires from the DC battery room will be checked for proper continuity prior to 
reinstalling the breaker assembly. The Plant Manager reported that the unit was returned 
to service 48 hours after the onset of the incident 

Planned Outages 
• Plant #2 outage has commenced beginning March 1st and will continue through the end of 

the month. Both strainers were intact, however, U4 steam strainer inspections identified a 
crack underneath the stainless-steel basket lip towards the top of the basket. These 
baskets were last replaced in 2019 but were scheduled to be replaced as part of the Spring 
2025 Outage, Preventative maintenance measures are in place to inspect annually across 
all units 

• Plant #1 outage is set for May 1st -31 st 2025 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

March 5, 2025 

7 



■ Steamfield Activity - February 2025 
• Steamfield Transmitter (Production Well) Calibrations- Completed 
• Well cementing (Top Jobs)- 90% Confined Space wells remaining- March/April [1 week] 
• Static Wellhead Pressure Measurements- March Outage [1 month] 
• H-Site Condensate Tank Patching, Replace MOV- March/April [1 week] 
• Pressure Survey Phase Ill (Diff. Press. at five locations)- April [1 day] 
• Wellhead Casing thickness inspections- March/April [2-3 weeks] 
• Wellhead Wing valve Insulations- April (Tentative) 
• C-Site Condensate Tank- March/April [10 weeks after Materials] 
• Geothermex Steamfield Injection Optimization Modelling - March/April 
• C9 Workover Proposal- After Forecast No. 4 [2 weeks] 
• E-Site Fire water Dip Tank (Auto Fill)- Public Works Project 
• Steamfield Report- April/May 
• Annubar Inspections, Venturi Calibrations - May 
• Injection Well Flow Meter Calibration/Inspection - May (Tentative) 

■ Key Projects 
Previously approved 2024/2025 

• Plant 2 - Fire System Alarm Annunciators -Started in October 2024- Completed (CEC 
review moved out until April due to planned outage ) 

• SEGEP Air Compressors - Parts arriving later this month. Installation - Q2 2025 
• C-Site Condensate Tank - March/April 
• Plant 1 & 2 Spring 2025 Outages - U2 started on March 1, 2025 

Future Committee Approval 2025 
• Plant 2 - MCC 480V Project - Install in 2025 - CEC is reviewing more documents 
• Plant 2 - Underground Storage Tank- FY 2025- Engineering support PO issued; CEC to 

review 
• SEGEP - Amended and Restated Agreements on new contract terms - Ongoing 

Staff Updates 
• A new Maintenance Technician has been hired - March 12, 2025 start date 
• Lead Operations Technician - There is currently an opening for this position - Position 

posted internally 
• Summer Intern - Interviews have been scheduled 

Hydro - During the month of February, Collierville (CV) Powerhouse was at 100% availability. 
New Spicer Meadows (NMS) Powerhouse was at 89% availability due to an extended 
PG&E/NCPA communication issue. 
■ 

■ 

New Spicer Meadows Reservoir Storage 
• 5,641 at increase (3%) month-over-month 
• 80,420 at to 86,061 at 
• 46% capacity 
• Draft at 25 cfs 
Current Events 

• Murphys Main Office - There was minor water infiltration into the main building in Murphys. 
A tree was causing drainage pipe issues, which resulted in the tree removal to remediate 

• Solar Maintenance at the Murphys building resulted in some inverter replacements 
• NSM - There were some issues discovered with the sump relay at the NSM PH, which 

resulted in relay replacements 
• Will be releasing an RFP for P 11197 Relicensing support for PAD, NOi, gap analysis, GIS 

layers 
• New Hydro Technician will start next week 
• Interviews scheduled for the Hydro Technician position 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

March 5, 2025 

8 



• Annual USFS meeting is scheduled for March 19, 2025 
• Annual 230 KV line patrol with vegetation maintenance beginning later in March and 

continuing through Spring 

13. Planning and Operations Update - Staff provided a verbal update on following key planning 

■ 

■ 

and operating activities: 
Resource Integrations 

Seal Beach BESS - May 2025 
Malaga BESS - June 2025 
Kola BESS - July 2025 

• Alpaugh BESS - June 2026 
• Other PV / BESS integrations 

Resource Development 
• ZWEDC - Integration Phase on hold for the moment. ISO is proposing to overhaul the 

Resource Adequacy program. Power Management team is actively participating. Final 
comments will be submitted today 
NCPA Renewable RFP - Under Review 

■ Active CAISO stakeholder process 
IEP, RA, CRR, TPP, other 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 11 :24 pm by the Committee Chair. 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

March 5, 2025 

9 



~ 

Northern California Power Agency 
March 5, 2025 Facilities Committee Meeting 

Attendance List 

NCPA Facilities Committee Members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary. 

MEMBER NAME 

ALAMEDA 

BART 

BIGGS 

GRIDLEY 

HEALDSBURG 

LODI \_TiYtff lfi~,civw7 
I J LOMPOC 

PALO ALTO 

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC 

PORT OF OAKLAND 

REDDING 

ROSEVILLE <-D~s; ls;:-J 
SANTA CLARA 

SHASTA LAKE 

TID 

UKIAH 
-



Northern California Power Agency 
March 5, 2025 Facilities Committee Meeting 

Attendance List 

NCPA Facilities Committee Members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by 
members of the public is voluntary. 

NAME AFFILIATION 

/VlfA-

nC? 

tJvPA-

----------------------



Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: January 31, 2025 Financial Report (unaudited) 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth 

Treasurer-Controller 

~ D METHOD OF SELECTION: 

N/A 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 152:25 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



January 31, 2025 Financial Report (unaudited) 
March 27, 2025 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission approve the 
Financial Report for month ending January 31, 2025. 

NOTICE: 

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) for the month reported 
herein, will be approved at the March 27, 2025 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The 
following page is a summary of those disbursements. 

Prior to the Chairperson's call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon 
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements. 

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited January 31, 2025 financial reports are 
also included. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

K~H~WAR~ 
General Manager 

Attachments: 
- January 31, 2025 Financial Report 

SR: 152:25 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Operations: 

Schedule of Disbursements 
(Unaudited) 

For the Month of January 2025 

Geothermal 
Hydroelectric 

$ 1,457,585 

CT#1 Combustion Turbines 
CT#2 STIG 
Lodi Energy Center 
NCPA Operating 

Total 

1,947,292 
295,108 

29,702 
6,321,587 

31,554,916 

$ 41,606,190 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 31, 2025 

This 
Month 

GENERATION RESOURCES 
NCPA Plants 

Hydroelectric 
Other Plant Cost $ 3,217,929 $ 
Debt Service (Net) 1,534,669 

Annual Budget Cost 4,752,598 

Geothermal 
Other Plant Cost 3,272,336 
Debt Service (Net) 

Annual Budget Cost 3,272,336 

Combustion Turbine No. 
Fuel 38,780 
Other Plant Cost 351,513 

Annual Budget Cost 390,293 

Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig) 
Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 643 
Other Plant Cost 353,282 
Debt Service (Net) 

Annu~BudgetCost 353,925 

Lodi Energy Center 
Fuel 5,660,983 
Other Plant Cost 3,412,701 
Debt Service (Net) 2,168,156 

Annual Budget Cost 11,241,840 

Member Resources - Energy 8,960,799 
Member Resources - Energy (Customer) 10,883 
Member Resources • Natural Gas 419,783 
Western Resources 1,077,817 
Market Power Purchases 5,672,411 
Load Costs • CAISO 32,556,134 
Load Costs - CAISO (Customer) (10,182) 
Net GHG Obligations 

68,698,637 

TRANSMISSION 
Independent System Operator 

Grid Management Charge $268,972 
Wheeling Access Charge 17,606,644 
Ancillary Services 279,263 
Other ISO Charges/(Credits) (765,014) 

17,389,865 
Independent System Operator (Customer) 35,516 

17,425,381 

Management Services continued on next page 

Actual Year 
To-Date 

22,253,292 $ 
10,742,683 

32,995,975 

26,759,362 

26,759,362 

617,341 
3,282,874 

3,900,215 

385,297 
2,835,516 

421,313 

3,642,126 

23,346,477 
22,125,234 
15,177,090 

60,648,801 

49,952,609 
30,812 

4,816,828 
8,759,858 

25,068,352 
218,128,368 

5,218,370 
1,640,330 

441,562,006 

$1,679,863 
90,308,764 

2,237,941 
(133,330) 

94,093,238 
(1,876,288) 

92,216,950 

FY 2025 
Bud9et 

40,231,090 
18,416,028 

58,647,118 

47,043,119 

47,043,119 

718,046 
4,733,429 

5,451,475 

1,180,587 
5,093 ,732 

421,313 

6,695,632 

77,589,905 
54,644,498 
26,017,868 

158,252,271 

53,765 ,565 

5,432,402 
23,246,095 
48,565,629 

545,184,045 

2,108,011 

954,391,362 

2,572,012 
155,004,333 

4,577,450 
2,549,026 

164,702,821 

164,702,821 

PERCENT OF 
YEAR ELAPSED 

58% 

% Used 

55% 
58% 

56% 

57% 
N/A 

57% 

86% (a) 
69% (b) 

72% 

33% 
56% 
100% (c) 

54% 

30% 
40% 
58% 

38% 

93% (d) 
NIA 
89% (e) 
38% 
52% 
40% 
N/A 
78% (f) 

46% 

65% (g) 
58% 
49% 
-5% (h) 

56% 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 31, 2025 

This 
Month 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
Legislative & Regulatory 

Legislative Representation 244,508 
Regulatory Representation 74 ,667 
Western Representation 29,030 
Customer Programs 89 ,667 
Judicial Action 187,778 

Power Management 
System Control & Load Dispatch 921,381 
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 268,990 
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 27,006 
Contract Admin , Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 107,809 
Gas Purchase Program 5,330 
Market Purchase Project 8,087 

Energy Risk Management 11,477 
Settlements 61,408 
Integrated Systems Support 40,171 
Participant Pass Through Costs 138,328 
Support Services 102,418 

2,318,055 

TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 88,442,073 

LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE 
Plant ISO Energy Sales 14,087,647 
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 6,061 ,956 
Member Owned Generation ISO Energy Sales 11,271,543 
Revenue from Customers (228,323) 
Customer Owned Generation ISO Energy Sales 92,458 
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 3,350 ,316 
Western Resource Energy Sales 1,949,736 
Load Energy Sales 142,706 
Ancillary Services Sales 147,383 
Transmission Sales 9,198 
PM Service Revenue 241,082 
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 3,244,035 

40,369,737 

NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 48,072,336 $ 

Notes continued on next page 

Actual Year 
To-Date 

1,281,841 
400,386 
248,042 
326,251 

1,005 ,889 

6,464,071 
1,718 ,055 

194,801 
748,323 

33,711 
48,778 

120,838 
500,244 
285,169 
907,009 

1,054,577 

15,337,985 

549,116,941 

80,294,040 
33,288,900 
76,186,158 
(5,902,312) 

385,870 
12,258,976 
15,406,810 
3,474,123 
1,805,012 

64,386 
1,677,854 

42 ,062 ,108 

261,001 ,925 

288,115,016 $ 

FY 2025 
Budget 

2,361,093 
828,799 
599,235 
666,457 

1,240,000 

11 ,749,989 
3,242,955 

427,756 
1,304,749 

86,207 
124,392 

175,918 
1,217,204 

704,665 
1,967 ,542 

147,285 

26,844,246 

1,145,938,429 

217,597,296 
44 ,226,716 

156,157,708 

1,469,256 
50,551,647 
41,304,601 

6,817,168 
110,376 

2,885,924 
58,618,398 

579,739,090 

566,199,339 

PERCENT OF 
YEAR ELAPSED 

58% 

% Used 

54% 
48% 
41% 
49% 
81% (i) 

55% 
53% 
46% 
57% 
39% 
39% 

69% Ul 
41% 
40% 
46% 
N/A 

57% 

48% 

37% (k) 
75% (I) 
49% (m) 
NIA 
26% (m) 
24% (m) 
37% (m) 
N/A 
26% (n) 
58% 
58% 
72% (o) 

45% 

51% 



NOTES: 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 31, 2025 

(a) Increased fuel purchases due to higher year to date generation compared to budget. 

(b) Increase due to higher than budgeted Travel and Meal costs for CT1 annual outage 
and higher than budgeted ISO Imbalance Energy Settlement. 

(c) Final debt payment for CT2 on August 1st. No further payment for remainder of fiscal year. 

(d) Increase due to unbudgeted member resource purchases. 

(e) Increased due to higher member purchases and larger than budgeted cost spread. 

(f) Increase due to unbudgeted Customer GHG charges. 

(g) Increase due to higher than budgeted resource contracts resulting in higher GMC charges . 

(h) Decreased costs due to higher than budgeted ISO Settlement Revenue. 

(i) Increase to unbudgeted outside service costs associated with ISO Tariff Rates & Amendment litigation 

and higher than budgeted costs for FERC Rate Cases. 

U) Increase due to budgeted training costs incurred in first half of the year. Costs expected to levelize by year end. 

(k) Decrease due to lower generation and lower market prices. 

(I) Increase due to higher than budgeted member contract sales to CAISO. 

(m) Actual LMP price has been lower than budget on average by 36.00%. 

(n) Decrease due to lower volume of ancillary service awards to LEC and Hydro. 

(o) Increase due to higher member contract sales, interest income and effluent revenue. 

PERCENT OF 
YEAR ELAPSED 

58% 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

UNAUDITED 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 

Participants 
Other 

Interest receivable 
Inventory and supplies 
Prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Interest receivable 

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 

ELECTRIC PLANT 
Electric plant in service 
Less: accumulated depreciation & amortization 

Construction work-in-progress 
TOT AL ELECTRIC PLANT 

OTHER ASSETS 
Regulatory assets 
Investment in associated company 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Excess cost on refunding of debt 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 
Asset retirement obligations 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

$ 

$ 

January 
2025 2024 

(in thousands) 

58,197 $ 68,014 
41,159 32,033 

18 
855 3,220 

1,348 875 
7,014 6,763 
4,091 5,006 

112,682 115,911 

54,757 64,214 
214,935 192,763 

38 40 

269,730 257,017 

1,605,900 1,603,848 
(1,174,546) (1,136,615) 

431,354 467,233 

1,788 1,631 
433,142 468,864 

136,296 149,613 
265 265 

952,115 991,670 

73 454 
29,466 25,345 
63,640 62,371 

93,179 88,170 

1,045,294 $ 1,079,840 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORA TIO NS 

UNAUDITED 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Member advances 
Operating reserves 
Current portion oflong-term debt 
Accrued interest payable 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Net pension and OPEB liabilities 
Operating reserves and other deposits 
Asset retirement obligations 
Long-tenn debt, net 

TOT AL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Regulatory credits 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 

TOT AL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

TOT AL NET POSITION 

TOT AL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION 

$ 

$ 

Janua!2'. 
2025 2024 

(in thousands) 

41,067 $ 51,754 
1,315 1,168 

32,943 27.146 
33,082 55,778 
2,522 2,770 

110,929 138,616 

62,715 56,556 
189,885 169,176 
76,164 73,056 

461,490 497,397 
790,254 796,185 

901,183 934,801 

93,400 94,852 
1,668 2,112 

95,068 96,964 

(48,057) (69,053) 
17,606 29,661 
79,494 87,467 

49,043 48,075 

1,045,294 $ 1,079,840 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

UNAUDITED 

OPERA TING REVENUES 

Participants 

Other Third-Party 

TOTAL OPERA TING REVENUES 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 
Operations 
Transmission 
Depreciation & amortization 
Maintenance 
Administrative and general 

TOT AL OPERA TING EXPENSES 

NET OPERA TING REVENUES 

NON OPERA TING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 
Interest expense 
Interest income 
Other 

TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES 

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS 

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, Beginning of year 

NET POSITION, Period ended 

$ 

$ 

For the Seven Months Ended January, 
2025 2024 

(in thousands) 

300,990 $ 326,295 

118,635 168,467 

419,625 494,762 

167,238 221,153 
66,557 77,485 

104,005 106,501 
18.852 17,925 
30,333 19,398 
17,450 15,162 

404,435 457,624 

15,190 37,138 

(9,213) (10,935) 
16,261 20,740 
3,733 5,009 

10,781 14,814 

(1,709) (15,039) 

(12,331) (15,193) 

11,931 21,720 

37,112 26,355 

49,043 $ 48,075 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 
January 31, 2025 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 
Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Transmission Power& Member Other 

Geothe1mal H~droelectric Facilities No. One Ener~ Center No. One Transmission Services AS;ency Combined 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ $ $ I $ $ 137 $ $ $ 1,414 $ 56,645 $ 58,197 
Investments 41,159 41,159 
Accounts receivable 

Participants 18 18 
Other 482 373 855 

Interest receivable 185 368 62 88 645 1,348 
Inventory and supplies 1,809 1,319 330 491 3,065 7,014 

Prepaid expenses 1,200 1.181 2 131 1.414 95 (142) 2!0 4,091 
Due from Agency and other programs* 19,705 2,830 2,465 3,157 36,696 14,563 4,957 (84,373) 

TOT AL CURRENT ASSETS 22,899 5,698 2,798 3,779 41,374 15,228 6 229 14,677 112,682 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 224 2,102 1,359 4,509 21,455 25,108 54,757 

Investments 33,941 53,417 35,997 20,702 70,878 214,935 

Interest receivable 38 38 
TOT AL RESTRICTED ASSETS 34,165 55,519 1,359 40,544 42,157 95,986 269,730 

ELECTRIC PLANT 
Electric plant in service 580,563 395,746 65,470 39,023 447,722 7,736 61,427 1,178 7,035 1,605,900 

Less: accumulated depreciation & amortization (559,152) (324,622) (64,464) (36,000) (162,009) (7,736) (14,303 ) {1,018) (5,242) (I, 174,546) 
21,411 71,124 1,006 3,023 285,713 47,124 160 1,793 431,354 

Construction work•in~progress 1,788 1,788 

TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT 21,411 71,124_ 1,006 3,023 285,713 47,124 160 3,581 433,142 

OTHER ASSETS 
Regulatory assets 69,841 27,279 39,176 136,296 

Investment in associated company 265 265 

TOT AL ASSETS 78,475 202,182 5,163 6,802 394,910 !04,509 6,389 153,685 952,115 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Excess cost on refunding of debt 73 73 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 29,466 29,466 

Asset retirement obligations 63,246 185 209 63 640 
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 63,246 185 282 29,466 93,179 

TOT AL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 141,721 $ 202,182 $ 5 348 $ 6,802 $ 395,192 $ $ 104,509 $ 6,389 $ 183 151 $ 1,045,294 

* Eliminated in Combination 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORA TIO NS 

(000's omitted) 
January 31, 2025 

GENERA TING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 

Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothermal Hl'.droelectric Facilities No. One Ener~ Center Transmission Transmission Services A~encr Combined 
LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 499 $ 251 $ $ I $ 5,371 $ $ 27,350 $ $ 1,595 $ 41,067 

Member advances 791 524 1,315 

Operating reserves 3,716 250 617 4,476 23,884 32,943 

Current portion of long-term debt 12,435 IO 14,657 5.915 65 33,082 

Accrued interest payable 498 (33) 2,057 2,522 

TOT AL CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,006 13 434 594 4,477 45.969 33.265 524 7,660 I 10,929 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Net pension and OPEB liability 62,715 62,715 

Operating reserves and other deposits 1,500 45.664 1,360 133 42.668 1,733 96,827 189,885 
Asset retirement obligations 75,769 185 210 76,164 

Long-tenn debt. net 132,607 553 287,053 41.209 68 461,490 

TOT AL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 77,269 178,271 2,098 287,396 83,877 1,733 159,610 790,254 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 82,275 191,705 2,692 4,477 333,365 II 7,142 2,257 167,270 901,183 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Regulatory credits 39,365 7,351 2,453 3,280 37.453 159 3,339 93,400 

Pension and OPEB deferrals 1,668 1,668 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 39,365 7.351 2,453 3,280 37,453 159 5,007 95,068 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 21,411 (73,106) 690 3,023 (3,682) 159 3,448 (48,057) 

Restricted 7,262 1,392 9,374 (422) 17,606 

Unrestricted [1,3301 68,970 (1,8791 (3,978) 18,682 , 12.211i 3,814 7,426 79,494 

TOT AL NET POSITION 20,081 3,126 203 (955) 24,374 (12,6331 3.973 10,874 49,043 
TOT AL LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 141,721 $ 202,182 $ 5,348 $ 6,802 $ 395,192 $ $ 104,509 $ 6,389 $ 183,151 $ 1,045,294 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(OOO's omitted) 

For the Seven Months Ended Janua~ 31, 2025 

GENERA TING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 

Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothermal Hz:droelectric Facilities No. One Ener1,1: Center Transmission Transmission Services A~eOCz'. Combined 

OPERA TING REVENUES 

Participants $ 9,997 $ 18,345 $ 2,708 $ 1,835 $ 37,159 $ $ 212.812 $ 16,805 $ 1,329 $ 300,990 

Other Third-Party 23,287 15,242 1,154 1,999 42.356 32,681 1,916 118,635 

TOT AL OPERA TING REVENUES 33.284 33,587 3,862 3,834 79,515 245.493 18,721 1,329 419,625 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 1,379 1.553 209 494 2,071 161.532 167,238 
Operations 12,464 3.027 2,216 1,150 35.417 4.288 7.995 66,557 

Transmission 145 168 6 66 334 103.284 2 104,005 
Depreciation & amortization 1.743 5,595 2,818 2IO 8,261 91 134 18,852 
Maintenance 10,791 13,970 305 1,507 3,560 200 30,333 

Administrative and general 4,921 3,351 364 633 4,496 7,188 (3 ,503) 17,450 
Intercompany (sales) purchases. net* (648 221 41 81 313 8 

TOTAL OPERA TING EXPENSES 30,795 27,885 5,959 4,141 54,452 269,104 15,468 (3,369) 404,435 

NET OPERA TING REVENUES 2,489 5,702 (2,09Z) (307) 25,063 (23,6111 3,253 4,698 15,190 

NON OPERA TING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 
Interest expense (23) (2.274) 143 (7,059) (9,213) 

Interest income 3,517 1,909 104 78 2,001 2,721 167 5,764 16,261 

Other 639 532 (Ii (22) 2,758 (528) 28 327 3,733 

TOTAL NON OPERA TING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 4,133 167 246 56 (2,300·· 2,193 195 6,091 10,781 

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS 756 (3.781) 2,219 (903) (1,709) 

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS (8) (191 ) (735) (219) i356) (3,577) (3,205) (4,040) (12,331 ) 
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 7,370 1.897 (367) (470) 21.504 (24,995) 243 6,749 11,931 

NET POSITION. Beginning of year 12,711 1,229 570 (485) 2.870 12,362 3,730 4,125 37,112 

NET POSITION, Period ended $ 20,081 $ 3,126 $ 203 $ (955) $ 24,374 $ $ (12,633) $ 3,973 $ 10,874 $ 49,043 

• Eliminated in Combination 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

January 31, 2024 

Status Participant / Customer Description 

CURRENT $ 

PAST DUE: 

1 -30 APPA DEED Scholarship K. Kasparian 

31 -60 AVA Community Energy Dec 2024ARB 

61 -90 

91 -120 

Over 120 Days 

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 

* Denotes items paid/applied after January 31, 2024. 

NOTE: All amounts invoiced or credited to members and others are project/program specific. 

NCPA does not apply any credits issued to outstanding invoices unless directed. 

AR FY 2025.xlsxJan Rpt 2024 

Amount 

811,443 

1,500 * 

60,062 * 

873,005 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Operations: 

Schedule of Disbursements 
(Unaudited) 

For the Month of January 2025 

Geothermal 
Hydroelectric 

$ 1,457,585 

CT#1 Combustion Turbines 
CT#2 STIG 
Lodi Energy Center 
NCPA Operating 

Total 

1,947,292 
295,108 

29,702 
6,321,587 

31,554,916 

$ 41,606,190 



\ I 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: February 28, 2025 Financial Report (unaudited) 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth c---' t O ~-•ETHOD OF SELECTION: 

Treasurer-Controller N/A 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake □ 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC □ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland □ 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD □ 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other □ 

If other, please specify 

SR: 153:25 



February 28, 2025 Financial Report (unaudited) 
March 27, 2025 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission approve the 
Financial Report for month ending February 28, 2025. 

NOTICE: 

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) for the month reported 
herein, will be approved at the March 27, 2025 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The 
following page is a summary of those disbursements. 

Prior to the Chairperson's call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon 
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements. 

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited February 28, 2025 financial reports are 
also included. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

t~ ~ IH 
RANDY S. HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments: 
- February 28, 2025 Financial Report 

SR: 153:25 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Operations: 

Schedule of Disbursements 
(Unaudited) 

For the Month of February 2025 

Geothermal 
Hydroelectric 

$ 1,447,843 

CT#1 Combustion Turbines 
CT#2 STIG 
Lodi Energy Center 
NCPA Operating 

Total 

2,365,365 
470,011 

54,214 
9,408,991 

39,573,077 

$ 53,319,501 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2025 

This 
Month 

GENERATION RESOURCES 
NCPAPlants 

Hydroelectric 
Other Plant Cost $ 3,244,762 $ 
Debt Service (Net) 1,534,669 

Annual Budget Cost 4,779,431 

Geothermal 
Other Plant Cost 3,915,040 
Debt Service (Net) 

Annual Budget Cost 3,915,040 

Combustion Turbine No. 1 
Fuel 19,130 
Other Plant Cost 524,643 

Annual Budget Cost 543,773 

Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig) 
Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 1,271 
Other Plant Cost 340,725 
Debt Service (Net) 

Annual Budget Cost 341,996 

Lodi Energy Center 
Fuel 2,248,443 
Other Plant Cost 4,795,221 
Debt Service (Net) 2,168,156 

Annual Budget Cost 9,211,820 

Member Resources • Energy 4,282,524 
Member Resources • Energy (Customer) 6,599 
Member Resources • Natural Gas 330,646 
Western Resources 1,047,242 
Market Power Purchases 4,297,123 
Load Costs • CAISO 26,418,583 
Load Costs • CAISO (Customer) (6,630) 
Net GHG Obligations 1,007,940 

56,176,087 

TRANSMISSJON 
Independent System Operator 

Grid Management Charge $244,293 
Wheeling Access Charge 16,581 ,730 
Ancillary Services 539,973 
Other ISO Chargesl(Credits) (646,59Z) 

16,719,399 
Independent System Operator (Customer) (38,135) 

16,681,264 

Management Services continued on next page 

Actual Year 
To-Date 

25,498,054 $ 
12,277,352 

37,775,406 

30,674,429 

30,674,429 

636,471 
3,807,517 

4,443,988 

386,567 
3,176,242 

421,313 

3,984,122 

25,594,920 
26,935,490 
17,345,245 

69,875!655 

54,235,133 
37,411 

5,147,474 
9,807,100 

29,365,475 
244,546,950 

5,211,740 
2,648,270 

497,753,153 

$1,924,156 
106,890,494 

2,777,915 
(779,927) 

110,812,638 
(1,914,423) 

108,898,215 

FY 2025 
Bud11et 

40,231,090 
18,416,028 

58,647,118 

47,043,119 

47,043,119 

718,046 
4 ,733,429 

5,451,475 

1,180,587 
5,093,732 

421 ,313 

6,695,632 

77,589,905 
54,644,498 
26,017,868 

158,252,271 

53,765,565 

5,432,402 
23,246,095 
48,565,629 

545,164,045 

2,108,011 

954,391,362 

2,572,012 
155,004,333 

4,577,450 
2,549,026 

164,702,821 

164,702,821 

PERCENT OF 
YEAR ELAPSED 

67% 

% Used 

63% 
67% 

64% 

65% 
NIA 

65% 

89% (a) 
80% (b) 

82% 

33% 
62% 
100% (c) 

60% 

33% 
49% 
67% 

44% 

101% (d) 
NIA 
95% (e) 
42% 
60% 
45% 
NIA 

126% (f) 

52% 

75% (g) 
69% 
61% 
-31% (h) 

66% 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2025 

This 
Month 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
Legislative & Regulatory 

Legislative Representation 140,712 
Regulatory Representation 46,833 
Western Representation 35,228 
Customer Programs 40,813 
Judicial Action 45,696 

Power Management 
System Control & Load Dispatch 907,670 
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 230,575 
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 27,807 
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 109,980 
Gas Purchase Program 5,207 
Market Purchase Project 7,298 

Energy Risk Management 10,405 
Settlements 70,236 
Integrated Systems Support 35,697 
Participant Pass Through Costs 107,257 
Support Services 73,920 

1,895,334 

TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 74,752,685 

LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE 
Plant ISO Energy Sales 9,206,894 
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 3,366,969 
Member Owned Generation ISO Energy Sales 9,570,670 
Revenue from Customers (272,213) 
Customer Owned Generation ISO Energy Sales 116,170 
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 2,359,263 
Western Resource Energy Sales 2,505,762 
Load Energy Sales 233,480 
Ancillary Services Sales 188,227 
Transmission Sales 9,198 
PM Service Revenue 241,082 
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 3,988,631 

31,5141133 

NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 43,238,552 $ 

Notes continued on next page 

Actual Year 
To-Date 

1,452,554 
447,218 
283,270 
367,064 

1,051,585 

7,371,741 
1,948,630 

222,607 
858,303 

38,917 
56,076 

131,243 
570,481 
320,865 

1,014,265 
1,128,497 

1712631316 

623,914,684 

89,500,934 
36,655,870 
85,756,828 
(6,174,525) 

502,040 
14,618,239 
17,912,572 
3,707,603 
1,993,239 

73,584 
1,918,935 

46,050,739 

29215161058 

331,398,626 $ 

FY 2025 
Bud9et 

2,361,093 
828,799 
599,235 
666,457 

1,240,000 

11,749,989 
3,242,955 

427,756 
1,304,749 

86,207 
124,392 

175,918 
1,217,204 

704,665 
1,967,542 

147,285 

26,844,246 

1,145,938,429 

217,597,296 
44,226,716 

156,157,708 

1,469,256 
50,551,647 
41,304,601 

6,817,168 
110,376 

2,885,924 
58,618,398 

579, 7391090 

566, 199,339 

PERCENT OF 
YEAR ELAPSED 

67% 

%Used 

62% 
54% 
47% 
55% 
85% (i) 

63% 
60% 
52% 
66% 
45% 
45% 

75% 0) 
47% 
46% 
52% 
NIA 

64% 

54% 

41% (k) 
83% (I) 
55% (m) 
NIA 
34% (m) 
29% (m) 
43% (m) 
NIA 
29% (n) 
67% 
66% 
79% (o) 

50% 

59% 



NOTES: 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2025 

(a) Increased fuel purchases due to higher year to date generation compared to budget. 

(b) Increase due to higher than budgeted O&M costs and higher than budgeted ISO imbalance Energy Settleemnt. 

(c) Final debt payment for CT2 on August 1st. No further payment for remainder of fiscal year. 

(d) Increase due to unbudgeted member resource purchases. 

(e) Increase due to higher member purchases and larger than budgeted cost spread. 

(f) Increase due to higher than budgeted member and customer GHG allowance purchases. 

(g) Increase due to higher than budgeted resource contracts resulting in higher GMC charges. 

(h) Decreased costs due to higher than budgeted ISO Imbalance Energy and Other Revenue. 

(i) Increase to unbudgeted outside service costs associated with ISO Tariff Rates & Amendment litigation 

and higher than budgeted costs for FERC Rate Cases. 

(i) Increase due to budgeted training costs incurred in first half of the year. Costs expected to levelize by year end. 

(k) Decrease due to lower generation and lower market prices. 

(I) Increase due to higher than budgeted member contract sales to CAISO. 

(m) Actual LMP price has been lower than budget on average by 37.00%. 

(n) Decrease due to lower volume of ancillary service awards to LEC and Hydro. 

(o) Increase due to higher member contract sales, interest income and effluent revenue. 

PERCENT OF 
YEAR ELAPSED 

67% 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

UNAUDITED 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 

Participants 
Other 

Interest receivable 
Inventory and supplies 
Prepaid expenses 

TOT AL CURRENT ASSETS 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Interest receivable 

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 

ELECTRIC PLANT 
Electric plant in service 
Less: accumulated depreciation & amortization 

Construction work-in-progress 
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT 

OTHER ASSETS 
Regulatory assets 
Investment in associated company 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Excess cost on refunding of debt 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 
Asset retirement obligations 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

$ 

$ 

Februa!l: 
2025 2024 

(in thousands) 

40,892 $ 58,048 
41,612 31,834 

1,863 29 
878 3,062 

1,350 835 
7,029 6,763 
3,672 6,019 

97,296 106,590 

54,040 58,501 
220,676 202,532 

53 59 

274,769 261,092 

1,606,339 1,604,618 
(1,176,718) (1,139,174) 

429,621 465,444 

2,004 1,635 
431,625 467,079 

135,528 147,708 
265 265 

939,483 982,734 

58 402 
29,466 25.345 
63,702 62,356 

93,226 88,103 

1,032,709 $ 1,070,837 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORA TIO NS 

UNAUDITED 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Member advances 
Operating reserves 
Current portion oflong-term debt 
Accrued interest payable 

TOT AL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Net pension and OPEB liabilities 
Operating reserves and other deposits 
Asset retirement obligations 
Long-tenn debt, net 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Regulatory credits 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION 

$ 

$ 

February 
2025 2024 

(in thousands) 

32,336 $ 34,092 
1,315 1,193 

33,809 27,698 
33,082 55,778 

4,014 4,306 
104,556 123,067 

62,715 56,556 
192,031 169,890 
76,381 73,190 

461,253 497,196 
792,380 796,832 

896,936 919,899 

93,381 95,080 
1,668 2,112 

95,049 97,192 

(49,326) (70,623) 
20,625 33,498 
69,425 90,871 

40,724 53,746 

1,032,709 $ 1,070,837 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORA TIO NS 

UNAUDITED 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Participants 

Other Third-Party 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 
Operations 
Transmission 
Depreciation & amortization 
Maintenance 
Administrative and general 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

NET OPERATING REVENUES 

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 
Interest expense 
Interest income 
Other 

TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES 

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS 

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, Beginning of year 

NET POSITION, Period ended 

$ 

$ 

For the Ei~ht Months Ended February, 
2025 2024 

(in thousands) 

336,147 $ 365,429 

131,654 182,121 

467,801 547,550 

185,462 237,419 
76,836 86,955 

121,794 II 7,031 
21,024 20,484 
34,424 22,405 
20,145 17,723 

459,685 502,017 

8, I 16 45,533 

(10,546) (12,497) 
17,254 21,680 
4,001 5,567 

10,709 14,750 

(2,297) (17,187) 

(12,916) (15,705) 

3,612 27,391 

37,112 26,355 

40,724 $ 53,746 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORA TIO NS 

(000's omitted) 
February 281 2025 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 
Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Transmission Power& Member Other 

Geothermal Hl'.droelectric Facilities No. One Ener~ Center No. One Transmission Services A~encl'. Combined 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ $ $ l $ $ 138 $ $ $ 785 $ 39,968 $ 40,892 

Investments 41,612 41,612 
Accounts receivable 

Participants 1,863 1,863 

Other 792 86 878 
Interest receivable 171 378 61 82 (l) 659 1,350 

Inventory and supplies 1,809 1,319 330 491 3,080 7,029 

Prepaid expenses 1,069 1,054 2 118 1.260 95 (168) 242 3,672 

Due from Agency and other programs* 20,459 3,733 2,524 3,384 25,306 9,312 5,410 (70,128) 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 23,508 6.484 2,857 3,993 29.845 10.281 6,026 14,302 97,296 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 495 3.189 1,556 4,679 20.424 112 23,585 54,040 

Investments 33,955 55,469 38,209 20.701 72,342 220,676 

Interest receivable 53 53 

TOT AL RESTRICTED ASSETS 34,450 58,658 1,556 42,941 41,125 112 95,927 274,769 

ELECTRIC PLANT 
Electric plant in service 580,641 395,746 65,470 39,023 448.083 7,736 61.427 1,178 7,035 1,606,339 

Less: accumulated depreciation & amortization (559,359) (325,403) (64,467) (35,984) ( 163,187) (7,736) l14,303) (1,023 ) [5,256) p,176,718) 
21,282 70,343 1,003 3,039 284.896 47,124 155 1,779 429,621 

Construction work•in•progress 2,004 2,004 

TOT AL ELECTRIC PLANT 21,282 70,343 I 003 3,039 284,896 47,124 155 3,783 431,625 

OTHER ASSETS 
Regulatory assets 69,202 27, 150 39,176 135,528 

Investment in associated company 265 265 

TOT AL ASSETS 79,240 204,687 5,416 7,032 384,832 98.530 6,293 153,453 939,483 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Excess cost on refunding of debt 58 58 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 29,466 29,466 

Asset retirement obligations 63,306 185 211 63,702 
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 63,306 185 269 29,466 93,226 

TOT AL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 142,546 $ 204,687 $ 5,601 $ 7,032 $ 385, 10 1 $ $ 98,530 $ 6,293 $ 182,9 19 $ I 032,709 

* Eliminated in Combination 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORA TIO NS 

(000's omitted) 
Februa!]'. 28, 2025 

GENERA TING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 
Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Eneri.;'Y Center Transmission Transmission Setvices A~enc~ Combined 
LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 607 $ 253 $ $ $ 1,979 $ $ 22,560 $ $ 6,937 $ 32,336 

Member advances 791 524 1,315 

Operating reserves 4,160 250 617 4,537 24,245 33,809 
Current portion of long-tenn debt 12,435 10 14,656 5,915 66 33,082 

Accrued interest payable 997 (33) 3,050 4,014 

TOT AL CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,558 13,935 594 4,537 43,930 28,475 524 7,003 104,556 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Net pension and OPEB liability 62,715 62,715 

Operating reserves and other deposits 1,500 47,093 1,551 133 42,770 2,222 96,762 192,031 

Asset retirement obligations 75,985 185 211 76,381 

Long-tenn debt. net 132,371 553 287,053 41 ,209 67 461,253 

TOT AL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 77,485 179,464 2,289 287,397 83,979 2,222 159,544 792,380 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 83,043 _193,399 2,883 4,537 331,327 112,454 2 746 166,547 896,936 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Regulatory credits 39,073 7,177 2,450 3,283 37,677 154 3,567 93,381 

Pension and OPEB deferrals I 668 1,668 

TOT AL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 39,073 7,177 2,450 3,283 37,677 154 5,235 95,049 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 21,282 (73,651) 687 3,039 (4,488) 155 3,650 (49,326) 

Restricted 8,324 1,589 10,600 112 20,625 

Unrestricted !852) 69,438 (2,008) (3,827) 9,985 (13,924) 3,126 7,487 69,425 
TOT AL NET POSITION 20,430 4,111 268 (788) 16.097 (13.924) 3,393 11,137 40,724 
TOT AL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 142,546 $ 204,687 $ 5,601 $ 7,032 $ 385,101 $ $ 98,530 $ 6 293 $ 182,919 $ 1,032,709 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORA TIO NS 

(000's omitted) 
For the Eight Months Ended February 28, 2025 

GENERA TING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 

Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothermal H~droelectric Facilities No. One Ener~L Center Transmission Transmission Services A~ency Combined 

OPERA TING REVENUES 

Participants $ 11,598 $ 21 .333 $ 3,104 $ 2,223 $ 33,955 $ $ 243.482 $ 19,035 $ 1.417 $ 336,147 

Other Third-Party 26,027 17,935 1,154 2,269 46.043 36.068 2,158 131,654 

TOT AL OPERATING REVENUES 37,625 39,268 4,258 4492 79,998 279.550 21,193 1.417 467,801 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 1,740 1,881 209 512 2,162 I 78.958 185,462 

Operations 14,223 3,402 2.477 1,236 41.012 4.619 9,867 76,836 

Transmission 165 183 6 66 360 121.011 3 121,794 

Depreciation & amortization 1.949 6.376 2,822 194 9.439 95 149 21,024 

Maintenance 12,145 15,829 326 1,844 4,061 219 34,424 

Administrative and general 5,513 3,981 417 726 5,068 8,126 (3,686) 20,145 

lntercompany (sales) purchases. net• (744 259 48 90 355 8 

TOT AL OPERA TING EXPENSES 34,991 31,911 6,305 4,668 62,457 304,588 18,302 <3 ,537l 459,685 

NET OPERA TING REVENUES 2,634 7,357 (2,047) (176) 17,541 !25,038) 2,891 4,954 8,116 

NON OPERA TING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 
Interest expense (23) (2.599) 143 (8,067) (10,546) 

Interest income 3,643 2,106 117 88 2,151 2,957 186 6,006 17,254 

Other 639 530 5 2,989 526) 32 332 4,001 

TOTAL NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 4,259 37 260 93 (2,927) 2,431 218 6,338 10,709 

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS 834 (4.320) 2,220 (1 ,031) (2,297) 

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS (8) p92) (735) !22oi (356) (3,679) (3,446) (4,28ol (12,916) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 7,719 2.882 (302) (303) 13,227 (26,286) (337) 7,012 3,612 

NET POSITION. Beginning of year 12,711 1.229 570 (485) 2,870 12.362 3,730 4,125 37,112 

NET POSITION. Period ended $ 20,430 $ 4,111 $ 268 $ (788) $ 16,097 $ $ (13,924) $ 3,393 $ 11,137 $ 40,724 

• Eliminated in Combination 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Status 

CURRENT 

PAST DUE: 

1 - 30 

31 -60 

61 -90 

91 -120 

Over 120 Days 

Participant/ Customer 

Shasta Lake 

BART 

Golden Fields Solar Ill LLC 

February 28, 2025 

Description 

Feb 2025ARB 

Feb 2025ARB 

Dec 2024 CAISO Settlement 

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) 

• Denotes items paid/applied aher February 28, 2025. 

NOTE: All amounts invoiced or credited to members and others are project/program specific. 

NCPA does not apply any credits issued to outstanding invoices unless directed. 

AR FY 2025.xlsxFeb Rpt 2024 

$ 

$ 

Amount 

826,893 

14,018 * 

1,815,167 * 

85,231 * 

2,741,309 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Operations: 

Schedule of Disbursements 
(Unaudited) 

For the Month of February 2025 

Geothermal 
Hydroelectric 

$ 1,447,843 

CT#1 Combustion Turbines 
CT#2 STIG 
Lodi Energy Center 
NCPA Operating 

Total 

2,365,365 
470,011 

54,214 
9,408,991 

39,573,077 

$ 53,319,501 



PUlJllC AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report for Month Ended January 31, 2025 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth c~ ~ 0 1 _M ETHOD OF SELECTION: 

Division: 

Treasurer-Controller 

Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members ~ 

Alameda Municipal Power □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ 

City of Gridley □ 

City of Healdsburg □ 

SR: 150:25 

N/A 

City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC 

City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended January 31, 2025 
March 27, 2025 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission approve the 
Treasurer's Report for January 31, 2025. 

BACKGROUND: 
In compliance with Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) policy and State of California 
Government Code Sections 53601 and 53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for 
your information and acceptance. 

Cash - At month end cash totaled $839,450 of which approximately $2,383 was applicable to 
Debt Service and $837,067 to Operations and other. 

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This 
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase 
agreement. 

Investments - The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $362,962,604 at month 
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $356,851,185. 

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 3.319% with a bond 
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 3.365%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year 
totaled $184,974,000. January maturities totaled $17,932,601 and monthly receipts totaled 
$45 million. During the month $25 million was invested. 

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they 
occur. 

Interest Rates - During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills decreased 5 basis points from 4.36% 
to 4.31 % and rates on one-year T-Bills decreased 8 basis points from 4.23% to 4.15%. 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of January 31, 2025 are in 
compliance with NCPA's investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment 
maturities to meet cash requirements for the next six months. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
This report has no direct budget impact to NCPA. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

f:jH~WA~~ 
General Manager 

Attachment: Treasurer's Report January 31, 2025 

SR: 150:25 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

TREASURER'S REPORT 

JANUARY 31, 2025 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 

CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 

INTEREST RA TE/YIELD ANALYSIS 

LIQUIDITY AND INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS 

PAGE 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

APPENDIX 



NCPAFUNDS 
Operating $ 
Special Deposits 
Debt Service 
Special & Reserve 

$ 

Northern California Power Agency 
Treasurer's Report 

Cash & Investment Balance 
January 31, 2025 

CASH INVESTMENTS 

824,664 $ 134,932,167 
12,403 497,289 

2,383 19,150,738 
208,382,410 

839,450 $ 362,962,604 

$ 

$ 

Portfolio Investments at Market Value $ 

NOTE A - Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

1 

TOTAL PERCENT 

135,756,831 37.32% 
509,692 0.14% 

19,153,121 5.26% 
208,382,410 57.28% 
363,802,054 100.00% 

356,851,185 



0PS/C0NSTR 
NCPAFUNDS 
Operating $ 43,461,146 
Special Deposits 1,921,533 
Debt Service 
Special & Reserve 

$ 45,382,679 

Northern California Power Agency 
Treasurer's Report 

RECEIPTS 
INTEREST 
(N0TEB) 

$ 392,811 
1,915 

3 

328,782 
$ 723,511 

Cash Activity Summary 
January 31, 2025 

EXPENDITURES 
INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMP ANY/ 

(NOTE A~ 0PS/C0NSTR (N0TEB) FUND TRANSFERS 

$ 3,439,342 $ (23,119,352) $ (6,897,928) $ (18,787,599) 
(14,376,875) (1,915) 12,456,674 

7,679,564 (2,990,514) (8,389,421) 3,700,594 
6,813,695 (9,772,808) 2,630,331 

$ 17,932,601 $ ~40,486,741! $ ~25,062,072! $ 

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments. 

2 

CASH 
INCREASE/ 
(DECREASE) 

$ (1,511,580) 
1,332 

226 

$ ~1,510,022! 



NCPAFUNDS 
Operating 
Special Deposits 
Debt Service 
Special & Reserve 

Less Non- Cash Activity 

Northern California Power Agency 
Treasurer's Report 

Investment Activity Summary 
January 31, 2025 

(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) 
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) 

PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE 

$ 6,897,928 $ (3,439,342) $ 88 $ 
1,915 

8,389,421 (7,679,564) 43,236 

9,772,808 (6,813,695) 67,095 

$ 25,062,072 $ (17,932,601) $ 110,419 $ 

Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale 

Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity 

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

3 

INVESTMENTS 
INCREASE/ 

TRANSFERS {DECREASE) 

$ $ 3,458,674 
1,915 

753,093 
3,026,208 

$ $ 7,239,890 

~110,419) 

$ 7,129,471-



OVERALL COMBINED 

OPERA TING FUNDS: 

PROJECTS: 
Geothermal 
Capital Facilities 
Hydroelectric 
Lodi Energy Center 

KEY INTEREST RA TES 

Fed Fds (Overnight) 
T-Bills (90da.) 
Agency Disc (90da.) 
T-Bills (lyr.) 
Agency Disc (lyr.) 
T-Notes (3yr.) 

Northern California Power Agency 
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis 

January 31, 2025 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 
INTEREST 

RATE 

3.319% 

3.248% 

2.148% 

4.730% 

3.400% 

3.092% 

BOND 
EQUIVALENT 

YIELD 

3.365% 

3.422% 

2.428% 

4.730% 

3.780% 

3.184% 

INTEREST RATES 

PRIOR 

CURRENT YEAR 

4.33% 5.33% 
4.31% 5.45% 
4.29% 5.26°/c 
4.15% 4.80% 
4.05% 4.55°/c 
4.25% 4.15°/c 

4 

6.00 
5.50 
5.00 
4.50 

4.00 
3.50 
3.00 
2.50 
2.00 +----~--~--~--~--~ 

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan 

- T-Bills (90 days) - FED FUNDS 

- T-Bills (1 yr) - T-Notes (3 yr) 



Tl'.!!! 

US Government Agencies 
Corporate Bonds (MTN) 
Municipal Bonds 
US Bank Trust Money Market * 
Money Market Mutual Funds** 
LAIF Investment Pool 
CAMP Investment Pool 
Demand Deposits*** 
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note 
Certificates of Deposit 
Total Dollars 
Total Percents 

$ 

Northern California Power Agency 
Total Portfolio 

Liquidity and Investment Maturities Analysis 
January 31, 2025 

0.7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 

Dars Dars Dars Dars Dars Years 

$ 500 $10,576 $ 13,915 $ 5,990 $ 32,631 
1,970 8,250 5,775 82,054 
2,915 7,130 3,695 50,170 

6 
14,441 

55 
92,356 

825 
13,590 35 5,652 

10 
$ 1071683 $5,395 $39,546 $17,610 $ 111800 $1701507 

29.34% 1.46% 10.78% 4.80% 3.22% 46.46% 

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands. 

6-10 

Years Total Percent 

$ 11,482 $ 75,094 20.46% 
98,049 26.73% 

2,985 66,895 18.23% 
6 0.00% 

14,441 3.93% 
55 0.02% 

92,356 25.16% 
825 0.22% 

19,277 5.25% 
10 0.00% 

$141467 $ 3671008 100.00% 
3.94% 100.00% 

• Uninvested debt service balances at U.S. Bank Global Trust and Custody are swept into U.S. Bank unrated money market demand deposit investment products. 
•• Money market mutual fund investments held at U.S. Bank and U.S. Bank Global Trust and Custody are invested in short-term U.S. Treasury obligations, including 
repurchase agreements secured by U.S. Treasury obligations and short-term U.S. government securities, including repurchase agreements secured by U.S. 
government securities respectively. 
••• The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. 

Portfolio Composition 

5.25% 
0.22% 

20.46% 

25.16% 
I 

0.02% 

18.23% 

■ US Government Agencies ■ Corporate Bonds (MTN) 

Municipal Bonds ■ US Bank Trust Money Market• 

■ Money Market Mutual Funds•• ■ LAIF Investment Pool 

■ CAMP Investment Pool ■ Demand Deposits••• 

■ U.S.Treasury Bill/Note ■ Certificates of Deposit 

5 



Note: 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Detail Report Of Investments 

APPENDIX 

This appendix has been prepared to comply with 

Government Code section 53646. 



Operating 

Issuer 

US Bank, N.A. 

First American Govt. 

First American Funds 

California Asset Mgm 

Local Agency lnvestm 

US Bank 

US Bank 

State of Louisiana 

Nashville Met Gov 

City of Phoenix AZ 

'Msconsin Dept Trans 

Met Life Glob Fundin 

East Side Union High 

Federal National Mtg 

JP Morgan 

U.S. Treasury 

Toyota Motor Credit 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Cisco Systems Inc. 

Federal Farm Credit 

United Health Group 

Bank of America Corp 

Met Govt Nashville & 

San Diego CA Uni! Sc 

MassMutual Global Fu 

County of Bexar TX 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

JP Morgan 

Bank of America Corp 

Caterpillar Financia 

John Deere Capital C 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Reliance Standard Li 

Paypal Holdings Inc. 

TSMC Arizona Corp. 

Public Storage 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

02/13/2025 11:20 am 

Trustee/ Custodian 

USB 

USBGC 

USB 

CMP 

LAIF 

USB 

USB 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 

0 

83,420 

12,445,000 

43,212,953 

55,162 

824,664 

10,000 

260,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

250,000 

35,000 

500,000 

375,000 

1,000,000 

102,000 

1,100,000 

500,000 

1,700,000 

250,000 

250,000 

500,000 

100,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

750,000 

500,000 

500,000 

630,000 

1,500,000 

500,000 

1,525,000 

1,910,000 

50,000 

3,000,000 

455,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

Interest 
Rate 

2.550 

4.290 

4.290 

4.730 

4.622 

0.001 

0.050 

0.697 

0.610 

0.959 

0.774 

0.950 

0.940 

0.650 

0.825 

3.900 

0.700 

0.500 

2.500 

2.950 

0.800 

1.150 

1.250 

1.181 

1.201 

1.200 

1.272 

0.875 

1.150 

1.250 

1.150 

2.250 

0.900 

1.512 

2.650 

1.750 

1.500 

2.000 

2.000 

4.700 

01/31/2025 

Purchase 
Date 

10/1912018 

0110712025 

02/2512021 

09/1812023 

08/2512020 

0713012020 

03/04/2022 

1012912020 

12/21/2020 

12/2212020 

12/3112024 

0112112021 

02/2512021 

02/2812022 

11/1812022 

03/09/2021 

0612812021 

05/2812021 

1011412021 

10121/2021 

08/02/2021 

09/23/2021 

0811712021 

0811712021 

08/2612021 

1011312021 

1011412021 

09/28/2021 

1011412021 

10114/2021 

12/08/2021 

12/08/2021 

12/2912021 

01/28/2022 

03117/2023 

Purchased 

Price 

0 

83,420 

12,445,000 

43,212,953 

55,162 

824,664 

Maturity 
Date 

10,000 04107 /2025 

260,000 06115/2025 

500,000 07/01/2025 

500,000 07/0112025 

500,000 07101/2025 

961,800 07102/2025 

1,000,000 08101/2025 

1,005,200 1111812025 

250,000 12/2212025 

33,635 12/26/2025 

500,000 01/2012026 

375,000 02/2512026 

1,000,000 02/2712026 

98, 129 02/2812026 

1,100,000 03/0912026 

501,660 0511512026 

1,700,000 05128/2026 

250,000 0710112026 

250,000 07101/2026 

503,610 07/1612026 

100,000 0811512026 

500,000 08/1712026 

1,000,000 08/1712026 

750,000 08/26/2026 

498,165 09/14/2026 

524,355 09/14/2026 

630,000 09/28/2026 

1,491, 180 09/28/2026 

533,315 10/01/2026 

1,537,993 10/2512026 

1,912,216 11/09/2026 

50,000 12/2912026 

3,000,000 01/28/2027 

452,498 06/30/2027 

Days to 

Maturi.!X_ 

65 

134 

150 

150 

150 

151 

181 

290 

324 

328 

353 

389 

391 

392 

401 

468 

481 

515 

515 

530 

560 

562 

562 

571 

590 

590 

604 

604 

607 

631 

646 

696 

726 

879 

Bond• 
Equiv 
Yield 

2.550 

4.290 

4.290 

4.730 

4.622 

0.001 

0.050 

0.730 

0.609 

0.990 

0.787 

2.145 

0.992 

0.542 

0.825 

4.073 

0.699 

0.500 

2.248 

4.200 

0.800 

1.079 

1.250 

1.181 

1.201 

1.050 

1.272 

0.875 

1.150 

1.250 

1.227 

1.225 

0.900 

1.635 

1.260 

1.567 

1.475 

1.509 

1.700 

4.841 

Market Value CUSIP 

0 SYS70101 

83,420 SYS70014 

12,445,000 SYS70102 

43,212,953 SYS70070 

55,162 SYS70000 

824,664 SYS70050 

10,000 SYS30340 

256,326 546486BV2 

492,320 592112XC5 

493,220 71884AF20 

492,250 977123X78 

985,040 59217GEJ4 

983,240 275282PS4 

971,990 3135GA4P3 

240,593 48128GY53 

33,738 912797NU7 

479,320 89236THY 4 

360,521 3130AKXX9 

982,240 3130AQZV8 

100,559 17275RBC5 

1,058,827 3133EMSU7 

479,540 91324PEC2 

1,618,417 06048'MM31 

239,248 592098X77 

239,513 797356DF6 

477,050 57629WDE7 

95,259 088518NV3 

475,065 3130ANGX2 

945,140 48128G4R8 

706,643 06048WN22 

475,035 14913R2Q9 

482,700 24422EVB2 

596,434 3130ANXS4 

1,411,575 75951AAQ1 

484,650 70450YAD5 

1,451,236 872898AA9 

1,812,093 74460DAG4 

47,934 3130AQERO 

2,874,090 3130AQN66 

454,845 3130ASH44 

lnvestllli!nt# 

70101 

70014 

70102 

70070 

70000 

70050 

30340 

27178 

27642 

27058 

27041 

27375 

27106 

27137 

27138 

27907 

27149 

27179 

27366 

27480 

27200 

27230 

27225 

27291 

27298 

27247 

27273 

27252 

27251 

27255 

27288 

27294 

27276 

27292 

27293 

27330 

27336 

27342 

27364 

27559 

Page 1 

Ca!!l'.!!!9_ Value 

0 

83,420 

12,445,000 

43,212,953 

55,162 

824,664 

10,000 

260,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

995,185 

1,000,000 

1,000,845 

250,000 

33,756 

500,000 

375,000 

1,000,000 

100,730 

1,100,000 

500,438 

1,700,000 

250,000 

250,000 

501,062 

100,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

750,000 

499,396 

508,022 

630,000 

1,497,048 

511,186 

1,529,614 

1,910,798 

50,000 

3,000,000 

453,591 



( 
Page 2 

Northern California Power Agency 

/~~s;,~~r Treasurer's Report 

01/31/2025 

Operating 
Bond' 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee/ Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturi!}'. Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
Meta Platforms Inc. USBGC 526,000 3.500 11/21/2022 494,240 08/15/2027 925 4.944 515,475 30303M8B1 27483 508,964 

Amazon.com Inc USBGC 600,000 3.150 09/21/2022 573,894 08/22/2027 932 4.136 581,778 023135BC9 27455 586,424 

Alabama St Public Sc USBGC 500,000 5.150 01/31/2025 508,370 09/01/2027 942 4.455 507,615 0106085M5 27922 508,370 

Comcast Corp USBGC 1,000,000 7.125 06/08/2023 1,098,290 0211512028 1,109 4.757 1,067,210 872287AL 1 27597 1,063,740 

American Honda Finan USBGC 1,000,000 2.000 06/08/2023 887,330 03124/2028 1,147 4.648 920,080 02665WDW8 27598 926,040 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N USBGC 750,000 4.800 0411412023 755,445 03/30/2028 1,153 4.634 747,233 58769JAG2 27572 753,472 

Bank of NY Mellon Co USBGC 500,000 3.850 10/30/2024 492,520 04/28/2028 1,182 4.315 489,215 06406RAH0 27828 493,061 

Meta Platforms Inc. USBGC 500,000 4.600 07/03/2023 496,500 05/15/2028 1,199 4.761 501,870 30303M8L9 27614 497,635 

Honeywell lntematio USBGC 500,000 6.625 10/30/2024 537,595 06/15/2028 1,230 4.358 532,165 438506AS6 27831 534,973 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 4.800 06/23/2023 1,000,000 06/23/2028 1,238 4.800 998,880 3130AWE55 27606 1,000,000 

Pacific Life GF USBGC 300,000 5.500 03/06/2024 306,381 07/18/2028 1,263 4.950 306,336 6944PL2U2 27742 305,062 

Guardian Life USBGC 500,000 1.625 10/30/2024 449,285 09/16/2028 1,323 4.504 448,495 40139LBE2 27830 452,591 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 500,000 4.500 02/08/2024 500,335 01/16/2029 1,445 4.483 496,955 24422EXH7 27731 500,268 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 285,000 4.500 08/2912024 290,104 01/16/2029 1,445 4.048 283,264 24422EXH7 27807 289,612 

Bristol-Myers Squibb USBGC 500,000 4.900 11/22/2024 506,910 02/22/2029 1,482 4.537 503,445 110122EF1 27863 506,598 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 5.150 10/30/2024 514,295 05/30/2029 1,579 4.452 507,060 57629W4T4 27832 513,507 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 5.150 11/22/2024 512,285 05/30/2029 1,579 4.542 507,060 57629W4T4 27864 511,764 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 500,000 4.850 07/16/2024 503,965 06/11/2029 1,591 4.666 503,310 24422EXT1 27786 503,527 

Protective Life Glob USBGC 500,000 5.215 10/30/2024 512,335 06/12/2029 1,592 4.614 504,185 74368CBY9 27833 511,660 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 500,000 2.800 08/01/2024 463,890 07/18/2029 1,628 4.436 463,555 24422EUY3 27792 467,527 

Toyota Motor Credit USBGC 500,000 4.550 10/30/2024 499,880 08/09/2029 1,650 4.554 495,655 89236TMK8 27834 499,886 

Pacific Lrre GF USBGC 500,000 4.500 10/30/2024 498,760 08/28/2029 1,669 4.556 493,180 6944PL3C1 27842 498,825 

Honeywell lntematio USBGC 500,000 4.875 01/31/2025 507,820 09/01/2029 1,673 4.492 504,535 438516CQ7 27924 507,820 

Paccar Financial Cor USBGC 500,000 4.000 10/31/2024 491,500 09/26/2029 1,698 4.620 485,400 69371RT48 27837 491,933 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 500,000 4.850 10/30/2024 508,480 10/11/2029 1,713 4.463 504,710 24422EWN5 27829 508,047 

New York Life Global USBGC 500,000 4.600 12/05/2024 503,565 12/05/2029 1,768 4.439 496,065 64952WFK4 27884 503,454 

New York Life Global USBGC 500,000 4.600 01/31/2025 499,245 12/05/2029 1,768 4.633 496,065 64952WFK4 27926 499,245 

Protective Lrre Glob USBGC 500,000 4.772 01/31/2025 497,950 12/09/2029 1,772 4.866 495,235 74368CCA0 27927 497,950 

Caterpillar Financia USBGC 500,000 4.800 01/31/2025 504,920 01/08/2030 1,802 4.574 501,970 14913UAX8 27923 504,920 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 4.950 01/31/2025 504,175 01/10/2030 1,804 4.757 502,110 57629TBV8 27925 504,175 

State Street USBGC 500,000 2.400 01/31/2025 451,700 01/24/2030 1,818 4.591 448,705 857477BG7 27928 451,700 

Fund Total and Average $ 97,834,199 3.778 $ 97,771,919 370 3,776 $ 96,736,666 $ 97,790,620 

MPP GHG Auction Acct 

California Asset Mgm CMP 916,892 4.730 09/13/2022 916,892 1 4.730 916,892 SYS70076 70076 916,892 

Local Agency lnvestm 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70045 70045 0 

Fund Total and Average $ 916,892 4.730 $ 916,892 1 4.730 $ 916,892 $ 916,892 

MPP Security Deposit Acct 

02/13/2025 11:20 am 



Page3 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

01/31/2025 

MPP Security Deposit Acct 
Bond• 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee/ Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturi!}: Yield Marl<et Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
California Asset Mgrn CMP 497,289 4.730 10/28/2022 497,289 1 4.730 497,289 SYS70078 70078 497,289 

Local Agency lnvestm 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70048 70048 0 

Fund Total and Average $ 497,289 4.730 $ 497,289 1 4.730 $ 497,289 $ 497,289 

SCPA Balancing Account 

First American Govt. USBGC 32,970 4.290 32,970 1 4.290 32,970 SYS70023 70023 32,970 

California Asset Mgm CMP 16,177,639 4.730 05/27/2022 16,177,639 1 4.730 16,177,639 SYS70072 70072 16,177,639 

Local Agency lnvestm LAIF 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70022 70022 0 

Memphis Center City USBGC 500,000 2.948 11/23/2020 550,395 04/01/2025 59 0.600 498,670 586145F74 27113 501,928 

State of \Msconsin USBGC 105,000 0.650 01/30/2023 105,000 05/01/2025 89 0.649 104,040 97705MZH1 27539 105,000 

State of \Msconsin USBGC 295,000 0.650 01/30/2023 295,000 05/01/2025 89 0.649 292, 168 97705MZR9 27540 295,000 

California St Hlth F USBGC 500,000 0.952 11/04/2020 500,000 06/01/2025 120 0.952 494,270 13032UXM5 27110 500,000 

City of Baltimore USBGC 500,000 0.845 12/02/2020 500,000 07/01/2025 150 0.932 492,950 059231X39 27125 500,000 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 500,000 0.610 09/18/2023 500,000 07/01/2025 150 0.609 492,320 592112XC5 27643 500,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 2,045,000 0.530 09/29/2020 2,045,000 09/29/2025 240 0.530 1,994,366 3133EMBJ0 27077 2,045,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 2,050,000 0.530 09/29/2020 2,050,000 09/29/2025 240 0.530 2,000,718 3133EMBH4 27078 2,050,000 

Apple Inc. USBGC 500,000 0.700 02/17/2021 500,000 02/08/2026 372 0.699 482,265 037833EB2 27168 500,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.520 02/12/2021 499,750 02/12/2026 376 0.530 480,965 3130AKWA0 27164 499,948 

JP Morgan USBGC 1,000,000 0.900 02/17/2021 1,000,000 02/17/2026 381 0.710 965,133 46632FRV9 27171 1,000,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 125,000 0.500 02/25/2021 125,000 02/25/2026 389 0.500 120,174 3130AKXX9 27180 125,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 0.630 02/26/2021 1,000,000 02/26/2026 390 0.630 962,840 3130ALB94 27195 1,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 1,650,000 0.800 03/09/2021 1,650,000 03/09/2026 401 0.800 1,588,241 3133EMSU7 27201 1,650,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 500,000 1.200 06/28/2021 500,000 06/25/2026 509 1.199 472,815 06048WM64 27227 500,000 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 1.200 08/02/2021 503,610 07/16/2026 530 1.050 477,050 57629WDE7 27248 501,062 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 50,000 1.250 08/26/2021 50,000 08/26/2026 571 1.250 47,110 06048WN22 27256 50,000 

TSMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 200,000 1.750 12/08/2021 201,704 10/25/2026 631 1.567 190,326 872898AA9 27331 200,605 

Public Storage USBGC 275,000 1.500 11/19/2021 274,095 11/09/2026 646 1.569 260,904 7 4460DAG4 27311 274,678 

Public Storage USBGC 250,000 1.500 12/08/2021 250,290 11/09/2026 646 1.475 237,185 74460DAG4 27337 250,104 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 100,000 2.000 12/29/2021 100,000 12/29/2026 696 1.509 95,868 3130AQER0 27343 100,000 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 525,000 1.700 01/14/2022 524,223 01/11/2027 709 1.731 498,540 24422EWA3 27362 524,697 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 300,000 2.000 01/28/2022 300,000 01/28/2027 726 1.691 287,409 3130AQN66 27365 300,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 4.000 04/29/2022 500,000 04/29/2027 817 4.219 498,225 3130ARR52 27399 500,000 

State of Oregon USBGC 500,000 4.112 03/23/2023 500,000 05/01/2027 819 4.110 497,055 68609UBF1 27560 500,000 

Alameda County USBGC 130,000 3.460 08/24/2022 130,000 08/01/2027 911 3.509 127,192 010878BF2 27440 130,000 

Desert Community Col USBGC 300,000 1.823 06/16/2023 267,654 08/01/2027 911 4.730 281,931 250375LS9 27602 280,396 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 370,000 4.200 08/25/2022 370,000 08/25/2027 935 4.200 367,987 3130ASVC0 27441 370,000 

Blackstone Holdings USBGC 1,000,000 5.900 02/03/2023 1,047,880 11/03/2027 1,005 4.759 1,030,510 09261BAJ9 27541 1,027,776 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N USBGC 300,000 3.750 06/26/2023 284,544 02/22/2028 1,116 5.003 290,226 233851DF8 27607 289,847 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N USBGC 125,000 4.800 04/14/2023 125,908 03/30/2028 1,153 4.634 124,539 58769JAG2 27573 125,579 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 525,000 4.500 03/06/2024 522,113 01/16/2029 1,445 4.626 521,803 24422EXH7 27743 522,649 

Air Products & Chemi USBGC 500,000 4.600 08/01/2024 504,600 02/08/2029 1,468 4.373 499,125 009158BH8 27793 504,091 

02/13/2025 11:20am 



Page4 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

01/31/2025 

SCPA Balancing Account 
Bond* 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee/ Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturi!l Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Carrying Value 
Protective Life Glob USBGC 500,000 5.215 10/30/2024 512,335 06/12/2029 1,592 4.614 504,185 74368CBY9 27835 511,660 

Applied Materials In USBGC 500,000 4.800 08/01/2024 509,280 06/15/2029 1,595 4.371 502,975 038222AS4 27795 508,328 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 500,000 2.800 08/01/2024 463,890 07/18/2029 1,628 4.436 463,555 24422EUY3 27794 467,527 

Pacific Life GF USBGC 500,000 4.500 10/30/2024 498,760 08/28/2029 1,669 4.556 493,180 6944PL3C1 27843 498,825 

Paccar Financial Car USBGC 500,000 4.000 10/31/2024 491,500 09/2612029 1,698 4.620 485,400 69371 RT 48 27838 491,933 

Fund Total and Avera.9.e ~ _ 36,930,609 3.224 $ 36,963,140 363 3,199 $ 36,434,824 $ 36,912,242 

General Operating Reserve 

First American Govt. USBGC 1,483,134 4.290 1,483,134 1 4.290 1,483,134 SYS70019 70019 1,483,134 

California Asset Mgm CMP 23,625,020 4.730 12/14/2018 23,625,020 1 4.730 23,625,020 SYS70071 70071 23,625,020 

Local Agency lnvestm LAIF 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70000 70002 0 

US Bank USB 0 0.000 07/01/2024 0 1 0.000 0 SYS70051 70051 0 

WW Grainger Inc. USBGC 500,000 1.850 04/30/2020 516,000 02/15/2025 14 1.161 499,345 384802AE4 27000 500,130 

W w Grainger Inc. USBGC 500,000 1.850 05/21/2020 514,500 02/15/2025 14 1.217 499,345 384802AE4 27005 500,119 

Memphis Center City USBGC 500,000 2.948 11/23/2020 550,395 04/01/2025 59 0.600 498,670 586145F74 27114 501,928 

Tulsa County OK Ind. USBGC 1,000,000 1.500 05/26/2020 1,016,450 04/01/2025 59 1.038 995,300 899559QD3 27006 1,000,566 

City of Huntsville A USBGC 515,000 2.750 11/06/2020 560,351 05/01/2025 89 0.750 512,945 447025A56 27112 517,527 

Honeywell lntematio USBGC 1,000,000 1.350 06/03/2020 1,023,560 06/01/2025 120 0.866 989,710 438516CB0 27008 1,001,572 

County of Jasper IA USBGC 420,000 2.350 06/11/2020 443,558 06/01/2025 120 1.299 417,379 471376FJ7 27011 421,579 

Precision Castparts USBGC 1,500,000 3.250 06/25/2020 1,667,985 06/15/2025 134 1033 1,492,800 740189AM7 27017 1,512,575 

JP Morgan USBGC 750,000 1.050 06/23/2020 750,000 06/23/2025 142 1.050 737,648 48128GU40 27024 750,000 

City of Baltimore USBGC 500,000 0.845 12/02/2020 500,000 07/01/2025 150 0.845 492,950 059231X39 27126 500,000 

Wisconsin Dept Trans USBGC 500,000 0.774 07/30/2020 500,000 07/01/2025 150 0.774 492,250 977123X78 27042 500,000 

Met Life Glob Fundin USBGC 4,000,000 0.950 03/04/2022 3,847,200 07/02/2025 151 2.145 3,940,160 59217GEJ4 27376 3,980,741 

East Side Union High USBGC 815,000 0.940 10/29/2020 815,000 08/01/2025 181 0.940 801,341 275282PS4 27108 815,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 0.600 08/18/2020 1,000,000 08/18/2025 198 0.600 980,040 3136G4G72 27056 1,000,000 

Federal Agricultural USBGC 1,000,000 0.570 09/17/2020 1,000,000 09/17/2025 228 0.570 977,460 31422BV23 27071 1,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 2,000,000 0.530 09/29/2020 2,000,000 09/29/2025 240 0.530 1,951,920 3133EMBH4 27079 2,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 1,720,000 0.530 09/29/2020 1,720,000 09/29/2025 240 0.530 1,677,413 3133EMBJ0 27080 1,720,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 0.520 09/29/2020 1,000,000 09/29/2025 240 0.520 975,910 3130AKAZ9 27081 1,000,000 

Federal Home Loan Mt USBGC 500,000 0.540 10/27/2020 500,000 10/27/2025 268 0.540 486,650 3134GW4Z6 27104 500,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 1,000,000 1.000 11/25/2020 1,000,000 11/25/2025 297 0.798 970,270 06048WK41 27122 1,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 500,000 0.560 12/01/2020 500,000 12/01/2025 303 0.560 485,155 3133EMJC7 27124 500,000 

Guardian Life USBGC 1,520,000 0.875 05/05/2021 1,507,384 12/10/2025 312 1.060 1,474,400 40139LBC6 27223 1,517,645 

JP Morgan USBGC 250,000 0.825 12/22/2020 250,000 12/22/2025 324 0.825 240,593 48128GY53 27139 250,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 500,000 0.640 12/30/2020 501,000 12/30/2025 332 0.599 484,180 3135G06Q1 27141 500,183 

Apple Inc. USBGC 500,000 0.700 02/17/2021 500,000 02/08/2026 372 0.699 482,265 037833EB2 27169 500,000 

JP Morgan USBGC 1,000,000 0.900 02/17/2021 1,000,000 02/17/2026 381 0.710 965,133 46632FRV9 27172 1,000,000 

Cha~es Schwab Corp USBGC 630,000 0.900 04/30/2021 625,407 03/11/2026 403 1.054 605,310 808513BF1 27220 628,951 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 0.790 03/25/2021 997,500 03/16/2026 408 0.841 962,670 3130ALEL4 27203 999,435 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 170,625 1.000 09/23/2023 170,625 03/23/2026 415 1.000 164,508 3130ALGJ7 27657 170,625 

02/1312025 11:20 am 



General Operating Reserve 

Issuer 
Federal Home Loan Ba 

Oregon State Dept o 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

United Health Group 

Bank of America Corp 

Bank of America Corp 

State University of 

MassMutual Global Fu 

Home Depot Inc. 

John Deere Capital C 

Nationwide Bldg Soci 

TSMC Arizona Corp. 

Public Storage 

Public Storage 

Public Storage 

JP Morgan 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

John Deere Capital C 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Amazon.com Inc 

TSMC Arizona Corp. 

Qualcomm Inc 

State of Connecticut 

Meta Platforms Inc. 

Amazon.com Inc 

Alabama St Public Sc 

Federal Farm Credit 

NJ Turnpike Authorit 

N. Texas Tollway Aut 

California State Gen 

City of Houstion TX 

Lenape NJ Regional H 

NYC Transititional F 

Washington Co. Schoo 

Covina Vallley Unifi 

Los Angeles CCD 

Jefferson CA School 

Chicago Transit Auth 

State of Illinois 

Texas Public Financi 

California State Gen 

State University of 

02/13/2025 11:20am 

Trustee / Custodian 
USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 
1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

550,000 

1,108,000 

1,250,000 

370,000 

1,000,000 

415,000 

100,000 

2,035,000 

850,000 

1,585,000 

365,000 

1,064,000 

1,200,000 

150,000 

438,000 

500,000 

1,030,000 

1,770,000 

1,035,000 

500,000 

270,000 

75,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

900,000 

230,000 

590,000 

2,315,000 

500,000 

265,000 

600,000 

565,000 

600,000 

500,000 

600,000 

500,000 

500,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

01/31/2025 

Interest 
Rate 

1.010 

1.119 

1.400 

1.150 

1.250 

1.200 

1.591 

1.200 

2.125 

1.300 

1.500 

1.750 

1.500 

1.500 

1.500 

1.500 

2.000 

1.700 

3.375 

3.300 

3.875 

3.250 

3.631 

3.500 

3.150 

5.150 

4.750 

1.483 

1.727 

1.700 

1.438 

1.815 

4.600 

1.593 

2.340 

1.606 

1.450 

2.952 

5.250 

1.430 

5.100 

3.159 

Purchase 
Date 

03/30/2021 

04/27/2021 

04/21/2021 

06/28/2021 

05/28/2021 

06/28/2021 

12/02/2021 

08/02/2021 

04/12/2022 

10/18/2021 

06/16/2022 

12/08/2021 

11/15/2021 

11/19/2021 

12/08/2021 

11/30/2021 

12/29/2021 

01/14/2022 

04/28/2022 

06/16/2022 

05/26/2022 

06/16/2022 

06/22/2022 

11/21/2022 

09/21/2022 

01/31/2025 

10/13/2023 

11/04/2024 

08/01/2024 

10/12/2023 

11/30/2023 

09/18/2023 

09/14/2023 

11/22/2024 

01/19/2024 

02/08/2024 

11/22/2024 

02/08/2024 

02/08/2024 

08/01/2024 

05/29/2024 

11/21/2024 

Purchased Maturity 

Price Date 
1,000,000 03/30/2026 

500,000 04/01/2026 

500,000 04/21/2026 

551,826 05/15/2026 

1,108,000 05/28/2026 

1,250,000 06/25/2026 

370,000 07/01/2026 

1,007,220 07/16/2026 

400,052 09/15/2026 

100,313 10/13/2026 

1,792,286 10/13/2026 

857,242 10/25/2026 

1,585,745 11/09/2026 

363,799 11/09/2026 

1,065,234 11/09/2026 

1,200,000 11/30/2026 

150,000 12/29/2026 

437,352 01/11/2027 

500,000 01/28/2027 

993,208 04/13/2027 

1,789,399 04/22/2027 

995,059 05/20/2027 

500,000 06/15/2027 

253,697 08/15/2027 

71,737 08/22/2027 

1,016,740 09/01/2027 

1,000,000 10/13/2027 

920,080 01/01/2028 

460,490 01/01/2028 

787,473 02/01/2028 

199,849 03/01/2028 

519,230 03/15/2028 

2,284,326 05/01/2028 

453,530 06/15/2028 

243,270 08/01/2028 

542,820 08/01/2028 

506,845 09/01/2028 

563,718 12/01/2028 

514,705 12/01/2028 

530,868 02/01/2029 

510,485 03/01/2029 

477,750 03/15/2029 

Days to 
Matur!!x_ 

422 

424 

444 

468 

481 

509 

515 

530 

591 

619 

619 

631 

646 

646 

646 

667 

696 

709 

726 

801 

810 

838 

864 

925 

932 

942 

984 

1,064 

1,064 

1,095 

1,124 

1,138 

1,185 

1,230 

1,277 

1,277 

1,308 

1,399 

1,399 

1,461 

1,489 

1,503 

Bond' 
Equiv 
Yield 
1.010 

1.119 

1.084 

1.079 

1.250 

1.199 

1.590 

1.050 

3.000 

1.235 

4.569 

1.567 

1.490 

1.569 

1.475 

1.500 

1.509 

1.731 

3.375 

4.123 

3.628 

4.122 

3.631 

4.944 

4.136 

4.455 

4,750 

4.211 

4.235 

4.962 

4.888 

4.816 

4.922 

4.441 

4.352 

3.947 

4.441 

4.357 

4.561 

4.271 

4.602 

4.298 

Market Value CUSIP 
963,780 3130ALTT1 

482,165 68607V2O7 

483,415 3130ALXR0 

527,494 91324PEC2 

1,054,827 06048WM31 

1,182,038 06048WM64 

355,748 65000BGU6 

954,100 57629WDE7 

400,525 437076BN1 

95,064 24422EVW5 

1,932,110 63859UBH5 

808,886 872898AA9 

1,503,753 74460DAG4 

346,290 74460DAG4 

1,009,459 7 4460DAG4 

1,110,522 48130UZH1 

143,802 3130AQER0 

415,925 24422EWA3 

490,775 3130ARP62 

1,007,670 023135CF1 

1,741,963 872898AF8 

1,008,338 7 47525AU7 

490,785 20772KQK8 

264,597 30303M8B1 

72,722 023135BC9 

1,015,230 0106085M5 

1,012,680 3133EPYM1 

916,620 646140DR1 

462,635 66285W888 

831,528 13063DC48 

210,045 442331764 

542,782 525876WS3 

2,316,991 64971X7J1 

456,400 938429V95 

246,466 223093VR3 

547,548 54438CYM8 

509,805 472412SN6 

565,434 16772PCP9 

507,375 452153GY9 

532,938 882669BX1 

509,415 13063D3P1 

474,840 64990FY65 

Investment # 
27213 

27216 

27215 

27232 

27226 

27228 

27329 

27249 

27387 

27297 

27420 

27333 

27308 

27312 

27339 

27313 

27345 

27363 

27398 

27419 

27404 

27421 

27423 

27484 

27457 

27918 

27659 

27849 

27797 

27658 

27677 

27641 

27639 

27871 

27704 

27727 

27872 

27729 

27728 

27798 

27767 

27859 

Pages 

Carrying Value 
1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

550,482 

1,108,000 

1,250,000 

370,000 

1,002,125 

409,520 

100,107 

1,939,598 

852,572 

1,585,265 

364,572 

1,064,445 

1,200,000 

150,000 

437,747 

500,000 

1,013,225 

1,778,799 

1,016,336 

500,000 

261,256 

73,303 

1,016,740 

1,000,000 

926,195 

466,272 

821,543 

208,140 

540,806 

2,293,471 

456,029 

248,223 

555,334 

509,797 

571,108 

511,710 

538,549 

509,003 

478,752 



Page6 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

01/31/2025 

General Operating Reserve 
Bond"" 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee I Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturi~ Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Carrying Value 
County of Johnstion USBGC 355,000 1.790 12/30/2024 316,955 04/01/2029 1,520 4.592 318,414 479354EL2 27900 317,725 

Oregon State General USBGC 500,000 4.980 11/21/2024 512,305 04/01/2029 1,520 4.352 507,940 68608WBA9 27860 511,756 

Texas A & M Universi USBGC 500,000 3.381 11/21/2024 481,175 05/15/2029 1,564 4.313 479,405 88213AHR9 27861 481,991 

Oregon State General USBGC 500,000 1.673 11/04/2024 440,825 06/30/2029 1,610 4.520 441,495 68583RDD1 27851 443,897 

City of El Segundo C USBGC 1,000,000 1.977 11/21/2024 897,300 07/01/2029 1,611 4.465 896,410 284035AH5 27856 901,631 

University of Califo USBGC 500,000 3.349 11/01/2024 479,435 07/01/2029 1,611 4.330 475,305 91412HFG3 27846 480,537 

University of Califo USBGC 500,000 3.349 11/21/2024 480,900 07/01/2029 1,611 4.269 475,305 91412HFG3 27862 481,705 

Atascadero Unified S USBGC 400,000 1.701 08/06/2024 360,472 08/01/2029 1,642 3.901 352,564 046558EY4 27801 364,326 

California State Gen USBGC 500,000 4.500 11/05/2024 505,100 08/01/2029 1,642 4.261 498,875 13063EGT7 27853 504,843 

City of Commerce CA USBGC 400,000 1.859 08/02/2024 353,988 08/01/2029 1,642 4.451 353,752 20056XAF5 27800 358,566 

Fresno CA School Dis USBGC 500,000 0.000 11/22/2024 404,890 08/01/2029 1,642 4.936 404,665 3582325T9 27874 408,832 

Mt. San Antonio CA C USBGC 500,000 3.000 08/01/2024 473,305 08/01/2029 1,642 4.194 469,090 623040MD1 27799 475,975 

San Diego Community USBGC 500,000 1.883 12/16/2024 451,470 08/01/2029 1,642 4.214 444,920 797272RR4 27892 452,782 

SF BART Distriict USBGC 595,000 2.622 11/22/2024 550,137 08/01/2029 1,642 4.418 549,393 797661XA8 27875 551,970 

San Ramon Valley USD USBGC 500,000 1.794 01/31/2025 449,200 08/01/2029 1,642 4.301 446,330 7994082J7 27919 449,200 

Yosemite Community C USBGC 1,000,000 2.350 11/21/2024 916,800 08/01/2029 1,642 4.326 908,970 987388GZ2 27858 920,246 

Yosemite Community C USBGC 500,000 2.350 12/13/2024 459,400 08/01/2029 1,642 4.301 454,485 987388GZ2 27890 460,568 

Yosemite Community C USBGC 500,000 2.350 12/16/2024 460,930 08/01/2029 1,642 4.227 454,485 987388GZ2 27893 461,986 

California State Gen USBGC 500,000 5.125 11/01/2024 518,905 09/01/2029 1,673 4.249 510,840 13063EBP0 27844 517,927 

California State Gen USBGC 500,000 5.125 11/22/2024 515,030 09/01/2029 1,673 4.418 510,840 13063EBP0 27873 514,427 

Corona-Norco Unified USBGC 1,000,000 1.956 11/21/2024 895,490 09/01/2029 1,673 4.404 884,210 21976THM7 27855 899,743 

Glendale Unified Sch USBGC 1,000,000 1.480 11/21/2024 878,320 09/01/2029 1,673 4.325 853,340 378460A90 27857 883,272 

State of North Dakot USBGC 500,000 2.130 12/16/2024 453,665 12/01/2029 1,764 4.220 446,725 65887PWG6 27891 454,833 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 605,000 4.500 01/31/2025 611,788 12/14/2029 1,777 4.241 608,945 3130ATUT2 27920 611,788 

Fund Total and Average $ 97,578,779 2.695 $ 95,827,202 555 3.126 $ 94,614,062 $ 95,986,280 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 233,757,768 3.248 $ 231,976,442 443 3.422 $ 229,199,733. $ 232,103,323 

•Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 01/31/2025 

Callable Dates: 

Inv# Inv# Inv# Inv# Inv# 

27024 JPM Quarterty 27114 MEMGEN Anytime 27197 TOY Anytime 27256 SAC Semi-annually 27727 LOSHGR Anytime 
27041 WISTRN Anytime 27124 FFCB Anytime 27205 FNMA Quarterty 27276 FHLB Quarterty 27729 CHITRN Anytime 
27042 WISTRN Anytime 27125 BALGEN Anytime 27213 TOY Anytime 27313 JPM Quarterty 27767 CAS Anytime 
27056 FNMA Quarterty 27126 BALGEN Anytime 27221 FNMA Anytime 27329 NYSHGR Anytime 27834 TOYOTA Make Whole 
27058 PHOGEN Anytime 27137 FNMA Annually 27203 FHLB Quarterty 27398 FHLB Quarterty 27846 UNVHGR Make Whole 
27071 FAMC Semi-annually 27138 JPM Quarterty 27213 FHLB Quarterty 27399 FHLB Quarterty 27856 ESGGEN Make Whole 
27077 FFCB Anytime 27139 JPM Quarterty 27216 ORSGEN Anytime 27423 CTS Anytime 27859 NYSHGR Make Whole 
27078 FFCB Anytime 27141 FNMA Quarterty 27225 BAC Semi-annually 27440 ALA Anytime 27860 ORSHGR Make Whole 
27079 FFCB Anytime 27149 TOY 1/20/2025 and 7/20/2025 27226 BAC Semi-annually 27441 FHLB Quarterty 27861 TAMHGR Make Whole 
27080 FFCB Anytime 27157 FNMA Anytime 27227 BAC Semi-annually 27559 FHLB Quarterty 27862 UNVHGR Make Whole 
27081 FHLB Anytime 27165 TOY Anytime starting 1/8/2026 27228 BAC Semi-annually 27560 ORS Anytime 27863 BMY Make Whole 
27104 FHLMC Annually 27173 FNMA Anytime starting 1/8/2026 27251 JPM Annually 27606 FHLB Anytime starting 6/23/2025 27923 CAT Make Whole 
27110 CASMED Anytime 27181 TOY Quarterty 27252 FHLB Quarterty 27639 NYCGEN Anytime 27924 HON Make Whole 
27113 MEMGEN Anytime 27189 FNMA Quarterty 27255 BAC Semi-annually 27657 FHLB Monthly 

02/13/2025 11:20 am 



Page 1 
Northern California Power Agency 

.NCPA Treasurer's Report 
m:1mmo1t:A\IK!:'ilAl'1!\Wl'tAGfffa 

01/31/2025 

Geothermal Special Reserve 
Bond• 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee/ Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Marl<et Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 

First American Govt. USBGC 5,000 4.290 5,000 1 4.290 5,000 SYS70015 70015 5,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,495,000 0.500 02/16/2021 1,497,796 11/07/2025 279 0.460 1,453,319 3135G06G3 27167 1,495,454 

Fund Total and Average $ _1_,_500,000 0.513 $ 1,502,796 278 0.473 $ 1,458,319 $ 1,500,454 

Geo Decommissioning Reserve 

First American Govt. USBGC 208,756 4.290 208,756 1 4.290 208,756 SYS70034 70034 208,756 

California Asset Mgm CMP 9,777 4.730 09/01/2022 9,777 1 4.730 9,777 SYS70074 70074 9,777 

Local Agency lnvestm LAIF 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70027 70027 0 

WW Grainger Inc. USBGC 425,000 1.850 04/30/2020 438,600 02/15/2025 14 1.161 424,443 384802AE4 27002 425,110 

California St Hlth F USBGC 500,000 0.952 11/04/2020 500,000 06/01/2025 120 0.952 494,270 13032UXM5 27111 500,000 

Houston Airport Sys USBGC 750,000 1.372 10/20/2020 750,000 07/01/2025 150 1.372 740,858 442349EM4 27102 750,000 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 500,000 0.610 09/18/2023 500,000 07/01/2025 150 0.609 492,320 592112XC5 27644 500,000 

East Side Union High USBGC 1,000,000 0.940 10/29/2020 1,000,000 08/01/2025 181 0.940 983,240 275282PS4 27109 1,000,000 

Guardian Life USBGC 505,000 0.875 05/05/2021 500,809 12/10/2025 312 1.060 489,850 40139LBC6 27224 504,217 

Apple Inc. USBGC 1,000,000 0.700 02/08/2021 1,000,000 02/08/2026 372 0.700 964,530 037833EB2 27162 1,000,000 

JP Morgan USBGC 500,000 1.200 04/30/2021 500,000 04/30/2026 453 1.200 474,465 48128G3G3 27218 500,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 750,000 1.200 06/28/2021 750,000 06/25/2026 509 1.199 709,223 06048WM64 27229 750,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 50,000 1.250 08/26/2021 50,000 08/26/2026 571 1.250 47,110 06048WN22 27258 50,000 

Apple Inc. USBGC 1,895,000 2.050 01/12/2022 1,930,607 09/11/2026 587 1.629 1,828,656 037833DN7 27361 1,907,300 

Caterpillar Financia USBGC 150,000 1.150 10/13/2021 149,450 09/14/2026 590 1.227 142,511 14913R2Q9 27289 149,819 

TSMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 1,375,000 1.750 12/08/2021 1,386,715 10/25/2026 631 1.567 1,308,491 872898AA9 27334 1,379,161 

Public Storage USBGC 765,000 1.500 11/15/2021 765,360 11/09/2026 646 1.490 725,786 7 4460DAG4 27309 765,128 

Public Storage USBGC 1,722,000 1.500 12/08/2021 1,723,998 11/09/2026 646 1.475 1,633,730 74460DAG4 27340 1,722,720 

New York City Genera USBGC 750,000 3.862 05/26/2022 750,000 05/01/2027 819 3.862 739,418 64966QC99 27405 750,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 200,000 4.700 03/17/2023 198,900 06/30/2027 879 4.841 199,932 3130ASH44 27558 199,380 

LA Dept. Water & Pow USBGC 500,000 5.516 08/01/2023 513,735 07/01/2027 880 4.738 501,025 544495VX9 27626 508,475 

Walmart, Inc. USBGC 1,400,000 3.950 09/21/2022 1,389,024 09/09/2027 950 4.125 1,388,282 931142EX7 27458 1,394,242 

Bay Area CA 'Mr Supp USBGC 200,000 3.365 08/15/2023 190,204 10/01/2027 972 4.682 194,050 072031AP2 27627 193,671 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 150,000 4.750 10/13/2023 150,000 10/13/2027 984 4.750 151,902 3133EPYM1 27660 150,000 

Comcast Corp USBGC 320,000 7.125 06/08/2023 351,606 02/15/2028 1,109 4.747 341,507 872287AL 1 27599 340,496 

American Honda Finan USBGC 375,000 3.500 06/20/2023 357,113 02/15/2028 1,109 4.650 361,965 02665VI/CE9 27604 363,317 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N USBGC 125,000 4.800 04/14/2023 125,908 03/30/2028 1,153 4.634 124,539 58769JAG2 27574 125,579 

Yosemite Community C USBGC 500,000 2.210 11/26/2024 466,315 08/01/2028 1,277 4.204 462,795 987388GY5 27877 467,967 

City of Manhattan Be USBGC 235,000 2.021 11/30/2023 201,787 01/01/2029 1,430 5.220 213,812 562784AJ7 27678 209,424 

Kentucky St Turnpike USBGC 725,000 1.768 01/31/2025 648,585 07/01/2029 1,611 4.420 641,502 491552S97 27915 648,585 

East Side Union High USBGC 275,000 1.927 09/05/2024 251,853 08/01/2029 1,642 3.824 244,365 275282PW5 27808 253,767 

San Ramon Valley USO USBGC 865,000 1.794 01/31/2025 777,116 08/01/2029 1,642 4.301 772,151 7994082J7 27916 777,116 

New York City Genera USBGC 585,000 2.040 04/30/2021 583,204 03/01/2030 1,854 2.078 513,958 64966QUX6 27219 583,967 

California State Uni USBGC 210,000 1.740 11/18/2022 167,082 11/01/2030 2,099 4.870 178,496 13077DMR0 27482 178,970 

02/13/2025 11:03am 



Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

01/31/2025 

Geo Decommissioning Reserve 

Interest Purchase Purchased 

Issuer Trustee/ Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price 
Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 1.000 02/10/2021 1,000,000 

Federal Agricultural USBGC 972,000 1.460 02/18/2021 972,000 

Federal Agricultural USBGC 600,000 1.460 07/30/2021 598,800 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,700,000 1.750 08/1712022 1,482,587 

West Hartford CT USBGC 330,000 1.844 01/1212023 270,273 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 2,000,000 1.740 0712912021 2,006,440 

Marin Community Coll USBGC 500,000 1.710 09/1412021 506,610 

Oceanside Unified Sc USBGC 310,000 1.900 01112/2023 247,916 

County of Bexar TX USBGC 385,000 2.134 09/23/2021 385,000 

County of Bexar TX USBGC 250,000 2.134 09/2312021 250,000 

Chicago Transit Auth USBGC 90,000 3.302 11/21/2022 78,348 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 2,500,000 1.800 0111112022 2,445,000 

Federal Agricultural USBGC 975,000 4.120 05125/2022 970,125 

California State Gen USBGC 325,000 5.700 08131/2023 344,500 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 600,000 4.750 01131/2025 607,692 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 435,000 4.500 09/1312023 428,258 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 700,000 4.625 01/31/2025 698,810 

Fund Total and Average $ 33,192,533 2.224 $ 32,578,863 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 34,692,533 2.148 $ 34,081,659 

•eond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value Is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 01/31/2025 

Callable Dates: 

Inv# 

27111 
27162 
27163 
27177 
27218 
27219 
27229 
27245 
27246 
27258 
27403 
27405 
27439 
27482 
27485 
27626 
27627 
27678 

CASMED 
APPL 
FHLB 
FAMCA 
JPM 
NYC 
BAG 
FHLB 
FAMCA 
BAG 
FAMCA 
NYC 
FHLB 
CASHGR 
CHITRN 
LOSUTL 
BAYUTL 
MNBGEN 

Anytime 
Anytime starting 11812026 
Quarterly 
Semi-annually 
Annually 
Anytime 
Semi-annually 
Anytime 
Semi-annually 
Semi-annually 
Quarierly 
Anytime 
MonH11y 
Anytime 
Anytime 
Anytime 
Anytime 
Anytime 

02/13/2025 11:03 am 

Page 2 

Bond• 
Maturity Days to Equiv 

Date Matur!!}: Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
02/10/2031 2,200 1.360 845,680 3130AKX76 27163 1,000,000 

02/18/2031 2,208 1.460 806,235 31422XAU6 27177 972,000 

02/18/2031 2,208 1.482 497,676 31422XAU6 27246 599,240 

06/20/2031 2,330 3.439 1,423,852 3130ANUL2 27439 1,542,968 

07101/2031 2,341 4.430 275,580 953107AK5 27512 284,750 

0712912031 2,369 1.704 1,668,960 3130AN7G9 27245 2,004,182 

08101/2031 2,372 1.565 416,880 56781RKZ9 27272 504,348 

08101/2031 2,372 4.780 259,709 675383TR4 27513 262,817 

08115/2031 2,386 2.134 325,202 088518PA7 27274 385,000 

0811512031 2,386 2.134 209,420 088518NH4 27275 250,000 

12/01/2031 2,494 5.110 81,833 16772PCS3 27485 81,180 

01/05/2032 2,529 2.044 2,063,875 3133ENJZ4 27360 2,461,834 

0412712032 2,642 4.181 920,966 31422XXY3 27403 971,443 

10101/2032 2,799 4.873 341,266 13063D220 27637 341,459 

0112412033 2,914 4.556 603,462 3133ERX22 27914 607,692 

09/09/2033 3,142 4.695 426,722 3130AWV23 27638 429,191 

12/08/2034 3,597 4.645 693,021 3130B3MZ3 27917 698,810 

1463 2.518 $ 30,568,054 $ 32,663,858 

1411 2,428 $ 32,026,373. $ 34,164,312 



I": T • •·• •••'••••••• 

/~;~fO~?~Cl 

CT2 Decommissioning Reserve 

Issuer Trustee I Custodian Stated Value 

California Asset Mgm CMP 1,359,185 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,359,185 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 1,359,185 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

01/31/2025 

Interest Purchase Purchased 
Rate Date Price 

4.730 07/25/2024 1,359,185 

4.730 $ 1,359,185 

4.730 $ 1,359,185 

'Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value Is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 01/31/2025 

02/13/2025 11:04 am 

Page 1 

Bond' 
Maturity Days to Equiv 

Date Maturl.!l_ Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Ca~Value 

1 4.730 1,359,185 SYS70079 70079 1,359,185 

1 4.730 $ 1,359,185 $ 1,359,185 

1 4.730 $ 1,359,185. $ 1,359,185 



NCPA 
~HHU CA\lFCl!!tlA PO'lJtlll A(;ntt:\ 

Capital Dev. Reserve Hydro 

Issuer 

First American Govt. 

California Asset Mgm 

Local Agency lnvestm 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Bank of NY Mellon Co 

Federal Agricultural 

State of Maine 

Met Govt Nashville & 

Nashville Met Gov 

City of El Paso TX 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Califorina Infra & E 

Toyota Motor Credit 

Bank of America Corp 

Federal National Mtg 

JP Morgan 

Federal National Mtg 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Merck & Co Inc. 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Cisco Systems Inc. 

Federal Farm Credit 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N 

Nestle Holdings Inc 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

United Health Group 

Arizona State Univer 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Bank of America Corp 

TSMC Arizona Corp. 

Public Storage 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

State of Connecticut 

Los Angeles Unified 

Florida State Board 

Protective Life Glob 

Riverside Comm Colle 

San Bernardino City 

Amazon.com Inc 

02/13/2025 11:04 am 

Trustee / Custodian 

USBGC 

CMP 

LAIF 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 

74,715 

2,021,323 

0 

500,000 

545,000 

500,000 

100,000 

100,000 

250,000 

500,000 

180,000 

130,000 

250,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

550,000 

500,000 

35,000 

200,000 

400,000 

200,000 

500,000 

500,000 

250,000 

500,000 

500,000 

50,000 

200,000 

250,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

525,000 

550,000 

500,000 

525,000 

150,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

Interest 
Rate 

4.290 

4.730 

3.590 

01/31/2025 

Purchase 
Date 

09/01/2022 

07/01/2024 

4.625 04/03/2023 

1.600 04/30/2021 

0.675 05/19/2020 

5.000 06/22/2023 

1.031 11/30/2023 

1.230 12/17/2020 

4.346 12/07/2020 

4.875 08/01/2023 

0.765 12/17/2020 

5.400 06/26/2023 

1.000 11/25/2020 

0.650 12/17/2020 

0.825 12/22/2020 

0.640 01/06/2021 

0.520 02/12/2021 

0.750 01/30/2023 

0.500 02/25/2021 

2.950 11/18/2022 

4.500 05/02/2023 

1.450 05/04/2023 

5.250 06/16/2023 

1.400 04/21/2021 

1.1 50 06/28/2021 

4.388 05/10/2023 

0.875 08/17/2021 

1.050 08/24/2021 

1.250 08/26/2021 

1.750 12/08/2021 

1.500 12/08/2021 

2. 000 12/29/2021 

3.332 11/01/2024 

5.981 10/31/2024 

1.705 02/07/2024 

4. 714 02/09/2024 

1.399 12/24/2024 

1.641 02/07/2024 

3.150 09/21/2022 

Purchased 

Price 

74,715 

2,021,323 

0 

Maturity 
Date 

502,995 03/14/2025 

561,197 04/24/2025 

500,000 05/19/2025 

100,413 06/01/2025 

94,007 07/01/2025 

250,000 08/01/2025 

553,420 08/15/2025 

179,882 09/12/2025 

130,000 10/01/2025 

252,413 11/10/2025 

1,000,000 11/25/2025 

500,850 12/10/2025 

500,000 12/22/2025 

501,550 12/30/2025 

499,750 02/12/2026 

495,534 02/24/2026 

500,000 02/25/2026 

33,672 02/28/2026 

202,660 03/02/2026 

369,068 03/02/2026 

202,680 03/13/2026 

500,000 04/21/2026 

501,660 05/15/2026 

250,000 07/01/2026 

500,000 08/17/2026 

500,000 08/24/2026 

50,000 08/26/2026 

201, 704 10/25/2026 

250,290 11/09/2026 

500,000 12/29/2026 

490,490 04/15/2027 

518,460 05/01/2027 

477,488 07/01/2027 

548,763 07/06/2027 

462,715 08/01/2027 

479,068 08/01/2027 

143,474 08/22/2027 

Days to 

Maturi_!l 

41 

82 

107 

120 

150 

181 

195 

223 

242 

282 

297 

312 

324 

332 

376 

388 

389 

392 

394 

394 

405 

444 

468 

515 

562 

569 

571 

631 

646 

696 

803 

819 

880 

885 

911 

911 

932 

Bond• 
Equiv 
Yield 

4.290 

4.730 

3.590 

4.296 

0.839 

0.675 

4.773 

5007 

1.229 

1.950 

4.904 

0.765 

4.960 

0.798 

0.615 

0.825 

0.576 

0.530 

4.226 

0.500 

4.200 

3.996 

4.386 

4.720 

1.090 

1.082 

4.385 

0.875 

0.967 

1.250 

1.567 

1.475 

1.509 

4.154 

4.405 

4.610 

4.784 

4.465 

4.376 

4.136 

Market Value CUSIP 

74,715 SYS70031 

2,021,323 SYS70073 

0 SYS70028 

500,285 3130AUZC1 

541,392 06406RAN7 

494,760 31422BA26 

100,204 56052AH90 

98,621 592098X69 

246,328 592090GC2 

499,715 283734TC5 

180,653 3130AV\IS92 

127,032 13034AL65 

251,848 89236TKKO 

970,270 06048VVK41 

484,955 3135G06J7 

481,185 48128GY53 

484,180 3135G06Q1 

480,965 3130AKWAO 

529,425 58933YAY1 

480,695 3130AKXX9 

34,505 17275RBC5 

200,602 3133EPCFO 

386,712 233851EC4 

201,758 641062BK9 

483,415 3130ALXRO 

479,540 91324PEC2 

250,133 040664HHO 

475,065 3130ANGX2 

476,080 3130ANFT2 

47,110 06048WN22 

190,326 872898AA9 

237,185 74460DAG4 

479,340 3130AQERO 

488,445 20772KGR4 

506,775 544646A69 

490,880 341271AE4 

550,743 74368CBP8 

465,485 76886PJQ7 

489,967 796711 H36 

145,445 023135BC9 

Investment # 

70031 

70073 

70028 

27571 

27221 

27004 

27605 

27676 

27133 

27131 

27625 

27132 

27608 

27121 

27136 

27140 

27148 

27165 

27526 

27181 

27481 

27587 

27588 

27603 

27214 

27231 

27589 

27253 

27254 

27257 

27332 

27338 

27344 

27848 

27839 

27725 

27732 

27899 

27722 

27456 

Page 1 

Ca!!l'.!!!l!_ Value 

74,715 

2,021,323 

0 

500,184 

545,938 

500,000 

100,071 

98,426 

250,000 

506,140 

179,966 

130,000 

250,788 

1,000,000 

500,146 

500,000 

500,284 

499,948 

531,104 

500,000 

34,564 

201,020 

388,119 

201,092 

500,000 

500,438 

250,000 

500,000 

500,000 

50,000 

200,605 

250,104 

500,000 

491,458 

516,614 

491,229 

549,118 

464,187 

492,034 

146,606 



Capital Dev. Reserve Hydro 

Issuer 
Federal Home Loan Ba 

Caterpillar Financia 

Caterpillar Financia 

U.S. Treasury 

State of Hawaii 

Bristol-Myers Squibb 

Caterpillar Financia 

Federal Agricultural 

Federal National Mtg 

Amazon.com Inc 

NJ Turnpike Authorit 

N. Texas Tollway Aut 

N. Texas Tollway Aut 

Oklahoma St Turnpike 

Comcast Corp 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N 

San Francisco Comm C 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Pacific Life GF 

Belmont-Redwood CA S 

Riverside Comm Colle 

San Ramon Valley USO 

Sacramento CA Water 

San Mateo Union HSD 

John Deere Capital C 

County of Miami-Dade 

Comcast Corp 

Toyota Motor Credit 

Toyota Motor Credit 

Texas Public Financi 

Federal Farm Credit 

Bristol-Myers Squibb 

California State Gen 

Federal National Mtg 

American Honda Finan 

County of Johnstion 

MassMutual Global Fu 

Federal Home Loan Mt 

Protective Life Glob 

Applied Materials In 

University of Califo 

California State Gen 

02/13/2025 11:04 am 

Trustee/ Custodian 
USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

UBOC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 
400,000 

570,000 

500,000 

2,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

800,000 

500,000 

535,000 

500,000 

550,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

250,000 

375,000 

300,000 

190,000 

500,000 

250,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

600,000 

100,000 

1,500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

900,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

Interest 
Rate 

4.200 

1.100 

1.100 

4.125 

4.838 

1.125 

4.600 

4.250 

4.550 

4.550 

1.483 

1.727 

1.727 

1.572 

7.125 

3.750 

1.819 

4.000 

5.500 

1.477 

1.589 

1.670 

2.147 

2.542 

6.550 

3.762 

4.150 

4.650 

3.650 

1.430 

4.250 

4.900 

5.100 

4.625 

4.900 

1.790 

5.150 

4.600 

5.215 

4.800 

3.349 

4.500 

01/31/2025 

Purchase 
Date 

08/25/2022 

01119/2024 

02/07/2024 

01/31/2025 

02/07/2024 

02/07/2024 

12/24/2024 

1112212024 

1112612024 

0111912024 

1110412024 

06/1812024 

08/01/2024 

11/04/2024 

01/30/2024 

12/16/2024 

10/31/2024 

11/22/2024 

03/06/2024 

07/16/2024 

07/16/2024 

02/07/2024 

06/14/2024 

02/07/2024 

01/30/2024 

01/31/2024 

12/24/2024 

04/26/2024 

02/08/2024 

07/16/2024 

11/22/2024 

11122/2024 

05/29/2024 

12/02/2024 

04/26/2024 

12/05/2024 

1112212024 

12/04/2024 

10/30/2024 

11/22/2024 

11/01/2024 

11/05/2024 

Purchased 

Price 
400,000 

509,495 

445,150 

1,998,260 

510,555 

443,475 

501,165 

1,001,500 

500,750 

505,910 

920,080 

727,928 

460,490 

493,211 

541,450 

534,848 

459,230 

994,650 

255,318 

335,063 

268,890 

169,488 

452,945 

231,495 

541,800 

485,825 

488,575 

491,485 

575,406 

88,312 

1,505,160 

506,910 

510,485 

1,000,000 

494,365 

452,625 

512,285 

900,000 

512,335 

505,730 

479,435 

505,100 

Maturity 
Date 

08/25/2027 

09/14/2027 

09/14/2027 

09/30/2027 

10/01/2027 

11/13/2027 

11/15/2027 

11/18/2027 

11/18/2027 

12/01/2027 

01/01/2028 

01/01/2028 

01/01/2028 

01/01/2028 

02/15/2028 

02/22/2028 

06/15/2028 

06/30/2028 

07/18/2028 

08/01/2028 

08/01/2028 

08/01/2028 

09/01/2028 

09101/2028 

10/01/2028 

10/01/2028 

10/15/2028 

01/05/2029 

01/08/2029 

02/01/2029 

02/14/2029 

02/22/2029 

03/01/2029 

03/02/2029 

03/13/2029 

04/01/2029 

05/30/2029 

06/04/2029 

06/12/2029 

06/15/2029 

07/01/2029 

08/01/2029 

Days to 

Maturi!r_ 
935 

955 

955 

971 

972 

1,015 

1,017 

1,020 

1,020 

1,033 

1,064 

1,064 

1,064 

1,064 

1,109 

1,116 

1,230 

1,245 

1,263 

1,277 

1,277 

1,277 

1,308 

1,308 

1,338 

1,338 

1,352 

1,434 

1,437 

1,461 

1,474 

1,482 

1,489 

1,490 

1,501 

1,520 

1,579 

1,584 

1,592 

1,595 

1,611 

1,642 

Bond• 
Equiv 
Yield 
4.200 

4.268 

4.427 

4.157 

4.206 

4.415 

4.511 

4.195 

4.495 

4.214 

4.211 

4.511 

4.235 

4.239 

4.841 

4.690 

4.272 

4.160 

4.950 

4.380 

4.419 

4.346 

4.630 

4.346 

4.540 

4.440 

4.812 

5.060 

4.590 

4.290 

4.448 

4.537 

4.602 

4.626 

5.162 

4.210 

4.542 

4.600 

4.614 

4.518 

4.330 

4.261 

Market Value CUSIP 
397,824 3130ASVCO 

525,175 14913R2G1 

460,680 14913R2G1 

1,995,400 91282CFM8 

505,125 419792J64 

457,515 110122DPO 

501,305 14913UAS9 

1,000,000 31424WRD6 

499,725 3135GAZ61 

502,950 023135CP9 

916,620 646140DR1 

740,216 66285WB88 

462,635 66285WB88 

492,772 679111ZV9 

533,605 872287AL 1 

532,081 233851DF8 

457,550 797683HL6 

993,690 3130AWN63 

255,280 6944PL2U2 

338,985 080495HR8 

272,718 76886PJR5 

173,504 7994082H1 

461,785 786089JH6 

234,280 799017VM7 

531,860 244199AW5 

486,150 59333P3Q9 

490,005 20030NCT6 

498,880 89236TLL7 

576,642 89236TFT7 

88,823 882669BX1 

1,497,150 3133ERB67 

503,445 110122EF1 

509,415 1306303P1 

1,000,220 3135GAZT1 

500,310 02665WFE6 

448,470 479354EL2 

507,060 57629W4T 4 

897,696 3134HAH30 

504,185 7 4368CBY9 

502,975 038222AS4 

475,305 91412HFG3 

498,875 13063EGT7 

Investment # 
27442 

27705 

27724 

27913 

27726 

27723 

27896 

27869 

27876 

27706 

27850 

27777 

27796 

27852 

27716 

27894 

27841 

27870 

27744 

27785 

27784 

27721 

27776 

27720 

27717 

27718 

27897 

27765 

27730 

27783 

27868 

27866 

27766 

27881 

27764 

27885 

27867 

27882 

27827 

27865 

27847 

27854 

Page 2 

Canrying Value 
400,000 

526,611 

460,121 

1,998,262 

507,711 

458,232 

501,124 

1,001,404 

500,705 

504,331 

926,195 

740,553 

466,272 

496,409 

531,166 

535,442 

462,044 

994,934 

254,218 

340,415 

273,059 

173,987 

459,986 

235,480 

532,823 

488,863 

488,883 

492,871 

580,311 

89,706 

1,504,926 

506,598 

509,003 

1,000,000 

495,247 

454,330 

511,764 

900,000 

511,660 

505,489 

480,537 

504,843 



Page3 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

01/31/2025 

Capital Dev. Reserve Hydro 
Bond• 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee/ Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturi!~ Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
Pacific L~e GF USBGC 500,000 4.500 10/30/2024 498,760 08/28/2029 1,669 4.583 493,180 6944PL3C1 27836 498,825 

California State Gen USBGC 2,000,000 5.125 10/24/2024 2,077,400 09/01/2029 1,673 4.233 2,043,360 13063EBP0 27817 2,073,102 

California State Gen USBGC 500,000 5.125 10/29/2024 518,765 09/01/2029 1,673 4.257 510,840 13063EBP0 27818 517,774 

California State Gen USBGC 500,000 5.125 11/01/2024 518,905 09/01/2029 1,673 4.249 510,840 13063EBP0 27845 517,927 

Paccar Financial Cor USBGC 500,000 4.000 10/31/2024 491,500 09/26/2029 1,698 4.388 485,400 69371 RT 48 27840 491,933 

City of Anaheim CAW USBGC 500,000 3.239 12/24/2024 470,485 10/01/2029 1,703 4.631 470,095 032556KK7 27895 471,121 

California State Gen USBGC 500,000 2.500 10/29/2024 460,715 10/01/2029 1,703 4.287 456,950 13063DRE0 27819 462,755 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 4.500 12/24/2024 502,700 12/14/2029 1,777 4.377 503,260 3130ATUT2 27898 502,644 

Fund Total and AveraJl_e $ 46,856,038 3.370 $ 46,156,650 1009 3.806 $ 45,830,873 $ 46,258,817 

Hydro 2022A Debt Service 

U.S. Treasury USBT 1,341,000 4.120 12/30/2024 1,313,682 06/26/2025 145 4.264 1,318,806 912797NW3 27901 1,318,747 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 5,085,000 4.140 01/29/2025 4,997,869 06/27/2025 146 4.270 4,998,606 313385HK5 27908 4,999,623 

Fund Total and AveraJl.!..._ _ $ 6,426,000 4.1 36 $ 6,311,551 146 4.269 $ 6,317,412 $ 6,318,370 

Hydro 20228 Debt Service 

U.S. Treasury USBT 218,000 4.120 12/30/2024 213,559 06/26/2025 145 4.264 214,392 912797NW3 27902 214,382 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 1,247,000 4.140 01/29/2025 1,225,633 06/27/2025 146 4.270 1,225,813 313385HK5 27909 1,226,063 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,465,000 4.137 $ 1,439,192 146 4.270 $ 1,440,205 $ 1,440,445 

Hydro Special Reserve 

First American Govt. USBGC 5,000 4.290 5,000 1 4.290 5,000 SYS70016 70016 5,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,495,000 0.500 02/16/2021 1,497,796 11/07/2025 279 0.460 1,453,319 3135G06G3 27166 1,495,454 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,500,000 0.513 $ 1,502,796 278 0.473 $ 1,458,319 $ 1,500,454 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 56,247,038 3.400 $ 55,410,189 868 3.780 $ 55,046,809, $ 55,518,086 

•Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 01/31/2025 

Callable Dates: 
Inv# Inv# Inv# 

27004 FAMCA Semi-annually 27254 FHLB Monthly 27852 OKSTRN Make Whole 
27131 ELPASO Annually 27257 SAC Semi-annually 27865 AMAT Make Whole 
27132 FFCB Anytime 27442 FHLB Quarterly 27866 BMY Make Whole 
27135 CASDEV Anytime 27517 FHLB Quarterly 27876 FNMA 11/18/2025 only 
27136 FNMA Quarterly 27589 AZSHGR Anytime 27881 FNMA 3/2/2026 only 
27140 JPM Quarterly 27725 FLSGEN Anytime 27882 FHLMC 614/2026 only 

27165 FHLB Anytime 27726 HIS Anytime 27894 MBGGR Make Whole 
27221 BK 3/2412025 27766 CAS Anytime 27895 ANAHSG Make Whole 
27253 FHLB Quarterly 27776 SACWTR Anytime 27896 CAT Make Whole 

27847 UNVHGR Make Whole 27897 CMCSA Make Whole 
02/13/2025 11:04 am 



Page 1 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

01/31/2025 

LEC GHG Auction Acct 
Bond• 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee I Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 

California Asset Mgm CMP 137,073 4.730 09/13/2022 137,073 1 4.730 137,073 SYS70077 70077 137,073 

Local Agency lnveslm 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70046 70046 0 

Fund Total and Average $ 137,073 4.730 $ 137,073 1 4.730 $ 137,073 $ 137,073 

LEC Issue #1 2010B DS Fund 

US Bank Trust USB 910 0.010 910 1 0.010 910 SYS79004 79004 910 

U.S. Treasury USBT 733,000 4.120 12/30/2024 720,417 05/29/2025 117 4.250 723,222 912797NN3 27903 723,185 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 731,000 4.160 01/29/2025 720,526 06/02/2025 121 4.279 720,693 313385GJ9 27910 720,779 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,464,910 4.137 $ 1,441,853 119 4.262 $ 1,444,825 $ 1,444,874 

LEC Issue #2 2010B DS Fund 

US Bank Trust USB 444 0.010 444 1 0.010 444 SYS79012 79012 444 

U.S. Treasury USBT 3,167,000 4.210 12/05/2024 3,102,186 05/29/2025 117 4.357 3,124,752 912797NN3 27886 3,123,668 

U.S. Treasury USBT 791,000 4.120 12/30/2024 777,421 05/29/2025 117 4.250 780,448 912797NN3 27904 780,409 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 790,000 4.160 01/29/2025 778,680 06/02/2025 121 4.279 778,861 313385GJ9 27911 778,954 

Fund Total and Average $ 4,748,444 4.186 $ 4,658,731 118 4.326 $ 4,684,505 $ 4,683,475 

LEC lssue#1 2017A DS Fund 

U.S. Treasury USBT 3,448,000 4.210 12/05/2024 3,377,436 05/29/2025 117 4.357 3,402,004 912797NN3 27887 3,400,823 

U.S. Treasury USBT 666,000 4.120 12/30/2024 654,567 05/29/2025 117 4.250 657,116 912797NN3 27905 657,082 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 547,000 4.285 11/26/2024 534,760 06/02/2025 121 4.441 539,287 313385GJ9 27880 539,122 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 676,000 4.160 01/29/2025 666,314 06/02/2025 121 4.279 666,468 313385GJ9 27912 666,548 

Fund Total and Average $ 5,337,000 4.200 $ 5,233,077 118 4.343 $ 5,264,875 $ 5,263,575 

LEC Issue #1 2010 DSR Fund 

US Bank Trust USB 3,392 0.010 3,392 1 0.010 3,392 SYS79005 79005 3,392 

U.S. Treasury USBT 85,000 4.120 12/30/2024 83,541 05/29/2025 117 4.250 83,866 912797NN3 27906 83,862 

Federal Farm Credit USBT 4,430,000 0.840 03/02/2021 4,430,000 03/02/2026 394 0.840 4,268,704 3133EMSK9 27199 4,430,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 150,000 0.875 08/27/2021 150,528 06/12/2026 496 0.799 143,465 3130AN4T4 27270 150,150 

U.S. Treasury USBT 3,589,000 4.375 01/03/2024 3,618,020 12/15/2026 682 4.080 3,599,085 91282CJP7 27700 3,607,377 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 120,000 4.000 07/28/2023 118,496 06/30/2028 1,245 4.285 119,243 3130AWN63 27624 118,957 

U.S. Treasury USBT 21,000 4.375 09/28/2023 20,785 08/31/2028 1,307 4.608 21,059 91282CHX2 27647 20,844 

U.S. Treasury USBT 42,000 3.500 10/29/2024 40,984 09/30/2029 1,702 4.046 40,474 91282CLN9 27825 41,038 

Fund Total and Average $ 8,440,392 2.447 $ 8,465,746 536 2.329 $ 8,279,288 $ 8,455,620 

02/13/2025 11:05am 



Page2 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

01/31/2025 

LEC lss#1 2010B BABS Subs Resv 
Bond' 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee/ Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Matu~ Yield Mar1<et Value CUSIP Investment # Ca!:!J'.ln9 Value 

LEC lss#1 2010B BABS Subs Resv 

US Bank Trust USB 978 0.010 978 1 0.010 978 SYS79006 79006 978 

U.S. Treasury USBT 2,306,000 4.210 12/05/2024 2,258,807 05/29/2025 117 4.357 2,275,238 912797NN3 27888 2,274,448 

Fund Total and Average $ 2,306,978 4.208 $ 2,259,785 117 4.356 $ 2,276,216 $ 2,275,426 

LEC Issue #2 2010B DSR BABS 

US Bank Trust USB 305 0.010 305 1 0.010 305 SYS79013 79013 305 

U.S. Treasury USBT 835,000 4.210 12/05/2024 817,911 05/29/2025 117 4.357 823,861 912797NN3 27889 823,575 

Fund Total and Average $ 835,305 4.208 $ 818,216 117 4.356 $ 824,166 $ 823,880 

LEC O & M Reserve 

First American Govt. USBGC 103,282 4.290 103,282 1 4.290 103,282 SYS70041 70041 103,282 

California Asset Mgm CMP 4,398,533 4.730 09/09/2022 4,398,533 1 4.730 4,398,533 SYS70075 70075 4,398,533 

Local Agency lnvestm 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70047 70047 0 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 350,000 0.610 09/18/2023 350,000 07/01/2025 150 0.609 344,624 592112XC5 27645 350,000 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 150,000 0.610 09/18/2023 150,000 07/01/2025 150 0.609 147,603 592112XA9 27646 150,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 0.600 07/3012020 1,001,000 07/29/2025 178 0.579 982,000 3136G4D75 27047 1,000,099 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 0.600 08/18/2020 1,000,000 08/18/2025 198 0.600 980,040 3136G4G72 27057 1,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 750,000 0.530 09/29/2020 750,000 09/29/2025 240 0.530 731,970 3133EMBH4 27083 750,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 670,000 0.530 09/29/2020 670,000 09/29/2025 240 0.530 653,411 3133EMBJ0 27084 670,000 

Apple Inc. USBGC 500,000 0.700 02/17/2021 500,000 02/08/2026 372 0.699 482,265 037833EB2 27170 500,000 

JP Morgan USBGC 500,000 1.200 04/30/2021 500,000 04/30/2026 453 1.200 474,465 48128G3G3 27222 500,000 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 1,000,000 1.200 08102/2021 1,007,220 07/16/2026 530 1.050 954,100 57629WDE7 27250 1,002,125 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 100,000 1.250 08/26/2021 100,000 08/26/2026 571 1.250 94,219 06048VVN22 27259 100,000 

Caterpillar Financia USBGC 500,000 1.150 10/1312021 498,165 09/14/2026 590 1.227 475,035 14913R2Q9 27290 499,396 

TSMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 850,000 1.750 12/08/2021 857,242 10/25/2026 631 1.567 808,886 872898AA9 27335 852,572 

Public Storage USBGC 515,000 1.500 11/15/2021 515,242 11/09/2026 646 1.490 488,601 74460DAG4 27310 515,086 

Public Storage USBGC 1,064,000 1.500 12/08/2021 1,065,234 11/09/2026 646 1.475 1,009,459 74460DAG4 27341 1,064,445 

City of Beverly Hill USBGC 200,000 1.327 06/28/2022 179,194 06/01/2027 850 3.654 186,182 088006KB6 27424 190,143 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N USBGC 275,000 3.750 06/26/2023 260,832 02/22/2028 1,116 5.003 266,041 233851DF8 27609 265,693 

Bay Area Toll Author USBGC 500,000 1.869 09/23/2024 461,155 04/01/2029 1,520 3.752 449,250 072024XF4 27809 464,209 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 5.150 12/04/2024 515,220 05/30/2029 1,579 4.395 507,060 57629W4T4 27883 514,683 

Oregon Education Dis USBGC 660,000 1.707 09/23/2024 602,184 06/30/2029 1,610 3.728 584,384 68587FAZ7 27811 606,494 

San Ramon Valley USD USBGC 1,000,000 1.794 01/31/2025 898,400 08/01/2029 1,642 4.301 892,660 7994082J7 27921 898,400 

California State Gen USBGC 1,095,000 5.125 09/24/2024 1,168,529 09/01/2029 1,673 3.626 1,118,740 13063EBP0 27810 1,163,274 

Fund Total and Average $ 17,680,815 2.483 $ 17,551,432 571 2.635 $ 17,132,810 $ 17,558,434 

02/13/2025 11:05 am 



GRAND TOTALS: $ 40,950,917 3.092 $ 40,565,913 

•eond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value Is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 01/31/2025 

Callable Dates: 

Inv# 

27047 
27057 
27083 
27084 
27170 
27199 
27222 
27259 
27809 

FHLMC 
FNMA 
FFCB 
FFCB 
APPL 
FFCB 
JPM 
BAC 
BAYTRN 

Quarterty 
Quarterty 
Anylime 
Anytime 
Anylime slarting 1/8/2026 
Anylime 
Annually 
Semi-annually 
Anytime 

400 3.184 $ 40,043,758. $ 40,642,357 



PUBUC AGfNCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report for Month Ended February 28, 2025 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth ~ METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Treasurer-Controller N/A 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members ~ City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC 

Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 151:25 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended February 28, 2025 
March 27, 2025 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission approve the 
Treasurer's Report for February 28, 2025. 

BACKGROUND: 

In compliance with Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) policy and State of California 
Government Code Sections 53601 and 53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for 
your information and acceptance. 

Cash-At month end cash totaled $357,592 of which approximately $1,762 was applicable to 
Debt Service and $355,830 to Operations and other. 

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This 
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase 
agreement. 

Investments - The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $352,643,298 at month 
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $348,091,090. 

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 3.277% with a bond 
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 3.322%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year 
totaled $179,787,000. February maturities totaled $20,622,323 and monthly receipts totaled 
$38 million. During the month $10 million was invested. 

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they 
occur. 

Interest Rates- During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills remained unchanged at 4.31% and 
rates on one-year T-Bills decreased 3 basis points from 4.15% to 4.12%. 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of February 28, 2025 are 
in compliance with NCPA's investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment 
maturities to meet cash requirements for the next six months. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This report has no direct budget impact to NCPA. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

g:jH~W:::-1 
General Manager 

Attachment: Treasurer's Report February 28, 2025 

SR: 151:25 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

TREASURER'S REPORT 

FEBRUARY 28, 2025 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 

CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 

INTEREST RA TE/YIELD ANALYSIS 

LIQUIDITY AND INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS 

PAGE 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

APPENDIX 



NCPAFUNDS 
Operating $ 
Special Deposits 
Debt Service 
Special & Reserve 

$ 

Northern California Power Agency 
Treasurer's Report 

Cash & Investment Balance 
February 28, 2025 

CASH INVESTMENTS 

345,012 $ 118,667,300 

10,818 499,011 
1,762 22,916,252 

210,560,735 
357,592 $ 352,643,298 

$ 

$ 

Portfolio Investments at Market Value $ 

NOTE A - Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

1 

TOTAL PERCENT 

119,012,312 33.71% 
509,829 0.14% 

22,918,014 6.49% 
210,560,735 59.66% 
353,000,890 100.00% 

348,091,090 



OPS/CONSTR 
NCPAFUNDS 
Operating $ 35,368,216 
Special Deposits 2,467,548 
Debt Service 
Special & Reserve 

$ 37,835,764 

Northern California Power Agency 
Treasurer's Report 

RECEIPTS 
INTEREST 
(NOTEB} 

$ 404,182 
1,721 

431,018 
$ 836,921 

Cash Activity Summary 
February 28, 2025 

EXPENDITURES 
INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS 

(NOTE A) OPS/CONSTR (NOTEB) 

$ 17,299,723 $ (31,186,924) $ (1,033,127) 
(18,425,666) (1,721) 

(3,701,216) 
3,322,600 (5,428,2131 

$ 20,622,323 $ (49,612,5901 $ (10,164,2771 

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments. 

2 

CASH 
INTER-COMP ANY/ INCREASE/ 
FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE} 

$ (21,331,721) $ (479,651) 
15,956,532 (1,586) 
3,700,594 (622) 
1,674,595 

$ $ (481,8591 



NCPAFUNDS 
Operating 
Special Deposits 
Debt Service 
Special & Reserve 

Less Non- Cash Activity 

Northern California Power Agency 
Treasurer's Report 

Investment Activity Summary 
February 28, 2025 

(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) 
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) 

PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE 

$ 1,033,127 $ (17,299,723) $ 1,728 $ 
1,721 

3,701,216 64,298 
5,428,213 (3,322,600) 72,712 

$ 10,164,277 $ (20,622,323) $ 138,738 $ 

Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale 

Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity 

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

3 

INVESTMENTS 
INCREASE/ 

TRANSFERS (DECREASE) 

$ $ (16,264,868) 
1,721 

3,765,514 
2,178,325 

$ $ (10,319,308) 

(138,738) 

$ (10,458,046) 



OVERALL COMBINED 

OPERATING FUNDS: 

PROJECTS: 
Geothermal 
Capital Facilities 
Hydroelectric 
Lodi Energy Center 

KEY INTEREST RATES 

Fed Fds (Overnight) 
T-Bills (90da.) 
Agency Disc (90da.) 
T-Bills (lyr.) 
Agency Disc (lyr.) 
T-Notes (3yr.) 

Northern California Power Agency 
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis 

February 28, 2025 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 
INTEREST 

RATE 

3.277% 

3.118% 

2.178% 

4.550% 

3.430% 

3.155% 

BOND 
EQUIVALENT 

YIELD 

3.322% 

3.320% 

2.490% 

4.550% 

3.815% 

3.247% 

INTEREST RATES 

CURRENT 

4.33% 
4.31% 
4.27% 
4.12% 
3.98% 
4.07% 

PRIOR 
YEAR 

5.33% 
5.45% 
5.26% 
4.99% 
4.87% 
4.44% 

6.00 
5.50 
5.00 
4.50 
4.00 
3.50 
3.00 
2.50 
2.00 

Sep 

4 

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb 

- T-Bills (90 days) - FED FUNDS 

- T-Bills (1 yr) - T-Notes (3 yr) 



Tl'.(!! 

US Government Agencies $ 
Corporate Bonds (MTN) 
Municipal Bonds 
US Bank Trust Money Market * 
Money Market Mutual Funds ** 
LAIF Investment Pool 
CAMP Investment Pool 
Demand Deposits*** 
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note 
Certificates of Deposit 
Total Dollars $ 
Total Percents 

Northern California Power Agency 
Total Portfolio 

Liquidity and Investment Maturities Analysis 
February 28, 2025 

0..7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 

Days Dars Dars Dals Oars Years 

$ 3,185 $13,633 $15,905 $ 6,000 $ 28,631 
545 8,250 2,250 8,712 79,367 

2,915 10,695 130 51,170 
12 

13,026 
55 

77,252 
345 

12,031 1,559 35 5,652 
10 

901690 $181686 $341137 $181285 $ 14?47 $164,820 
25.45% 5.25% 9.58% 5.13% 4.14% 46.25% 

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands. 

6-10 

Years Total Percent 

$11,482 $ 78,836 22.12% 
99,124 27.82% 

3,485 68,395 19.19% 
12 0.00% 

13,026 3.66% 
55 0.02% 

77,252 21.68% 
345 0.10% 

19,277 5.41% 
10 0.00% 

$141967 $ 3561332 100.00% 
4.20% 100.00% 

• Uninvested debt service balances at U.S. Bank Global Trust and Custody are swept into U.S. Bank unrated money market demand deposit investment products. 
•• Money market mutual fund investments held at U.S. Bank and U.S. Bank Global Trust and Custody are invested in short-term U.S. Treasury obligations, including 
repurchase agreements secured by U.S. Treasury obligations and short-term U.S. government securities, including repurchase agreements secured by U.S. 
government securities respectively. 
• • • The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. 

Portfolio Composition 

0.02% I 

i 
19.19% 

0.10% . 

\ 

■ US Government Agencies 

Municipal Bonds 

5.41% 

■ Money Market Mutual Funds** 

■ CAMP Investment Pool 

■ U.S.Treasury Bill/Note 

5 

■ Corporate Bonds (MTN) 

■ US Bank Trust Money Market • 

LAIF Investment Pool 

■ Demand Deposits••• 

■ Certificates of Deposit 



Note: 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Detail Report Of Investments 

APPENDIX 

This appendix has been prepared to comply with 

Government Code section 53646. 



NCPA 
/ Hettl!fJ-11.'!l.t.>Jll,"\IA,0\\'ft.AIPIO-

Operating 

Issuer 

US Bank. NA 

First American Govt. 

First American Funds 

Cal~omia Asset Mgm 

Local Agency lnvestm 

US Bank 

US Bank 

State of Louisiana 

Nashville Met Gov 

City of Phoenix AZ. 

Wisconsin Dept Trans 

Met Life Glob Fundin 

East Side Union High 

Federal National Mtg 

JP Morgan 

U.S. Treasury 

Toyota Motor Credit 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Cisco Systems Inc. 

Federal Fann Credit 

Un~ed Health Group 

Bank of America Corp 

Met Govt Nashville & 

San Diego CA Unif Sc 

MassMutual Global Fu 

County of Bexar TX 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

JP Morgan 

Bank of America Corp 

Caterpillar Financia 

John Deere Capital C 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Reliance Standard Li 

Paypal Holdings Inc. 

TSMC Arizona Corp. 

Public Storage 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

03/05/2025 3:25 pm 

Trustee I Custodian 

USB 

USBGC 

USB 

CMP 

LAIF 

USB 

USB 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 

0 

12,755 

12,897,000 

26,636,083 

55,162 

345,012 

10,000 

260,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

250,000 

35,000 

500,000 

375,000 

1,000,000 

102,000 

1,100,000 

500,000 

1,700,000 

250,000 

250,000 

500,000 

100,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

750,000 

500,000 

500,000 

630,000 

1,500,000 

500,000 

1,525,000 

1,910,000 

50,000 

3,000,000 

455,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

Interest 
Rate 

2.550 

4.120 

4.202 

4.550 

4.622 

0.001 

0.050 

0.697 

0.610 

0.959 

0.774 

0.950 

0.940 

0.650 

0.825 

3.900 

0.700 

0.500 

2.500 

2.950 

0.800 

1.150 

1.250 

1.181 

1.201 

1.200 

1.272 

0.875 

1.150 

1.250 

1.150 

2.250 

0.900 

1.512 

2.650 

1.750 

1.500 

2.000 

2.000 

4.700 

02/28/2025 

Purchase 
Date 

10/19/2018 

01/07/2025 

02/25/2021 

09/18/2023 

08/25/2020 

07/30/2020 

03/04/2022 

10/29/2020 

12/21/2020 

12/22/2020 

12/31/2024 

01/21/2021 

02/25/2021 

02/28/2022 

11/18/2022 

03/09/2021 

06/28/2021 

05/28/2021 

10/14/2021 

10/21/2021 

08/02/2021 

09/23/2021 

08/17/2021 

08/17/2021 

08/26/2021 

10/13/2021 

10/14/2021 

09/28/2021 

10/14/2021 

10/14/2021 

12/08/2021 

12/08/2021 

12/29/2021 

01/28/2022 

03/17/2023 

Purchased 

Price 

0 

12,755 

12,897,000 

26,636,083 

55,162 

345,012 

Maturity 
Date 

10,000 04/07/2025 

260,000 06/15/2025 

500,000 07/01/2025 

500,000 07/01/2025 

500,000 07/01/2025 

961,800 07/02/2025 

1,000,000 08/01/2025 

1,005,200 11/18/2025 

250,000 12/22/2025 

33,635 12/26/2025 

500,000 01/20/2026 

375,000 02/25/2026 

1,000,000 02/27/2026 

98, 129 02/28/2026 

1,100,000 03/09/2026 

501,660 05/15/2026 

1,700,000 05/28/2026 

250,000 07/01/2026 

250,000 07/01/2026 

503,610 07/16/2026 

100,000 08/15/2026 

500,000 08/17/2026 

1,000,000 08/17/2026 

750,000 08/26/2026 

498,165 09/14/2026 

524,355 09/14/2026 

630,000 09/28/2026 

1,491,180 09/28/2026 

533,315 10/01/2026 

1,537,993 10/25/2026 

1,912,216 11/09/2026 

50,000 12/29/2026 

3,000,000 01/28/2027 

452,498 06/30/2027 

Days to 
Matu!!!)'. 

37 

106 

122 

122 

122 

123 

153 

262 

296 

300 

325 

361 

363 

364 

373 

440 

453 

487 

487 

502 

532 

534 

534 

543 

562 

562 

576 

576 

579 

603 

618 

668 

698 

851 

Bond• 
Equiv 
Yield 

2.550 

4.120 

4.202 

4.550 

4.622 

0.001 

0.050 

0.730 

0.609 

0.990 

0.787 

2.145 

0.992 

0.542 

0.825 

4.073 

0.699 

0.500 

2.248 

4.200 

0.800 

1.079 

1.250 

1.181 

1.201 

1.050 

1.272 

0.875 

1.150 

1.250 

1.227 

1.225 

0.900 

1.635 

1.260 

1.567 

1.475 

1.509 

1.700 

4.841 

Market Value CUSIP 

0 SYS70101 

12,755 SYS70014 

12,897,000 SYS70102 

26,636,083 SYS70070 

55,162 SYS70000 

345,012 SYS70050 

10,000 SYS30340 

257.210 5464868V2 

493,945 592112XC5 

494,710 71884AF20 

493,935 977123X78 

987,920 59217GEJ4 

986,360 275282PS4 

974,750 3135GA4P3 

241,778 48128GY53 

33,859 912797NU7 

481,200 89236THY 4 

361,796 3130AKXX9 

983,930 3130AQZV8 

100,652 17275RBC5 

1,063,073 3133EMSU7 

481,525 91324PEC2 

1,627,172 06048WM31 

240,303 592098X77 

240,553 797356DF6 

479,380 57629WDE7 

95, 719 088518NV3 

477,030 3130ANGX2 

950,350 48128G4R8 

710,805 06048WN22 

477,230 14913R209 

485,135 24422EV82 

599,225 3130ANXS4 

1,420,065 75951AAQ1 

487,035 70450YAD5 

1,460,127 872898AA9 

1,820,784 7 4460DAG4 

48,183 3130AQERO 

2,886,600 3130AQN66 

454,631 3130ASH44 

Investment # 

70101 

70014 

70102 

70070 

70000 

70050 

30340 

27178 

27642 

27058 

27041 

27375 

27106 

27137 

27138 

27907 

27149 

27179 

27366 

27480 

27200 

27230 

27225 

27291 

27298 

27247 

27273 

27252 

27251 

27255 

27288 

27294 

27276 

27292 

27293 

27330 

27336 

27342 

27364 

27559 

Page 1 

Ca!!l!.!!2 Value 

0 

12,755 

12,897,000 

26,636,083 

55,162 

345,012 

10,000 

260,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

996,142 

1,000,000 

1,000,756 

250,000 

33,863 

500,000 

375,000 

1,000,000 

100,829 

1,100,000 

500,410 

1,700,000 

250,000 

250,000 

501,002 

100,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

750,000 

499,427 

507,609 

630,000 

1,497,197 

510,627 

1,529,393 

1,910,761 

50,000 

3,000,000 

453,639 



Page 2 
Northern California Power Agency 

,NCPA 
'HC1rntf1tJ1GJ.~t.'IIAl'llWl!IA'fNCt 

Treasurer's Report 

02/28/2025 

Operating 
Bond• 

lnterut Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee/ Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturi!)'. Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
Meta Plalfonns Inc. USBGC 526,000 3.500 11/21/2022 494,240 08/15/2027 897 4.944 517,474 30303M8B1 27483 509,524 

Amazon.com Inc USBGC 600,000 3.150 09/21/2022 573,894 08/2212027 904 4.136 585,096 023135BC9 27455 586,866 

Alabama St Public Sc USBGC 500,000 5.150 01/31/2025 508,370 09/01/2027 914 4.455 510,335 0106085M5 27922 508,100 

Comcast Corp USBGC 1,000,000 7.125 06/08/2023 1,098,290 02/15/2028 1,081 4.757 1,073,260 872287AL 1 27597 1,061,992 

American Honda Finan USBGC 1,000,000 2.000 06/08/2023 887,330 03/24/2028 1,119 4.648 928,280 02665WDWB 27598 927,998 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N USBGC 750,000 4.800 04/14/2023 755,445 03/30/2028 1,125 4.634 753,068 58769JAG2 27572 753,381 

Bank of NY Mellon Co USBGC 500,000 3.850 10/30/2024 492,520 04/28/2028 1,154 4.315 494,260 06406RAHO 27828 493,239 

Meta Platfonns Inc. USBGC 500,000 4.600 07/03/2023 496,500 05/15/2028 1,171 4.761 505,450 30303M8L9 27614 497,695 

Honeywell lntematio USBGC 500,000 6.625 10/30/2024 537,595 06/15/2028 1,202 4.358 531,695 438506AS6 27831 534,109 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 4.800 06/23/2023 1,000,000 06/23/2028 1,210 4.800 999,510 3130AWE55 27606 1,000,000 

Pacific LifeGF USBGC 300,000 5.500 03/06/2024 306,381 07/18/2028 1,235 4.950 309,129 6944PL2U2 27742 304,940 

Guardian Life USBGC 500,000 1.625 10/30/2024 449,285 09/16/2028 1,295 4.504 453,695 40139LBE2 27830 453,681 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 500,000 4.500 02/08/2024 500,335 01/16/2029 1,417 4.483 501,510 24422EXH7 27731 500,263 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 285,000 4.500 08/29/2024 290,104 01/16/2029 1,417 4.048 285,861 24422EXH7 27807 289,515 

Bristol-Myers Squibb USBGC 500,000 4,900 11/2212024 506,910 0212212029 1,454 4,537 507,670 110122EF1 27863 506,463 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 5,150 10/30/2024 514,295 05/30/2029 1,551 4.452 511,390 57629W4T4 27832 513,247 

MassMutuai Global Fu USBGC 500,000 5.150 11/2212024 512,285 05/30/2029 1,551 4.542 511,390 57629W4T4 27864 511,538 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 500,000 4.850 07/16/2024 503,965 06/11/2029 1,563 4,666 507,870 24422EXT1 27786 503,460 

Protective Life Glob USBGC 500,000 5.215 10/30/2024 512,335 06/1212029 1,564 4.614 509,460 74368CBY9 27833 511,437 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 500,000 2.800 08/01/2024 463,890 07/18/2029 1,600 4.436 469,230 24422EUY3 27792 468,133 

Toyota Motor Credit USBGC 500,000 4.550 10/30/2024 499,880 08/09/2029 1,622 4.554 500,355 89236TMK8 27834 499,888 

Pacific Life GF USBGC 500,000 4.500 10/30/2024 498,760 08/28/2029 1,641 4.556 499,475 6944PL3C1 27842 498,973 

Honeywell lntematio USBGC 500,000 4.875 01/31/2025 507,820 09/01/2029 1,645 4.492 509,425 438516CQ7 27924 507,678 

Coca-Cola Co. USBGC 500,000 2.125 02/05/2025 450,405 09/06/2029 1,650 4,545 455,090 191216CMO 27929 451,186 

Paccar Financial Cor USBGC 500,000 4.000 10/31/2024 491,500 09/26/2029 1,670 4,620 491,285 69371RT48 27837 492,078 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 500,000 4.850 10/30/2024 508,480 10/11/2029 1,685 4.463 510,335 24422EWN5 27829 507,904 

New York Life Global USBGC 500,000 4.600 12/05/2024 503,565 12105/2029 1,740 4.439 501,330 64952WFK4 27884 503,395 

New York Life Global USBGC 500,000 4.600 01/31/2025 499,245 12/05/2029 1,740 4.633 501,330 64952WFK4 27926 499,258 

Protective Life Glob USBGC 500,000 4.772 01/31/2025 497,950 12/09/2029 1,744 4.866 500,830 7 4368CCAO 27927 497,985 

Caterpillar Financia USBGC 500,000 4.800 01/31/2025 504,920 01/0812030 1,774 4.574 507,575 14913UAX8 27923 504,837 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 4.950 01/31/2025 504,175 01/10/2030 1,776 4.757 506,485 57629TBV8 27925 504,105 

State Street USBGC 500,000 2.400 01/31/2025 451,700 01/24/2030 1,790 4.591 455,480 857477BG7 27928 452,508 

Fund Total and Average $ 81,659,012 3.527 $ 81,547,137 438 3,539 $ 80,757,610 $ 81,568,043 

MPP GHG Auction Acct 

California Asset Mgm CMP 286,425 4.730 09/13/2022 286,425 1 4.730 286,425 SYS70076 70076 286,425 

Local Agency lnvestrn 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3,590 0 SYS70045 70045 0 

Fund Total and Average $ 286,425 4.730 s 286,425 1 4.730 s 286,425 $ 286,425 

03/05/2025 3:25 pm 



Page3 
Northern California Power Agency 

/ \NCPA Treasurer's Report 
/ t:O~!lltP"ll:Ai~l>\,W,'M .lllfNCt 

02/28/2025 

MPP Security Deposit Acct 
Bond' 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Ca!:!}'.ln9 Value 

MPP Security Deposit Acct 

California Asset Mgrn CMP 499,011 4.550 10/28/2022 499,011 1 4.550 499,011 SYS70078 70078 499,011 

Local Agency lnvestm 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70048 70048 0 

Fund Total and Avera1e $ 499,011 4,550 $ 499,011 1 4.560 $ 499,011 $ 499,011 

SCPA Balancing Account 

First American Govt. USBGC 11,250 4.120 11,250 1 4.120 11,250 SYS70023 70023 11,250 

California Asset Mgm CMP 16,307,887 4.730 05/27/2022 16,307,887 1 4.730 16,307,887 SYS70072 70072 16,307,887 

Local Agency lnvestm LAIF 0 3.590 07101/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70022 70022 0 

Memphis Center City USBGC 500,000 2.948 11/23/2020 550,395 04/01/2025 31 0.600 499,385 586145F74 27113 500,964 

State of Wisconsin USBGC 105,000 0.650 01/30/2023 105,000 05101/2025 61 0.649 104,362 97705MZH1 27539 105,000 

State of Wisconsin USBGC 295,000 0.650 01/30/2023 295,000 05/01/2025 61 0.649 293,168 97705MZR9 27540 295,000 

California St Hllh F USBGC 500,000 0.952 11/04/2020 500,000 06/01/2025 92 0.952 495,840 13032UXM5 27110 500,000 

City of Baltimore USBGC 500,000 0.845 12/02/2020 500,000 07/01/2025 122 0.932 494,495 059231X39 27125 500,000 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 500,000 0.610 09/18/2023 500,000 07/01/2025 122 0.609 493,945 592112XC5 27643 500,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 2,045,000 0.530 09/29/2020 2,045,000 09/29/2025 212 0.530 2,001,728 3133EMBJ0 27077 2,045,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 2,050,000 0.530 0912912020 2,050,000 09/29/2025 212 0.530 2,006,622 3133EMBH4 27078 2,050,000 

Apple Inc. USBGC 500,000 0.700 02/17/2021 500,000 02/08/2026 344 0.699 483,670 037833EB2 27168 500,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.520 02/12/2021 499,750 02/12/2026 348 0.530 483,035 3130AKWA0 27164 499,953 

JP Morgan USBGC 1,000,000 1.050 02/17/2021 1,000,000 02/17/2026 353 0.740 968,555 46632FRV9 27171 1,000,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 125,000 0.500 02/25/2021 125,000 02/25/2026 361 0.500 120,599 3130AKXX9 27180 125,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 0.630 02/26/2021 1,000,000 02/26/2026 362 0.630 966,110 3130ALB94 27195 1,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 1,650,000 0.800 03/09/2021 1,650,000 03/09/2026 373 0.800 1,594,610 3133EMSU7 27201 1,650,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 500,000 1.200 06/28/2021 500,000 06/25/2026 481 1.199 475,485 06048VIIM64 27227 500,000 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 1.200 08/02/2021 503,610 07/16/2026 502 1.050 479,380 57629WDE7 27248 501,002 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 50,000 1.250 08/26/2021 50,000 08/26/2026 543 1.250 47,387 06048WN22 27256 50,000 

TSMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 200,000 1.750 12/08/2021 201,704 10/25/2026 603 1.567 191,492 872898AA9 27331 200,576 

Public Storage USBGC 275,000 1.500 11/19/2021 274,095 11109/2026 618 1.569 262,155 74460DAG4 27311 274,693 

Public Storage USBGC 250,000 1.500 12/08/2021 250,290 11/09/2026 618 1.475 238,323 7 4460DAG4 27337 250,100 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 100,000 2.000 12/29/2021 100,000 12/29/2026 668 1.509 96,365 3130AQER0 27343 100,000 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 525,000 1.700 01114/2022 524,223 01/11/2027 681 1.731 501,312 24422EWA3 27362 524,710 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 300,000 2.000 0112812022 300,000 01/28/2027 698 1.691 288,660 3130AQN66 27365 300,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 4.000 04/29/2022 500,000 04/29/2027 789 4.219 498,450 3130ARR52 27399 500,000 

State of Oregon USBGC 500,000 4.112 03/23/2023 500,000 05/01/2027 791 4.110 500,645 68609UBF1 27560 500,000 

Alameda County USBGC 130,000 3.460 08/24/2022 130,000 08/01/2027 883 3.509 127,989 010878BF2 27440 130,000 

Desert Community Col USBGC 300,000 1.823 06/16/2023 267,654 08/01/2027 883 4.730 284,106 250375LS9 27602 281,050 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 370,000 4.200 08/25/2022 370,000 08/25/2027 907 4.200 368,583 3130ASVC0 27441 370,000 

Blackstone Holdings USBGC 1,000,000 5.900 02/03/2023 1,047,880 11/03/2027 977 4.759 1,032, 730 09261 BAJ9 27541 1,026,936 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N USBGC 300,000 3.750 06/26/2023 284,544 02/22/2028 1,088 5.003 292,500 233851DF8 27607 290,123 

03/05/2025 3:25 pm 



Page4 
Northern California Power Agency 

,NCPA 
/ MW,-P't!,\\~ll"l!l,POi';'(ll~41NCt 

Treasurer's Report 

02/28/2025 

SCPA Balancing Account 
Bond* 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
Mercedes-Benz Fin. N USBGC 125,000 4.800 04/14/2023 125,908 03/30/2028 1,125 4.634 125,511 58769JAG2 27573 125,564 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 525,000 4.500 03/06/2024 522,113 01/16/2029 1,417 4.626 526,586 24422EXH7 27743 522,698 

Air Products & Chemi USBGC 500,000 4.600 08/01/2024 504,600 02/08/2029 1,440 4.373 504,065 009158BH8 27793 504,006 

Protective Life Glob USBGC 500,000 5.215 10/30/2024 512,335 06/12/2029 1,564 4.614 509,460 7 4368CBY9 27835 511,437 

Applied Materials In USBGC 500,000 4.800 08/01/2024 509,280 06/15/2029 1,567 4.371 507,050 038222AS4 27795 508,169 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 500,000 2.800 08/01/2024 463,890 07/18/2029 1,600 4.436 469,230 24422EUY3 27794 468,133 

Pacific Life GF USBGC 500,000 4.500 10/30/2024 498,760 08/28/2029 1,641 4.556 499,475 6944PL3C 1 27843 498,973 

Paccar Financial Cor USBGC 500,000 4.000 10/31/2024 491,500 09/26/2029 1,670 4.620 491,285 69371RT48 27838 492,078 

Fund Total and AveraJ!_e $ 37,03~ 137 3.233 $ 37,071,668 346 3.205 $ 36,643,386 $ 37,020,302 

General Operating Reserve 

First American Govt. USBGC 83,426 4.120 83,426 1 4.120 83,426 SYS70019 70019 83,426 

California Asset Mgm CMP 23,502,115 4.730 12/14/2018 23,502,115 1 4.730 23,502,115 SYS70071 70071 23,502,115 

Local Agency lnvestm LAIF 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70000 70002 0 

US Bank USB 0 0.000 07/01/2024 0 1 0.000 0 SYS70051 70051 0 

Memphis Center City USBGC 500,000 2.948 11/23/2020 550,395 04/01/2025 31 0.600 499,385 586145F74 27114 500,964 

Tulsa County OK Ind. USBGC 1,000,000 1.500 05/26/2020 1,016,450 04/01/2025 31 1.038 997,850 8995590D3 27006 1,000,283 

City of Huntsville A USBGC 515,000 2.750 11/06/2020 560,351 05/01/2025 61 0.750 513,707 447025A56 27112 516,685 

Honeywell lntematio USBGC 1,000,000 1.350 06/03/2020 1,023,560 06/01/2025 92 0.866 992,100 438516CBO 27008 1,001,179 

County of Jasper IA USBGC 420,000 2.350 06/11/2020 443,558 06/01/2025 92 1.299 418,123 471376FJ7 27011 421,184 

Precision Castparts USBGC 1,500,000 3.250 06/25/2020 1,667,985 06/15/2025 106 1.033 1,493,625 740189AM7 27017 1,509,760 

JP Morgan USBGC 750,000 1.050 06/23/2020 750,000 06/23/2025 114 1.050 740,535 48128GU40 27024 750,000 

City of Baltimore USBGC 500,000 0.845 12/02/2020 500,000 07/01/2025 122 0.845 494,495 059231X39 27126 500,000 

Wisconsin Dept Trans USBGC 500,000 0.774 07/30/2020 500,000 07/01/2025 122 0.774 493,935 977123X78 27042 500,000 

Met Life Glob Fundin USBGC 4,000,000 0.950 03/04/2022 3,847,200 07/02/2025 123 2.145 3,951,680 59217GEJ4 27376 3,984,567 

East Side Union High USBGC 815,000 0.940 10/29/2020 815,000 08/01/2025 153 0.940 803,883 275282PS4 27108 815,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 0.600 08/18/2020 1,000,000 08/18/2025 170 0.600 982,900 3136G4G72 27056 1,000,000 

Federal Agricultural USBGC 1,000,000 0.570 09/17/2020 1,000,000 09/17/2025 200 0,570 980,240 31422BV23 27071 1,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 2,000,000 0.530 09/29/2020 2,000,000 09/29/2025 212 0.530 1,957,680 3133EMBH4 27079 2,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 1,720,000 0.530 09/29/2020 1,720,000 09/29/2025 212 0.530 1,683,605 3133EMBJO 27080 1,720,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 0.520 09/29/2020 1,000,000 09/29/2025 212 0.520 978,920 3130AKAZ9 27081 1,000,000 

Federal Home Loan Mt USBGC 500,000 0.540 10/27/2020 500,000 10/27/2025 240 0.540 488,145 3134GW426 27104 500,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 1,000,000 1.000 11/25/2020 1,000,000 11/25/2025 269 0.798 969,460 06048WK41 27122 1,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 500,000 0.560 12/01/2020 500,000 12/01/2025 275 0.560 486,655 3133EMJC7 27124 500,000 

Guardian Life USBGC 1,520,000 0.875 05/05/2021 1,507,384 12/10/2025 284 1.060 1,480,328 40139LBC6 27223 1,517,873 

JP Morgan USBGC 250,000 0.825 12/22/2020 250,000 12/22/2025 296 0.825 241,778 48128GY53 27139 250,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 500,000 0.640 12/30/2020 501,000 12/30/2025 304 0.599 485,600 3135G06Q1 27141 500,166 

Apple Inc. USBGC 500,000 0.700 02/17/2021 500,000 02/08/2026 344 0.699 483,670 037833EB2 27169 500,000 

JP Morgan USBGC 1,000,000 1.050 02/17/2021 1,000,000 02/17/2026 353 0.740 968,555 46632FRV9 27172 1,000,000 

Charles Schwab Corp USBGC 630,000 0.900 04/30/2021 625,407 03/11/2026 375 1.054 607,440 808513BF1 27220 629,030 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 0.790 03/25/2021 997,500 03/16/2026 380 0.841 965,150 3130ALEL4 27203 999,477 

03/05/2025 3:25 pm 



General Operating Reserve 

Issuer 
Federal Home Loan Ba 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Oregon State Dept o 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

United Health Group 

Bank of America Corp 

Bank of America Corp 

State University of 

MassMutual Global Fu 

Home Depot Inc. 

John Deere Capital C 

Nationwide Bldg Soci 

TSMC Arizona Corp. 

Public Storage 

Public Storage 

Public Storage 

JP Morgan 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

John Deere Capital C 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Amazon.com Inc 

TSMC Arizona Corp. 

Qualcomm Inc 

State of Connecticut 

Meta Platforms Inc. 

Amazon.com Inc 

Alabama St Public Sc 

Federal Farm Credit 

NJ Turnpike Authorit 

N. Texas Tollway Aul 

California State Gen 

City of Houstion TX 

Lenape NJ Regional H 

NYC Transititional F 

Washington Co. Schoo 

Covina Vallley Unifi 

Los Angeles CCD 

Jefferson CA School 

Chicago Transit Auth 

State of Illinois 

Texas Public Financi 

California State Gen 

03/05/2025 3:25 pm 

Trustee / Custodian 
USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 
170,625 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

550,000 

1,108,000 

1,250,000 

370,000 

1,000,000 

415,000 

100,000 

2,035,000 

850,000 

1,585,000 

365,000 

1,064,000 

1,200,000 

150,000 

438,000 

500,000 

1,030,000 

1,770,000 

1,035,000 

500,000 

270,000 

75,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

900,000 

230,000 

590,000 

2,315,000 

500,000 

265,000 

600,000 

565,000 

600,000 

500,000 

600,000 

500,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

Interest 
Rate 

1.000 

1.010 

1.119 

1.400 

1.150 

1.250 

1.200 

1.591 

1.200 

2.125 

1.300 

1.500 

1.750 

1.500 

1.500 

1.500 

1.500 

2.000 

1.700 

3.375 

3.300 

3.875 

3.250 

3.631 

3.500 

3.150 

5.150 

4.750 

1.483 

1.727 

1.700 

1.438 

1.815 

4.600 

1.593 

2.340 

1.606 

1.450 

2.952 

5.250 

1.430 

5.100 

02/28/2025 

Purchase 
Date 

09/23/2023 

03/30/2021 

04/27/2021 

04/21/2021 

06/28/2021 

05/28/2021 

06/28/2021 

12/02/2021 

08/02/2021 

04/12/2022 

10/18/2021 

06/16/2022 

12/08/2021 

11/15/2021 

11/19/2021 

12/08/2021 

11/30/2021 

12/29/2021 

01/14/2022 

04/28/2022 

06/16/2022 

05/26/2022 

06/16/2022 

06/22/2022 

11/21/2022 

09/21/2022 

01/31/2025 

10/13/2023 

11/04/2024 

08/01/2024 

10/12/2023 

11/30/2023 

09/18/2023 

09/14/2023 

11/22/2024 

01/19/2024 

02/08/2024 

11/22/2024 

02/08/2024 

02/08/2024 

08/01/2024 

05/29/2024 

Purchased 

Price 
170,625 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

551,826 

1,108,000 

1,250,000 

370,000 

1,007,220 

400,052 

100,313 

1,792,286 

857,242 

1,585,745 

363,799 

1,065,234 

1,200,000 

150,000 

437,352 

500,000 

993,208 

1,789,399 

995,059 

500,000 

253,697 

71,737 

1,016,740 

1,000,000 

920,080 

460,490 

787,473 

199,849 

519,230 

2,284,326 

453,530 

243,270 

542,820 

506,845 

563,718 

514,705 

530,868 

510,485 

Maturity 
Date 

03/23/2026 

03/30/2026 

04/01/2026 

04/21/2026 

05/15/2026 

05/28/2026 

06/25/2026 

07/01/2026 

07/16/2026 

09/15/2026 

10/13/2026 

10/13/2026 

10/25/2026 

11/09/2026 

11/09/2026 

11/09/2026 

11/30/2026 

12/29/2026 

01/11/2027 

01/28/2027 

04/13/2027 

04/22/2027 

05/20/2027 

06/15/2027 

08115/2027 

08/22/2027 

09101/2027 

10/1312027 

01/01/2028 

01/01/2028 

02/01/2028 

03101/2028 

03/15/2028 

05101/2028 

06/15/2028 

08101/2028 

08/01/2028 

09/01/2028 

12/01/2028 

12101/2028 

02101/2029 

03/01/2029 

Days to 

Matu!!!r_ 
387 

394 

396 

416 

440 

453 

481 

487 

502 

563 

591 

591 

603 

618 

618 

618 

639 

668 

681 

698 

773 

782 

810 

836 

897 

904 

914 

956 

1,036 

1,036 

1,067 

1,096 

1,110 

1,157 

1,202 

1,249 

1,249 

1,280 

1,371 

1,371 

1,433 

1,461 

Bond• 
Equiv 
Yield 
1.000 

1.010 

1.119 

1.084 

1.079 

1.250 

1.199 

1.590 

1.050 

3.000 

1.235 

4.569 

1.567 

1.490 

1.569 

1.475 

1.500 

1.509 

1.731 

3.375 

4.123 

3.628 

4.122 

3.631 

4.944 

4.136 

4.455 

4.750 

4.211 

4.235 

4.962 

4.888 

4.816 

4.922 

4.441 

4.352 

3.947 

4.441 

4.357 

4.561 

4.271 

4.602 

Market Value CUSIP 
164,617 3130ALGJ7 

966,230 3130AL TT1 

483,965 68607V2Q7 

484,865 3130ALXR0 

529,678 91324PEC2 

1,060,533 06048WM31 

1,188,713 06048WM64 

357,579 65000BGU6 

958,760 57629WDE7 

402,027 437076BN1 

95,428 24422EVVl/6 

1,942,509 63859UBH5 

813,841 872898M9 

1,510,965 74460DAG4 

347,951 74460DAG4 

1,014,301 74460DAG4 

1,114,318 48130UZH1 

144,548 3130AQER0 

418,237 24422EWA3 

492,455 3130ARP62 

1,011,800 023135CF1 

1, 751, 167 872898AF8 

1,013,596 747525AU7 

494,060 20772KQK8 

265,623 30303M8B1 

73, 137 023135BC9 

1,020,670 0106085M5 

1,018,340 3133EPYM1 

926,480 646140DR1 

466,930 66285WB88 

839,565 13063DC48 

212,364 442331784 

548,263 525876WS3 

2,328,010 64971X7J1 

461,390 938429V95 

249,113 223093VR3 

554,760 54438CYM8 

515,856 472412SN6 

571,824 16772PCP9 

511,805 452153GY9 

540,018 882669BX1 

514,695 13063D3P1 

Investment# 
27657 

27213 

27216 

27215 

27232 

27226 

27228 

27329 

27249 

27387 

27297 

27420 

27333 

27308 

27312 

27339 

27313 

27345 

27363 

27398 

27419 

27404 

27421 

27423 

27484 

27457 

27918 

27659 

27849 

27797 

27658 

27677 

27641 

27639 

27871 

27704 

27727 

27872 

27729 

27728 

27798 

27767 

Pages 

Carrying Value 
170,625 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

550,451 

1,108,000 

1,250,000 

370,000 

1,002,003 

409,801 

100,101 

1,944,274 

852,448 

1,585,252 

364,592 

1,064,424 

1,200,000 

150,000 

437,758 

500,000 

1,013,860 

1,778,469 

1,017,011 

500,000 

261,543 

73,358 

1,016,200 

1,000,000 

928,304 

467,236 

823,723 

208,731 

542,119 

2,294,023 

457,116 

248,623 

556,397 

511,081 

571,736 

511,455 

539,830 

508,819 



Page 6 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

02/28/2025 

General Operating Reserve 
Bond' 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee I Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Matu!!!}'. Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Carrying Value 
State University of USBGC 500,000 3.159 11/21/2024 477,750 03/15/2029 1,475 4.298 480,700 64990FY65 27859 479,182 

County of Johnstion USBGC 355,000 1.790 12/30/2024 316,955 04/01/2029 1,492 4.592 322,752 479354EL2 27900 318,471 

Oregon State General USBGC 500,000 4.980 11/21/2024 512,305 04101/2029 1,492 4.352 513,325 68608WBA9 27860 511,521 

Texas A & M Universi USBGC 500,000 3.381 11121/2024 481,175 0511512029 1,536 4.313 484,315 88213AHR9 27861 482,341 

Oregon State General USBGC 500,000 1.673 11/04/2024 440,825 06/30/2029 1,582 4.520 447,510 68583RDD1 27851 444,956 

City of El Segundo C USBGC 1,000,000 1.977 11/21/2024 897,300 07/01/2029 1,583 4.465 909,090 284035AH5 27856 903,487 

University of Califo USBGC 500,000 3.349 11/01/2024 479,435 07/01/2029 1,583 4.330 482,130 91412HFG3 27846 480,904 

University of Califo USBGC 500,000 3.349 11/21/2024 480,900 07/01/2029 1,583 4.269 482,130 91412HFG3 27862 482,051 

University of Califo USBGC 500,000 3.349 02/05/2025 477,890 07/01/2029 1,583 4.465 482,130 91412HFG3 27930 478,252 

Atascadero Unified S USBGC 400,000 1.701 08/06/2024 360,472 08/01/2029 1,614 3.901 357,752 046558EY4 27801 364,986 

California State Gen USBGC 500,000 4.500 11/05/2024 505,100 08/01/2029 1,614 4.261 504,795 13063EGT7 27853 504,753 

City of Commerce CA USBGC 400,000 1.859 08/02/2024 353,988 08/01/2029 1,614 4.451 358,920 20056XAF5 27800 359,333 

Campbell Union HSD USBGC 500,000 1.472 02/26/2025 444,150 08/01/2029 1,614 4.265 445,805 134159A77 27933 444,325 

Fresno CA School Dis USBGC 500,000 0.000 11122/2024 404,890 08/01/2029 1,614 4.936 414,145 3582325T9 27874 410,387 

Mt. San Antonio CA C USBGC 500,000 3.000 08/01/2024 473,305 08/01/2029 1,614 4.194 475,315 623040MD1 27799 476,419 

San Diego Commun~y USBGC 500,000 1.883 12/16/2024 451,470 08/01/2029 1,614 4.214 453,250 797272RR4 27892 453,656 

SF BART Distriict USBGC 595,000 2.622 11/22/2024 550,137 08/01/2029 1,614 4.418 556,890 797661XA8 27875 552,767 

San Ramon Valley USD USBGC 500,000 1.794 01/31/2025 449,200 08/01/2029 1,614 4.301 452,605 7994082J7 27919 450,141 

Yosemite Community C USBGC 1,000,000 2.350 11/21/2024 916,800 08/01/2029 1,614 4.326 921,690 987388GZ2 27858 921,723 

Yosemite Community C USBGC 500,000 2.350 12113/2024 459,400 08/01/2029 1,614 4.301 460,845 987388GZ2 27890 461,299 

Yosem~e Community C USBGC 500,000 2.350 12/16/2024 460,930 08/01/2029 1,614 4.227 460,845 987388GZ2 27893 462,690 

California State Gen USBGC 500,000 5.125 11/01/2024 518,905 09/01/2029 1,645 4.249 517,400 13063EBP0 27844 517,601 

Cal~omia State Gen USBGC 500,000 5.125 11/22/2024 515,030 09/01/2029 1,645 4.418 517,400 13063EBP0 27873 514,164 

Corona-Norco Unified USBGC 1,000,000 1.956 11/21/2024 895,490 09/01/2029 1,645 4.404 897,300 21976THM7 27855 901,566 

Glendale Unified Sch USBGC 1,000,000 1.480 11/21/2024 878,320 09/01/2029 1,645 4.325 866,620 378460A90 27857 885,394 

State of North Dakot USBGC 500,000 2.130 12/16/2024 453,665 12/01/2029 1,736 4.220 455,490 65887PWG6 27891 455,612 

Protective Life Glob USBGC 500,000 4.772 02/05/2025 496,920 12/09/2029 1,744 4.914 500,830 74368CCA0 27932 496,966 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 605,000 4.500 01/31/2025 611,788 12/14/2029 1,749 4.241 616,949 3130ATUT2 27920 611,672 

Athene Global Fundin USBGC 500,000 5.380 02/05/2025 501,755 01/07/2030 1,773 5.296 506,485 04685A4G3 27931 501,729 

Eli LiUy&Co. USBGC 500,000 4.750 02/2712025 508,270 02/12/2030 1,809 4.374 506,530 532457CV8 27940 508,251 

Fund Total and Average $ 97,556,166 2.713 $ 95,703,074 578 3.167 $ 94,977,914 $ 95,927,671 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 217,039,751 3.118 $ 215,107,315 483 3.320 $ 213,164,345. $ 215,301,452 

'Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity Is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

03/0512025 3:25 pm 



Current Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 02/28/2025 

Callable Dates: 

Inv# Inv# 

27024 JPM Quarterly 27225 BAC Semi-annually 

27041 WISTRN Anytime 27226 BAC Semi-annually 

27042 WISTRN Anytime 27227 BAC Semi-annually 

27056 FNMA Quarterly 27228 BAC Semi-annually 

27058 PHOGEN Anytime 27251 JPM Annually 

27071 FAMC Semi-annually 27252 FHLB Quarterly 

27077 FFCB Anytime 27255 BAC Semi-annually 

27078 FFCB Anytime 27256 BAC Semi-annually 

27079 FFCB Anytime 27276 FHLB Quarterly 

27080 FFCB Anytime 27313 JPM Quarterly 

27081 FHLB Anytime 27329 NYSHGR Anytime 

27104 FHLMC Annually 27398 FHLB Quarterly 

27110 CASMED Anytime 27399 FHLB Quarterly 

27113 MEMGEN Anytime 27423 CTS Anytime 

27114 MEMGEN Anytime 27440 ALA Anytime 

27124 FFCB Anytime 27441 FHLB Quarterly 

27125 BALGEN Anytime 27559 FHLB Quarterly 

27126 BALGEN Anytime 27560 ORS Anytime 

27137 FNMA Annually 27606 FHLB Anytime starting 6/23/2025 

27138 JPM Quarterly 27639 NYCGEN Anytime 

27139 JPM Quarterly 27657 FHLB Monthly 

27141 FNMA Quarterly 27727 LOSHGR Anytime 

27149 TOY 7/20/2025 27729 CHITRN Anytime 

27157 FNMA Anytime 27767 CAS Anytime 

27165 TOY Anytime starting 1/8/2026 27834 TOYOTA Make Whole 

27173 FNMA Anytime starting 1/8/2026 27846 UNVHGR Make Whole 

27181 TOY Quarterly 27856 ESGGEN Make Whole 

27189 FNMA Quarterly 27859 NYSHGR Make Whole 

27197 TOY Anytime 27860 ORSHGR Make Whole 

27205 FNMA Quarterly 27861 TAMHGR Make Whole 

27213 TOY Anytime 27862 UNVHGR Make Whole 

27221 FNMA Anytime 27863 BMY Make Whole 

27203 FHLB Quarterly 27923 CAT Make Whole 

27213 FHLB Quarterly 27924 HON Make Whole 

27216 ORSGEN Anytime 27930 UNVHGR Anytime 

27940 LLY Make Whole 



Page 1 
Northern California Power Agency 

Y\NCPA 
~ IIJ'hi'{f.ll(AtlSOll.:W. ~G\\P•fl""' 

Treasurer's Report 

02/28/2025 

Geothermal Special Reserve 
Bond• 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee I Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 

First American Govt. USBGC 5,000 4.120 5.000 1 4.120 5,000 SYS70015 70015 5,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,495,000 0.500 02/16/2021 1,497.796 11/07/2025 251 0.460 1,458.059 3135G06G3 27167 1,495,404 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,500,000 0.512 $ 1,502,796 250 0.472 $ 1,463,059 $ 1,500,404 

Geo Decommissioning Reserve 

First American Govt. USBGC 0 4.120 0 1 4.120 0 SYS70034 70034 0 

California Asset Mgm CMP 489,837 4.550 09/01/2022 489,837 1 4.550 489.837 SYS70074 70074 489.837 

Local Agency lnvestm LAIF 0 3.590 07101/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70027 70027 0 

California St Hlth F USBGC 500,000 0.952 11/04/2020 500.000 06/01/2025 92 0.952 495.840 13032UXM5 27111 500.000 

Houston Airport Sys USBGC 750,000 1.372 10/20/2020 750,000 07/01/2025 122 1.372 742.883 442349EM4 27102 750,000 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 500,000 0.610 09/18/2023 500,000 07/01/2025 122 0.609 493.945 592112XC5 27644 500,000 

East Side Union High USBGC 1,000,000 0.940 10/29/2020 1,000,000 08/01/2025 153 0.940 986,360 275282PS4 27109 1,000,000 

Guardian Life USBGC 505,000 0.875 05/05/2021 500,809 12110/2025 284 1.060 491,820 40139LBC6 27224 504,293 

Apple Inc. USBGC 1,000,000 0.700 02/08/2021 1,000,000 02/08/2026 344 0.700 967,340 037833EB2 27162 1,000,000 

JP Morgan USBGC 500,000 1.200 04/30/2021 500,000 04/30/2026 425 1.200 477,100 48128G3G3 27218 500,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 750,000 1.200 06/28/2021 750,000 06/25/2026 481 1.199 713,228 06048WM64 27229 750,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 50,000 1.250 08/26/2021 50,000 08/26/2026 543 1.250 47,387 06048WN22 27258 50,000 

Apple tnc. USBGC 1,895,000 2.050 01/12/2022 1,930,607 09/1112026 559 1.629 1,836,388 037833DN7 27361 1,906,664 

Caterpillar Financia USBGC 150,000 1.150 10/13/2021 149,450 09/14/2026 562 1.227 143,169 14913R2Q9 27289 149,828 

TSMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 1,375,000 1.750 12/08/2021 1,386,715 10/25/2026 603 1.567 1,316,508 872898AA9 27334 1,378,961 

Public Storage USBGC 765,000 1.500 11/15/2021 765,360 11/09/2026 618 1.490 729,267 74460DAG4 27309 765,122 

Public Storage USBGC 1,722,000 1.500 12/08/2021 1,723,998 11/09/2026 618 1.475 1,641,565 74460DAG4 27340 1,722,686 

New York City Genera USBGC 750,000 3.862 05/26/2022 750,000 05/01/2027 791 3.862 743,460 64966QC99 27405 750,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 200,000 4.700 03/17/2023 198,900 06/30/2027 851 4.841 199,838 3130ASH44 27558 199,402 

LA Dept. Water & Pow USBGC 500,000 5.516 08/01/2023 513,735 07/01/2027 852 4.738 503,370 544495VX9 27626 508,183 

Walmart, Inc. USBGC 1,400,000 3.950 09121/2022 1,389,024 09/09/2027 922 4.125 1,393,630 931142EX7 27458 1,394,426 

Bay Area CA Wtr Supp USBGC 200,000 3.365 0811512023 190,204 10101/2027 944 4.682 195,428 072031AP2 27627 193,869 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 150,000 4.750 10/13/2023 150,000 10113/2027 956 4.750 152,751 3133EPYM1 27660 150,000 

Comcast Corp USBGC 320,000 7.125 06/08/2023 351,606 02/15/2028 1,081 4.747 343,443 872287 AL 1 27599 339,934 

American Honda Finan USBGC 375,000 3.500 06/20/2023 357,113 02/15/2028 1,081 4.650 364,770 02665WCE9 27604 363,637 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N USBGC 125,000 4.800 04/1412023 125,908 03/30/2028 1,125 4.634 125,511 58769JAG2 27574 125,564 

Yosemite Community C USBGC 500,000 2.210 11/26/2024 466,315 08/01/2028 1,249 4.204 467,830 987388GY5 27877 468,730 

City of Manhattan Be USBGC 235,000 2.021 11/30/2023 201,787 01/01/2029 1,402 5.220 216,487 562784AJ7 27678 209,968 

Kentucky St Turnpike USBGC 725,000 1.768 01/31/2025 648,585 07/01/2029 1,583 4.420 650,767 491552S97 27915 650,027 

East Side Union High USBGC 275,000 1.927 09/05/2024 251,853 08/01/2029 1,614 3.824 248,630 275282PW5 27808 254,160 

San Ramon Valley USO USBGC 865,000 1.794 01/31/2025 777,116 08/01/2029 1,614 4.301 783,007 7994082J7 27916 778,743 

New York City Genera USBGC 585,000 2.040 04/30/2021 583,204 03/01/2030 1,826 2.078 522,446 64966QUX6 27219 583,984 

California State u_ni USBGC 210,000 1.740 11/18/2022 167,082 11/01/2030 2,071 4.870 181,658 13077DMRO 27482 179,419 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 1.000 02/10/2021 1,000,000 02/10/2031 2,172 1.360 862,940 3130AKX76 27163 1,000,000 

03/05/2025 3:26 pm 



Northern California Power Agency 

,NCPA Treasurer's Report 
/ ttt•'liWlt Ai'~"'!All'~AtltNC-

02/28/2025 

Geo Decommissioning Reserve 

Interest Purchase Purchased 

Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price 
Federal Agricultural USBGC 972,000 1.460 02/18/2021 972,000 

Federal Agricultural USBGC 600,000 1.460 07/30/2021 598,800 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,700,000 1.750 08/17/2022 1.482,587 

West Hartford CT USBGC 330,000 1.844 01/12/2023 270,273 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 2,000,000 1.740 07/29/2021 2,006,440 

Marin Community Coll USBGC 500,000 1.710 09/14/2021 506,610 

Oceanside Unified Sc USBGC 310,000 1.900 01/12/2023 247,916 

County of Bexar TX USBGC 385,000 2.134 09/23/2021 385,000 

County of Bexar TX USBGC 250,000 2.134 09/23/2021 250,000 

Chicago Transit Auth USBGC 90,000 3.302 11/21/2022 78,348 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 2,500,000 1,800 01/11/2022 2,445,000 

Federal Agricultural USBGC 975,000 4.120 05/25/2022 970,125 

California State Gen USBGC 325,000 5.700 08/31/2023 344,500 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 600,000 4.750 01/31/2025 607,692 

Pennsylvania State USBGC 500,000 2.622 02/27/2025 430,970 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 435,000 4,500 09/13/2023 428,258 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 700,000 4.625 01/31/2025 698,810 

Fund Total and Average $ 33,538,837 2.254 $ 32,842,537 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 35,038,837 2.178 $ 34,345,333 

•Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Markel Value Is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 02/28/2026 

Callable Dates: 
Inv# 

27111 CASMED Anytime 
27162 APPL Anytime starting 1/8/2026 
27163 FHLB Quarterly 
27177 FAMCA Semi-annually 
27218 JPM Annually 
27219 NYC Anytime 
27229 BAC Semi-annually 
27245 FHLB Anytime 
27246 FAMCA Semi-annually 
27258 BAC Semi-annually 
27403 FAMCA Quarterly 
27405 NYC Anytime 
27439 FHLB Monthly 
27482 CASHGR Anytime 
27485 CHITRN Anytime 
27626 LOSUTL Anytime 
27627 BAYUTL Anytime 
27678 MNBGEN Anytime 
27941 PASDEV Anytime 

03/05/2025 3:26pm 

Page 2 

Bond* 
Maturity Days to Equiv 

Date Matu~ Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Carrying Value 
02/18/2031 2,180 1.460 828,387 31422XAU6 27177 972,000 

02/18/2031 2,180 1.482 511,350 31422XAU6 27246 599,251 

06/20/2031 2,302 3.439 1,459,161 3130ANUL2 27439 1,545,017 

07/01/2031 2,313 4.430 281,269 953107AK5 27512 285,337 

07/29/2031 2,341 1.704 1,711,300 3130AN7G9 27245 2,004,129 

08/01/2031 2,344 1.565 427,400 56781RKZ9 27272 504,293 

08/01/2031 2,344 4.780 265,109 675383TR4 27513 263,422 

08/15/2031 2,358 2.134 331,862 088518PA7 27274 385,000 

08/15/2031 2,358 2.134 213,728 088518NH4 27275 250,000 

12/01/2031 2,466 5,110 83,442 16772PCS3 27485 81,288 

01/05/2032 2,501 2.044 2,114,775 3133ENJZ4 27360 2,462,293 

04/27/2032 2,614 4,181 933,982 31422XXY3 27403 971,484 

10/01/2032 2,771 4,873 347,773 13063D220 27637 341,280 

01/24/2033 2,886 4,556 616,794 3133ERX22 27914 607,612 

06/15/2033 3,028 4,645 427,650 70869PMY0 27941 431,062 

09/09/2033 3,114 4.695 437,210 3130A\/W23 27638 429,248 

12/08/2034 3,569 4.645 712,866 3130B3MZ3 27917 698,820 

1463 2.582 $ 31,232,661 $ 32,948,973 

1411 2.490 $ 32,695,720. $ 34,449,377 



/ 
, ~NCPA 

/ H'(jfflt•,t,.1.1lRl,1<'A~~WU ~Br.ct> 

CT2 Decommissioning Reserve 

Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value 

California Asset Mgm CMP 1,555,651 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,555,651 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 1,555,651 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

02/28/2025 

Interest Purchase Purchased 
Rate Date Price 

4.550 07/25/2024 1,555,651 

4.550 $ 1,555,651 

4.550 $ 1,555,651 

•Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity Is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value Is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Streel Journal as of 02/28/2025 

03/05/2025 3:26 pm 

Page 1 

Bond• 
Maturity Days to Equiv 

Date Matu!!!r_ Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Ca.!!l!!!l! Value 

1 4.550 1,555,651 SYS70079 70079 1,555,651 

1 4.550 $ 1,555,651 $ 1,555,651 

1 4.550 $ 1,555,651. $ 1,555,651 



/,_.~-=~l~t~ 
Capital Dev. Reserve Hydro 

Issuer 

First American Govt. 

California Asset Mgm 

Local Agency lnvestm 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Bank of NY Mellon Co 

Federal Agricultural 

State of Maine 

Met Govt Nashville & 

Nashville Met Gov 

City of El Paso TX 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Califorina Infra & E 

Toyota Motor Credit 

Bank of America Corp 

Federal National Mtg 

JP Morgan 

Federal National Mtg 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Merck& Co Inc. 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Cisco Systems Inc. 

Federal Fann Credit 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N 

NesUe Holdings Inc 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Untted Health Group 

Arizona State Univer 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Bank of America Corp 

TSMC Arizona Corp. 

Public Storage 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

State of Connecticut 

Los Angeles Unified 

Merck & Co Inc. 

Florida State Board 

Protective Life Glob 

Riverside Comm Colle 

San Bernardino City 

03/05/2025 3:26 pm 

Trustee/ Custodian 

USBGC 

CMP 

LAIF 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 

11,766 

3,170,155 

0 

500,000 

545,000 

500,000 

100,000 

100,000 

250,000 

500,000 

180,000 

130,000 

250,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

550,000 

500,000 

35,000 

200,000 

400,000 

200,000 

500,000 

500,000 

250,000 

500,000 

500,000 

50,000 

200,000 

250,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

525,000 

550,000 

500,000 

525,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

Interest 
Rate 

4.120 

4.730 

3.590 

02/28/2025 

Purchase 
Date 

09/01/2022 

07/01/2024 

4.625 04/03/2023 

1.600 04/30/2021 

0.675 05/19/2020 

5.000 06/22/2023 

1.031 11/30/2023 

1.230 12/17/2020 

4.346 12/07/2020 

4.875 08/01/2023 

0.765 12/17/2020 

5.400 06/26/2023 

1.000 11/25/2020 

0.650 12/17/2020 

0.825 12/22/2020 

0.640 01/06/2021 

0.520 02/12/2021 

0.750 01/30/2023 

0.500 02/25/2021 

2.950 11/18/2022 

4.500 05/02/2023 

1.450 05/04/2023 

5.250 06/16/2023 

1.400 04/21/2021 

1.150 06/28/2021 

4.388 05/10/2023 

0.875 08/17/2021 

1.050 08/24/2021 

1.250 08/26/2021 

1.750 12/08/2021 

1.500 12108/2021 

2.000 12/29/2021 

3.332 11101/2024 

5.981 10131/2024 

1.700 02/27/2025 

1.705 02/07/2024 

4.714 02/09/2024 

1.399 12/24/2024 

1.641 02/07/2024 

Purchased 

Price 

Maturity Days to 

Date Matu!!!r_ 

11,766 

3,170,155 

0 

502,995 03/14/2025 

561,197 04/24/2025 

500,000 05/19/2025 

100,413 06/01/2025 

94,007 07/01/2025 

250,000 08/01/2025 

553,420 08/15/2025 

179,882 09/12/2025 

130,000 10/01/2025 

252,413 11/10/2025 

1,000,000 11/25/2025 

500,850 12/10/2025 

500,000 12/22/2025 

501,550 12130/2025 

499,750 02/12/2026 

495,534 02/24/2026 

500,000 02/25/2026 

33,672 02/28/2026 

202,660 03/02/2026 

369,068 03/02/2026 

202,680 03/13/2026 

500,000 04/21/2026 

501,660 05/15/2026 

250,000 07/01/2026 

500,000 0811712026 

500,000 0812412026 

50,000 08/26/2026 

201,704 1012512026 

250,290 11/09/2026 

500,000 12/29/2026 

490,490 0411512027 

518,460 05/01/2027 

474,000 06/10/2027 

477,488 07/01/2027 

548,763 07/06/2027 

462,715 08101/2027 

479,068 08/01/2027 

13 

54 

79 

92 

122 

153 

167 

195 

214 

254 

269 

284 

296 

304 

348 

360 

361 

364 

366 

366 

377 

416 

440 

487 

534 

541 

543 

603 

618 

668 

775 

791 

831 

852 

857 

883 

883 

Bond' 
Equiv 
Yield 

4.120 

4.730 

3.590 

4.296 

0.839 

0.675 

4.773 

5.007 

1.229 

1.950 

4.904 

0.765 

4.960 

0.798 

0.615 

0.825 

0.576 

0.530 

4.226 

0.500 

4.200 

3.996 

4.386 

4.720 

1.090 

1.082 

4,385 

0.875 

0.967 

1.250 

1.567 

1.475 

1.509 

4.154 

4.405 

4.105 

4.610 

4.784 

4.465 

4.376 

Market Value CUSIP 

11,766 SYS70031 

3,170,155 SYS70073 

0 SYS70028 

500,040 3130AUZC1 

542,537 06406RAN7 

496,125 31422BA26 

100,170 56052AH90 

98,924 592098X69 

246,783 592090GC2 

499,935 283734TC5 

180,529 3130AWS92 

127,468 13034AL65 

251,675 89236TKKO 

969,460 06048WK41 

486,570 3135G06J7 

483,555 48128GY53 

485,600 3135G06Q1 

483,035 3130AKWAO 

531,229 58933YAY1 

482,395 3130AKXX9 

34,537 17275RBC5 

200,660 3133EPCFO 

388,240 233851 EC4 

201, 772 641062BK9 

484,865 3130ALXRO 

481,525 91324PEC2 

250,573 040664HHO 

477,030 3130ANGX2 

477,800 3130ANFT2 

47,387 06048WN22 

191.492 872898AA9 

238,323 74460DAG4 

481,825 3130AQERO 

491,545 20772KGR4 

512,515 544646A69 

473,235 58933YBC8 

494,214 341271AE4 

553,020 74368CBP8 

468,150 76886PJQ7 

492,146 796711H36 

Investment # 

70031 

70073 

70028 

27571 

27221 

27004 

27605 

27676 

27133 

27131 

27625 

27132 

27608 

27121 

27136 

27140 

27148 

27165 

27526 

27181 

27481 

27587 

27588 

27603 

27214 

27231 

27589 

27253 

27254 

27257 

27332 

27338 

27344 

27848 

27839 

27939 

27725 

27732 

27899 

27722 

Page 1 

Ca.!'.!1!!!ll_ Value 

11,766 

3,170,155 

0 

500,056 

545,599 

500,000 

100,053 

98,741 

250,000 

505,190 

179,970 

130,000 

250,703 

1,000,000 

500,132 

500,000 

500,258 

499,953 

532,585 

500,000 

34,598 

200,941 

389,031 

201,010 

500,000 

500.410 

250,000 

500,000 

500,000 

50,000 

200,576 

250,100 

500,000 

491,781 

515,999 

474,126 

492,393 

549,148 

465,381 

493,133 



,,~NCPA 
/ NO'l~!!V11 ~.1,\~t.\fA~llWflllltllNtt 

Capital Dev. Reserve Hydro 

Issuer 
Amazon.com Inc 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Caterpillar Financia 

Caterpillar Financia 

U.S. Treasury 

State of Hawaii 

Bristol-Myers Squibb 

Caterpillar Financia 

Federal Agricultural 

Federal National Mtg 

Amazon.com Inc 

NJ Turnpike Authorit 

N. Texas Tollway Aul 

N. Texas Tollway Aul 

Oklahoma St Turnpike 

Comcast Corp 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N 

San Francisco Comm C 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Pacific Life GF 

Belmont-Redwood CA S 

Riverside Comm Colle 

San Ramon Valley USO 

Sacramento CA Water 

San Mateo Union HSD 

John Deere Capital C 

County of Miami-Dade 

Comcast Corp 

Toyota Motor Credtt 

Toyota Motor Credit 

Texas Public Financi 

Federal Farm Credil 

Bristol-Myers Squibb 

California State Gen 

Federal National Mtg 

American Honda Finan 

County of Johnstion 

MassMutual Global Fu 

Federal Home Loan Mt 

Protective Life Glob 

Applied Materials In 

University of Califo 

03/05/2025 3:26 pm 

Trustee / Custodian 
USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

UBOC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 
150,000 

400,000 

570,000 

500,000 

2,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

800,000 

500,000 

535,000 

500,000 

550,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

250,000 

375,000 

300,000 

190,000 

500,000 

250,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

600,000 

100,000 

1,500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

900,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

02/28/2025 

Interest 
Rate 

3,150 

4.200 

1.100 

1.100 

4.125 

4.838 

1.125 

4.600 

4.250 

4.550 

4,550 

1.483 

1,727 

1.727 

1.572 

7.125 

3.750 

1.819 

4.000 

5.500 

1.477 

1.589 

1.670 

2.147 

2.542 

6.550 

3.762 

4.150 

4.650 

3.650 

1.430 

4.250 

4.900 

5.100 

4.625 

4.900 

1,790 

5.150 

4.600 

5.215 

4,800 

3.349 

Purchase 
Date 

09/21/2022 

08/25/2022 

01/19/2024 

02/07/2024 

01/31/2025 

02/07/2024 

02/07/2024 

12/24/2024 

11/22/2024 

11/26/2024 

01/19/2024 

11/04/2024 

06/18/2024 

08/01/2024 

11/04/2024 

01/30/2024 

12/16/2024 

10/31/2024 

11/22/2024 

03/06/2024 

07/16/2024 

07/16/2024 

02/07/2024 

06/14/2024 

02/07/2024 

01/30/2024 

01/31/2024 

12/24/2024 

04/26/2024 

02/08/2024 

07/16/2024 

11/22/2024 

11/22/2024 

05/29/2024 

12/02/2024 

04/26/2024 

12/05/2024 

11/22/2024 

12/04/2024 

10/30/2024 

11/22/2024 

11/01/2024 

Purchased Maturity Days to 
Price Date Matu!!!}'. 

143,474 08/22/2027 904 

400,000 08/25/2027 907 

509,495 09/14/2027 927 

445,150 09/14/2027 927 

1,998,260 09/30/2027 943 

510,555 10/01/2027 944 

443,475 11/13/2027 987 

501, 165 11/15/2027 989 

1,001,500 11/18/2027 992 

500,750 11/18/2027 992 

505,910 12/01/2027 1,005 

920,080 01/01/2028 1,036 

727,928 01/01/2028 1,036 

460,490 01/01/2028 1,036 

493,211 01/01/2028 1,036 

541.450 02/15/2028 1,081 

534,848 02/22/2028 1,088 

459,230 06/15/2028 1,202 

994,650 06/30/2028 1,217 

255,318 07/18/2028 1,235 

335,063 08/01/2028 1,249 

268,890 08/01/2028 1,249 

169,488 08/01/2028 1,249 

452,945 09/01/2028 1,280 

231,495 09/01/2028 1,280 

541,800 10/01/2028 1,310 

485,825 10/01/2028 1,310 

488,575 10/15/2028 1,324 

491,485 01/05/2029 1,406 

575,406 01/08/2029 1,409 

88,312 02/01/2029 1.433 

1,505,160 02/14/2029 1,446 

506,910 02/22/2029 1,454 

510,485 03/01/2029 1,461 

1,000,000 03/02/2029 1,462 

494,365 03/13/2029 1,473 

452,625 04/01/2029 1.492 

512,285 05/30/2029 1,551 

900,000 06/04/2029 1,556 

512,335 06/12/2029 1,564 

505,730 06/15/2029 1,567 

479,435 07/01/2029 1,583 

Bond• 
Equiv 
Yield 
4.136 

4.200 

4.268 

4.427 

4.157 

4.206 

4.415 

4,511 

4.195 

4.495 

4.214 

4.211 

4.511 

4.235 

4,239 

4,841 

4.690 

4.272 

4.160 

4,950 

4.380 

4.419 

4.346 

4,630 

4.346 

4,540 

4,440 

4.812 

5.060 

4.590 

4.290 

4.448 

4.537 

4.602 

4.626 

5.162 

4,210 

4.542 

4,600 

4.614 

4,518 

4.330 

Market Value CUSIP 
146,274 023135BC9 

398,468 3130ASVC0 

528,139 14913R2G1 

463,280 14913R2G1 

2,007,820 91282CFM8 

508,305 419792J64 

460,760 110122DP0 

503,740 14913UAS9 

1,005,300 31424WRD6 

500,205 3135GAZ61 

504,675 023135CP9 

926,480 646140DR1 

747,088 66285WB88 

466,930 66285WB88 

497,459 679111ZV9 

536,630 872287 AL 1 

536,250 233851DF8 

462,525 797683HL6 

1,000,490 3130AVVN63 

257,608 6944PL2U2 

342,904 080495HR8 

274,932 76886PJR5 

175,406 7994082H1 

467,740 786089JH6 

237,050 799017VM7 

535,845 244199AW5 

490,385 59333P3Q9 

493,610 20030NCT6 

504,185 89236TLL7 

582,948 89236TFT7 

90,003 8826698X 1 

1,509,390 3133ERB67 

507,670 110122EF1 

514,695 13063D3P1 

1,002,650 3135GAZT1 

505,370 02665WFE6 

454,580 479354EL2 

511,390 57629W4T 4 

901,242 3134HAH30 

509,460 74368CBY9 

507,050 038222AS4 

482,130 91412HFG3 

Investment # 
27456 

27442 

27705 

27724 

27913 

27726 

27723 

27896 

27869 

27876 

27706 

27850 

27777 

27796 

27852 

27716 

27894 

27841 

27870 

27744 

27785 

27784 

27721 

27776 

27720 

27717 

27718 

27897 

27765 

27730 

27783 

27868 

27866 

27766 

27881 

27764 

27885 

27867 

27882 

27827 

27865 

27847 

Page2 

Carrying Value 
146,716 

400,000 

527,991 

461,389 

1,998,312 

507,470 

459,482 

501,090 

1,001,362 

500,684 

504,203 

928,304 

742,252 

467,236 

497,511 

530,311 

535,839 

462,982 

995,058 

254,117 

341,238 

273,701 

174,368 

460,917 

235,817 

532,077 

489,116 

489,133 

493,023 

580,728 

89,920 

1,504,824 

506,463 

508,819 

1,000,000 

495,343 

455,243 

511,538 

900,000 

511,437 

505,385 

480,904 



Page3 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

02/28/2025 

Capital Dev. Reserve Hydro 
Bond' 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Matu~ Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
California State Gen USBGC 500,000 4.500 11/05/2024 505,100 08/01/2029 1,614 4.261 504,795 13063EGT7 27854 504,753 

Pacific Life GF USBGC 500,000 4.500 10/30/2024 498,760 08/28/2029 1,641 4.583 499,475 6944PL3C1 27836 498,973 

California State Gen USBGC 2,000,000 5.125 10/24/2024 2,077,400 09/01/2029 1,645 4.233 2,069,600 13063EBP0 27817 2,071,773 

California State Gen USBGC 500,000 5.125 10/29/2024 518,765 09/01/2029 1,645 4.257 517,400 13063EBP0 27818 517.451 

California State Gen USBGC 500,000 5.125 11/01/2024 518,905 09/01/2029 1,645 4.249 517,400 13063EBP0 27845 517,601 

Paccar Financial Cor USBGC 500,000 4.000 10/31/2024 491,500 09/26/2029 1,670 4.388 491,285 69371 RT 48 27840 492,078 

City of Anaheim CA W USBGC 500,000 3.239 12/24/2024 470.485 10/01/2029 1,675 4.631 476,690 032556KK7 27895 471,637 

California State Gen USBGC 500,000 2.500 10/29/2024 460,715 10/01/2029 1,675 4.287 463,480 13063DRE0 27819 463.420 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 4.500 12/24/2024 502,700 12/14/2029 1,749 4.377 509,875 3130ATUT2 27898 502,599 

Fund Total and Average $ 48,44mL_ __ 3.384 $ _ 47,71_6,!33 958 3,830 $ 47,697,866 $ 47,836,376 

Hydro 2022A Debt Service 

U.S. Treasury USBT 1,341,000 4.120 12/30/2024 1,313,682 06/26/2025 117 4.264 1,323,098 912797NW3 27901 1,323,044 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 5,085,000 4.140 01/29/2025 4,997,869 06/27/2025 118 4.270 5,014,827 313385HK5 27908 5,015,997 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 1,339,000 4.165 02/26/2025 1,319,636 07/01/2025 122 4.284 1,320,107 313385HP4 27934 1,320,100 

Fund Total and Average $ 7,765,000 4.141 $ 7!631, 187 119 4.272 $ 7,658,032 $ 7,659,141 

Hydro 2022B Debt Service 

U.S. Treasury USBT 218,000 4.120 12/30/2024 213,559 06/26/2025 117 4.264 215,090 912797NW3 27902 215,081 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 1,247,000 4.140 01/29/2025 1,225,633 06/27/2025 118 4.270 1,229,791 313385HK5 27909 1,230,078 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 218,000 4.165 02/26/2025 214,847 07/01/2025 122 4.284 214,924 313385HP4 27935 214,923 

Fund Total and Avera.!!.e $ 1,683,000 4.141 $ 1,654,039 118 4.272 $ 1,659,805 $ 1,660,082 

Hydro Special Reserve 

First American Govt. USBGC 5,000 4.120 5,000 1 4,120 5,000 SYS70016 70016 5,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,495,000 0.500 02/16/2021 1,497,796 11/07/2025 251 0.460 1,458,059 3135G06G3 27166 1,495,404 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,500,000 0.512 $ 1,502,796 250 0.472 $ 1,463,059 $ 1,500,404 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 59,389,921 3.430 $ 58,504,555 807 3.815 $ 58,478,762. $ 58,656,003 

'Bond Equlvalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value Is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 02/28/2025 

Callable Dates: 
Inv# 

Inv# Inv# Inv# 

27165 FHLB Anytime 27725 FLSGEN Anytime 27876 FNMA 1111812025 only 
27004 FAMCA Semi-annually 27221 BK 312412025 27726 HIS Anytime 27881 FNMA 31212026 only 
27131 ELPASO Annually 27253 FHLB Quarterly 27766 CAS Anytime 27882 FHLMC 61412026 only 
27132 FFCB Anytime 27254 FHLB Monthly 27776 SACWTR Anytime 27894 MBGGR Make Whole 
27135 CASDEV Anytime 27257 BAC Semi-annually 27847 UNVHGR Make Whole 27895 ANAHSG Make Whole 
27136 FNMA Quarterly 27442 FHLB Quarterly 27852 OKSTRN Make Whole 27896 CAT Make Whole 
27140 JPM Quarterly 27517 FHLB Quarterly 27865 AMAT Make Whole 27897 CMCSA Make Whole 03/0512025 3:26pm 

27589 AZSHGR Anytime 27866 BMY Make Whole 27939 MRK Make Whole 



Page 1 
Northern California Power Agency 

N·cPA Treasurer's Report 
/ HtM!tl1-'1el.LIRl~,mmi~W¢, 

02/28/2025 

LEC GHG Auction Acct 
Bond" 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Carrying Value 

California Asset Mgm CMP 137,547 4.730 09/13/2022 137,547 1 4.730 137,547 SYS70077 70077 137,547 

Local Agency lnvestm 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70046 70046 0 

Fund Total and Averall!' $ 137,547 4.730 $ 137,547 1 4,730 $ 137,547 $ 137,547 

LEC Issue #1 2010B OS Fund 

US Bank Trust USB 4,683 0.010 4,683 1 0.010 4,683 SYS79004 79004 4,683 

U.S. Treasury USBT 733,000 4.120 12/30/2024 720,417 05/29/2025 89 4.250 725,553 912797NN3 27903 725,534 

Federal Home Loan Mt USBT 725,000 4.190 02/26/2025 717.152 05/30/2025 90 4.294 717,322 313397GF2 27936 717.406 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 731,000 4.160 01/29/2025 720,526 06/02/2025 93 4.279 723,032 313385GJ9 27910 723,144 

Fund Total and Avera1e $ 2,1~683 4.148 $ 2,162,778 90 4.265 $ 2,170,590 $ 2,170,767 

LEC Issue #2 2010B OS Fund 

US Bank Trust USB 2,055 0.010 2,055 1 0.010 2,055 SYS79012 79012 2,055 

U.S. Treasury USBT 3,167,000 4.210 12/05/2024 3,102,186 05/29/2025 89 4.357 3,134,823 912797NN3 27886 3,134,038 

U.S. Treasury USBT 791,000 4.120 12/30/2024 777,421 05/29/2025 89 4.250 782,963 912797NN3 27904 782,943 

Federal Home Loan Mt USBT 785,000 4.190 02/26/2025 776,503 05/30/2025 90 4.294 776,687 313397GF2 27937 775.m 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 790,000 4.160 01/29/2025 778,680 06/02/2025 93 4.279 781,389 313385GJ9 27911 781,510 

Fund Total and Avera.9.e $ 5,535,055 4.186 $ 6,436,845 90 4.321 $ 5,477,917 $ 6,477,323 

LEC lssue#1 2017A OS Fund 

U.S. Treasury USBT 3,448,000 4.210 12/05/2024 3,377.436 05/29/2025 89 4.357 3,412,968 912797NN3 27887 3.412.113 

U.S. Treasury USBT 666,000 4.120 12/30/2024 654,567 05/29/2025 89 4.250 659,233 912797NN3 27905 659,216 

Federal Home Loan Mt USBT 675,000 4.190 02/26/2025 667,694 05/30/2025 90 4.294 667,852 313397GF2 27938 667,929 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 547,000 4.285 11/26/2024 534,760 06/02/2025 93 4.441 541,038 313385GJ9 27880 540,945 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 676,000 4.160 01/29/2025 666,314 06/02/2025 93 4.279 668,632 313385GJ9 27912 668,735 

Fund Total and Average $ 6,012,000 4.199 $ 5,900,771 90 4.337 $ 5,949,723 $ 5,948,938 

LEC Issue #1 2010 OSR Fund 

US Bank Trust USB 3,852 0.010 3,852 1 0.010 3,852 SYS79005 79005 3,852 

U.S. Treasury USBT 85,000 4.120 12/30/2024 83,541 05/29/2025 89 4.250 84,136 912797NN3 27906 84,134 

Federal Farm Credit USBT 4.430,000 0.840 03/02/2021 4,430,000 03/02/2026 366 0.840 4,285,405 3133EMSK9 27199 4.430,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 150,000 0.875 08/27/2021 150,528 06/12/2026 468 0.799 144,027 3130AN4T4 27270 150,141 

U.S. Treasury USBT 3,589,000 4.375 01/03/2024 3,618,020 12/15/2026 654 4.080 3,610,857 91282CJP7 27700 3,606,622 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 120,000 4.000 07/28/2023 118,496 06/30/2028 1,217 4.285 120,059 3130AVVN63 27624 118,983 

03/0512025 3:27pm 



Page2 
Northern California Power Agency 

,NCPA Treasurer's Report 
J N1!11'lll•11eA,~lilAl'OWfltAll1'ilC• 

02/28/2025 

LEC Issue #1 2010 DSR Fund 
Bond' 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Mat~ Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
U.S. Treasury USBT 21,000 4.375 09/28/2023 20,785 08/31/2028 1,279 4.608 21,260 91282CHX2 27647 20,847 

U.S. Treasury USBT 42,000 3.500 10/29/2024 40,984 09/30/2029 1,674 4.046 41,108 91282CLN9 27825 41,054 

Fund Total and Average $ 8,440,852 2.447 $ 8,466,206 508 2.328 $ 8,310,704 $ 8,455,633 

LEC lss#1 2010B BABS Subs Resv 

US Bank Trust USB 978 0.010 978 1 0.010 978 SYS79006 79006 978 

U.S. Treasury USBT 2,306,000 4.210 12/05/2024 2,258,807 05/29/2025 89 4.357 2,282,571 912797NN3 27888 2,281,999 

Fund Total and Average $ 2,30!,_978 4.208 $ 2,259,785 89 4.356 $ 2,283,549 $ 2,282,977 

LEC Issue #2 2010B DSR BABS 

US Bank Trust USB 305 0.010 305 1 0.010 305 SYS79013 79013 305 

U.S. Treasury USBT 835,000 4.210 12/05/2024 817,911 05/29/2025 89 4.357 826,516 912797NN3 27889 826,309 

Fund Total and Average $ 835,305 4.208 $ 818,216 89 4.356 $ 826,821 $ 826,614 

LEC O & M Reserve 

First American Govt. USBGC 0 4.120 0 1 4.120 0 SYS70041 70041 0 

California Asset Mgm CMP 4,666,974 4.730 09/09/2022 4,666,974 1 4.730 4,666,974 SYS70075 70075 4,666,974 

Local Agency lnvestm 0 3.590 07/01/2024 0 1 3.590 0 SYS70047 70047 0 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 350,000 0.610 09/18/2023 350,000 07/01/2025 122 0.609 345,762 592112XC5 27645 350,000 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 150,000 0.610 09/18/2023 150,000 07/01/2025 122 0.609 148,083 592112XA9 27646 150,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 D.600 07/30/2020 1,001,000 07/29/2025 150 0.579 984,820 3136G4D75 27047 1,000,082 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 0.600 08/18/2020 1,000,000 08/18/2025 170 0.600 982,900 3136G4G72 27057 1,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 750,000 0.530 09/29/2020 750,000 09/29/2025 212 0.530 734,130 3133EMBH4 27083 750,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 670,000 0.530 09/29/2020 670,000 09/29/2025 212 0.530 655,823 3133EMBJ0 27084 670,000 

Apple Inc. USBGC 500,000 0.700 02/17/2021 500,000 02/08/2026 344 0.699 483,670 037833EB2 27170 500,000 

JP Morgan USBGC 500,000 1.200 04/30/2021 500,000 04/30/2026 425 1.200 477,100 48128G3G3 27222 500,000 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 1,000,000 1.200 08/02/2021 1,007,220 07/16/2026 502 1.050 958,760 57629WDE7 27250 1,002,003 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 100,000 1.250 08/26/2021 100,000 08/26/2026 543 1.250 94,774 06048WN22 27259 100,000 

Caterpillar Financia USBGC 500,000 1.150 10/13/2021 498,165 09/14/2026 562 1.227 477,230 14913R2Q9 27290 499,427 

TSMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 850,000 1.750 12/08/2021 857,242 10/25/2026 603 1.567 813,841 872898AA9 27335 852,448 

Public Storage USBGC 515,000 1.500 11/15/2021 515,242 11/09/2026 618 1.490 490,944 74460DAG4 27310 515,082 

Public Storage USBGC 1,064,000 1.500 12/08/2021 1,065,234 11/09/2026 618 1.476 1,014,301 74460DAG4 27341 1,064,424 

City of Beverly Hill USBGC 200,000 1.327 06/28/2022 179,194 06/01/2027 822 3.654 187,614 088006KB6 27424 190,495 

Mercedes-Benz Fin. N USBGC 275,000 3.750 06/26/2023 260,832 02/22/2028 1,088 5.003 268,125 233851DF8 27609 265,946 

Bay Area Toll Author USBGC 500,000 1.869 09/23/2024 461,155 04/01/2029 1,492 3.752 456,220 072024XF4 27809 464,925 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 5.150 12/04/2024 515,220 05/30/2029 1,551 4.395 511,390 57629W4T4 27883 514,401 

Oregon Education Dis USBGC 660,000 1.707 09/23/2024 602,184 06/30/2029 1,582 3.728 594,013 68587FAZ7 27811 607,504 

San Ramon Valley USD USBGC 1,000,000 1.794 01/31/2025 898,400 08/01/2029 1,614 4.301 905,210 7994082J7 27921 900,281 

03/05/2025 3:27pm 



NCPA 
/ HO«mtt '+'!',\·~i.t,,e\li'M4,~ 

LEC O & M Reserve 

Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value 
California State Gen USBGC 1,095,000 

Fund Total and Average $ 17,845,974 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 43,307,394 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

02/28/2025 

Interest Purchase Purchased 
Rate Date Price 

5.125 09/24/2024 1,168,529 

2.506 $ 17,716,591 

3.155 $ 42,898,739 

•Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity Is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value Is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 02/28/2025 

Callable Dates: 
Inv# 

27047 
27057 
27083 
27084 
27170 
27199 
27222 
27259 
27809 

FHLMC 
FNMA 
FFCB 
FFCB 
APPL 
FFCB 
JPM 
BAC 
BAYTRN 

Quarterly 
Quarterly 
Anytime 
Anytime 
Anytime starting 1/8/2026 
Anytime 
Annually 
Semi-annually 
Anytime 

03/05/2025 3:27pm 

Page3 

Bond• 
Maturity Days to Equiv 

Date Matu~ Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
09/01/2029 1,645 3.626 1,133,106 13063EBP0 27810 1,162,033 

545 2.658 $ 17,384,790 $ 17,726,025 

359 3.247 $ 42,541,641. $ 43,025,824 



PUBLIC Al3 f. NCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: Coffman Engineers, Inc. - Five-Year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement 
for Fire Protection, Mechanical, Electrical, or Civil Engineering Services; Applicable to the 
following projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, 
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members. 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Michael DeBortoli ~ METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Assistant General Manager NIA 

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe: 

Department: Geothermal 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members ~ City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake □ 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC □ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland □ 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD □ 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other □ 

If other, please specify 

SR: 144:25 



March 27, 2025 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 25-38 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi
Task Professional Services Agreement with Coffman Engineers, Inc. for fire protection, 
mechanical, electrical, or civil engineering services, with any non-substantial changes 
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 
over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPAMembers, by 
SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members. 

BACKGROUND: 

Fire protection, mechanical, electrical, and civil engineering services are required from time to 
time for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA 
Members, by SCPPA, and by SCPPA Members. NCPA has utilized this vendor in the past and 
has a good working relationship with the vendor. NCPA desires to enter into this agreement so 
established terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on 
future projects. 

NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with GHD, Inc., Worley Group, Inc., and 
Ainsworth Associates Mechanical Engineers. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years. 
Purchase orders · referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following 
NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time 
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures and seek bids from as many qualified providers as 
required. Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the overall best value to NCPA. NCPA will 
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the 
service is required. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On March 5, 2025, the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above 
for Commission approval. 

On March 10, 2025, the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and 
approved the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

SR: 144:25 



March 27, 2025 
Page 3 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~~ I~ 
RANDY S. HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments (2): 
• Resolution 25-38 
• Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Coffman Engineers, Inc. 

SR: 144:25 



RESOLUTION 25-38 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH COFFMAN 

ENGINEERS, INC. 

(reference Staff Report #144:25) 

WHEREAS, fire protection, mechanical, electrical , and civil engineering services are required from time 
to time for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power 
Agency (NCPA), NCPA Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA 
Members; and 

WHEREAS, Coffman Engineers, Inc. is a provider of these services; and 

WHEREAS, the NCPA Commission has reviewed the Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with 
Coffman Engineers, Inc., to provide such services as needed at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, 
NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into said Multi-Task Professional Services 
Agreement, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not 
exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, 
by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2025 by the following vote 
on roll call : 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

JAMES "BO" SHEPPARD 
CHAIR 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARRIE A. POLLO 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 

COFFMAN ENGINEERS, INC. 

This Professional Services Agreement ("Agreement') is made by and between the 
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at651 
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 ("Agency") and Coffman Engineers, Inc., a 
corporation with its office located at1939 Harrison Street, Suite 320, Oakland, CA 94612 
("Consultant") (together sometimes referred to as the "Parties") as of _____ , 2025 
("Effective Date") in Roseville, California. 

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, 
Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the 
manner specified therein. 

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective 
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five 
(5) years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is 
shorter. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner 
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing 
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced 
to provide the Services set forth herein. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel 
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any 
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such 
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from 
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel. 

1.4 Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may 
include Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority ("SCPPA") or SCPPA members. 

1.5 Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's 
Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The 
Purchase Order shall identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested 
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services 
and expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the 
Requested Services shall be completed . Consultant shall have seven calendar 
days from the date of the Agency's issuance of the Purchase Order in which to 
respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 1 of 17 



Section 2. 

2.1 

2.2 

Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to 
perform the Requested Services or does not respond within the seven-day period 
specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested Services 
on the terms set forth in the Purchase 0rder, this Agreement and its Exhibits. 

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT 
TO EXCEED ONE MILLION dollars ($1,000,000) for the Services, which shall 
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in 
Consultant's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. 
This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the 
Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this 
Agreement. 

Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month 
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and 
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the 
following information: 

■ The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
■ Services performed; 
■ The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services; 
■ At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under 

the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and 
subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder; and 

■ At Agency's option, when the Consultant's Scope of Work identifies tasks, 
for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries 
showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each 
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, 
with supporting documentation, to Agency's reasonable satisfaction. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices 
received, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable 
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice 
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Consultant. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 2 of 17 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 



2.3 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this 
Agreement. 

2.4 Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to 
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this 
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator. 

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days 
after completion of its Services to submit its final invoice. In the event Consultant 
fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the ninety (90) 
day period, Consultant is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final 
payment from Agency. 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at 
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform 
the Services. 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of 
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for 
the period covered by this Agreement. 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall 
maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant 
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident. 

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including 
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of 
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad 
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of 
Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per 
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall be 
at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001 
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive 
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more 
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability 
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement 
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, 
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1 ), 
whether or not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 3 of 17 



policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with 
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This 
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and 
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general 
liability insurance. 

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth 
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies 
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional 
liability insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in 
connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000) and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the 
Consultant's errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall 
not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) per claim. Such 
insurance shall be on a "claims-made" basis, subject to the following conditions: 
(1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of 
this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after 
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage 
shall be provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion 
of the Services, coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with 
another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective 
Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase "extended reporting" coverage 
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested 
by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period. 

4.4 All Policies Requirements. 

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of 
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance 
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies 
referenced in Section 4.2, adding the Agency as an additional insured 
and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall 
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any 
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to 
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4. 

4.4.3 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums 
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the Consultant. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 4 of 17 



4.4.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides 
services to Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members, 
Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance and policy 
endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific 
Agency member, SCPPA or Agency member for which the Services are 
to be performed. 

4.4.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which 
any insurer of Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the 
payment of any loss. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that 
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the 
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its 
employees, agents and subcontractors. 

4.5 Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring 
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of 
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues 
they are and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this 
Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that all workers involved in the 
provision of Services are properly classified as employees, agents or 
independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' 
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement. 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and 
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from 
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification 
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages 
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By 
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

5.2 Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable 
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners, 
officers, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims to the 
extent that the claims arise out of, pertain to or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness or willful misconduct of the Consultant in its performance of 
Services under this Agreement. Consultant shall bear all losses, costs, damages, 
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description to the extent that they 
arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly 
("Liabilities"). Such obligations to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the 
Agency shall not apply to the extent that such Liabilities are caused by the 
negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of the Agency. 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 5 of 17 



6.1 Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an 
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only 
insofar as the results of Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel 
pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the 
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, 
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its 
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement 
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all 
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, 
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any 
contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee 
contributions for PERS benefits. 

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of 
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of 
Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and ·Agency acknowledge 
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this 
Agreement is based upon Consultant's estimated costs of providing the Services, 
including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of 
Consultant. 

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit, 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, 
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to 
Consultant's failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare 
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable 
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable 
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent, 
or subcontractor of Consultant. 

6.2 Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant 
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any 
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or 
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal 
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant's 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 6 of 17 



6.4 

Section 7. 

7.1 

7.2 

7.3 

Section 8. 

8.1 

unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional 
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement 
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant 
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written 
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the 
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall 
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and 
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant 
itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to 
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this 
Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that 
any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all 
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's 
satisfaction. 

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the 
Agency, Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute 
Exhibit C. 

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this 
Agreement. 

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and 
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the 
work hereunder. 

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that 
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will 
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required 
to practice their respective professions. 

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause 
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Consultant. 

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for 
Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, 
however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant 
delivering to Agency any or all records or documents, as referenced in Section 
9.1 hereof. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 7 of 17 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 



8.2 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed 
by all the Parties. 

8.3 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of 
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 
4, Agency's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

Section 9. 

9.1 

9.2 

9.3 

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, 
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement; 

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by 
Consultant; and/or 

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the 
Services that are unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that 
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had 
completed the Services. 

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

Records Created as Part of Consultant's Performance. All reports, data, 
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in 
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property 
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the 
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that, 
unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release to any non
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other 
documents. 

Consultant's Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all 
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or 
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement 
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from 
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement. 

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this 
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 8 of 17 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 



oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code 
Section 8546. 7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to 
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as 
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment 
under the Agreement. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used 
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret 
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, 
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible 
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential, 
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall 
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party 
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to 
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without 
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was 
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section. 

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this 
Agreement, either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential 
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving 
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in 
confident; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any 
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such 
Confidential Information. 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following 
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall 
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any 
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. 
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation, 
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted 
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such 
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for 
such permitted disclosures: 

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors, 
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that 
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement. 

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or 
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 9 of 17 



9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination 
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or 
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof}, if requested 
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information, 
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival 
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c) 
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are 
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the 
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the 
Receiving Party's employees; agents, consultants, contractors and 
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this 
Agreement. 

Section 10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

10.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action , including an 
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set 
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

10.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under 
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested 
exclusively ih the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California. 

10.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision 
of this Agreement is invalid , void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this 
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in 
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the 
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision 
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

10.6 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose 
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 10 of 17 



location, would place Consultant in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined 
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 
81000 et seq. 

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant 
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code 
Sections 1090 et seq. 

1 0. 7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Generation 
Services, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the 
Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the 
representative. 

10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to: 

Thomas DeMasi, P.E. 
Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
1939 Harrison Street, Suite 320 
Oakland, CA 94612 

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a copy to: 

Jane E. Luckhardt 
General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the 
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page 
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed 
professional responsible for the report/design preparation. 

10.1 0 Integration: Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached 
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and 
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 
by reference herein. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 11 of 17 



10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that 
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and 
Consultant agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following: 

10.11.1 

10.11.2 

10.11.3 

10.11.4 

10.11.5 

10.11.6 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive 
level representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, 
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement 
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, 
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through 
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute. 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen 
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as 
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be 
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the 
mediation. 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition 
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative 
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute 
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to 
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by 
Government Code §§ 900 et seq. 

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal 
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the 
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits 
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order 
and the Consultant's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control. 

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
agreement. 

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent 
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with 
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the 
drafting party shall not apply hereto. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 12 of 17 



10.15 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. 
However, should Consultant provide services to an Agency member, SCPPA or 
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this Section only "Member") 
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Services 
relating to such Member. 

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Date -----------

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

COFFMAN ENGINEERS, INC. 

Date ------------

BRIAN SALYERS, P.E., 
Managing Principal, Bay Area 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 13 of 17 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Coffman Engineers, Inc. ("Consultant") shall provide fire protection, mechanical, electrical, or 
civil engineering services as requested by Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at any 
facilities owned and/or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power 
Authority ("SCPPA") or SCPPA Members. 

Such services will include, but are not limited to: 

• Providing professionally engineered "stamped" drawings 
• AutoCAD drawings 
• Technical specifications 
• Piping and instrumentation diagrams 
• Engineering evaluations, calculations and reports 
• Site visits to support engineering evaluations, calculations and reports 
• General engineering consulting 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 14 of 17 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed amount set 
forth in Section 2 of the Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an 
estimated amount of expenses is as follows: 

CLASSIFICATION 
CIVIL1 STRUCTURAL1 FIRE PROTECTION & 
MEP & ACOUSTICS CODE 

..... 

Principal Advisor/Principal I $285 $285 
Senior Discipline Manager $270 $270 

Discipline Manager i $255 $255 
' [ 

...... 

Senior Discipline Engineer $255 I $255 
..... 

I 
i 

I 
Senior Consultant $210 I $250 
Senior Engineer $210 $240 
Project Manager $210 $210 

Engineer/Consultant/Eng Designer Ill 90 $205 
Engineer/Consultant/Eng Designer II $165 $180 
Engineer/Consultant/Eng Designer I $155 $160 

Senior Engineering Tech $240 I $240 
... 

I Senior Designer ' $185 $190 
Designer Ill $160 $160 
Designer II $150 $150 
Designer I $130 $130 
Drafter II $125 $125 
Drafter I I $115 $115 I 

Engineering Intern I $115 $115 
Clerical $105 $105 

These rates are effective through December 2025. Rates may be adjusted each year in 
response to inflation and other factors. 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSE CHARGES: 

1. Travel from our office will be charged as follows: 
a. Auto at latest IRS standard mileage rate 
b. Other mode: At actual. 

2. Local and long-distance courier services will be charged at actual. 
3. Plotting and/or reproduction of drawings, specifications, reports and calculations and additional copies will 

be charged at actual. 
4. Instrument rental, laboratory services, outside computer or consultant services will be charged at actual. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 15 of 17 



Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the 
time services are requested. 

Upon 30 days advance notice and no more than once each calendar year, Coffman Engineers, 
Inc may increase rates for new Purchase Orders. If NCPA does not accept the increased rates, 
NCPA may terminate this Agreement. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related 
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 16 of 17 



EXHIBIT C 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors 

I, ------------------------------

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity 
and employment history of all employees of 

(Company name) 

for contract work at 

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the 
above-named project. 

(Signature of officer or agent) 

Dated this ____ day of ______ , 20 __ . 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task Professional SeNices Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Coffman Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2025-001 

Page 17 of 17 



PUBllC AGf.NCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: MP Environmental Services, Inc. - Second Amendment to the Five-Year Multi-
Task General Services Agreement for General Maintenance Services; Applicable to the 
following: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Michael DeBortoli -~ 

Assistant General Manager 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe: 

Department: Geothermal 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZl City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 145:25 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



March 27, 2025 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 25-39 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a 
Second Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with MP Environmental 
Services, Inc. for general maintenance services, including removal and disposal of sulfur bins, 
hazardous material, phase separators, and vacuum truck services, with any non-substantial 
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to 
exceed amount from $4,000,000 to $5,000,000, with no change to the contract term, for 
continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. 

BACKGROUND: 

General maintenance services, including removal and disposal of sulfur bins, hazardous 
material, phase separators, and vacuum truck services are required from time to time for the 
operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. NCPA entered into a 
five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with MP Environmental Services, Inc., effective 
November 19, 2020, for an amount not to exceed $3,000,000, for use at any facilities owned 
and/or operated by NCPA. The Parties entered into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement on October 28, 2024 to increase the total authorized not to exceed amount 
for the agreement from $3,000,000 to $4,000,000. 

This agreement has primarily been used by NCPA's Geothermal Facility for sulfur hauling and 
bin rental services and is now running low on funds. NCPA now desires to enter into a Second 
Amendment to the current Multi-Task General Services Agreement, increasing the not to exceed 
amount from $4,000,000 to $5,000,000, to ensure sufficient funds are available for the remainder 
of the contract term. This agreement will continue to be available for use at any facilities owned 
and/or operated by NCPA. 

NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with Gifford's Backhoe Services, Ancon 
Marine dba Ancon, and Republic Services, Inc. dba Advanced Chemical Transport, LLC dba 
ACTenviro. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total not to exceed amount of the agreement will increase from $4,000,000 
to $5,000,000 over the remainder of the contract.term. Purchase orders referencing the terms 
and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and 
procedures. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time 
services are needed, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from qualified providers as required. 
Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will issue 
purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is 
required. 

SR: 145:25 



March 27, 2025 
Page3 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On March 5, 2025, the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above 
for Commission approval. 

On March 10, 2025, the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and 
approved the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~:;;\~A~D~ 
General Manager 

Attachments (3): 
• Resolution 25-39 
• First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with MP Environmental 

Services, Inc. 
• Second Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with MP Environmental 

Services, Inc. 

SR: 145:25 



RESOLUTION 25-39 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH MP ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 

(reference Staff Report #145:25) 

WHEREAS, general maintenance services, including removal and disposal of sulfur binds, hazardous 
material, phase separators, and vacuum truck services are required from time to time for the operation and 
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA; and 

WHEREAS, effective November 19, 2020, NCPA and MP Environmental Services, Inc. entered into a 
five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement to provide such services, for an amount not to exceed 
$3,000,000, for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA; and 

WHEREAS, effective October 28, 2024, the Parties entered into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task 
General Services Agreement to increase the total compensation authorized by the Agreement from $3,000,000 
to $4,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, this agreement has primarily been used by NCPA's Geothermal Facility for sulfur hauling 
and bin rental services, and is now running low on funds; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA now desires to increase the not to exceed amount from $4,000,000 to $5,000,000 to 
ensure sufficient funds are available for the remainder of the contract term; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into said Second Amendment to the Multi-Task 
General Services Agreement, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA 
General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $4,000,000 to $5,000,000, with no change to the 
contract term, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. 

/II 

Ill 

Ill 

/II 



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2025 by the following vote 
on roll call : 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

JAMES "BO" SHEPPARD 
CHAIR 

NCPA Resolution 25-39 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: 

-2-

CARRIE A. POLLO 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



/ 

NC:PA 
NOMTHIWN CALl,OIINIA rOwtfl AIE,.CY 

MULTI-TASK 
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 
MP ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC 

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement ("Agreement') is made by and between the 
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 ("Agency") and MP Environmental Services, Inc., a 
California corporation with its office located at 3400 Manor Street, Bakersfield, CA 93308 
("Contractor") (together sometimes referred to as the "Parties") as of b.l&tfmktr \0\ , 2020 
("Effective Date") in Roseville, California. 

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods 
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ('Work"). 

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective 
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) 
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner 
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing 
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to 
provide the Work set forth herein. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to 
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time · 
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such 
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from 
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel. 

1.4 Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may 
include Work directly to the Agency. 

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to 
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a 
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be 
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to..:exceed cap on monetary 
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that 
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be 
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the 
Agency's issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that 
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to 
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does 
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have 
agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase 
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northam California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 



Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT 
TO EXCEED THREE MILLION dollars ($3,000,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees, 
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency 
will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures 
under this Agreement. 

2.1 Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices based on the cost for services 
performed and reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices 
shall contain the following information: 

• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
• Work performed; 
• The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work; 
• At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the 

applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the 
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a 
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with 
supporting documentation, to Agency's reasonable satisfaction; 

• At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under 
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and 
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices 
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable 
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice 
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor. 

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this 
Agreement. 

2.4 Authorization to Perfonn Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform 
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until 
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator. 

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days 
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the 
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 2of29 



any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have 
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency. 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at 
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform 
the Work. · · 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this 
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense,' shall procure the types and amounts of 
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for 
the period covered by .this Agreement. 

I ;, 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Con'tractor shall 
maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor 
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident. 

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including 
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of 
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad 
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of 
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per 
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall 
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001 
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive 
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more 
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability 
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement 
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, 
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), 
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The 
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with 
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This 
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and 
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general 
liability insurance. 

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth 
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies 
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 3 of 29 



4.4 Pollution Insurance. If Contractor's Work involves its transporting hazardous 
materials, then Contractor shall obtain and maintain Contractors' Pollution 
Liability Insurance of not less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) for any one 
occurrence and not less than four million dollars ($4,000,000) aggregate. Any 
deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed two hundred fifty thousand 
dollars ($250,000.00) per claim. Such insurance shall be on "an occurrence" 
basis. In addition, Contractor shall ensure that such insurance complies with any 
applicable requirements of the California · Department of Toxic Substances 
Control and California regulations relating to the transport of hazardous materials 
(Health & Safety Code sections 25160 et seq.). 

"Hazardous Materials" means any toxic or .hazardous substance, hazardous 
material, dangerous or hazardous waste, dangerous good, radioactive material, 
petroleum or petroleum-derived products or by-products, or any other chemical, 
substance, material or emission, that is regulated, listed, or controlled pursuant to 
any national, state, or local law, statute, ordinance, directive, regulation, or other 
legal requirement of the United States. 

4.5 All Policies Requirements. 

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of 
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance 
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies 
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the 
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in 
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall 
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any 
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to 
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4. 

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums 
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the Contractor. 

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. Not Applicable 

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which 
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the 
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that 
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the 
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its 
employees, agents and subcontractors. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 4 of 29 



4.6 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring 
that an equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work 
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are 
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this 
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the 
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent 
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation 
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement. 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and 
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from 
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification 
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages 
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By 
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

5.2 Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably; acceptable 
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, 
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs 
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of 
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions 
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by 
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement 
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then 
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency. 

5.3 Transfer of Title. If Contractor's Work involves its transporting hazardous 
materials, Contractor shall be deemed to be in exclusive possession and control 
of such materials and shall be responsible for any damages or injury caused 
thereby, including without limitation any spills, leaks, discharges or releases of 
such materials, until Agency accepts delivery at its Site. For the purposes of this 
Agreement, such acceptance shall occur after Contractor or its agents complete 
transfer of such materials into appropriate containers, machinery, storage tanks 
or other storage apparatus identified by NCPA. In the event a spill, leak, 
discharge or release requires notification to a federal, state or local regulatory 
agency, Contractor shall be responsible for all such notifications. Should 
Contractor be required to remedy or remove such materials as a result of a leak, 
spill, release or discharge of such materials into the environment at Agency's Site 
or elsewhere, Contractor agrees to remediate, remove or cleanup Agency's Site 
to a level sufficient to receive a "No Further Action Required" or "Closure Letter" 
from the appropriate regulatory authority. 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 5 of 29 



6.1 Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an 
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only 
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant 
to Section 1 ; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by 
which :contractor accomplishe~.Work rend.ered pursuant to this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, 
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and 
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or 
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waiveany and all .claims to, any 
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but 
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to 
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for 
PERS benefits. 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of 
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of 
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
othe~i~e be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge 
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement 
is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing the Work, including 
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor. 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit, 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, 
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise .out of, 
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to 
Contractor's failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare 
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable 
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless.Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable 
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent, 
or subcontractor of Contractor. 

6.2 Contractor Not Agent Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor 
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any 
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or 
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal 
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's 
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional 
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement 
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page6 of29 



may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written 
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the 
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall 
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall 
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself 
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors 
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with 
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all 
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to 
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction. 

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission~ If requested by the 
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute 
Exhibit C. 

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous 
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at 
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D. 

6.6 Maintenance Labor Agreement If the Work is subject to the terms of one or 
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types 
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall 
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance. 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

7.1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this 
Agreement. 

7 .2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and 
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the 
work hereunder. 

7.3 Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that 
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will 
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required 
to practice their respective professions. 

7.4 Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and 
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. 

7.5 Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants 
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to 
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 7 of29 



7 .6 Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a 
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less 
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work 
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in 
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770 
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general 
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be 
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem 
wages and the gen,eral rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which 
the Work is to be perfonned for each craft, classification or type of worker 
needed to perfonn the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem 
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request. 
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the 
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend, 
indemnify and hold·the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the 
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any 
worker or any other third party with regard thereto. 

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrat.ive Code, Title 8, Group 
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding 
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on 
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time. 

Contractor shall provide a certified copy of its payroll, on forms to be determined 
by the Agency and consistent with the Labor Code, within ten (10) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of Agency's written request therefor. Contractor's failure to 
timely comply with this provision may subject the Contractor to penalties 
pursuant to state law. 

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774 
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty 
to Agency $200.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid 
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial 
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work 
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under 
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code· and in particular, 
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to 
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount 
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each 
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker 
by the Contractor. 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause 
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Pages of29 



In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work 
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, 
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to 
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof). 

8.2 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed 
by both of the Parties. 

8.3 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of 
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 
4, Agency's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports,. design documents, 
and any, other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant .to ,this 
Agreement; 

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by 
Contractor; and/or 

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work 
that is unfinished at the time of breach an~ the amount that Agency would 
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the 
Work. 

Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Contractor's Performance. All reports, data, 
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in 
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property 
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the 
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that, 
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other 
documents. 

9.2 Contractor's Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all 
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or 
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfomla Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 9 of 29 



for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from 
the date of final payment to the .Contractor under this Agreement. 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this 
. : t 

Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made avc:1ilable ,for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business. hours, upon 
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code 
Section 8546. 7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to 
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as 
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment 
under this Agreement. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used 
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret 
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, 
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible 
medium.of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential, 
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confid~ntic:11 lnf,ormation shall 
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party 
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to 
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without 
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was 
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section. 

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this 
Agreement, either party may disclose (the "Disclosing Party") Confidential 
Information to the other party (the "Receiving Party"). The Receiving 
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in 
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any 
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such 
Confidential Information. 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following 
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall 
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any 
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. 
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation, 
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted 
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such 
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for 
such permitted disclosures: 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 10 of29 



9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know 
in connection with this Agreement. 

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or 
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination 
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or 
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested 
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information, 
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival 
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c) 
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where .such copies are 
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the 
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than. those of the 
Receiving Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and 
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this 
Agreement. 

Section 10. PROJECT SITE. 

10.1 Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant 
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, 
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner 
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency and 
other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons and property 
thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a Project site, 
Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools, equipment, 
waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to Contractor's Work. 

10.2 Contractor's Equipment, Tools. Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of 
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, 
whether owned, leased or rented. Agency will not be responsible for any such 
equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any 
additional rental charges for such. Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left 
or stored at a Project site, with or without permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. 
Anything left on the Project site an unreasonable length of time after the Work is 
completed shall be presumed to have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any 
transportation furnished by Agency shall be solely as an accommodation and 
Agency shall have no liability therefor. Contractor shall assume the risk and is 
solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired automobiles, trucks or 
other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools, supplies, materials or 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 11 of29 



other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project site. All materials 
and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and in good condition. 

: : • • I 

10.3 Use of Agency Equipment . Contractor shall assume the risk and . is solely 
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency 
for the performance of Work. 

Section 11. WARRANTY. 

11.1 Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law 
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work sh.all be free from defects in 
design ~nd workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in 
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations 
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent 
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

11.2 Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights .and remedies which Agency 
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be 
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required 
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor's failure to perform any 
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the 
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the 
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by 
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or 
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any 
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's 
satisfaction. 

11.3 Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional 
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, 
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material 
used in the Work. 

Section 12. HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, 
and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program 
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall 
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations 
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency. 

12.1 Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to 
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request. 

12.2 Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training 
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may 
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified 
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for 
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and 
material handling equipment. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Califomla Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 12 of29 



12.3 Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware 
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein. 

12.4 Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance 
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall 
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the 
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result 
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is 
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be 
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for 
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section 
12. 

12.5 Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety 
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the 
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and 
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested. 

12.6 Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of 
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall 
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of 
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental 
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site 
safety representative upon request. 

12. 7 Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous 
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work. 

12.8 Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who 
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be 
subject to actions including removal from Work. 

12.9 Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the 
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for 
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including 
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous 
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the 
Contractor. 

Section 13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

13.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an 
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set 
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 13 of29 



13.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under 
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested 
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the 
United States District Court for.the Eastern District of California. 

13.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision 
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this 
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in 
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the 
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision 
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall iriure to the 
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

13.6 Conflict of Interest Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose 
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of 
location, would place Contractor in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined 
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 
81000 et seq. 

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant 
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code 
Sections 1090 et seq. 

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel 
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the 
Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the 
representative. 

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to: 

Gina Blankenship 
Facility Manager 
MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
3400 Manor Street 
Bakersfield, CA 93308 

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Calffomla Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 14 of29 



Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a co·py to: 

Jane E. Luckhardt 
General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the 
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page 
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed 
professional responsible for the report/design preparation. 

13.10 Integration: Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached 
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and 
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 
by reference herein. 

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that 
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and 
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following: 

13.11.1 

13.11.2 

13.11.3 

13.11.4 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive 
level representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, 
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen ( 15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement 
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, 
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through 
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute. 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen 
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as 
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be 
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the 
mediation. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-104 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Page 15 of29 



Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

13.11.5 

13.11.6 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

The alternative dispute reso.lution process is a material condition 
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative 
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative 
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be 
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action 
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq. 

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal 
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the 
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits 
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order 
and the Contractor's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control. 

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
agreement. 

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent 
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with 
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the 
drafting party shall not apply hereto. 

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. 

SIGNATURES ON FLOLLOWING PAGE 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-104 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Page 16 of29 



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

it / I 'I /-z_o 

ARD, General Manager 

the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 
/ 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 

MP ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 

Date Uc:r-/ s oiOoJO 

G/4 -
GINA BLANK 

GS-VEN-2020-104 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Page 17 of29 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

MP Environmental Service, Inc. ("Contractor") shall provide miscellaneous maintenance 
services which include labor, tools and vehicles to perform services as requested by Northern 
California Power Agency ("Agency") at any facilities owned and/or operated by Agency. 

Services include but not limited to the following: 

• Removal and replacement of sulfur bins 
• Phase separators 
• Vacuum truck services 
• Provide, remove and disposal of debris/garbage bins (roll-top) 
• Removal and disposal of hazardous material 
• As requested, and on an occasional basis, provide labor for outages such as cleaning 

cooling tower basins and mercury tank rollover of media 

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project 
under the California Public Contract Code. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 18 of29 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set 
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated 
amount of expenses is as follows: 

~-

RATE SCHEDULE 
for 

Northern CaHfornla Power Agency 
October 2020 

oeneraJ Terms ana condlflons 

• Rates based upon current General Prevailing Wage Oeterm111ations as published by 
Cslifomia DIR MP reserves the right to adjust rates based upon changes to applicable 
DIR Wage Determinations 

• Aff rai.• are portal to portal from facilify which at.patches- equ1pm&nt unle• otherwise 
specified 

• Rates not 1,sted o,, ttiis sct,edwe ...,,11 be fumished upon requat 

• Alf transpcrtatfon servk:es, field labor and equipment are subject to a 4-hour minimum 
charge 

• Daity ~uipment rat•• are based upoo &-hounr, per day 

• A. variable E«wironmental & Energy Surcharge wiff apply to afl charg•• 

• Any disposal and/or laboratory anafysi5 will b• billed at cost plus 15% .. 

• Anv subcontract services, equipment or materials riot listed will be billed at cost p Ius 
15'0/4_ 

• Decontamination Requirements: Due to federal requirements. MP equipment must be 
decontaminated after every customer or waste stream usage. This may be perfof-med at 
the diaposal site, cu.torner'& location or an off ... ite faciftty. If performed at the customer 
location, the charges wm be per MP'• time and materials rate. If MP must go to an off
site facifity, the charges wiff be billed at coat. pfus 15% for the wash plUIJ MP'• time and 
materialerate. 

• Onty MP Environmentaf Service'• i,4r~o,,riel ;a,.. authorized to defJVer, pick up .. operate 
or tranaf• MP equipment. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 19 of29 



MP Environmental Services - Rate Schedule 

Labor - California Prevamng Wage 

• abor Classmcattons 

E 
1 Technicians 

Defiinitfons: 

S1ratg! lme ( T) 

erTime (OT) 

Premium Time {PT) 

Emergency Response 

Per Diem 

ST 
I $'105.00 

$95.00 
ator $95.00 

firs efgnt ca) 11 urs ,n a rk day. Mon ay ugh Frida_ 

e over e¾ght (8) ho rrs :n a orkday~ e flfSt . :ght (8) 
n a Sai urday. 

M Ume ·er twelve (12) consecu e hours In a \\.orkda) 
AU a; . o su· day a e foil g or ays: 

e . Year' Day 
Me otiaf Day 
lnde end ce Day 
l at,or Day 

lvi gDa 
ha:nksgMng 

s Day 

Rates wm be estabt! e · 1.5 Umes the ap. r: , ia e rai e 
o ta- or a deq I ent. 

he appllcabfe, wdl bA at standar government rate l:l .sed 
on · or I cation 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-104 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Page 20 of29 



~ 
"--- MP Environmental Services - Rate Schedule 

Personal Protective Equipment 

Prott:cUon Levels/PPE: 
Level 

Trans,po tation Services 

Andi anal load ra es a fallabte Uf n req es . 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Rate 

Rate - OT 

UOM 
:/Person 

erson 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 21 of29 



Roll-Off Contajners & Consumables 

Roll Off Bin 20 Yam 
Roll Off Bin 30 Yard 
Rolf Off Bln 40 Yard 
vacuum e,n 
oewatertng EM 
lntermodat Btn 
Bin Liners. Poly - 3 mn 
Bin Liners. Poty - 8 mll 
srn Liners. FIiter Cloth ·130 micron 

I 

Demolition Eguioment 

Eauloment IUn Ooeratedl 
CAT 330 Wlttl .A Genesis GXP500R Shear 
CAT 330 wm, A Genesis GXP660R Sttear 
Genesis 410R concrete Processor 
Hydraulic Hammer,4.000!bClass l 
HvdrauUc Hammer 18,000lb Classi 
Hvclraultc Mai:inets i36" to 54") 

I Grannie tExcavator Mounted> 

Excavati:on Equipment 

ll!auls,ment <Un Ooerated) 
CAT 303CR Mini Excavator With Hvdrauhc Thumb 
CAT 307 Excavator Wfth Knuckle Boom 
CAT 322 Excavator With Hv-draunc Thumb 
CAT 325 Excavator With Hvdraul!c Tfmmb 
CAT 328 Zero Clearance Excavator With Hydraullc 
Tnumb 
CAT 33GE excavator With Hvdrauflc Thumb 

I Lona Reacn Excavator /Quote As Needed i 
I CAT 420F Backhoe With Hvdrauuc Thumb 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

I 

I 

I 

Rate UOM 
$ 12.00 Dav 
$12 00 Dav 
$12 .00 Dav 
$5000 Oav 
$55.00 Day 
$60 00 Dav 
$35.00 Each 
$85.00 Each 

$1 50.00 Each 
I 

Rate UOM 
$2,000.00 Day 
$2,000.00 Dav 

$700.00 Oay 
$500.00 Dav 
$700 00 Oay 
$300.00 Day 
s200.oo I Day 

Rate UOM 
$250.00 Day 
$300.00 Dav 
~50.00 Dav 
$875.00 Dav 
$900 00 Day 

$1 ,300.00 Dav 

$350 oo I Dav 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 22 of29 



Loading Equipment 

Eauloment (Un ooerat.dl 
CAT 930H (IT) Wheel Loader 

1 CAT 962H (IT} Wheel Loader 
1 CAT 962H Wheel loader 
I CAT 966G Wheel Loader 
; CAT Skid Steer (Rubber Tired) 
i CAT Skid Steer !Tracked) 
I 

Oth§lr Egut12ment 

Equipment (Un, Operated} 
Water Truck {2600 oat Two Axlel 
Water Truck (4000 aal. Three Axtel 
water Buffalo (300 Gatton Towabte> 
CAT Telehandler 
CAT 140H Motor Grader 
Articufatlno Haus Truck (30 Ton Caoacftv J 
Fork LHt-up to 5,000 U>. 
oumo Truck. 2 axle, 5 vard 
Plek Up Truck 1un-ooerated) 
One Ton Truck w/ Ifft aate ,un-ooeratedl 
Two Ton Truek ,un.ooerated> 

I Emernencv Resoonse Traller 
L!Qht Tower portable 
Pressure Washer. trailer mounted 
Drum crusher 

I Air compressor - UP to 185 CFM 

ttvdro ,Excavation Equipment 

SuperVac GAP-VAX HV 44 Series 
, Oi:£.posabte Suction Hose - 4 Inell 

01sp0sabJe SuctlOn Hose - G tncn 
I Fffter SOCks (ReQuires 44 socks Per Chanae) 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

I 

I 

I 

I 

Raw UOM 
$600.00 Dav 
$850.00 Dav 
$800.00 Dav 
$975 00 Dav 
$250.00 Dav 
$300.00 Dav 

I 

Rate UOM 
$400.00 Dav 
$550.00 Dav 
$200.00 Dav 
$550.00 Dav 
$750 00 Dav 

$1.,200.00 Dav 
$400.00 Day 
$300.00 Day 
$150.00 Dav 

$25.00 Hour 
$50.00 Hour 

$200.00 Day 
$155.00 Dav 
$300.00 Dav 
$500.00 Day 
$250.00 I Day 

Rate UOM 
$150.00 Hour 

$2.00 Foot 
$4.00 Foot 

$ ·1205 I Each 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 23 of29 



Solids Reduction & Tank Cleaning Equipment 

EautDment (Un O s:ieratectl 
centnsvs 2 t Inch Two Phase Centrifuge (Un-Operated) 

, Centnsvs 21 inch Three Phase Centrltuge (Un-Operated) 
400 KW Mobile Generator 
Manwav/ ROV Tank Cleanlno Unfl (Un-Operated) 
Hydro Blaster 10.000 psi To 20.000 psi (Un-Operated) 
Includes One Gun. Pedal And a 100· or hose. 
Any addltlonal hydro-btastlng equtpment, Including 
consumables, not listed above woura be blHed at cost plus 
15% 

Misc. Equipment 

' 
On Site Equipm.nt 
Hand Tools 
Sman Power Tools uo to 2.5 HP 
Generator - uo to 10 kw 
Trash Pump <2 Or 3 Inch) 
Wet'Drv vacuum (5 aal. > 
O1a0hraqm Pump -up to 3" (Pneumatic> 
Cutting Torch 
Hepa Vac 

I 

Safety Equipment 

Safety Ecauipmfflt 
confined Space Entrv Equipment wer oerson 
Copus Blower (lntrinstcall\ Safe) 
lntrtnslcanv sare UCJht 

, Drum Pumo 
LEL 02 H2S Meter 
His Monitor 

I 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northem Califomia Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

I 

I 
I 

I 

Rate 
$·112.50 
$137.50 
$105.00 
$125.00 
$145.00 

Rate 
$50.00 
$45 00 

$125.00 
$4500 
$20 DO 
$85.00 

$300.00 
$40.00 

I 

Rat. 
$75.00 

$125.00 
$40.00 
$50.00 
$85.00 
$10.00 

UOM 
Hour 
Hour 
Hour 
Hour 
Hour 

UOM 
Day 
Dav 
Dav 
Dav 
Day 
Dav 
Dav 
Day 

UOM 
Dav 
Dav 
Dav 
Dav 
Dav 
Day 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 24 of 29 



Materials/Supplies 

i 

Descrtpflon 
, End Oumo Uners. flooronlv 
End oumo Liners. full 
Vlsaueen. 6mli. 1 O' x 1 oo· 
Vfsqueen. 6 mil 20' x 100· 
VISQUeen. 6 mij 40' x 100· 
Orum Liners 
Clav based oll absorbent. 50 lb bag 
Vemecullte 
Deareaser (Simole Green. Monster etc. 1 

Ptastic oumo dlsoosable 
Hazardous Waste Labels 

I Colonmetnc Tests 
: .PH Str!ps 
Duct Tape 
Rao& 
Orum Thieves 
samofe Jars 

Containers 
· Drum - 55 gal. metal, open head 
Drum - 55 aal. metal. closed head 

1 Orum - 55 oat. oolv. open head 
, Drum - 55 oat. ootv, closed hear 
Orum - 30 gal. polv. open head 
Orum - 30 oat POIV. closed head 

I Orum -14 gal, polv, open head 
Pail - 5 gal, voiv with removable lid 
Over pacK - 85 oal ootv 
over pack - ,55 gal, metar 

, Cubic vard box 
Llqht tube box - 4 foot 
Liaht tube box - 8 foot 

I 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

I 

I 

' 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

Rate UOM 
$45.00 Each 
$85.00 Each 
$50.00 Roff 

$150.00 Roll 
S200.00 Roll 

$3.00 Each 
$10.00 Baa 
$25.00 BaQ 
$20.00 Gal 
$20.00 Each 

$2.00 Each 
$20 .. 00 Each 

$8.50 Box 
S4.00 Roll 

$45.00 Box 
$1.50 Each 

$10.00 Each 

New Recon 
$80.00 $ 60.00 
$60.00 $ 50.00 

$105.00 $ 50.00 
$95.00 $ 40.00 
580.00 s 50.00 
$70.00 $ 40.00 
$60.00 $ 40.00 
$20.00 

$300.00 
$240.00 

$80.00 
$70.00 
$75.00 

I 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 25 of29 



~ 
~~ 

Energy and Environmental Surcharge (EES) 
MP Ettvironm•ntal Service•, •~~ i. eommitted to offering our custom.,. a saf•. environmentally 
compliant ,-.,u~ for thei.- wa.te management needs at the best possible vatue. As.such, we 
continually flriv• to control com and minimiH paHing .along frequent price increasff to our customers. 

SlrtC4S implen'Wnt/ng our current Fuel Surch111rg• in 2008, w• have Hen many operating costs increase 
atgnificantty above ob,r noeMJnvtroomental indu.trin. fn addl1ion to the volatiffty of dleNI fuel and 
lubricants, we have seen increased COffll. in in•uranc:e premium&. permitting; and regulatory related 
i•sun; as well as the growin.9 cost of maintaining EPA/DOT compliant equipm81\t. including. 
impfementation of electronic fogging. 

To better address all the on-going cl1anges In our industry; effee1ive JIAy 1. 2016 MP will replace it8 Fuel 
Surcharge with an Energy and Environmental Surcharge (EES). 

Surottarae C•toulatton 
Th• EES contains two main compormtts. Energy Costs and Environment.al Compliance costs 

anerc,y costs 
Thi9 compon9m f9 tied to tt,e US Department of Energy West Coast Monthly Oil Highway Diesel Price 
Index and will adjust monthly, based on th• previous month'tJ Weat Coast Monthly On Highway Oiesai 
price pub!ieh.ct by EIA. 

Environm• ntal compHana. 
This componem is designed to rec:over coe MP Incurs on a na:!ionwide bases associated with operating 
our business in an environmentally compliant mammw and is currently set at 5,7% The Environmental 
Compliance component is not specifrcaffy tied to any direct or indil'>eCt costs but rafhfi is designed to 
maintain acceptable op9rating margine a. 'Ne mairrCain r99ulalory compliance.. The Environmental 
Compliance component of the tJun:harge will be reviewed annually and adjusted as needed. 

Th• Energy eo.t component and Envlnmme1ttal Compliance component 'AIIII be added together to 
dftmniri• trn, toeal Energy and Environmental Sureharge (EES). 

flpHcpblQty 
• El!5 wm apply to alt chargff. excludlnv selee tax. on an fnvolce and wUI be shown os a 

Mporaw llne Item, 

Th• EES hf not a tax or aurc:har99 impoHd by or remitted to any government or regu.latory agency. Th• 
EES will minimize 1h41 need for frequent price increases and enable MP to continue providing the quality 
HrVic:9 and profeMionalism our clients dnerve. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related 
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 26 of29 



I, 

EXHIBITC 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors 

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

(Company name) 

for contract work at: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD. LODI , CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

have been condu~ted as~r u~: e Y--\he California En rgy. 4,m ssio., n Decision for the 
above-named proJect. ··?<v.' ;Lfi / " ·z· 1 

. · '// u,,c_/ ~~ {_() ?' ·. .t, L.J . · 

Dated this ____ /i_,,Ont-,.__ ____ day of Cer- ,20 c2Q . 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 27 of29 



EXHIBIT D 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors 

I, ______ a=....;...,...)_N'-'-~'-------3.::..:l """--'-'-f1-'--"-l~f6....;:;;.;ae::.=-"---=L.:.c.v__,___H......,,tP_.__ _____ _ 

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans 
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart I and has conducted employee background 
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to 
time, 

f7)p -- c .-. 
, ~ /:::Al v·1F?cv/01-t;:N1c-)L ,2-~IJJCC~ :__j_J.lc_. 

(Company name) 

for hazardous materials delivery to: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER. 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI. CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

as required by the ~ffll& Jtnergy Commissio~,~ . ·sion fa(~ \ bove-named project. 

( /ti~ '\ -j d -h.cv/f_,, 

/ 8n-1- r,,,,,.r Dated this ________ day of ('Le 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 28 of29 



NOT APPLICABLE 

EXHIBIT E 

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA] 
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND 

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT 
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT 

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that: 

1) It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project 
Maintenance Labor Agreement ("Agreement" solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) 
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the 
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, aw~rd or subcontract1Covered 
Work, or to perform Covered Work. 

2) In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further 
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a 
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be 
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all 
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto. 

3) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements 
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the 
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to 
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as 
if made by the undersigned. 

4) It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete 
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

5) It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this 
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, 
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work. 

DATED:____ ___ _ Name of Employer 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northem California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

(Authorized Officer & Title) 

(Address) 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 29of29 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 

MP ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC 

This First Amendment ("Amendment") to Multi-Task General Services Agreement is entered into by 
and between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") and MP J:nyironmental Services, 
Inc. ("Contractor") (collectively referred to as "the Parties") as of · f!, , 2024. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated 
effective November 19, 2020, (the "Agreement") for MP Environmental Services, Inc to provide 
miscellaneous maintenance services which include labor, tools and vehicles to perform services at 
any facilities owned and/or operated by Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total 
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a NOT TO EXCEED amount of $3,000,000 to a 
NOT TO EXCEED amount of $4,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend Exhibit B entitled "Compensation Schedule 
and Hourly Fees" to reflect updated rates for the 2024 calendar year; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing 
and signed by all the Parties; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, as of the Amendment Effective Date, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 2-Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows: 

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED FOUR MILLION 
dollars ($4,000,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other 
reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full 
amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this 
Agreement. 

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged. 

2. Section 13. 7 Contract Administrator is replaced in its entirety as follows; 

13. 7 Contract Administrator This Agreement shall be administered by the Assistant 
General Manager, Generation Services or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency's 
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative. 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 1 of 10 



3. Exhibit B - COMPENSATION SCHEDULE is amended and restated to read in full as set 
forth in the Attached Exhibit B. 

4. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as 
specifically set forth herein. 

Date: Oct 28, 2024 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Ra!/J/J~ §/&1¥/'&~on 
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Wrl.rPdk 
Carrie Pollo (Ott 28, 2024 12:48 PDT) 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfomla Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 

Template &-13-18 

GINA BLANKENSHIP, ger 
/ 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 2 of 10 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set 
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated 
amount of expenses is as follows: 

RATE SCHEDULE 
for 

Northern catlfornla Power Agency 
June 17, 2024 

Ganeral Terma and Concffllo• 

• Rates based upon a1rrent General Prevaillng Wag& Determinations as published t>-, 
Catifatnm DIR_ MP reseNes the right to adjust rates based upon changes to applicable 
DIR Wage Determinations 

• Al i'lltt!HI. are pcrW to portal from facility which di&patc;hn equipment unleae otheiWise 
&pecifled 

• Rates not 8Gted on this liChedtde wlD be fum1&hed upoti requeat 

• Ml tiantportalkin services, fteed labor and equlptnent .are •object to a 4-haur rnlntmum 
charge 

• DaJlye,qulprneint ratn ere baHd upon 8-hours per day 

• A variable Envltonmentat & Ener-gy Sul"Clha,ge will apply to all charges 

• Any disposal andlor laboratory analytiis will be hilled at cost plus 12%. 

• MY subc:onlract ~. eqUipmel'lt or matflrla'ls not &steel wll be bllled at cost pus 
12%. 

• Deoontarnination Requirements: Due to federal requirements, MP equipment must be 
decontamineted after evecy customer or waste stream usage. This may be perfotmed at 
Iha dispotal slle, customer's location or an off-site fa.cilfly. If performed at the custcme,
locallon. lhe charges wlll be per MP's time and materials rate. If MP must go to an off. 
site faol!li'ty, the charges will be, brlled at c:ost, pus 15% for the 'MiSh plus MP's time and 
tnatel'ials !"ate. 

• Only MP Enviltlfttnental Service's pensannel are authorized to deliver; pick up, operate 
or t.rardlf'er MP equipment 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 3 of 10 



MP Environmental Servicea - Rate Schedule 

Personal Protective Equipment 

Protectfon Lwela/PPI: Rate UOM 
Levet A (Comnruute Suit + Sunnfied Air) $450.00 Dav/Person 
Level B (Sunnlied Air) $250~00 Dav/Person 
LevetC $140.00 Dav/Person 
Level C (Modified) $15.00 Day/Person 
Level D $55.00 Oav!Person 

r I 

Transportation Services 

Rate - ST UOM 
, 1oa..ao $128.00 

08.00 $128.00 
$ 75.00 $ 75.00 

Hour 

Hour 
$100.00 Hour 
$ 148.00 out' 
$195.00 

Tram. ortatloni - Load Rata1 
Roll-Off TranSJIC)f'tarlon • SWitch cut loaded bin& to I !B Ag. Bakersfield, CA $2..310.00 toad 
Roll Otf TransportaUon- Switch out leaded bans re Kodfeman, CA 
Roi OIJ Tra portalion- Switch out IMdH bins to Was&e Mgt Art! gton, OR 
Demurmge - Aftw 1 hour loading! f hour unloading 

Addltfonat load rates avallabte upon request 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

$1.,975.00 load 
$3,700.00 Lead 
$ 100.00 Hour 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 5of 10 



Roll .. Qff Containers & Consumables 

Roll Off Bin 20 Yard 
Rott Off Bin 30 Yard 
Roll Off Bin 40 Yard 
Vacuum Bin 
Dewatenna Bin 
tntennodal Bin 
ain liners. Polv - 3 mH 
Bin Liners, Poty - 8 mil 
Bin Liners, Fitter croth, 130 micfon 

I 

Demolition Equipment 

ent Uno 
330 WJUi A Genesis GXP500R Shear 

CAT 330 With A Genesi GXP660R S ar 

Excavation Equipment 

CAT 303CR Mtni Excavator Wlth H drauoo Thumb 
CAl 307 Excavatcr Wilh Knuckte Boom 
CAT 322 Excavator Wilh H draullc Thumb 
CA 325 Excavator With H draulic Thumb 
CAT 328 lero Clearance Excavator With Hydraulic 
Thumb 
CAT 336E Excavator With H drautlc thumb 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc, 

Template 6--8-18 

I 

Rate UOM 
$12.00 Dav 
$12.00 Dav 
$12 .00 Oay 
$50.00 Dav 
$55.00 Dav 
$60.00 Dav 
$35.00 Each 
$85.00 Each 

$150.00 Ead1 
I 

Rate 
$2,000.00 

2,000.00 
$700.00 
$500.00 
$700.00 

Rate 
$250.00 
$300.00 
$850.00 
$875.00 
$900.00 

$1,300.00 

$450.00 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page6 of 10 



Loading Equipment 

der 

CAT 966G Wheel Loader 
CAT Skid Steer Rubber Tired 
CAT Skid Steer Tracked) 

Other Equipment 

Hydro. Excavation Equipment 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern canfornla Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

Rate 
$600.00 
$850.00 
$800.00 
$975.00 
$250.00 
$300.00 

Rate 
$400.00 
$550.00 
$200.00 
$550.00 
$750.00 

$1,200.00 

$25,00 
$50.00 

$200.00 
$155.00 
$300.00 
$500,00 
$250.00 

Rate 
$205.00 

$4.50 
$6.75 

$20.00 

UOM 
Oa 
Oa 
Oa 
Da 
Oa 
Oa 

UOM 
Hour 
Foot 
Foot 
Each 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 7 of 10 



Solids Reduction & Tank Cleaning Equipment 

&auloment (Un Operated) 
Centrisvs 21 Inch rwo Phase Cen1rlfuae fUn-Ooerafedl 
t.oadina Conve:vor 
Mix Tank 
Mini Storaae Ta nk-8,000 CJ81lon 
Wa1erTank 
400 KW Mobile Generator 
OiQester Booster Pump 
Grinder - 6"' 
Submerslbte Pumo - 6" 
Manwavl ROV Tank Cteanlna Unit <Un-Onerated) 
Hydro etaster 10,000 psi to 20,000 psi (Un-Operated) 
fncl'.udes One Gun, Pedal and 100' hose. 
Any additional hydro-btasting equipment, including 
consumables, not listed above would be billed at cost 
n1us15% 

Misc. Equipment 

Safety Equipment 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern california Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

I 
I 

Rate UOM 
$425.00 Hour 
$125.00 Hour 
$160.00 Dav 

$50.00 Dav 
$125.00 Dav 
$17.5.00 Hour 
$250.00 Day 
$500.00 Dav 
$250.00 Dav 

$1 .. 500.00 Dav 
$245.00 Hour 

$45.00 Oa 
$20.00 Oa 
$85.00 Da 

$300.00 Da 
$40.00 Da 

Rate 
$75.00 

$125.00 
$125.00 
$150.00 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 8 of 10 



Drum Pumo 
LEL. 02, H~ Meter 
H~Monitor 

Materials/Supplies 

Cfa .· based oil absolbenl 50 lb ba 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

I 

$.50.00 
$85.00 
$10.00 

Rate 
$45.00 
$86000 
$75.00 

$150.00 
$200.00 

$5.00 
$20.00 

55.00 
$25.00 
S95.00 
$25.00 

$10.00 

I 

$95.00 · 
$1.50 I 

$10.00 

Mew 
145. 

$90.00 

$85,00 I 

Dav 
Dav 
Day 

UOM 

.. Each 

RoU 
Rotl 

Gat 
Each 

l:ach 
Box 
Roil 
Box 
Each 

S 80.00 
$ 106.00 

60.00 
$ 56.00 
$ 45.00 

GS-VEN-202().104 

Page 9 of 10 



MN 
~ · 

Energy and Environmental Surcharge (EES) 

MP Enwanmental Serv~. Inc. ss oammitted to offering our custol118fS a safe. erwlronmerdallJ' 
comptlamt resource for their waste man~ needs at the best possible value. As &iJCh; we 
ClOfltinuall)' strive to control oosts and nuni-mize pa&&ing akmg frequent price il'IA:lreaH& to our customets. 

Since n,plementing our current Fuel Surcharge In 2008, we have seen many operating c:osts Increase 
slgnlflcantly above other ncm-envltonmental lndustries. In addilion to the volatitlty of dieset fuel and 
li.lbrlcants, we have seen incl'eased ec&15 In Insurance premium&, permitting, and regulatory reJated 
laues; as well as the growing cost of maintaining EPA/DOT compliant equipment., lnclUdlng 
lmpl81'1'1entation of electron1c logging. 

To bttttlt acldtea all Ute on.going ctianoea in our fndt1811y, effective Jt.dy 1, 2016 MP wjtl replace ifs Fuel 
Surcharge With an Energy and Envlronmentat Surcharge (EES). 

a-a• Ca1c;urat1on 
~ contains two Main oamponents, Erlef9Y Costs and Enll'lronmen1ai Compliance Cosbl. 

Energy Costs 
Thtt con,ponent is tied to the US Department of Energy West Coast Momhly On Highway Diesel Price 
Index end wlll adjust man1hly, band on fhe 'Pf8V!ou• month's West Coast Monthly on Highway Diesel 
price publlthed by EIA. 

i S2.10toS219 ~ 
S2,201PS2.29 3% 
52.3010$2.39 ◄% 
S2.40 to $2.49 6% 
92.SIHo $2..59 6,._ I 12.00 to S2.A59 1., 
12.101o 52.to I a,t, 1 . 1o • , 
Ncu-5urdl8f\llld~0illinu• to incrnise .t lhe rn of 1% pet S .10 pergallonebovetheamtofH.-» perplon 

envtronmental CompD■nc:e 
Tht8 oomponeiit Is dMigned to recover costs :MP il'l'CUts on llll l'ltltianwlde basls assocmted with opsntifit19 
our 1'u&iifll 111 an envlronmenlrllly compliant manner std II currently Mt 8t &,01'% • The 
Emrirot11ttenfa1 CompWance component 1111 not speclficaUy tied to any direct or im:ftrect COIis but rather is 
dnlaned to rmi'intmn aooeplable opetdng margins as we maintain regofaloty compliance. The 
Envlmnmenlal Compliance component of !he sun=harge will be nwiewed annually and adjusted as 
nl!leded. 

The Energy Cost CIOfflpo.nent and Envlronmenial Comptlance compooent will be added together to 
detefflline th& total Energy and E.nworunental Surcharge (EES). 

fi'-.,.,~ to all cltaf!QOS, oxctudJnc, safes tax, on an invoice a11d wm be shown a• a 
Nparar. llM item. 

The EES fs not a tax or surcharge lmposed by or remitted to any government or regulatory agency. The 
EES will minimize lhe need for frequent prlce increases and ~able MP to continue ptolilding the quality 
service and pofessianallsm ow- c:lietd.s deserve. 

Upon 30 days' advance notice and no more than once each calendar year, MP Environmental 
Services, Inc. may increase rates for new Purchase Orders. If NCPA does not accept the 
increased rates, NCPA may terminate this Agreement. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs 
in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 10of 10 



MP Environmental First Amendment MTGSA - - - - -
2024 
Final Audit Report 

Created: 

By: 

Status: 

Transaction ID: 

2024-10-28 

Michelle Schellentrager (Michelle.Schellentrager@ncpa.com) 

Signed 

CBJCHBCMBAAE-sXgo_y7 _iyTp6X2adqkB42wHh70Xyl 

2024-10-28 

"MP _Environmental_First_Amendment_MTGSA_2024" History 
fl Document created by Michelle Schellentrager (Michelle.Schellentrager@ncpa.com) 

2024-10-28 -6:48:46 PM GMT- IP address: 66.60.185.199 

LB1. Document emailed to randy.howard@ncpa.com for signature 

2024-10-28 - 6:49:23 PM GMT 

~ Email viewed by randy.howard@ncpa.com 

2024-10-28- 7:26:58 PM GMT-IP address: 69.85.213.166 

4 Signer randy.howard@ncpa.com entered name at signing as Randy S Howard 

2024-10-28- 7:27:30 PM GMT- IP address: 69.85.213.166 

~ Document e-signed by Randy S Howard (randy.howard@ncpa.com) 

Signature Date: 2024-10-28 - 7:27:32 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 69.85.213.166 

e. Document emailed to Carrie Pollo (carrie.pollo@ncpa.com) for signature 

2024-10-28- 7:27:33 PM GMT 

t:J Email viewed by Carrie Pollo (carrie.pollo@ncpa.com) 

2024-10-28- 7:47:53 PM GMT- IP address: 66.60.185.199 

0ct Document a-signed by Carrie Pollo (carrie.pollo@ncpa.com) 

Signature Date: 2024-10-28- 7:48:34 PM GMT-Time Source: server- IP address: 66.60.185.199 

C, Agreement completed. 

2024-10-28 - 7:48:34 PM GMT 

fl Adobe Acrobat Sign 



SECOND AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 

MP ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC 

This Second Amendment ("Second Amendment") to Multi-Task General Services Agreement is 
entered into by and between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") and MP 
Environmental Services, Inc. ("Contractor") (collectively referred to as "the Parties") as of 

--------' 2025. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated 
effective November 19, 2020, (the "Agreement") for MP Environmental Services, Inc to provide 
miscellaneous maintenance services which include labor, tools and vehicles to perform services at 
any facilities owned and/or operated by Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement on October 28, 2024 to increase the total compensation authorized by the Agreement 
from a NOT TO EXCEED amount of $3,000,000 to a NOT TO EXCEED amount of $4,000,000; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total 
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a NOT TO EXCEED amount of $4,000,000 to a 
NOT TO EXCEED amount of $5,000,000 over the existing five-year term; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing 
and signed by both of the Parties; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, as of the Second Amendment effective date, the Parties agree as 
follows 

Ill 

1. Section 2-Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows: 

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED FIVE MILLION 
dollars ($5,000,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other 
reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full 
amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this 
Agreement. 

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged. 

Second Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
The Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 
Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 1 of 2 



2. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as 
specifically set forth herein. 

Date: ------

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

Second Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
The Northern California Power Agency and MP Environmental Services, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

Date: ------

MP ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 

GINA BLANKENSHIP, Facility Manager 

GS-VEN-2020-104 

Page 2 of 2 



l'UStlC A.OfN (;Y 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: Epidendio Construction, Inc. - First Amendment to the Five-Year Multi-Task 
General Services Agreement for Miscellaneous Maintenance Services; Applicable to the 
following: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Michael DeBortoli .·.~ 

Assistant General Manager 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe: 

Department: Geothermal 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 146:25 

\ lo 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



March 27, 2025 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 25-40 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Epidendio Construction, Inc. for 
miscellaneous maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and 
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $1,000,000 
to $2,000,000, with no change to the contract term, for continued use at any facilities owned 
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

BACKGROUND: 

Miscellaneous maintenance services are required from time to time for the operation and 
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and 
SCPPA Members. NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with 
Epidendio Construction, Inc., effective March 25, 2022, for an amount not to exceed $1,000,000, 
for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and 
SCPPA Members. 

This agreement has primarily been used by the Geothermal Facility for road maintenance and is 
now running low on funds. NCPA desires to enter into a First Amendment to the current Multi
Task General Services Agreement to increase the not to exceed amount from $1 ,000,000 to 
$2,000,000 to ensure sufficient funds are available for the remainder of the contract term. This 
agreement will continue to be available for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, 
NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with Northern Industrial Construction, 
Gifford's Backhoe Service, Granite Construction Company, and Rege Construction, Inc. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total not to exceed amount of the agreement will increase from $1,000,000 
to $2,000,000 over the remainder of the contract term. Purchase orders referencing the terms 
and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and 
procedures. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time 
services are needed, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from qualified providers as required. 
Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will issue 
purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is 
required. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

SR: 146:25 



March 27, 2025 
Page3 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On March 5, 2025, the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above 
for Commission approval. 

On March 10, 2025, the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and 
approved the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~i ~ 
RANDY S. HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments (3): 
• Resolution 25-40 
• Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
• First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Epidendio 

Construction, Inc. 

SR: 146:25 



RESOLUTION 25-40 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH EPIDENDIO CONSTRUCTION INC. 

(reference Staff Report #146:25) 

WHEREAS, miscellaneous maintenance services are required from time to time for operation and 
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA 
Members; and 

WHEREAS, effective March 25, 2022, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement with Epidendio Construction, Inc to provide such services for use at any facilities owned and/or 
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement has primarily been used by the Geothermal Facility for road maintenance 
services, and is now running low on funds; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA now desires to enter into a First Amendment to the current Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement to increase the not to exceed amount from $1,000,000 to $2,000,000 to ensure sufficient 
funds are available for the remainder of the contract term; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into said First Amendment to the Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing 
the not to exceed amount from $1,000,000 to $2,000,000, with no change to the contract term, for continued 
use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2025 by the following vote 
on roll call : 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

JAMES "BO" SHEPPARD 
CHAIR 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARRIE A. POLLO 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



N·c·PA 
NORTHERN CA\IFORNIA POWER AG£NCY 

MULTI-TASK 
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 
EPIDENDIO CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement ("Agreement') is made by and between the 
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 ("Agency") and Epidendio Construction, Inc., a 
corporation with its office located at 11325 Highway 29, Lo/c:6 Lar, CA 95457 ("Contractor") 
(together sometimes referred to as the "Parties") as of 8~ , 2022 ("Effective Date") in 
Roseville, California. 

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods 
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ('Work"). 

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective 
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) 
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner 
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing 
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to 
provide the Work set forth herein. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to 
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time 
during the term of this Agreement, requests the.reassignment of any such 
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from 
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel. 

1.4 Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may 
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority ("SCPPA") or SCPPA members. 

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to 
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a 
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be 
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary 
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that 
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be 
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the 
Agency's issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that 
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to 
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does 
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 



agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase 
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits. 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT 
TO EXCEED ONE MILLION dollars ($1,000,000) for the Work, which shall include al.I fees, 
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar a'mount is ne>t a guarantee that Agency 
will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures 
under this Agreement. 

2.1 Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month 
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and 
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the 
following information: 

• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
• Work performed; 
• The.Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work; 
• At Agency's option, for .each work item in each task, a copy of the 

applicable time e'1tries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the 
name of the person doing the work, . the hours spent .by each person, a 
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with 
supporting documentation, to Agency's reasonable satisfaction; 

• At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under 
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and 
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices 
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable 
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice 
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor. 

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this 
Agreement. 

2.4 Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform 
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until 
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epldendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 2 of22 



2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days 
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the 
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for 
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have 
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency. 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herei'n, Contractor shall, at 
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform 
the Work. 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this 
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of 
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for 
the period covered by this Agreement. 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall 
maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor 
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident. 

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including 
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of 
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad 
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of 
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per 
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall 
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001 
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive 
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more 
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability 
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement 
covering any loss or liability, Including the cost of defense of any action, 
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), 
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The 
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with 
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This 
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and 
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general 
liability insurance. 

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth 
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies 
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 3 of22 



4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally Omitted 

4.4 Pollution Insurance. Intentionally Omitted 

4.5 All Policies Requirements. 

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. P~ior to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with ( 1) a Certificate of 
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance 
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies 
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the 
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in 
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

• , , • I 

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall 
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any 
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to 
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4. 

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums 
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the Contractor. 

4.6.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs 
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to 
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and 
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific 
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to 
be performed. 

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which 
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the 
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that 
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the 
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its 
employees, agents and subcontractors. 

4.6 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring 
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work 
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are 
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this 
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the 
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent 
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation 
insurance required by applicable law durinQ this Agreement. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 4 of 22 



Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and 
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from 
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification 
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages 
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By 
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

5.2 Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable 
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, 
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, .expenses, p~nalti~s •. fines, costs 
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of 
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions 
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by 
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement 
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then 
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency. 

5.3 Transfer of Title. Intentionally Omitted 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

6.1 Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an 
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the r.ight to control Contractor only 
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant 
to Section 1 ; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by 
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, 
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and 
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or 
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any 
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but 
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to 
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for 
PERS benefits. 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of 
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of 
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge 
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement 
is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing the Work, including 
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northem Califomia Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 5 of22 



Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit, 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, 
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to 
Contractor's failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare 
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C; § 4980H of the Affordable 
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable 
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent, 
or subcontractor of Contractor. 

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor 
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any 
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or 
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal 
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's 
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional 
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement 
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor 
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written 
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the 
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall 
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall 
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself 
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors 
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with 
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all 
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to 
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction. 

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the 
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute 
Exhibit C. 

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous 
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at 
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D. 

6.6 Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or 
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 6 of22 



of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall 
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance. 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

7.1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this 
Agreement. 

7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor,and i,ts subcontractors and 
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the 
work hereunder. 

7 .3 Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that 
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will 
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required 
to practice their respective professions. 

7 .4 Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and 
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. 

7.5 Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants 
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to 
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5. 

7.6 Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a 
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less 
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work 
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in 
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770 
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general 
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be 
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem 
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which 
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker 
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem 
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request. 
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the 
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the 
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any 
worker or any other third party with regard thereto. 

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group 
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 7 of22 



Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on 
the web at: http://www.dirca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time. 

I 

Contractor shall provide a certified copy of its payroll, on forms to be determined 
by the Agency and consistent with the Labor Code, within ten (10) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of Agency's written request therefor. Contractor's failure to 
timely comply with this provision may subject the Contractor to penalties 
pursuant to state law. 

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 177 4 
and 1775. In accordance·with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty 
to Agency $200.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid 
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial 
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work 
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under 
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular, 
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to 
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount 
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each 
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker 
by the Contractor. 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause 
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor. · 

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work 
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, 
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to 
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof). 

8.2 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed 
by both of the Parties. 

8.3 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of 
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 
4, Agency's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, 
and any other work. product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this 
Agreement; 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 8 of22 



8.4.3 Reti(iin a different Contractor to complete the Work notfinist)ed by 
Contractor; and/or 

8.4.4 Charge.Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work 
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would 
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the 
Work. 

Section 9. KEEPING AND ;STATUS1 OF RECORDS. 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Contracto.r's Performance. All reports, data, 
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in 
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relat~ to the mat~ers covered hereunder ~hall Qe the property 
of the Agenqy. Co,ntractor herebyagrees to deliver th.ose doc.uments to the 
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that, 
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other 
documents. 

9.2 Contractor's Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all 
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or 
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement 
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from 
the date of final payment to the Contractor under .this Agreement. 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this 
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon 
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code 
Section 8546. 7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to 
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as 
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment 
under this Agreement. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used 
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret 
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, 
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible 
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential, 
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall 
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party 
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendlo Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 9 of 22 



Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without 
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was 
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section. 

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this 
Agreement, eithe~ party may disclose (the "Disclosing Party") Confidential 
Information to the other party (the "Receiving Party"). The Receiving 
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in 
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any 
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such 
Confidential Information. 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following 
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall 
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any 
permitted disclosure made pursu;ant to Section 9.4.3.2 or ~.4.3.3. 
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation, 
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted 
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such 
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for 
such permitted disclosures: 

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a . need to know 
in connection with this Agreement. 

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or 
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination 
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or 
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested 
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information, 
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival 
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c) 
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are 
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the 
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the 
Receiving Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and 
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this 
Agreement. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 10 of22 



Section 10. PROJECT SITE. 

10.1 Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the pow~r plant 
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, 
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner 
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if 
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced 
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons 
and propei:ty thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a 
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools, 
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to · 
Contractor's Work. 

10.2 Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of 
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, 
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for 
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be 
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost, 
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment, 
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without 
permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an 
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to 
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by 
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractqr is performing the Work, 
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as ,an accommodation and neither 
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, 
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall 
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired 
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools, 
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project 
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and 
in good condition. 

10.3 Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely 
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency 
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as 
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work. 

Section 11. WARRANTY. 

11.1 Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law 
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in 
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in 
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations 
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent 
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 11 of22 



11.2 Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency 
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be 
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required 
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor's failure to perform any 
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the 
term of this Agreement or the one ( 1) year period following completion of the 
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by 
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or 
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any 
reasonable written. notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's 
satisfaction. 

11.3 Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional 
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, 
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material 
used in the Work. 

Section 12. HEAL TH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor. shall establish, maintain, 
and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program 
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall 
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations 
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for 
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4. 

12.1 Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to 
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request. 

12.2 Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training 
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may 
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified 
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for 
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and 
material handling equipment. 

12.3 Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware 
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein. 

12.4 Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance 
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall 
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the 
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result 
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is 
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be 
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for 
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section 
12. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 12 of22 



12.5 Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety 
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shaUinvestigate and submit to the 
Agency site safety representative copies of all written:1:1ccident reports, and 
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested . 

12.6 Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of 
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall 
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of 
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental 
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site 
safety representative upon request. 

12. 7 Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous 
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work. 

12.8 Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who 
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be 
subject to actions including removal from Work. 

12.9 Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the 
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for 
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including 
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous 
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the 
Contractor. 

12.10 If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA 
member (collectively "Member' solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to 
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency 
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof. 

Section 13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

13.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an 
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set 
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

13.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under 
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested 
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California. 

13.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision 
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this 
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epldendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 13of22 



whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the 
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision 
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose 
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of 
location, would place Contractor in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined 
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 
81000 et seq. 

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant 
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code 
Sections 1090 et seq. 

13. 7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Randy 
Bowersox,.Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the 
Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the 
representative. 

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to: 

Mike Epidendio 
President 
Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
P.O. Box452 
11325 Highway 29 
Lower Lake, CA 95457 

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a copy to: 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 14of22 



Jane E. Luckhardt 
General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the 
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page 
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed 
professional responsible for the report/design preparation. 

13.1 O Integration: Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached 
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and 
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 
by reference herein. 

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that 
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and 
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following: 

13.11.1 

13.11.2 

13.11.3 

13.11.4 

13.11.5 

13.11.6 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive 
level representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, 
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen ( 15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement 
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, 
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through 
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute. 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen 
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as 
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be 
concluded within fifteen (15} days from the commencement of the 
mediation. 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition 
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative 
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative 
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be 
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action 
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2022-014 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Page 15 of22 



13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal 
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the 
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits 
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order 
and the Contractor's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control. 

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
agreement. 

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent 
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with 
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the 
drafting party shall not apply hereto. 

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. 
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or 
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only "Member") 
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third 
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to 
such Member. 

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY EPIDENDIO CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Date ·) \ '3 l "207,,, 7-Date 3 J '1-{ }'2 t.., --~----. --r-, -------

Attest: 

Assis ant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Epldendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

1 

MIKE EPIDENDO, President 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 16 of22 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Epidendio Construction, Inc. ("Contractor") shall provide routine, recurring, and usual 
maintenance services for the preservation, protection, and keeping of any facilities owned 
and/or operated by Agency, its members, Southern California Public Power Authority ("SCPPA") 
or SCPPA members, in a safe and continually usable condition. 

Maintenance services may include, but are not limited to, roadwork, all phases of concrete, 
gravel hauling, water hauling, seal coating, labor and materials for miscellaneous maintenance, 
vegetation removal for wildfire mitigation, and fire watch services. 

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project 
under the California Public Contract Code. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendlo Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 17 of22 



EXHIBIT 8 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set 
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated 
amount of expenses is as follows: 

NCP'A 

ATTACHMENT 8- PAGE 1 V.P~llk ~(O"Mlrl10n 'nc. - ,,. 
JNI' (>~ 

""J\flllll\L """'"~"'~ tlNC"O l'Hl.Mlf' IIOl'i ur Wuflt 'NPf Of ntAIIU 
MfA~Ullt 

Ht 
) .. ,, 

'Jl '"""n 1r-f~:·n1\ Jtnrm .,,. 
1.,001 

Pl!rTtw;""' I •orem,111 11c,u,1 y Labor S9S 00 

' SupeN1,01 HC)ut'y l.ilbor P" I-tour $10~00 
j t ,1.J1 J-H}i"' '' Jt: O~;r~: {t'l'.'l~ -h.if ryp!" HOUl •'f I 1bor Pc, Hour .;9500 

d ,,, I Houuyl..lbor J>tf H<liJr 5~',UU 

!, ubol, Hou!ly 111bor Pet 1-\cu• $7!,.0C, 

" C.•m,.,ntM~,or i◄OUII) t..lUU• Vet Muur •,ari. C-0 

, JUI lftlfflt 

I l'•r< ,p l/} ~ ,/i ton Hourly L.tbor P,,r Hvur $2!>.00 

R S-rvirP frud .. w th oo. Hourlyl.llbor Per Hour $4'>00 
!:I f>Jtt-cd '•,1(•• I ll'n •~urlv \ 1t>or P•r Hoi.r SGOOO 
10 Oump Truck •6Cyhl1dl!· Hour~ .abor Pt'rHour $7 ... 00 
ll Dump l ruck lU <.vl,.ncJ.-r 1-1\ltlrlV i.dOOt ,.., Hour $7'>00 
I' 11'" (\\ffo• ·.tc~ 1-inurlv LJllvr ...,, . .,,.,,. ,.u, ,() 

n W ,, 1 lrn1k 'iCiJrl; l~DOr Pll!•Hou, sacoo 
)4 tt , I•,.., :f ,,1: .. t,,Rt, )rt,,Tf'ltdi•fl!i tlcurly<l.lioor Pc• uou• $4~ llO 
IS ft ~YV\l.'f ir. \Jt ),")/) ~ou-ty I ~t,c,r ?for t-k,u• Sn~oo 

11 t ◄ ,H,,,•, it.): ){J:1 \.\" ~h .Jrtt,.), ~u,ty l..lbor Pt11 t'Uu< sv,ro 
t 7 ,.o•du· l • )J~: rlOutly l..lbo• l>ftr,..o;,r $'i~.no 
1!' Cu, ff! r,i,,.,, th/,. 'fi)tlt tm.t"'Ci llti t·•f1 c, '""' ,1,:,urty tabor Per J◄our $41.00 
l? Excavar10· (c•t Jl~ w/ thum!II +to,1•,V l• bo, Pl'r '10Uf sas.oo 
20 txc~,•,,to' (c,11 JJO w/ thumol Hourly labor Per Hour $ll5.00 

11 lo~rt .. , 'i•c; forrt .~ip4•• or c~u,v.:,lcl"t Hourlv L,,bor P• Hi " SA'!'>OO 
22 Loatk-r lti'.lt !llO) Hour Iv Labor P•r Huur $S!;.;JO 

H l,1,,:I»• j(',uk MLChgan 1',CJ Hourly lilbo, Pllf .tOYr S'l,.llO 

All [QUIPMlNT & LAIOlt kflllTAf. HAS A 41-tOUR MINIMUM CHARGC 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

OAT'! 

••• ll I 'JI :I M 
,, I r • I 

$1)0.00 $US.OD 
$BO.DO sw,.oo 
SllO CO $1l5 10 
'110.tlO ,11~.oo 
:>100 liO $110.00 
$105.00 $120,00 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 18 of22 



NCPA 
AllJ:(;hmlnt ;\.'t''- 7-

onrn rr ON 0~ WO'iK 

~-1·, !'•· ti l 1 ••1( ,-.,_ ·j, 'I'"' 1;1.,,~ "..<I 

,,,.f11~rp ~• I 1,,: 11tf to:vt.i\;, !hN,"t: t► ,-
ll' ,h.r t ., •.· "': ••' ,,, 11 .... ~h• ~ , , ·, •• ·th•· 

••lu •~ .1-., 1~:•• ,, ft., r.'lil>',, "lt' l 'J!ol"'f-, ~ ;-.,: 

1• .. t 1 ti\'•,. f /, I, ~•;, l1 "11-1•, ... ,-. tr,, ••• ,1pJHH.U. , n, 
,,-, ... , .. , I• .. -, .·.!-: -~h· ,1 "!',~• ,,i,,t:-1 · ;::,1.,1 

I• •N1\lh· 1, 1,,.. ... , .,,. '1 ~.11-:.,1 ,. • ,•, l d W.11 '..l11dt'd 

,. l•,i:!i .. •.;t-• , • . .!,, • 

IYl'l /JI CHA!«il 

Mdfklijl 

Svl'Pl'.tR 
NM.,, 

,H,ff OF 
M u1 11t ,: 

,..• <••nttt.11~ 
1'\l~tkqp:r-f 

~,.-,.,tt:t· 
flCY,O<'i 

J)C'li.~( .. tf'I" 

""""'• ir ·~t 

Pl'' 11,1' 

A,1 f Q111P~I M .t. LMSl.lll llU1lAl HAS A 4 HOUR_ MINIMUM CIWIGf 

11.JCTIOH N 

l',l;\f!RIAi. 
,;flN'.,A'l!." 

-~•·Kl 

~,h, 

b 

2[ 

1} 

JS ,,, 
,~ 
:1'1 

All services will be billed according to Time & Material (T&M) Rates. 

.,·t •n "'-11 nu, Hi! H\1: 

t 1o1 f I 11tt1 ~l 

!).'d,,y 

• ".11 

~.'.I)( 

~-) (J(., 

:, on 
Slu 00 
:,1!,.(.tf) 

Prices are subject to change with 30 days' advance written notice to Agency. 

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the 
time services are requested. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related 
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern CaNfomla Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 19of22 



I, 

EXHIBITC 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit oJ Compliance for Contractors 

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity 
and employment history of all employees of 

'S?V 1"Pt-N'"'t>10 Q.Qj-.Y-S:X:R-u t,\'"\(,'1v 1 , /\\(" ___ , 

(Company name) 

for contract work at: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the 

above-named project. Oiw'YJ (1. 9 . 1~ 

(Sign4re of officer or agent) 

Dated this --='3::;..;f<.V'----'------ day of Mr1 jW, \1: , 20 -ZZ 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 20 of22 



EXHIBIT D - NOT APPLICABLE 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors 

I, ____________________________ _, 

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans 
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart I and has conducted employee background 
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802{a), as the same may be amended from time to 
time, 

(Company name) 

for hazardous materials delivery to: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI. CA 95242 

{Project name and location) 

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project. 

(Signature of officer or agent) 

Dated this ________ day of _______ _, 20 _ 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 21 of22 



EXHIBIT E 

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA] 
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND 

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT 
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT 

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that: 

1) It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project 
Maintenance Labor Agreement ("Agreement" solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) 
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the 
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered 
Work, or to perform Covered Work. 

2) In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further 
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a 
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be 
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all 
amendments and supplements now existing or which · are later made thereto. 

3) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements 
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the 
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to 
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as 
if made by the undersigned. 

4) It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete 
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

5) It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this 
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, 
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work. 

DATED: _______ _ Name of Employer 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northam California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

(Authorized Officer & itfe) 

tt'w~ ark a qsys-rz 
(Address) 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 22 of22 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO MUL Tl-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND EPIDENDIO CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

This First Amendment ("Amendment") to Multi-Task General Services Agreement is entered into by 
and between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
("Contractor'') ( collectively referred to as "the Parties") as of _______ , 2025. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated 
effective March 25, 2022, (the "Agreement") for Epidendio Construction, Inc. to provide routine, 
recurring, and usual maintenance services for the preservation, protection, and keeping of any 
facilities owned and/or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power 
Authority ("SCPPA") or SCPPA members; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total 
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a NOT TO EXCEED amount of $1,000,000 to a 
NOT TO EXCEED amount of $2,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend Section 13. 7 Contract Administrator to 
update the Agency's representative; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend Exhibit B entitled "Compensation Schedule 
and Hourly Fees" to reflect updated rates for the 2025 calendar year; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing 
and signed by all the Parties; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, as of the Amendment effective date, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 2-Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows: 

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED TWO MILLION 
dollars ($2,000,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other 
reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full 
amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this 
Agreement. 

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged. 

2. Section 13. 7 Contract Administrator is replaced in its entirety as follows: 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 
Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 1 of 4 



13. 7 Contract Administrator This Agreement shall be administered by Generation Services, 
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency's representative. All 
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative. 

3. Exhibit 8 - COMPENSATION SCHEDULE is amended and restated to read in full as set 
forth in the Attached Exhibit B. 

4. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as 
specifically set forth herein. 

Date: ------

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

Date: ------
EPIDENDIO CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

MICHAEL A. EPIDENDIO, President 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 2 of 4 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set 
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated 
amount of expenses is as follows: 

2025 RATES 

NCPA 

LINE NO. DESCRIPTION OF WORI< 

MISC. PRICING 
USOR 

1 SUPERVISOR 
2 FOREMAN 
3 EQUIPMENT OPERATOR· Alt TYPES 

4 TEAMSTER 
5 lABORER 

6 CEMENT MASON 
EQUIPMENT 

7 PICK UP • 1/2 OR 3/4 lON 
8 SERVlCE TRUCK WITH TOOlS 

9 FLATBED TRUCK· 2 TON 

10 OOMP TRUCK· 6 CY 

l'l DUMP TRUCK · 10 CY 

12 1RANSFER TRUCK 

13 WATERTRUCk 

14 TRANSPORT 60 TON LOWBED 

15 EXCAVATOR CAT307 

l6 EXCAVATOR CAT 308 

17 ~XCAVATOR CAl 31S W/THUMB 
18 EXCAVATOR CAT 320 W/THUMB 

19 LOADER 545 FORD SKIP 4X4 OR l:QUIVAI FNT 

20 BACKHOE CASE SSOOR EQUIVILANI 

21. LOADE~ CAT 920 4 IN 1 2YD 

22 LOADER CLARI< MICHIGAN 75( 3YD 
23 LOADER CAT9304 IN I 3YD 

24 CONf TF.IIU WITH WITH AARO\'I !IO~tll.l) &. Ik~FtiC SIGN> 

25 OfHCfl £0.UtPMl:NT 81' k~(lllt ~I 

Ill 

Ill 

TYPE OF CHARGE 

liCURLY LABOR 

HOURLY LABOR 
HOURLY LASOR 
HOURlY l1'180R 
HOURLY LABOR 
HOURLY LABOR 

1-tOlJRLY EQUIPMENT 

1-tOURIV FQ1JIPMfijT 

HOI.IRl V fQIJIPMtlff 

HO!JRt Y EQUIPMENT 

HOU Rl V EQUl?MEN 1 

HO!J~LY l:QUIPMEl'll 

HOURLY EQUIPMENT 

• llOURLHQIJIPMrNT 

HOURLY £QUIPMrNT 

HOURLY EQUIPll!ENT 

flOUlll Y EQU IPMHff 

HOURLY EQUIPMENT 

HGIJRI Y FGUiPMEt>lf 

hOURl HQU!Pl',ffNi 

ttOURLVEQUIPMENT 

HO\JRI.V EC,u1PMH1r 

liO\JFll'f EQUtPM~ttr 

IIOURli' EQUtPMElff 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

SUl>PLIER:1 EPIDENDIO CONfflUCTION, INC 

UOM SIZE MATERIAL STAND OVERTIME DOUBLfTIME 
PRlCE PRICE PRICE 

P RHOlU! $120.00 $145.00 $170.00 
PER HOUR $11600 $141.00 $166.00 
PER HOUR $113,00 SB8.00 $163,00 
PER HOUR $95.D0 $120.00 $145.00 
PER HOUR $85.00 $110.0 $135.00 
PER HOUR $90.00 $115.00 $140.00 

f>ERHOUfl 
PER HOUR 
PER HOUR 
PER HOUR 
PER HOUR 

PER HOUR $ll0. 
PER HOUR $IOS, 
PER HOUR $125. 
PER HOUR $65.0 
PER HOUR $70, 

PER HOUR $90. 
PER HOUR $115. 
PER HOUR m. 
PER HOUR 555. 
PER HOUR 

PER HOUR 

PER HOUR 

PER HOUR 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 3 of 4 



SUPPLIER• EPIDENDIO CONSTRUCTION INC I 

llNENO, DESCRIPTION OF WORK l'l'Pf Of CHARGE UOM MATERIAL, STANO OVERTIME OOIJBlf TIME 
91UCE PRICE PRICE 

~~MA( TOR MAlll(UP-'11 lHE EVl'JIIT YOU MUST USE 

1 A SfR.VKF PROVIDFR "Ol Ol HlRWl",t COVE REO. THl5 MARKUP P£R((~f MAIIKUPOF 15% 
MARKv.? ~ IALl 8E ADD!'D 10 TH t OIA~ (. I COS I 0< I HI: Sfl\'l/lCEPIIO'll11ll~ IN\IIXF 

5ER'ffl:! PROVlllfR. 

ADMI NIST tlA TI\IE M!\!ll(UP fOA MAll'RIAI.S-i N T'l[ {\'ENT 

Wf. NIE MKfD SY NCPA TO l':tl:OVIDC r.tAT[RfAL:i FROM MARKUP l'tRCffll"M-UPOf l!i% 
l A SlJPl'UER, 'Ji-ii$ MM(UP St!."1.L BE !\DJED TO THEOIREC. 5[8V!(f PlfO\IDER l'M)l(f 

MillE!llAL cost !AfllJISI\ION, HAND!i!IG & li'lSTALLAT!ON 

IS110ULD BE 111(.LiJDFD Ill Tfif 01\SE Hf & lJNII PRICl~b), 

'MISC. EQUIPMENT $/HOUft $/DAY 
1 8 X 10 TRENCH PLATES OAll y ,ou:PMENT PER DAY $20.00 
2 VNOERG~OUND Mm ACCESSO~\' t-O!I COMl'~ESSOR DAILHQU1PMENT PER DAY $400.00 
3 BARRICAD~S Oi\llV le'.lUIPMCNT PER DAY $5.00 
4 BARRICADES WllH fLASHERS DAILY EQUIPMl:Nl Pt.R DAY $6.00 
5 CONES/ OELINEATORS OAllV E{IUIPMENI PER DAY $2.00 

6 TRAFFIC SIGNS/ STAND DMVE®IPMENT PER OAV $16.00 
7 3"MUDPUMP 1-'00RLV EQUlPMFNT PE R HOUR $13.00 

8 185 CFM COMPRESSOR, HOSE & JACKHAMMER HOURLY EOJJ!PMFNT PER HOUR $25.00 
9 CU10FF SAW DRY HOURLY EC[UrPMNT PER HOUR $12.00 

10 CONCR[Tt WALK B~HINO SAW 20HP LG HOURl'f EO.lll?MtUf HR HOUR $25.00 
11 CONCRETE WALK BEHIND SAW SMAU. HOVf!l V.F.OUIPMEtH PER HOUR $23.00 
12 BITCH POT (ASPHALTTACK) ftOU!!l Y fQUl;>MENT PER HOUR s2~.oo 

All services will be billed according to Time & Material (T&M) Rates. 

Upon 30 days' advance notice and no more than once each calendar year, Contractor may 
increase rates for new Purchase Orders. If NCPA does not accept the increased rates, NCPA may 
terminate this Agreement. 

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the 
time services are requested. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs 
in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Epidendio Construction, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2022-014 

Page 4 of 4 



l'UBUC AGfNCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction - First Amendment to the Five-
Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for Miscellaneous Maintenance Services; 
Applicable to the following: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA 
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Michael DeBortoli ~ 

Assistant General Manager 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe: 

Department: Geothermal 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members ~ City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC 

Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 147:25 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



March 27, 2025 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 25-41 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Brian Davis dba Northern 
Industrial Construction for general maintenance services, including welding, safety, and fire 
watch services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA 
General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $2,500,000 to $3,000,000, with no 
change to the contract term, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, 
NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

BACKGROUND: 

General maintenance services, including welding, safety, and fire watch services are required 
from time to time for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by 
NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. NCPA entered into a five-year Multi
Task General Services Agreement with Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction, 
effective November 3, 2020, for an amount not to exceed $2,500,000, for use at any facilities 
owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

This agreement has primarily been used by the Geothermal Facility for fire mitigation services 
and is now running low on funds. NCPA desires to enter into a First Amendment to the current 
Multi-Task General Services Agreement to increase the not to exceed amount from $2,500,000 
to $3,000,000 to ensure sufficient funds are available for the remainder of the contract term. This 
agreement will continue to be available for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, 
NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with Gifford's Backhoe Service, Epidendio 
Construction, Inc., and Hudson Mechanical. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total not to exceed amount of the agreement will increase from $2,500,000 
to $3,000,000 over the remainder of the contract term. Purchase orders referencing the terms 
and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and 
procedures. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time 
services are needed, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from qualified providers as required. 
Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will issue 
purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is 
required. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

SR: 147:25 



March 27, 2025 
Page3 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On March 5, 2025, the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above 
for Commission approval. 

On March 10, 2025, the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and 
approved the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

1~\ v~ 
RANDY ~ - HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments (3): 
• Resolution 25-41 
• Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial 

Construction 
• First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Brian Davis dba 

Northern Industrial Construction 

SR: 147:25 



RESOLUTION 25-41 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH BRIAN DAVIS DBA NORTHERN INDUSTRIAL CONSTRUCTION 

(reference Staff Report #147:25) 

WHEREAS, general maintenance services, including welding, safety, and fire watch services are 
required from time to time for operation and maintenance of facilities owned and operated by NCPA, NCPA 
Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, effective November 3, 2020, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement with Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction to provide these services for use at any 
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement has been primarily used by the Geothermal Facility for fire mitigation 
services, and is now running low on funds; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA now desires to enter into a First Amendment to the current Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement to increase the not to exceed amount from $2,500,000 to $3,000,000 to ensure sufficient 
funds are available for the remainder of the contract term; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into said First Amendment to the Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing 
the not to exceed amount from $2,500,000 to $3,000,000, with no change to the contract term, for continued 
use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2025 by the following vote 
on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

JAMES "BO" SHEPPARD 
CHAIR 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARRIE A. POLLO 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



MULTI-TASK 
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGEN.CY ANO 
BRIAN DAVIS OBA NORTHERN INDUSTRIAL CONSTRUCTION 

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement ("Agreement') is made by and between the 
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 ("Agency") and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial 
Construction, a sole proprietorship with its office located at P.O. Box 194, Kelseyville, CA 95451 
("Contractor") (together sometimes referred to as the "Parties") as of Nove,mlX( !} , 2020 
("Effective Date") in Roseville, California. 

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods 
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ('Work"). 

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective 
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) 
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner 
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing 
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to 
provide the Work set forth herein. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to 
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time 
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such 
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from 
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel. 

1.4 Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may 
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority ("SCPPA") or SCPPA members. 

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to 
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a 
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be 
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary 
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that 
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be 
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the 
Agency's issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that 
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to 
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 



not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have 
agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase 
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits. 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT 
TO EXCEED TWO MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($2,500,000) for the Work, 
which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in 
Contractor's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar 
amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely 
a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement. 

2.1 Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month 
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and 
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the 
following information: 

• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
• Work performed; 
• The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work; 
• At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the 

applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the 
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a 
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with 
supporting documentation, to Agency's reasonable satisfaction; 

• At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under 
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and 
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices 
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable 
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice 
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor. 

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this 
Agreement. 

2.4 Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform 
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until 
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096. 

Page 2 of 23 



2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days 
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the 
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for 
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, c 'ontractor is deemed to have 
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency. 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at 
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform 
the Work. 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this 
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of 
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for 
the period covered by this Agreement. 

4.1 

4.2 

Workers' Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall 
maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor 
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident. 

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including 
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of 
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad 
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of 
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per 
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall 
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001 
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive 
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more 
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability 
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement 
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, 
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1 ), 
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The 
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with 
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This 
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and 
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general 
liability insurance. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-096 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Page 3of23 



4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth 
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies 
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable 

4.4 Pollution Insurance Not Applicable 

4.5 All Policies Requirements. 

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior .to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) ,a Certificate of 
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance 
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies 
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the 
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in 
regard to work performed pursuant to th.is Agreement. 

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in .or Cancellation of Coverage. Gontractor shall 
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any 
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to 
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4. 

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums 
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the Contractor. 

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor Performs 
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to 
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and 
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific 
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to 
be performed. 

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which 
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the 
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that 
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the 
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its 
employees, agents and subcontractors. 

4.6 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring 
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work 
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are 
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this 
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the 
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfornla Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page4 of 23 



contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation 
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement. 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and 
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from 
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification 
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages 
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By 
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agre,es to the 
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of comsideration. 

5.2 Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable 
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, 
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs 
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of 
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions 
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by 
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement 
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then 
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency. 

5.3 Transfer of Title. Not Applicable 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

6.1 Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an 
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only 
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant 
to Section 1 ; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by 
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, 
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and 
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or 
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any 
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but 
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to 
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for 
PERS benefits. 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of 
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of 
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 5 of 23 



and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement 
is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing the Work, including 
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor. 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit, 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, 
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to 
Contractor's failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare 
benefits to. its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable 
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable 
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent, 
or subcontractor of Contractor. 

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor 
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf c,f Agency in any 
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or 
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal 
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's 
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional 
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement 
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor 
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written 
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the 
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall 
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall 
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself 
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors 
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with 
respect to the Work and Contractor is ·obligated to ensure that any and all 
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to 
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction. 

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute 
Exhibit C. 

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous 
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at 
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 6 of23 



6.6 Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or 
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types 
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall 
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance. 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

7.1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this 
Agreement. 

7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and 
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the 
work hereunder. 

7 .3 Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that 
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will 
maintain at their sole expense during .the term of this Agreement all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required 
to practice their respective professions. 

7.4 Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and 
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. 

7.5 Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants 
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to 
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5. 

7.6 Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a 
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less 
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work 
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in 
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770 
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general 
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be 
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem 
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which 
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker 
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem 
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request. 
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the 
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the 
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any 
worker or any other third party with regard thereto. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 7 of23 



Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group 
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding 
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on 
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time. · 

Contractor shall provide a certified copy of its payroll, on forms to be determined 
by the Agency and consistent with the Labor Code, within ten (10) days of the 
Contractor's receipt of Agency's written request therefor. Contractor's failure to 
timely comply with this provision may subject the Contractor to penalties 
pursuant to state law. 

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including labor Code Sections 1774 
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty 
to Agency $200.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid 
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial 
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work 
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under 
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular, 
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to 
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount 
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each 
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker 
by the Contractor. 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause 
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor. 

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work 
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, 
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to 
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof). 

8.2 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed 
by both of the Parties. 

8.3 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of 
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 
4, Agency's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 8 of23 



8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, 
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this 
Agreement; 

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by 
Contractor; and/or 

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work 
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would 
have. paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the 
Work. 

Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Contractor's Performance. All reports, data, 
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in 
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property 
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to. deliver those , documents to the 
Agency upon termin~tion of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that, 
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other 
documents. 

9.2 Contractor's Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all 
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or 
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency ynder this: Agreement 
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from 
the date of final payment to the Contractor under .this Agreement. 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records ot documents that this 
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon 
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code 
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to 
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as 
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment 
under this Agreement. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used 
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret 
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, 
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible 
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential, 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 9of23 



proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall 
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party 
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to 
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without 
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was 
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section. 

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this 
Agreement, either party may disclose (the "Disclosing Party") Confidential 
Information to the other party (the "Receiving Party"). The Receiving 
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in 
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any 
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such 
Confidential Information. 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following 
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall 
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any 
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. 
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation, 
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted 
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such 
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for 
such permitted disclosures: 

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know 
in connection with this Agreement. 

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or 
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination 
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or 
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested 
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information, 
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival 
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c) 
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are 
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the 
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the 
Receiving Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and 

Multi-Task General Seivices Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 10 of23 



subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this 
Agreement. 

Section 10. PROJECT SITE. 

10.1 Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant 
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, 
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner 
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if 
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced 
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site an~ to protect all persons 
and property thereon from damage or injury . . Upon completion of the Work at a 
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools, 
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to 
Contractor's Work. 

10.2 Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of 
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, 
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for 
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be 
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost, 
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment, 
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without 
permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an 
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to 
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by 
Agency or, if applicable, .the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, 
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as: an accommodation and neither 
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, 
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall 
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired 
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools, 
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project 
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and 
in good condition. 

10.3 Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely 
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency 
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as 
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work. 

Section 11. WARRANTY. 

11.1 Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law 
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in 
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in 
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfomia Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 11 of23 



including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent 
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

11.2 Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency 
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be 
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required 
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor's failure to perform any 
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the 
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the 
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by 
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or 
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any 
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's 
satisfaction. 

11.3 Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional 
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, 
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material 
used in the Work. 

Section 12. HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, 
and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program 
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall 
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations 
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for 
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4. 

12.1 Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to 
safely perform the Work and provide a copy .to Agency upon request. 

12.2 Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training 
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may 
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified 
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall ·be responsible for 
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and 
material handling equipment. 

12.3 Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware 
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein. 

12.4 Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance 
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall 
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the 
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result 
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is 
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be 
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 12 of 23 



any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section 
12. 

12.5 Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety 
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the 
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and 
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested. 

12.6 Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of 
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall 
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of 
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental 
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site 
safety representative upon request. 

12. 7 Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous 
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work. 

12.8 Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who 
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be 
subject to actions including removal from Work. 

12.9 Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the 
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for 
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including 
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous 
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the 
Contractor. 

12.10 If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA 
member (collectively "Member" solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to 
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency 
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof. 

Section 13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

13.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an 
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set 
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

13.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under 
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested 
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 13 of 23 



13.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision 
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this 
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in 
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the 
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision 
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose 
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of 
location, would place Contractor in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined 
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 
81000 et seq. 

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant 
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code 
Sections 1090 et seq. 

13. 7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel 
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the 
Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the 
representative. 

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to: 

Brian Davis 
Owner 
Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
P.O. Box 194 
Kelseyville, CA 95451 

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a copy to: 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 14 of23 



Jane E. Luckhardt 
General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the 
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page 
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed 
professional responsible for the report/design preparation. 

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached 
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and 
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 
by reference herein. 

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that 
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and 
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following: 

13.11.1 

13.11.2 

13.11.3 

13.11.4 

13.11.5 

13.11.6 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive 
level representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, 
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement 
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, 
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through 
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute. 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen 
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as 
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be 
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the 
mediation. 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition 
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative 
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative 
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be 
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action 
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-096 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Page 15 of23 



13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or. Contractor's Proposal 
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the 
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits 
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order 
and the Contractor's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control. 

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
agreement. 

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent 
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with 
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the 
drafting party shall not apply hereto. 

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. 
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or 
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only "Member") 
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third 
party beneficiary solely as to the. Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to 
such Member. 

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Date \ \ / ~ I "t- 0 

itv:!1o~ARJ:::l, Manager 

f the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

/in l .0uiltkcft 
Jane?. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 

BRIAN DAVIS OBA NORTHERN 
INDUSTRIAL CONSTRUCTION 

Date \0 -"2..0 -1..D 

BRIAN DAVIS, Owner 

GS-VEN-2020-096 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Page 16 of23 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction ("Contractor") shall provide routine, recurring, 
and usual maintenance services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency 
("Agency") at any facilities owned and/or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California 
Public Power Authority ("SCPPA") or SCPPA members, including but not limited to welding, 
safety/fire watch, and labor and materials for miscellaneous maintenance services. 

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project 
under the California Public Contract Code. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 17 of23 



EXHIBITS 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set 
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated 
amount of expenses is as follows: 

Rates on following page. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northam California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 18 of23 



~nr,;t-!"=111 f'< ►-.: , , 1 

N '~,g W~i-y,.:.r ttt:· ., .. , "° ~ 'i(if-.~·- g-,. 
....r.r!I P•,,.s,•• !L;,o,J ..-) 

C.:,.."0ul 
·n,W'1!1t.'°'h 14'n~ ·r~1 tr#:J,C;.~ ti,,. tr•~. •~"' •.!,;dw1<.;-. 1t • • ;t1 

I ""'VJ' Cq.,<11n.,.,_, ,e,,..,..:& 
Sne,l....- hrl'-:1C1")'C•1.1111 --.i 

·~v <t~.ncs1 
\"{,: (I,,,;- u,..
l~ 
I - "Y Cq..i.., '11 O·• db' 
S~ lur i::1• j I~~ Cq;..CJ"f'l!-"""f! 0a••'Z.ft :Jr.;:;: 

e:au;:;;:;,"1:· -.rr 1, w :re ff!;.;L 1, ~ :nn:.· 
'l.1 itoili ~ n ,: 
~-::..~;: n e,-.a-J _ c~,.,, !)c" :.c: T~.,-,. 

I ~ ,20!'! (I r 3!!,::,, ·:<...., If! !:k,,·,i ._,.. T • -"'"' 
.i32 .2100s r""'.:; r ..... 
" :36 2l:IO G 0,, ;J:l.o-l ~ -t.-.•:.in 
11137 Jr.I T 3 I·•,.., ·w"' .,.. o,_......,.. T •~ ~ lt"u ·,. ~.- T "" , 

)B ;2{1f.l • r.,,.-1 r ..15-1 "'"""'' -~•"> ,., T ✓~• 
»,u lftili'Ood · '.i !'if.JI'.! 

,;3 2000 r.,..-,:f r j5".l 
>1..U 0. ;3500 f...i1: d Ou,....,., 

-'IS T<.NU&;, 
•,eg gg. r.,;.; r s so 
• 50 · 0c.iu --,·T.1t.• 
1151 05 _,..c..., z,ud ,· d::.wl'iJI' 
•52 14 Jl!iO•l .:.1.-.J.1 du<bti 
053 t9.451:l•l~~•d 9 , . .,_ ,._ 
-~ 1~ 35Q,;y,.. ...... ,~ .. ,·.-c , 

V'l".'!!:GIJ,; 
..s 41 ~ 7 11,1 ,,· C,.:, 
~ 00- ... . ft 
D48 ~ D<:.,r 
T•--... 

,. 'Uz· ··" "V!E; ,· 
24 GVV'w· T-zt ._,..., 
20' rbt O...:IT~.n_.,, 
a· [}.m i\K,u O,,c T•;, -.~, 
, 4 o...,.. t\J:. e 9.:lll< T·-.av• 
::,7!1'"--.od Qp;,c:.ie.: ~.J'f T •:t.•:r' 

t.. C eQ!~. NiT TE s· 
1.-f'-tr.f '\-f!··:.:i;~f " .. r:.:, J-ilofJ'fl"?t 

r· .. ,u~ •. a Y~; r -•~tlN1',Utrt:·\fit•.:, ... .;.._.... \-,,:tiJ•:._•u t 
~ t ~n ,1-u-~t-M 
J.a·· .... ,,..,. 
P<11tt-.,..,... vt-1.l!ftl.'"M' 

~uua C,:i.<...-r ,, •.4 ,·•.fi 
Ai r !l..r..1 ~ ,~ 
U .:~ • fi.r',{,, 
Ptr · tth;lf~•....i:: ·'"IU-:.i.~ .. .,,-l..fa .. ~n~.;·,1 > l 
T.r:n.~ Tff.,.:tr ~..t:-a,.:-J1 

Or• Dlwv- w•• i:ltic: Onu Tcm T, 
011u i>,,,..,,.w.1rt 0-XI lll<:a'fT<1••T•..c:.1. 
Ca,,J'1,ad -"" • .__.._.. T-•r- -l 
•N<Jilec tb1&1<111S_..-,g,u•H...., 1-'.llt"ll ,.,.,,..,m, .rHtcz,_d,. 
a ~CJ-.- a~wsda.-1 t-n ~._.."'" Puc-0 .. Jll'T'"-. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 

STIU.IIGtrr Tl,_ 
r ..,,., 1c1 ••· u. 
M.,-,T"'-'.,_ 

S 65-~r 
$ 75.'00.4r 
"Z 55..0Q...r-r 
.. '~• '-'"'• n.1 t · 

«1.«lltr 
?S.00."r 
4,.1 '~l:l rr 

$971.!0l!r 
s100.oo.--.
s9t oo·h 
s,02 .oo .. , 
$8800•r 

S Go: ()(lh· 

140 ~0.-T 
S.25.!lO. • 
s oa. 
::~au 
S :,;"~It i 

); ;Q, J ... u 
·f: J -oo~ .. 
'S350u ,. 
S.2500 , 

.. 50 .
S650o;. r 
5 11 

~<l4r 
0 0 r 

S"IOOO r 

';ii:~. , -~ l

'.j 15/JI)•• 
~ is O•'.i 
,;. 18 0\)'"r 
$ 525~:i<Jy 

SlO:l .»ct.t, 

0\11!:l!tTIME 
~ 10 12.f-t~ ~· 
1,4o.,-,T IJ!. 

r- !a.::,1 !l ·r s. 

, ~ .•::,O • ,
l ioJCl .':l(\h• 
,$r.t.:xi~ .. 
OT R.n,,. ,\;:&, ,_ 
$ !\,.~ ,30 
1 ~ 00 •r 
s !'.S •.lO ·~ 

·s, 1 2 oo •• 
S.12(1 0) r 
$1•~t'I.OO • 
'$117.00 • ..
$1•:i' 00 .-

DOU!ILETIIIIE 
o,,.,,.. 12 1 ,,.. ~ 

" ..::i<X¥~,· 
s ,,;iaoo 
,; as ,c;rH, • 
$ !~.<no•,· 
s l'f'l_~.,!1' 
'$ •10..~.1 .. 

fIJb!L' 

'$132•.lO•• 
Sl.QO :'.Xl,., 
'> ' -"> 00 
~ ,4.J 00 
$ 1 21800 

1100 (f,1 ,tz,•$350.00.-,◄ J•Xl ,l '1'<nl"I 

S1!iCO. 
S1!Hlu r 
S1~t'.IO r 
C-.. -.a d·J.'!$ 1 s •v 
C::o.,.._ 1S'!4' 
C<.SI ;t,,JS 15% 
$125.00, .. 9',t 
St .... 9 .nt r ,..._ ., R.at<, s ..., "' .11, 

'iQ,:lO:ll•Y 
05.{l~r 
Q2.(l1Qr ~ t-"' ~ J.'"'-"'StX 

GS-VEN-2020-096 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev.d 7/9/2019 

Page 19 of23 



All services will be billed according to Time & Material (T&M) Rates. 

Prices are subject to change with 30 days' advance written notice provided to NCPA. 

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the 
time services are requested. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related 
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page20 of 23 



EXHIBIT C 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors 

(Name of person signing affidavlt)(Tltle) 

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the Identity 
and employment history of all emplox_ees Qf C,.o \ ye} 

f._,)0y~~ 1w'-2!:>~·,ti\ "->~t -r ~ON 

(Company name) 

for contract work at: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI. CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the 
above-named project.(D.\!?f-l ]'e.~~ 

(Signature of officer or agent) 

21'~ D ' '- -Dated this __ 6_&-...;;;..;::U>;...._ ___ day of C,.tb0'2J"' , 20 '2.0 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Muttl-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020-096 
Northern Callfomla Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 . 

Page 21 of23 



NOT APPLICABLE 

EXHIBIT D 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors 

I,--------------------------- ---

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans 
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart I and has conducted employee background 
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to 
time, 

(Company name) 

for hazardous materials delivery to: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project. 

(Signature of officer or agent) 

Dated this ________ day of ________ , 20 _. 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page22 of23 



EXHIBIT E 

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA] 
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND 

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT 
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJE'CT . 

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that: 

1) It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project 
Maintenance Labor Agreement (" Agreement" solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) 
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the 
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered 
Work, or to perform Covered Work. 

2) In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further 
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a 
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be 
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all 
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto. 

3) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements 
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the 
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to 
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as 
if made by the undersigned. 

4) It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete 
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

5) It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this 
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, 
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work. 

DATED: I 0--z.c, -'l..O Name of Employer Jod:her,.., J U'"Jus.l-," 1 

Q u,,;>IIJ;V 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 23 of23 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND BRIAN DAVIS DBA 

NORTHERN INDUSTRIAL CONSTRUCTION 

This First Amendment ("Amendment") to Multi-Task General Services Agreement is entered into by 
and between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") and Brian Davis dba Northern 
Industrial Construction ("Contractor") (collectively referred to as "the Parties") as of 

-------' 2025. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated 
effective November 3, 2020, (the "Agreement") for Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
to provide routine, recurring, and usual maintenance services including welding, safety/fire watch, 
and labor and materials to perform miscellaneous maintenance services at any facilities owned 
and/or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority ("SCPPA") or 
SCPPA members; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total 
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a NOT TO EXCEED amount of $2,500,000 to a 
NOT TO EXCEED amount of $3,000,000 over the existing term; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend Section 13. 7 Contract Administrator to 
update the Agency's representative; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend Exhibit B entitled "Compensation Schedule 
and Hourly Fees" to reflect updated rates for the 2025 calendar year; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing 
and signed by all the Parties; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, as of the Amendment effective date the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 2-Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows: 

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED THREE MILLION 
dollars ($3,000,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other 
reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full 
amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this 
Agreement. 

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged. 

2. Section 13. 7 Contract Administrator is amended and restated to read in full as follows: 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 
Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 1 of 4 



13. 7 Contract Administrator This Agreement shall be administered by Generation 
Services, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency's 
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative. 

3. Exhibit B - COMPENSATION SCHEDULE is amended and restated to read in full as set 
forth in the Attached Exhibit B. 

4. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as 
specifically set forth herein. 

Date: _____ _ 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 

Date: ------

BRIAN DAVIS OBA NORTHERN INDUSTRIAL 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

BRIAN DAVIS, Owner 

GS-VEN-2020-096 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 

Template 6-8-18 Page 2 of 4 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set 
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated 
amount of expenses is as follows: 

2025 Rates 

-----·-·-- -·------·-· 

I j General Foreman 

lwor~no Leaclman • Fitter, Welcler. MIilwright 

hr Crall Person (Laborer) 

1ca11ou1 
j Heavy Equipment Oper.rtor 

I Spotter for Heavy Equipment 
jConftned Space Rescue Team (3man team required) 

jauality Assurance Supervisor 

j PREVAILING WAGES PER LABOR CODES: EFFECTNE TR.L JUNE 2025 

1 General Foreman 

! Welder/Fitter . 
Laborer 
Heavy Equipment Operator • . 
Spotter for Heavy Equipment Operations 
Confined Space Rescue Team (3 man team required) 

I EQUIPMENT & MATERIALS RATES: 

!vehicle~ 

#30 2000 F-350 While Service Truck 

#36 __ 

. #37 2014 lnlemational Boom Truck (Little Boom Truck) 

)#44 2004_ Dodge .. 

1.#512005 Dodge 

#52 2014 Dodge 

j #53 2019.Dodge 4500 

!#54 2019 Dodge 3500 
i • 

t55 2019 Dodge 3500 

#58 2021 Chevy Colorado 

1#60 2020 Dodge 3500 

j,#64 2018 Dodge 3500 

#67 2021 Dodge 3500 

Ill 

Ill 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 

STRAIGHT TIME 
First 10 hr/day 
Mon-Thurs 

$ 70.001hr 

,$85.00/hr 

$55.00/hr 

4 hrs Minimum 

.$75.00/hr 

·sso.oo/hr 
· $110.00/hr per person 

$85.00/hr 

$100.00/hr 

$103.00/hr 
'$94.00/hr 
· $105.00/hr 
594.001hr 
$128.00/hr per person 

$40.00/hr 

$30.00/hr 

$55.00/hr 

$40.00/hr 
·540:oolhr 

$45.00/hr 

$45.00/hr 

$50.00/hr 

$40.00/hr 

$30.00/lu 

$50.00/hr 

$50.00/hr 

$50.00/hr 

Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 

Template 6-8-18 

OVERTIME 
Up to 1 Ulrs day 
Mon-Thurs 
Fri-SatB hrs 

$ 95.001hr 

$95.00/hr 

$ 75.001hr 

OT Rate Applies 

$90.00/hr 

$55.00/hr 
$120.00/hr 

$95.00/hr 

$115.00/hr 

$123.00/hr 
$106.00hr 
$120.00/hr 
$106.00 hr 
$143.00/hr 

· DOUBLE TIME 
Over 12 hrs/day 

:$ 120.00/hr 

• $ 120. 00/hr 

$ 95.001hr 

$100.00/hr 

$ 100.001hr 

$ 70.00/hr 
$132.00/hr 

$ 120.00/hr 

$135.00/hr 

$143.00/hr 
• $129.00/hr 
$140.00/hr 
$129.00/hr 
$150.00/hr 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 3 of 4 



Welding Rigs 

HEAVY EQUIPMENT RATES: 

#41 2019 Med Case Excavator 

#48D4 Dozer 

#56 2020 580SN Case Back Hoe 

#57 2018 Kubota Skip Loader 

#62 Kubota D Zero Turn 

#65 12K Reach Lift 

#66 2018 Boom Lift 

#68 Hitachaci Mini Excavator 

#69 JD Front toad Tractor 

TRAILER RATES: 

20' Flat Bed Trailer 

8' Dual Axle_ Box Dump Trailer 

14' Dual Axle Box Dump Traner 

Confined Space Rescue Traner 

jMISC EQUIPMENT RATES: 

jcedified Fr~sh Air Equll)ment 

-' Fire Suppr~ssion Eqipment {Water Wagon) 

Auger w/Misc Bits and Core Buckets 

Concrete Saw 

]Jack Hammer 

]Pressure Washer 
j 185 CFM tow behind Compressor 

Rental Equipment 

All Sub-Contractors 

Materials 

HOT SHOT SERVICE RATES 

One Ortverwith One One-Ton Truck 
One D~ er with OneH alH on Truck 

Per Diem {If required Per-Man night local only) 

Per Diem (If required Per-Man night, South Counties only) 

Travel Time (If required) 
*Note: Hot Shots longer than 10hrs straight additional dirver required 
or allow 8 hrs down time with Per Diem 
*Note: hours are to be considered from base back to base 

$50.00/hr 

$65.00/hr 

$50.00/hr 

$60.00/hr 

$35.00Jhr 

$35.00/hr 

$60.00/hr; $600/day, $300/Wk 

$45.00/hr, $450/d!ay 

$55.00l'Hr, $550fday 

. $35_00/hr, $350fday 

$20.00/hf 

$15.00/hr 

$25.00/hr 

$600/day 

$380.00/day 

$150.00/day $350.00/week $1,000.00/month 

$40.00/hr 

$15.00/hr 

$15.00/hr 

$15.00/hr 
$140.00lday 

Cost plus 15% 

Cost plus 15% 

Cost plus 15% 

$100.00/hr 
$95.00/hr 

$125.00/ni.ght 

$145.00/night 

Straight Time Rates will apply 

All services will be billed according to Time & Material (T&M) Rates. 

Upon 30 days' advance notice and no more than once each calendar year, Contractor may 
increase rates for new Purchase Orders. If NCPA does not accept the increased rates, NCPA may 
terminate this Agreement. 

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the 
time services are requested . 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food , and related costs 
in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction 

Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2020-096 

Page 4 of 4 



PU8UC AG FNC Y 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: Brenntag Pacific, Inc. - Five-Year Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of 
Equipment, Materials and Supplies for Chemical Purchases; Applicable to the following: All 
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Michael DeBortoli ~ METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Assistant General Manager NIA 

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe: 

Department: Combustion Turbines 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 148:25 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



March 27, 2025 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 25-42 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi
Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies with Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
for chemical purchases, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the 
NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,500,000 over five years, for use at any 
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. 

BACKGROUND: 

Various chemicals are required from time to time for the operation and maintenance of facilities 
owned and/or operated by NCPA. NCPA has utilized this vendor in the past and has a good 
working relationship with this vendor. NCPA desires to enter into this agreement so established 
terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on future 
purchases. 

NCPA has agreements in place for similar purchases with Hill Brothers Chemical Company, 
Industrial Solution Services, Northstar Chemical, Thatcher Company of California, and Univar 
Solutions. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,500,000 over five years. 
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following 
NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time 
services are needed, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from qualified providers as required. 
Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will issue 
purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is 
required. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On March 5, 2025, the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above 
for Commission approval. 

On March 10, 2025, the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and 
approved the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

SR: 148:25 



March 27, 2025 
Page 3 

Respectfully submitted, 

btow~::1 
General Manager 

Attachments (2): 
• Resolution 25-42 
• Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies with Brenntag 

Pacific, Inc. 

SR: 148:25 



RESOLUTION 25-42 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT, 

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES WITH BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC. 

(reference Staff Report 148:25) 

WHEREAS, various chemicals are required from time to time for the operation and maintenance of 
facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) ; and 

WHEREAS, Brenntag Pacific, Inc. is a provider of these chemicals; and 

WHEREAS, the NCPA Commission has reviewed the Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of 
Equipment, Materials and Supplies with Brenntag Pacific, Inc. to provide such chemicals as needed at any 
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into said Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of 
Equipment, Materials and Supplies, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General 
Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,500,000 over five years, for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by 
NCPA. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2025 by the following vote 
on roll call : 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

JAMES "BO" SHEPPARD 
CHAIR 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARRIE A POLLO 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



MULTI-TASK 
AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF 

EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 
BETWEEN 

THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 
BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC. 

This Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies ("Agreement") is made by 
and between the Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency, with its main offices 
located at 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA, 95678-6420 ("Agency") and Brenntag Pacific, 
Inc., ("Supplier''), whose principal office is located at 10747 Patterson Place, Santa Fe Springs, 
CA 90670 (together sometimes referred to as the "Parties") as of ______ , 2025 (the 
"Effective Date"). 

Section 1. SCOPE. In accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement, Supplier is willing to deliver the equipment, materials and supplies ("Goods") 
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein to the designated Project Site, 
DDP, when requested by the Agency. Supplier shall be responsible at its sole expense for 
delivering the Goods to the designated Project Site and title shall pass as set forth in Section 
8.3. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit 
A, this Agreement shall prevail. 

Section 2. PROJECT SITE. Goods provided under this Agreement by Supplier may include 
Goods delivered directly to the "designated Project Site", as that term is used herein, which shall 
mean the site for delivery. 

Section 3. TERM AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 

3.1 This Agreement shall begin upon Effective Date and shall end on the earlier of 
five (5) years after the Effective Date or when Supplier has provided to Agency 
the Goods described in Exhibit A pursuant to a Purchase Order issued within five 
(5) years of the Effective Date. 

3.2 If at any time either Party files a petition seeking to take the benefit of any 
bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding, or becomes subject to such a proceeding, 
the other Party shall have the right, by written notice, to immediately terminate 
this Agreement. 

3.3 Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice if the other Party 
breaches any terms or conditions of the Agreement and fails to cure such breach 
within thirty (30) days of notice thereof. 

3.4 Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) calendar days prior 
written notice to the other Party. 

Section 4. REQUEST FOR GOODS. At such time that Agency determines to have Supplier 
provide Goods under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The Purchase 
Order shall identify the specific Goods to be provided ("Requested Goods"), may include a not
to-exceed cap or monetary cap on the Requested Goods and all related expenditures 

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies 
Northern California Power Agency and Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/2/2018 

GS-VEN-2024-012 

Page 1 of 11 



authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Goods 
shall be delivered. Supplier shall have seven calendar days from the date of the Agency's 
issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that Supplier chooses not to 
provide the Requested Goods. If Supplier agrees in writing to provide the Requested Goods, 
begins to provide the Requested Goods, or does not respond within the seven day period 
specified, then Supplier will have agreed to provide the Requested Goods on the terms set forth 
in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits. 

Section 5. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Supplier for the Goods an 
amount not to exceed TWO MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND ($2,500,000.00) as total 
compensation under this Agreement, which includes all shipping, taxes (if applicable), 
insurance, delivery charges, and any other fees, costs or charges. This dollar amount is not a 
guarantee that Agency will pay that_full amount to the Supplier, but is merely a limit of potential 
Agency expenditures under this Agreement. 

5.1 Invoices. Supplier shall have (90) days after each delivery of Requested Goods 
to invoice Agency for such Goods. Supplier shall include the number of the 
Purchase Order which authorized the Goods for which Supplier is seeking 
payment. In the event Supplier fails to invoice Agency for all amounts due within 
such ninety (90) day period, Supplier waives its right to collect payment from 
Agency for such amounts. All invoices shall be submitted to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

5.2 Payment. Agency shall pay all invoices within thirty (30) days of the receipt of 
any invoice for Goods satisfactorily received. 

5.3 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Supplier shall have ninety (90) days 
after delivery of the Requested Goods to submit its final invoice for the 
Requested Goods. In the event Supplier fails to submit an invoice to Agency for 
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Supplier is deemed to have 
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Goods from Agency. 

Section 6. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Supplier, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of 
insurance listed below for the period covered by the Agreement. 

6.1 Workers' Compensation. If Supplier employs any person, Supplier shall 
maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Supplier with 
limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident. 

6.2 Automobile Liability. Supplier shall maintain automobile liability insurance for 
the term of this Agreement covering any loss or liability, including the cost of 
defense of any action, arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any 

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies 
Northern California Power Agency and Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/2/2018 

GS-VEN-2024-012 

Page 2 of 11 



vehicle, whether or not owned by the Supplier, on or off Agency premises. The 
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $3,000,000 per each accident, with 
$5,000,000 aggregate. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering 
all motor vehicles and mobile equipment utilized in the transport of the Goods to 
the Agency's Project Site. 

6.3 Commercial General Liability (CGL). Supplier shall maintain commercial 
general liability coverage covering Goods, including product liability, covering any 
loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily injury, 
death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out of 
the operations of Supplier in regard to this Agreement, as well as sudden and 
accidental coverage for pollution, with not less than $3,000,000/$5,000,000 
aggregate for bodily injury and property damage, on an occurrence basis. No 
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

6.4 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above 
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in 
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

6.5 All Policies Requirements. 

6.5.1 Verification of Coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Supplier shall, at the sole option of the Agency, provide 
Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that demonstrates compliance 
with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein and (2) policy 
endorsements to the automobile liability policy and the CGL policy adding 
the Northern California Power Agency as an Additional Insured and . 
declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed pursuant to 
this Agreement and that Agency's insurance is excess and non
contributing. 

6.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Supplier agrees 
to provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of any cancellation 
or reduction in scope or amount of the insurance required under this 
Agreement. 

6.5.3 Waiver of Subrogation. Supplier agrees to waive subrogation which any 
insurer of Supplier may acquire from Supplier by virtue of the payment of 
any loss. Supplier agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be 
necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. 

6.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. Not Applicable. 

6.6 (reserved) 

Section 7. WARRANTY. Supplier warrants that all Goods are free from defects in design 
and workmanship; comply with applicable federal , state and local laws and regulations; are new, 
of good quality and workmanship, and free from defects; meet the specifications of Agency, or if 
none, then the manufacturer's specifications; and are not subject to any liens or encumbrances 
or infringements. Supplier shall provide all Goods in accordance with all applicable engineering, 

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies 
Northern California Power Agency and Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/2/2018 

GS-VEN-2024-012 

Page 3 of 11 



construction and other codes and standards, in accordance with prudent electrical utility 
standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement applicable to such Goods, all 
with the degree of high quality and workmanship expected from purveyors engaged in the 
practice of providing materials and supplies of a similar nature. THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU 
OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTY OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, 
MERCHANTABILITY, OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Moreover, if, during the 
period of (i) twelve (12) months from delivery, or (ii) the remaining shelf life of the Goods, 
whichever occurs first, the Goods provided by Supplier under this Agreement fail to comply with 
the warranties in this Section 7, Supplier shall, upon any reasonable written notice from Agency, 
and provided that Agency has properly handled and stored the Goods in accordance with 
Supplier's and/or manufacturer's instructions, replace or repair the same to meet the above 
warranties. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, claims for defects in Goods that could 
reasonably have been discovered upon delivery shall be deemed to be waived by Agency if not 
made within thirty (30) days of delivery thereof. 

Section 8. INDEMNIFICATION AND SUPPLIER'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

8.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and 
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Supplier from 
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification 
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages 
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By 
execution of this Agreement, Supplier acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

8.2 Scope. Supplier shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to 
the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, 
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs 
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of 
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with claims to the extent 
directly and proximately caused by any negligent acts or omissions by Supplier, 
its officers, officials, agents, and employees, and except to the extent directly and 
proximately caused by any negligent acts or omissions of Agency. 

8.3 Transfer of Title. Supplier shall be deemed to be in exclusive possession and 
control of the Goods and shall be responsible for any damages or injury caused 
thereby, including without limitation any spills, leaks, discharges or releases of 
any Goods, until Agency accepts delivery at its Site. For the purposes of this 
Agreement, such acceptance shall occur in the case of bulk Goods, when the 
Goods pass the flange of the NCPA storage vessel. In the event a spill, leak, 
discharge or release caused by Supplier requires notification to a federal, state or 
local regulatory agency, Supplier shall be responsible for all such notifications. 
Should Supplier be required to remedy or remove Goods as a result of a leak, 
spill, release or discharge of Goods into the environment at Agency's Site or 
elsewhere, Supplier agrees to remediate, remove or cleanup Agency's Site to the 
extent the leak, spill or release was caused by Supplier or resulted from the 
Supplier's transfer operation to Agency storage tanks, to a level sufficient to 

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies 
Northern California Power Agency and Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/2/2018 

GS-VEN-2024-012 

Page 4 of 11 



receive a "No Further Action Required" or "Closure Letter'' from the appropriate 
regulatory authority. 

Section 9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

9.1 Integration: Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached 
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and 
Supplier and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, 
either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference 
herein. 

9.2 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
agreement. 

9.3 Compliance with Applicable Law. Supplier shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, · rules and regulations in regard to this Agreement 
and the Goods supplied hereunder. 

9.4 Construction of Agreement. The Parties agree that the usual construction of 
an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply here. 

9.5 Supplier's Status. Supplier is an independent contractor and not an employee 
or agent of NCPA. 

9.6 Non-assignment. Except to an affiliate after 60 days' notice and, if not covered 
under policies previously provided to Agency, submission of insurance 
documentation satisfying the terms of this Agreement, Supplier may not assign 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of NCPA, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

9. 7 Governing Law. This Agreement and all matters pertaining to it, shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of California and venue shall lie in Placer 
County or in the county to which the Goods are delivered. 

9.8 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an 
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set 
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

9.9 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision 
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this 
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in 
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the 
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

9.10 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision 
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies 
Northern California Power Agency and Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/2/2018 

GS-VEN-2024-012 

Page 5 of 11 



9.11 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

9.12 Conflict of Interest. Supplier may serve other clients, but none whose activities 
within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, 
would place Supplier in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined in the 
Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq. 

Supplier shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to 
this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code 
Sections 1090 et seq. 

9.13 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by the Assistant 
General Manager, Generation Services, or his/her designee, who shall act as the 
Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the 
representative. 

9.14 Notices. Any written notice to Supplier shall be sent to: 

Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Attention: President 
107 4 7 Patterson Place 
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 

With copy to: 

Brenntag North America, Inc. 
Attention: General Counsel 
5083 Pottsville Pike 
Reading, PA 19605 
Email : bna_generalcounsel@brenntag.com 

Any written notice to Agency shall, be sent to: 

Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a copy to: 

Jane E. Luckhardt 
General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies 
Northern California Power Agency and Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/2/2018 

GS-VEN-2024-012 

Page 6 of 11 



9.15 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that 
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Supplier 
agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following: 

9.15.1 

9.15.2 

9.15.3 

9.15.4 

9.15.5 

9.15.6 

9.15.7 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive 
level representative to negotiate any dispute. 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, 
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen ( 15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement 
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, 
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through 
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute. 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen 
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as 
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be 
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the 
mediation. 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

If mediation fails to resolve the conflict within thirty (30) days of 
completion of the mediation, then either Party can avail itself of 
any legal or equitable relief available to it. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall preclude either Party from seeking injunctive or 
equitable relief in accordance with applicable law or seeking 
redress from the courts for any dispute involving a third party. 

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition 
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative 
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative 
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be 
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action 
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq. 

9.16 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, and Supplier's Proposal (if any), the 
Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto 
and a Purchase Order or the Supplier's Proposal, the Exhibits shall control. In 
the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order and the 
Supplier's Proposal (if any), the Purchase Order shall control. 

9.17 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the 
Agency, Supplier shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute 
Exhibit B. 

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies 
Northern California Power Agency and Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/2/2018 

GS-VEN-2024-012 

Page 7 of 11 



9.18 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous 
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Supplier shall, at the 
same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C. 

9.19 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. 

9.20 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed 
by both of the Parties. 

SECTION 10: LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE 
FOR ANY EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT, MULTIPLE, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR LOST PROFITS OR BUSINESS, WHETHER IN 
CONTRACT, TORT, OR STRICT LIABILITY, FOR INDEMNITY, DEFENSE, OR OTHERWISE, 
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY 
OF SUCH DAMAGES. Excepting the indemnity obligations in Section 8.2 for claims brought 
against the Agency by a third party, and losses caused by a party's gross negligence or willful 
misconduct, the liability of either party, and the other party's sole and exclusive remedy for 
damages of any kind whatsoever under this Agreement shall not be greater than the insurance 
limits set forth in this Agreement. 

SECTION 11: FORCE MAJEURE. Neither Party shall be liable in damages or otherwise, for 
delay or impairment or failure of performance ( other than a failure to pay any monies due) by 
reason of causes beyond that Party's reasonable control. If any force majeure event continues 
for more than thirty (30) days, then either Party may terminate this Agreement upon written 
notice to the other Party. 

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Date: 

BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC. 

Date: ---------- -------------

RANDY S. HOWARD, 
General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

W. THOMAS CRAIN, JR. 
Regional President 

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies 
Northern California Power Agency and Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/2/2018 

GS-VEN-2024-012 

Page 8 of 11 



EXHIBIT A 

PURCHASE LIST 

As requested by the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency"), Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
("Supplier'') shall provide supplies ("Goods") including, but not limited to the following: 

Chemical Price 
Anhydrous Ammonia (R Grade) No Bid 

Aqueous Ammonia 19% No Bid 
Hydrated Lime 90% $0.4125/lb 

Magnesium Oxide ~90% No Bid 
Ferric Chloride 38-42% $0.45/lb 

Sodium Bisulfite 38-40% No Bid 
Sodium Hydroxide 15% (Caustic Soda) $0.43/lb 
Sodium Hypochlorite 12.5% (Bleach) $2.395/GL 

Sulfuric Acid 93% $0.13/lb 
Other Chemicals (if needed) To be quoted when 

requested by Aoencv 

All delivery vehicles shall be labeled and constructed to meet all requirements of the California 
State Highway Patrol, the Interstate Commerce Commission and any and all jurisdictions having 
control over said delivery truck operations. 

Agency acknowledges that Supplier's chemical pricing may be subject to change. Agency shall 
compensate the Supplier in accordance with such chemical price revisions, provided that (1) 
Supplier shall provide Agency with written notice (email or letter) 15-days in advance. All 
chemical orders placed during the 15-day notice period will be charged at the non-revised rate. 
Chemical price revisions may result in the Supplier losing or gaining priority status for chemical 
orders, (2) regardless of such chemical price revisions, total compensation for all tasks, 
including all chemicals delivered under this Agreement, shall not exceed the amount set forth in 
Section 5 (Compensation) of this Agreement. 

As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Supplier for travel, food and related costs in 
excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies 
Northern California Power Agency and Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/2/2018 

GS-VEN-2024-012 

Page 9 of 11 



EXHIBIT B 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Suppliers 

I, -----------------------------

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity 
and employment history of all employees of 

Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 

(Company name) 

for contract work at: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the 
above-named project. 

(Signature of officer or agent) 

Dated this ________ day of _____ , 20 __ . 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies 
Northern California Power Agency and Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/2/2018 

GS-VEN-2024-012 

Page 10 of 11 



EXHIBIT C 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors 

I, -------------------------------

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans 
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart I and has conducted employee background 
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to 
time, 

Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 

(Company name) 

for hazardous materials delivery to: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project. 

(Signature of officer or agent) 

Dated this ________ day of ________ , 20 _. 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies 
Northern California Power Agency and Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/2/2018 

GS-VEN-2024-012 

Page 11 of 11 



PU8llC AG[NC'I' 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: March 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: Amendment to Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement for Renewable Power 
Purchase Agreement with Grace Orchard Energy Center, LLC 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Tony Zimme?2-

Assistant General Manager 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

Division: Power Management If other, please describe: 

Department: Power Management 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members □ City of Lodi IZI City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc IZI City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs IZI City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley IZI City of Roseville □ Truckee DonnerPUD 

City of Healdsburg IZI City of Santa Clara IZI Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 149:25 

IZI 

IZI 

□ 

IZI 

□ 

□ 



March 27, 2025 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Resolution 25-43 approving an Amendment to Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement 
for Renewable Power Purchase Agreement with Grace Orchard Energy Center, LLC, to add 
Table 3 to Exhibit A to confirm the Final Project Participation Percentages for each Participant in 
the Project, including any non-substantive modifications to the Amendment to Exhibit A of the 
Third Phase Agreement for Renewable Power Purchase Agreement with Grace Orchard Energy 
Center, LLC approved by the NCPA General Counsel. 

BACKGROUND: 

Pursuant to Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement for Renewable Power Purchase Agreement 
with Grace Orchard Energy Center, LLC (the "Third Phase Agreement") an Eligible Member 
may exercise a right to accept a transfer of a portion of the Initial Project Participation 
Percentages of the Initial Participants (the 'Transfer Right"), no later than 180 days after the 
Effective Date (the "Transfer Completion Deadline"). Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement 
also states that NCPA shall prepare Table 3 after the Transfer Completion Deadline to reflect 
the Final Project Participation Percentages of each Participant in the Project, and such Table 3 
will be added to Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement as an amendment to the Third Phase 
Agreement once adopted by the Commission. 

The Transfer Completion Deadline has now occurred, and NCPA has developed the following 
Table 3 to reflect the Final Project Participation Percentages of each Participant in the Project: 

Table3 

Final Project Participation Percentages 

Project Project 

Participation Participation 

Percentage Share 

Participant (%) (MW) 
City of Biggs 0.80% 0.40 

City of Gridley 2.00% 1.00 

City of Healdsburg 5.20% 2.60 

City of Lodi 30.00% 15.00 

City of Lompoc 10.00% 5.00 

Port of Oakland 16.00% 8.00 

City of Santa Clara 20.00% 10.00 

City of Shasta Lake 10.00% 5.00 

City of Ukiah 6.00% 3.00 

Total 100.00% so.oo 

Upon Commission approval of Resolution 25-43, NCPA will distribute the Amended Exhibit A of 
the Third Phase Agreement to each of the Participants to document the Final Project 
Participation Percentages. 

A copy of the Amended Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement has been attached to this staff 
report for your reference. 

SR: 149:25 



March 27, 2025 
Page 3 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

NCPA's costs associated with development of the Amendment to Exhibit A of the Third Phase 
Agreement will be allocated to Participants in accordance with the approved cost allocation 
methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On March 5, 2025 the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above 
for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~/'6 \~ 
RANDY S. HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments (2): 
- Resolution 25-43 
- Amended Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement 

SR: 149:25 



RESOLUTION 25-43 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING AMENDMENT TO EXHIBIT A OF THE THIRD PHASE AGREEMENT FOR 
RENEWABLE POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH GRACE ORCHARD ENERGY 

CENTER, LLC 

(reference Staff Report #149:25) 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement for Renewable Power Purchase 
Agreement with Grace Orchard Energy Center, LLC (the "Third Phase Agreement") an Eligible Member may 
exercise a right to accept a transfer of a portion of the Initial Project Participation Percentages of the Initial 
Participants (the "Transfer Right"), no later than 180 days after the Effective Date (the "Transfer Completion 
Deadline"); and 

WHEREAS, Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement also states that NCPA shall prepare Table 3 after 
the Transfer Completion Deadline to reflect the Final Project Participation Percentages of each Participant in 
the Project, and such Table 3 will be added to Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement as an amendment to 
the Third Phase Agreement once adopted by the Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the Transfer Completion Deadline has now occurred, and NCPA has developed Table 3 to 
reflect the Final Project Participation Percentages of each Participant in the Project, and Table 3 shown in 
Commission Staff Report #149:25; and 

WHEREAS, upon Commission approval of the Resolution 25-43, NCPA will distribute the Amended 
Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement to each of the Participants to document the Final Project Participation 
Percentages; and. 

WHEREAS, NCPA's costs associated with development of the Amendment to Exhibit A of the Third 
Phase Agreement will be allocated to Participants in accordance with the approved cost allocation 
methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
adopts Resolution 25-43 approving an Amendment to Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement for Renewable 
Power Purchase Agreement with Grace Orchard Energy Center, LLC, to add Table 3 to Exhibit A to confirm 
the Final Project Participation Percentages for each Participant in the Project, including any non-substantive 
modifications to the Amendment to Exhibit A of the Third Phase Agreement for Renewable Power Purchase 
Agreement with Grace Orchard Energy Center, LLC approved by the NCPA General Counsel. 



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2025 by the following vote 
on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

JAMES "BO" SHEPPARD 
CHAIR 

NCPA Resolution 25-43 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: 

-2-

CARRIE A. POLLO 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



EXHIBIT A 

PROJECT PARTICIPATION PERCENTAGES 

1. On the Effective Date of the Agreement the initial Participants ("Initial Participants") 

who are signatory to this Agreement, and their respective initial Project Participation 

Percentage share of the Project is set forth in Table 1 of this Exhibit A ("Initial Project 

Participation Percentages"). The process set forth below is not subject to the requirements 

of Section 9 of this Agreement, except as set forth below. 

Table 1 

Initial Project Participation Percentages 

Project Project 

Participation Participation 

Percentage Share 

Participant (%) (MW) 
City of Healdsburg 5.20% 2.60 

City of Lodi 30.00% 15.00 
City of Lompoc 10.00% 5.00 
Port of Oakland 16.00% 8.00 

City of Santa Clara 32.80% 16.40 
City of Ukiah 6.00% 3.00 

Total 100.00% 50.00 

2. Thereafter, a Member listed in Table 2 of this Exhibit A and who is not an Initial 

Participant ("Eligible Member") may exercise a right to accept a transfer of a portion of the 

Initial Project Participation Percentages of the Initial Participants in an amount no greater 

than the amount set forth in Table 2 of this Exhibit A ("Transfer Right"), no later than 180 

day after the Effective Date (the "Transfer Completion Deadline"), unless an Initial 

Participants otherwise agrees in writing to extend the Transfer Completion Deadline. Only 

1 
THIRD PHASE AGREEMENT FOR GRACE SOLAR PROJECT 



the City of Santa Clara may transfer their Initial Project Participation Percentages as long 

as their project share does not fall below the amounts set forth in Table 2 of this Exhibit A. 

3. In order for an Eligible Member to exercise their Transfer Rights, that Member shall do 

the following no later than the Transfer Completion Deadline: (i) notify NCP A and Santa 

Clara of its intention to exercise their right to accept their Table 2 share, and (ii) execute 

this Agreement. For avoidance of doubt, an Eligible Member must exercise their Transfer 

Right for their full Table 2 share; any exercise of any lesser portion shall be invalid. 

4. For purposes of this Exhibit A only, a Member who becomes a Participant pursuant to 

Section 3 of this Exhibit A shall be referred to as a "Table 2 Participant." Notwithstanding 

the foregoing, the Transfer Completion Deadline applies only to the intended assumption 

of the Project Participation Percentage described in Table 2 of this Exhibit A and shall not 

limit or reduce a Participant's rights set forth in Section 9 of this Agreement. Upon written 

notice and execution of this Agreement as set forth above in Section 3 of Exhibit A, the 

Table 2 Participant will assume all rights and obligations set forth in this Agreement for 

the portion of the Project Participation Percentage share of the Project as set forth in Table 

2 of this Exhibit A. 

5. NCP A shall prepare Table 3 after the Transfer Completion Deadline to reflect the Final 

Project Participation Percentages of each Participant, and such Table 3 will be added to 

this Exhibit A as an amendment to this Agreement once adopted by the Commission. In 

the event an intended Table 2 Participant does not become a Table 2 Participant by the 

Transfer Completion Deadline, the City of Santa Clara shall retain the Project Participation 



6. Percentage of the intended Table 2 Participant as described in Table 2 of this Exhibit A, 

and such will be reflected in Table 3. 

Table2 

Draft Final Project Participation Percentages 

Project Project 

Participation Participation 

Percentage Share 

Participant (%) {MW) 
City of Biggs 0.80% 0.40 

City of Gridley 2.00% 1.00 
City of Healdsburg 5.20% 2.60 

City of Lodi 30.00% 15.00 
City of Lompoc 10.00% 5.00 
Port of Oakland 16.00% 8.00 

Plumas-Sierra REC 2.00% 1.00 
City of Santa Clara 18.00% 9.00 
City of Shasta Lake 10.00% 5.00 

City of Ukiah 6.00% 3.00 

Total 100.00% 50.00 

Pursuant to Section 5 of Exhibit B of the PPA, if the Facility Installed Capacity is less than 

one hundred percent (100%) of the Guaranteed Capacity, Seller shall have one hundred 

fifty (150) days after the Commercial Operation Date to install additional capacity such 

that the Installed Capacity is equal to (but not greater than) the Guaranteed Capacity. If 

Seller fails to construct the Guaranteed Capacity by such date, Seller shall pay NCP A 

Capacity Damages, and each MW (or portion thereof) that the Guaranteed Capacity 

exceeds the Installed Capacity, the Project Participation Share for the Participants shall be 

automatically adjusted and reduced, on a pro rata basis, to equal to actual amount of 

Facility Installed Capacity. 



The Project Participation Percentages of each Participant are shown in Table 3 

below: 

Table 3 

Final Project Participation Percentages 

Project Project 

Participation Participation 

Percentage Share 

Participant (%) (MW) 
City of Biggs 0.80% 0.40 

City of Gridley 2.00% 1.00 

City of Healdsburg 5.20% 2.60 

City of Lodi 30.00% 15.00 

City of Lompoc 10.00% 5.00 

Port of Oakland 16.00% 8.00 

City of Santa Clara 20.00% 10.00 

City of Shasta Lake 10.00% 5.00 

City of Ukiah 6.00% 3.00 

Total 100.00% 50.00 



"CPA 
RTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Monty Hanks 

Commission Meeting 

March 2026 

~CPA Proposed Bud et 
Fiscal Year 2026 g 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Generation Resources 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Power Supply 

Gel::RA TION RESOlRCES 
NCPA Plants 

Hydroelectric 
Geothermal 
Coot>ustion Turbine No. 1 
Coot>ustion Turbine No. 2 (SllG) 
Lodi Energy Center 

Subtotal 

Member Resources - Energy 
Member Resources - Natural Gas 
Western Resource 
NCPA Contracts & Market Power Purchases 
Net Load Costs 
Net GHG Obligations 
Preliminary Surveys and Investigations 

Subtotal 
TOTAL Gel:RA llONRESOlRCES 

$ 

2025 

3,562,386 
(5,468,305) 
4,573,277 
4,684,366 

26,852,224 
34,203,948 

(8,852,489) 
(767,540) 

(28,539,814) 
, ,.,.. ---
' -,-oJ '.,·c..rv--+J 
545, 184,045 

-- -~ .JJi, 

L , i v~ , ~ . 
~ 

498,840,779 
533.044,727 

A SCAL YE'AREN'.)8)J~30 
Proposed 

2026 lnd{Dect 

$ 15,711,168 $ 12,1 48,782 
4,708,191 10,1 76,496 
4,704,501 131 ,224 
6,897,701 2,213,335 

30,475,664 3,623,440 
62,497,225 28,293,277 

(43,075,814) (34,223,325) 
520,319 1,287,859 

( 13.,998,816) 14,540,998 
1:.!,141,~IV 

..... AIM 
LL, ._., 

404,999,952 (140,184,09~ 
"I r"'}.:! ,.,,..,,.. \,.JU t,U45) , 

- -
362,120,577 (136,7201202) 
424,617,802 (108,426,925) 

% 
Change 

341.0% 
-186.1% 

2.9% 
47.2% 
13.5% 
82.7% 

386.6% 
-167.8% 

50.9% 
218.0% 

D -2s.1% 
-27.6% 
100.0% 
-27.4% 
-20.3% 



~CPA N O RT H E R N CAL I F O R N I A POW E R AG E N CY 

Power Supply 

Gross Load (MWh) Avg. MWh Cost 

FV25 FV26 

Alameda 364,097 364,787 0.2% 

BART 366,007 366,005 0.0% 

Biggs 14,171 15,165 7.0% 

Gridley 33,153 33,300 0.4% 

Healdsburg 77,430 78,853 1.8% 

Lodi 463,549 452,581 -2.4% 

Lompoc 134,908 134,794 -0.1% 

Palo Alto 835,697 893,051 6.9% 

Plumas 150,394 150,949 0.4% 

Port 114,621 116,734 1.8% 

SVP 4,618,877 5,012,152 8.5% 

Ukiah 110,031 108,114 -1.7% 

Total 7,282,935 7,726,485 6.1% 



~CPA NORTH E RN CAL I F O RN I A POWE R AG E NC Y 

Power Supply 

Gross Load (MWh) Avg. MWh Cost 

FV25 FV26 FV25 FV26 
Alameda 364,097 364,787 0.2% Alameda $76 $53 

··--
BART 366,007 366,005 0.0% BART 75 51 

Biggs 14,171 15,165 7.0% Biggs 83 53 

Gridley 33,153 33,300 0.4% Gridley 82 57 

Healdsburg 77,430 78,853 1.8% Healdsburg 79 56 

Lodi 463,549 452,581 -2.4% Lodi 79 54 

Lompoc 134,908 134,794 -0.1% Lo_mpoc 76 54 

Palo Alto 835,697 893,051 6.9% Palo Alto 76 52 

Plumas 150,394 150,949 0.4% Plumas 79 55 

Port 114,621 116,734 1.8% Port 74 54 

SVP 4,618,877 5,012,152 8.5% SVP 74 52 

Ukiah 110,031 108,114 -1.7% Ukiab ,~ §4 

C :> Total 7,282,935 7,726,485 6.1% Ave_~a~e $75 $52 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Power Supply 

Gross Load Costs 

FV25 FV26 Variance 

Alameda $27,505,748 $19,499,807 ($8,005,941) 

BART 27,391,215 18,714,934 (8,676,281) 

Biggs 1,169,930 811,232 (358,698) 

Gridley 2,703,086 1,908,629 (794,457) 

Healdsburg 6,086,399 4,431,380 (1,655,019) 

Lodi 36,512,201 24,510,894 (12,001,307) 

Lompoc 10,260,960 7,218,733 (3,042,227) - . ,, -

Palo Alto 63,332,834 46,754,041 (16,578,793) 

Plumas 11,806,243 8,358,152 (3,448,091) 
. . . 

Port 8,520,567 6,257,440 (2,263,127) 
.. . ·~-... 

SVP 341,269,476 260, 726, 148 (80,543,328) 

Ukiah 8,625,388 5,808,562 (2,816,826) 
, ., . . _ ~-- ---, , ... -· ". . ~,-,-_., _., . , 

Total $545,184,047 $404,999,952 



I 

~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Transmission 

Approved FY25 Proposed FY26 Variance 

$164,702,821 $175,467,819 $10,764,998 

• Wheeling Access Charges $12m 

• Higher expected "net" load ("'6.1% increase) 

• High Voltage 
- $13.53 to $14.08 ("'4.1% increase) 

• Low Voltage 
- $18.47 to $19.25 ("'4.2% increase) 



I 

,,,AiGCPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

NCPA Plants 

GEM:RA TION RESOlRCES 
tcPA .Plants 

Hydroelectric 
Geothermal 
Corrt>ustion Turbine No. 1 
Cormustion Turbine No. 2 (SllG) 
Lodi Energy ~nter 

Subtotal 

Member Resources - Energy 
Member Resources - Natural Gas 
Western Resource 
NCPA Contracts & Market Power Purchases 
Net Load Costs 
Net GHG Obligations 
Preliminary Surveys and Investigations 

Subtotal 
TOTAL GeERA TIONRESOlRCES 

2025 

3,562,386 
(5,468,305) 
4,573,277 
4,684,366 

26,852,224 
34,203,948 

(8,852,4 
(767,540) 

(28,539,814) 
(10,291 ,434) 
545,184,045 

2,108.011 

498,840,779 
533,044,727 

ASCAL YFARENJB>Jll'E30 

$ 

Proposed 
2026 

15,711,168 
4,708,191 
4,704,501 
6,897,701 

30,475,664 
62,497,225 

(43,075,814) 
520,319 

(13,998,816) 
12,147,970 

404,999,952 
1,526,966 

362,120,577 
424,617,80.2 

lnd(Dec) 

12,148.782 
10,1 76,496 

131 ,224 
2,213,335 
3,623,440 

28,293,277 

(34,223,325) 
1,287,859 

14,540,998 
22,439,404 

(140.1 84,093) 
(581,045) 

(136,720,202) 
(108,426,925) 

% 
Change 

341.0% 
-186.1% 

2.9% 
47.2% 
13.5% 
82.7% 

386.6% 
-167.8% 

50.9% 
218.0% 
-25.7% 
-27.6% 
10().0% 
-27.4% 
-20.3% 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Hydro 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

HYDRO - FY26 Proposed Budget (version 2) 

FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 
Approved Approved Proposed Increase/ % 

Budget Budget Budget (Decrease) Change 

O&M and Other Costs 45,426,495 30,177,037 30,360,666 183,629 0.61% 

Labor 5,778,810 6,121,531 6,758,057 636,526 10.40% 

Projects & Reserve Funding 6,444,800 22,348,550 21,152,000 (1,196,550) -5.35% 

Annual Budget Cost 57,650,105 58,647,118 58,270,723 (376,395) -0.64% 

Less: Revenues 52,621,502 55,084,732 42,559,555 (12,525,177) -22.74% 

Est. Avg Market Price $116 $96 $82 -15.33% 

Net Cost to Participant~ 5,028,603 3,562,386 15,711,168 12,148,782 

Net Annual Generation (MWh 412,142 520,016 482,733 (37,283) -7.17% 
Est. Net Cost per MWh $12 $7 $33 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

HYDRO - FY26 Proposed Budget- Projects 
O & M Projects $8,275,000 

CV Stormwater Mitigation 

CV Runner Analysis and Repairs 

Collierville Transformer Maintenance 

NSM Spillway Maintenance 

2409 Part 12 Study 

CV Piping 

CV Turbine Seal and Locking Rings 

Murphys Oil Containment Storage 

CV Turbine Coupling Bolts 

Sediment Sluicing and Removal Plan 

NSM Powerhouse Leak Detection System 

Utica Tunnel and Gate Evaluation 

Grounding Studies 

Arc Flash Analysis 

Beaver Creek Dam Flow Monitoring System 

CV Needle Seal Housing 

Environmental Studies 

Network Switches 

Hydraulic Lines Maintenance 

230KV Access Gate 

CV TSOV Study 

Hydro Network Infrastructure Improvement 

690,000 

500,000 

250,000 

150,000 

150,000 

150,000 
-·---~----

150,000 

130,000 

125,000 

125,000 

100,000 

90,000 

75,000 

50,000 

50,000 

50,000 

35,000 

30,000 

30,000 



~CPA N O RT H E R N CAL I F O R N I A P OW E R AG E N CY 

HYDRO-FY26 Proposed Budget- Projects Cont'd 

General & Plant 
Vehicle Replacement 

Microwave Radio Replacement 

Capital Development Reserve 
Reserve Funding 

Use of Capital Development Reserve Collections 
McKays Reservoir & Dam Betterment 

Compliance Consulting 

Estimated FY26 Capital Dev Reserve Ending Balance 

$240,000 
130,000 

110,000 

$12,637,000 
12,637,000 

($2 ,012,000) 
(1,000,000) 

(1,012,000) 

$63,041,487 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

HYDRO - McKays Reservoir 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

HYDRO - McKays Reservoir Cleanout 

• Background 

• Sediment buildup requiring removal 

• Mandatory for environmental compliance and dam safety 

• Actions to Date 
• Basis of design and Environmental Compliance Plan completed 

• Developed an Emergency Response Plan 

• Soil relocation site remains a critical path/landowner negotiations 

• Possible DOE grant funding of $3.6m 

Schedule 

• CEQA/NEPA/Consultations/Permits through 2026 

• Design and FERC review through end of 2026 

• Public works bidding 2027 

• Construction 2027 - 2029 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

HYDRO - Capital Development Reserve Forecast 

RESERVE FUNDING REQUIREMENTS 
Bea-..er Creek Dredging 

McKays Resen.oir & Dam Betterment 

FERG Relicensing 

Unit 1 Generator Rewind 

Total Reser-..e Funding Requirements 

RESERVE DISBURSEMENTS 
Bea-..er Creek Dredging 

McKay's Resen.oir & Dam Betterment (Clean Out) 

FERG Relicensing 

Generator Rewind 

Total Reser-..e Disbursements 

Est. Capital De-..elopment Reser-..e Ending Balance 

Proposed 
FY 2026 

$ 125,000 

11,500,000 

1,012,000 

12,637,000 

(2,012,000) 

$ 63,041,487 

Forecast Forecast 
FY2027 FY2028 

$ 125,000 $ 125,000 $ 

1,467,000 28,420,000 

1,592,000 28,545,000 

(550,000) 
. 

(5,200,000) (19,500,000) 

(1,467,000) (28,420,000) 

(6,667,000) (47,920,000) 

$ 57,966,487 $ 38,591,487 $ 

Forecast 
FY2029 

125,000 

13,210,000 

13,335,000 

(32,710,000) 

19,216,487 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Geo 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

GEO - FY26 Proposed Budget (version· 2) 

FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 

Approved Approved Proposed Increase I % 

Budget Budget Budget (Decrease) Change 

O&M and Other Costs 24,316,602 23,276,538 22,369,679 (906,859} -3.90% 

Labor 11,659,859 12,584,129 13,917,109 1,332,980 10.59% 

Projects 11,032,395 11,182,452 8,369,088 (2,813,364) -25.16% 

Annual Budget Cost 47,008,856 47,043,119 44,655,876 (2,387,243} -5.07% 

Less: Revenues 66,645,540 52,511,424 39,888,860 (12,622,564) -24.04% 

Est. Avg Market Price $90 $75 $54 -28.93% 

Net Cost to Participants (19,636,684) (5,468,305) 4,767,016 10,235,321 

Net Annual Generation (MWh) 732,872 682,614 725,091 42,477 6.22% 

Est. Net Cost per MWh ($27) ($8) $7 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

GEO - FY26 Proposed Budget - Projects 

O & M Projects 

Plant #1 Cooling Towers 

Condensate Tank Replacement 

Plant 2 HVAC 

Plant 1- 480V MCC Replacement 

Plant 1 Stretford Maintenance 

Bear Canyon Pump Stations 

$2,450,000 
1,500,000 

300,000 

200,000 

200,000 

150,000 

100,000 

Air Cooled Chiller Unit 

J 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

GEO - FY26 Proposed Budget - Projects Cont'd 
Capltal Projects 

Gas Vehicle and EV Charging Build Out 

Maintenance Reserve 
Reserve Funding 

Use of Maintenance Reserve Collections 
Well Replacement/ Workover 

Balance of Plant Work 

Contingent Maintenance 

Estimated FY26 Geo Maintenance Reserve Ending Balance 

Exampre of EV Charging Stations 

$400,000 
400,000 

$5,51.9,088 
5,51.9,088 

($4,040,000) 
(3,000,000) 

(51.5,000) 
'"" ". --- ~ 

(525,000) 

$5,51.6,61.3 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

GEO M aintenance Reserve - Forecast 

Funding/(Expenditures) 

Reserve Activity 
Unit One Overhaul 
Unit Two Overhaul 
Unit Four Overhaul 
Well Replacement /Workover 
Balance of Plant Work 

. . , 

Plant 1 & 2 Emergency Eyewash Stations 
Plant 2 Cooling Tower Basin Clean Out 
Contingent maintenance 

Projected Requirements 

Annual Funding Req 

Est. Balance 

Minimum Emergency Contingency Balance 

Beginning 
. . 

Balance 

$ 2,250,000 

Proposed 

2026 

(3,000,000f 
(515,000) 
. _.. ·• ---·· ~·-

(525,000) 

(4,040,000) 

5,519,088 

Forecast 

2027 

(3,000,000f 
(530,450) 

.. ' ~ . ~-···" . - , 

(538,125) 

(4,068,575) 

5,712,256 

7,160,294 

2,250,000 

Forecast 

2028 

(6,600.oaor 

(546,364) 

(551,578) 

(7,697,942) 

5,912,185 

5,374,537 

2,250,000 

Forecast 
2029 

(6,s31,000T 

(562,754) 

(565,368) 

6,119,111 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

CT1 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

CT1 - FY26 Proposed Budget (version 2) 

FV2024 FV2025 FV2026 
Approved Approved Proposed Increase I % 

Budget Budget Budget (Decrease) Change 

O&M and Other Costs 4,588,389 2,899,069 3,737,744 838,675 28.93% 

Labor 1,298,580 1,390,011 1,534,774 144,763 10.41% 

Projects 1,045,000 1,162, 395 1,444,070 281,675 24.23% 

Annual Budget Cost 6,931,969 5,451,475 6,716,588 1,265,113 23.21% 

Less: Revenues 4,607,168 878,198 2,012,087 1,133,889 129.12% 

Est. Avg Market Price $306 $204 $87 

Net Cost to Participants 2,324,801 4,573,277 4,704,501 131,224 5.64% 

Net Annual Generation (MWh) 14,872 4,038 9,455 5,417 134.15% 

Est. Net Cost per MWh $156 $1,133 $498 



~CPA N O RT H E R N CAL I F O R N I A POW E R AG E N CY 

CT1- FY26 Proposed Budget - Projects 

O & M Projects 
Gas Compressor Heat Exchanger Replacements 

Diesel Tanks Berm Preservation 

Load and Gearbox Accessory Bearings 

HVAC Replacements 

Gas Plants Shared Projects 

Capital Projects 
Vehicles 

Maintenance Reserve 
Reserve Funding 

Use of Maintenance Reserve Collections 
Balance of Plant 

Estimated FY26 CT1 Maintenance Reserve Ending Balance 

$59 8,620 
225,000 

200,000 

120,000 

52,000 

1,620 

$80,000 
80,000 

$765,450 
765,450 

($400,867) 
(400,867) 

$4,!1.06,424 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

CT2 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

CT2 - FY26 Prop osed Budget (version 2) 

FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 
Approved Approved Proposed Increase I % 

Budget Budget Budget (Decrease) Change 

O&M and Other Costs 7,899,015 5,598,556 1,215,030 (2,300,459) -29.12% 

Labor 928,662 1,005,070 1,107,702 76,408 8.23% 

Projects 389,539 92,006 16,969 (297,533) -76.38% 

Annual Budget Cost 9,217,216 6,695,632 2,339,701 (2,521,584) -27.36% 

Less: Revenues 3,991,702 2,011,266 42,000 (1,980,436) -49.61% 

Est. Avg Market Price $293 $174 $0 

Net Cost to Participants 5,225,514 4,684,366 2,297,701 {541,148) -10.36% 

Net Annual Generation (MWh) 9,663 10,034 0 371 3.84% 

Est. Net Cost per MWh $541 $467 $0 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

CT2 - FY26 Prop osed Budget - Projects 

0 & M Projects $6,969 
Gas Plants Shared 6,969 

Capital Projects $10,000 
Vehicles 10,000 

Maintenance Reserve $0 
Reserve Funding 0 

Estimated FY26 CT2 Maintenance Reserve Ending Balance $617,280 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

CT2 Repower 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

CT2 Repower - FY26 Prop osed Budget (version 2) 

Disb arsements 
Construction Costs 

E nQ!ne and Controls 

' etrofit .IE:xhaus P ackage 
P f ans & Designs 

0 · side Setvices - E ngi . ee ·ng 
Interconnection Repower S tu~ 
Balance of P Pant, C ontrol. fnlet Chilfers 

T oto Construction Costs 

L,egal a nd Consu l ·n g Co.sts 
Legal Cons ultant 
Docume t C ont rol Consultant 

CA E nvirom ent_~l gu_afity o . {C EQA.) Con~uttant 
Air Permit Cons ultant 

G reen ouse Gas Offset Co su'Etant 

T,otal Legal a:n d Consulting Costs 

Total Expe nd itur,es 

Reoeipts 
E stimated Decomission:mg Reserve ran ers at 6/30/2025 

FY 26 Participant Contribution s f 6m c of~ec ion schedule) 

E stimat ed M aintenance R eserve ransfers at . 2131/2025 

Tota Receipts 
1(ExoessVOeficit of Funds 

.,.Resorution 2 16 a pproved 112312025 

.. A~p_r:f?V~ 
FY 20.25 
Budget" 

$1 .1300.000 
955 .000 

· .887 

00.000 
100,000 
100.000 
100.000 
00.000 

~_r~~~ 
FY2026 
Budge t 

2 , 55, 6 

0 

0 

0 



~CPA N O RT H E R N CAL I F O R N I A P O W E R AG E N CY 

LEC 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

LEC - FY26 Proposed Budget (version 2) 

FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 
Approved Approved Proposed Increase/ % 

Budget Budget Budget (Decrease) Change 

O&M and Other Costs 128,221,884 142,656,476 105,719,590 (36,936,886) -25.89% 

Labor 6,167,244 6,650,919 7,297,521 646,602 9.72% 

Projects 3,912,592 10,857,834 10,330,272 {527,562) -4.86% 

Annual Budget Cost 138,301,720 160,165,229 123,347,383 (36,817,846) -22.99% 

Less: Revenues 139,790,935 133,313,005 92,871,719 {40,441,286) -30.34% 

Est. Avg Market Price $95 $101 $84 -16.19% 

Net Cost to Participants (1,489,215) 26,852,224 30,475,664 28,341,439 

Net Annual Generation (MWh) 1,303,566 1,127,248 925,691 {201,557) -15.46% 

Est. Net Cost per MWh ($1) $24 $33 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

LEC - FY26 Prop osed Budget - Projects 

0 & M Projects 
Annual Maintenance Outage 

Water Tank Refurbishment 

Plant O&M Projects 

Insurance Risk Mitigation 

ARC Flash Study 

HVAC Parts Replacement 

High Energy Piping Inspection 

Gas Plants Shared 

APPROPRIATE PPE REQUIRED 
t.•• r.t.l'lll!t"J ,t>,u, 

_..,... "",,_..,.,~ Gtrw•C 
lNIWM. ~1'1111 00 

il/1! In I.JrtlN ~ ......... _ 
~ • .vr ---

•· 

$2,452,969 
1,183,058 

475,000 

375,000 

140,000 

120,000 

75,000 

50,000 

34,911 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

LEC - FY26 Proposed Budget - Projects ( cont.) 

Capital Projects 
FX Turbine Upgrade 

AT&T ECN Circuit Migration to Fiber 

Clarifier Tank Refurbishment 

Steam Turbine Drain Tank Replacement 

Civil/Structural Plant Improvements 

Vehicles 

Maintenance Reserve 
Reserve Funding 

Use of Maintenance Reserve Collections 
Plant Projects 

HRSG 
Steam Turbine 

Combustion Turbine (Overhaul) 

Estimated FY26 LEC Maintenance Reserve Ending Balance 

-
$5,024,831 

3,059,831 

1,250,000 

375,000 

250,000 

80,000 

10,000 

$2,852,472 
2,852,472 

($2,985,000) 
(1,120,000) 

(145,000) 

(1,000,000) 

(720,000) 

$4,767,327 
• O'S "" 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Legislative & Regulatory 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Legislative & Regulatory - FY26 Proposed Budget 

FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 

Approved Approved Proposed Increase/ % 

Budget Budget Budget (Decrease) Change 

Legislative 992,614 985,459 1,082,459 97,000 9.84% 

Regulatory 339,083 369,563 390,563 21,000 5.68% 

Western 180,057 211,510 211,510 0 0.00% 

Customer Programs 232,100 217,785 97,785 (120,000) -55.10% 

Total Operational Budget 1,743,854 1,784,317 1,782,317 (2,000) -0.11% 

Labor 1,978,630 1,923,154 2,095,032 171,878 8.94% 

Other (A&G, Occupancy Costs) 706,846 729,204 758,266 29,062 3.99% 

Less: Interest Income 15,348 15,348 15,348 0 0.00% 

Net Cost to Participants 4,413,982 4,421,327 4,620,267 198,940 4.51% 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Power Management 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Power Management - FY26 Proposed Budget 

FY2024 FY2025 FV2026 

Approved Approved Proposed Increase/ % 

Budget Budget Budget (Decrease) Change 

Power Management 
1 836,573 1,101,043 1,329,550 228,507 20.75% 

Labor 9,017,160 10,056,542 11,350,220 1,293,678 12.86% 

Other (A&G, Occupancy Costs) 2,506,176 5,776,396 3,096,163 (2,680,233) -46.40% 

Less: Interest Income 36,832 37,650 37,650 0 0.00% 

Net Cost to Participants 12,323,077 16,896,331 15,738,283 {1,158,048} -6.85% 

1Power Management consists of Administration, Dispatch & Scheduling, Pooling & Portfolio Management, and Industry Restructuring. 



~CPA N O RT H E R N CAL I F O R N I A POW E R AG E N CY 

Power Management - FY26 Proposed Budget cont'd 
FV2024 FV2025 FV2026 

Approved Approved Proposed Increase/ 

Budget Budget Budget (Decrease) 

Net Cost to Participants 12,323,077 16,896,331 15,738,283 (1,158,048) 

Less: PM Service Revenue 2,591,866 2,885,930 2,946,574 60,644 

Adjusted PM Cost 9,731,211 14,010,401 12,791,709 (1,218,692} 

PM revenue assumptions: 
✓ San Jose Clean Energy - $797,590 

✓ East Bay Community Energy - $737,608 

✓ Placer County Water Agency - $493,452 

✓ Merced Irrigation District - $475,176 

✓ Sonoma Clean Power - $205,000 

✓ Lodi Strategic Reserve - $200,000 

✓ Nevada Irrigation District - $37,748 



,,,AiGCPA N O R T H E R N CAL I F O R N I A P O W E R AG E N C Y 

Executive & 

Administrative Services 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Exec. & Admin Services - FY26 Proposed Budget 
FV2024 FV2025 FV2026 

Approved Approved Proposed Increase/ % 

Budget Budget Budget (Decrease) Change 

General Manager 556,100 537,100 537,100 0 0.0% 

NERC Compliance 132,050 77,850 76,400 {1,450) -1.1% 

General Counsel 1,750,350 1,836,620 2,016,620 I 180,000 I 10.3% 

AGM Ad min Services 118,100 115,600 115,600 0 0.0% 

Accounting & Finance 228,200 232,240 219,350 (12,890} -5.6% 

Information Services 1,553,095 2,118,761 2,182,361 63,600 4.1% 

Human Resouces 328,250 318,550 236,850 (81,700) -24.9% 

Risk Management 2,047,997 2,301,727 2,474,126 172,399 8.4% 

Facilities 778,594 4,346,944 757,889 {3,589,055} -461.0% 

Labor 11,538,798 12,989,290 14,168,489 1,179,199 10.2% 

Less: Third Party Revenue 17,500 65,500 65,500 0 0.0% 

!Net Cost 19,014,034 24,809,182 22,719,285 (2,089,897) -11.0%1 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Staffing, 

Salaries & Benefits 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Staffing FTE Count - FY26 Proposed Budget 

FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 
Approved Approved Approved Approved Proposed Proposed Increase/ 

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget (Decrease) 

FTEs 169 169 169 169 170 170 0 

Casual (Interns) 2.23 2.23 2.85 3.77 3.69 3.69 0.00 

171 171 172 173 174 174 0.00 

Per AB2561 
Allocation Vacancies % Open 

Unrepresented 106 3 2.83% 

IBEW 52 3 5.77% 

HEA 12 1 8.33% 

Total 170 

As of 3/19/25 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Salaries - FY26 Prop osed Budget 

FY2025 FY2026 

Approved Proposed Increase % Change 

Salaries 27,923,276 29,194,362 \ 1,271,086 4.55% 

Merit & Salary Adjs. 484,506 825,894 341,388 70.46% 

Overtime 2,582,236 3,031,285 449,049 17.39% 

Misc Pays 365,344 389,380 24,036 6.58% 

Vacation Sell Back 0 344,154 NEW 

Total Salaries 31,355,362 33,785,075 ! 2,429,713 7.75% 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Benefits - FY26 Prop osed Budget 

14,000,000 

12,000,000 

10,000,000 

8,000,000 

6,000,000 

4,000,000 

2,000,000 

0 

PERS Medical 
- • 
Deferred 

Compensation 

■ FY2025 
Approved 

■ I I 
OPES FICA/SUI 

■ FY2026 
Proposed 

- -
Workers 
Comp 

--Dental, 
Vision, and 

Other 



' 

~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Salaries & Benefits - FY26 Prop osed Budget 

Labor Total 

Budget (net of Revs) 

% of Labor 

FY2025 
Approved 

52,359,813 

566,052,051 

9.25% 

FY2026 
Proposed 

57,805,132 ' 

506,207,749 

11.42% 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

N ext Steps- FY26 Proposed Budget 

• Final budget adjustments/allocations 

• Reductions in Salaries & Benefits 

• Addition of Decommissioning Reserve collections 

- CTl and LEC 

• Misc. adjustments across the Agency 

• Final budget reviews 

• Facilities (April 2) 

• LEC PPC (April 7) 

• UDs (April 10) 

• Commission Approval (April 24) 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

FY2026 Budget 

Summary Overview 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Questions? 


	2_Draft_Minutes_022025
	3_GM_Business_Progress_Report
	5_FAC_Committee_Draft_Minutes
	10_Financial_Report_Jan_2025
	11_Financial_Report_Feb_2025
	12_Treasurers_Report_Month_Ended_ Jan_2025
	13_Treasurers_Report_Month_Ended_ Feb_2025
	14_Coffman_Engineers_Inc_Five_Year_MTGSA
	15_MP_Environmental_Services_Inc_Second_Amendment_to_Five_Year_MTGSA
	16_Epidendio_Construction_Inc_First_Amendment_to_Five_Year_MTGSA
	17_Brian_Davis_dba_Northern_Industrial_Constructions_First_Amendment_to_Five_Year_MTGSA
	18_Brenntag_Pacific_Inc_Five_Year_MTA_for_Purchase_Of_Equipment
	19_Amendment_to_Exhibit_A_of_the_Third_Phase_Agreement_for_Renewable_Power_Purchase_Agreement_with_Grace_Orchard_Energy_Center_LLC
	20_Proposed_Annual_Budget_Review_for_FY_2026



